


Our diverse

offering

Throughout this report we focus on how
we are delivering on the Group's strategy
of diversifying revenue in both our trading
and investing businesses. This includes
delivery of new investing platforms in the
UK and Singapore along with additional
products for institutional clients

within trading.
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CMC is aleading global provider of
online trading and investing, with a

comprehensive retail, professional
and institutional offering.

The business was started in 1989
with a simple ethos: to make financial
markets truly accessible for investors.
This fundamental belief remains at the
heart of everything we do at CMC
Markets and staying true to that has
been pivotal to our success.

e

See more at www.cmcmarkets.com
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Our strategic roadmap

Our vision Our purpose

To create an environment To constantly maintain
for your financial needs a superior and unrivalled

technology experience
for our clients

Our strategic pillars

01 5 ; : (0K

Trading platform product - ;lnvestlflent in Busine 0

‘ &%
Expansion of invest platforms

diversification : Business (“BZB”)techndlggy ' - and institutional offering

capability

Seemore onpage 24 See more on page 25
b See more onpage 25

Our sustainability pillars

o1

Client
Positive

(07] (0K

Platform People
Positive Positive

04

Change
Positive

05

Planet
Positive

See more on page 36 See more on page 38 Seemore on page 42 See more on page 39 See more on page 45

The things we live by

We stand with our clients, We are human,
We take ownership, We are bold, We work as a team,
We keep it simple, We focus onimpact

2-CMC Markets plc
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Ataglance

Our client base

Total active clients*

270047

CMC attracts adiverse range of
institutional and retail clients across both
our trading and investing platforms. In
addition, our new and forthcoming
investing platforms provide the Group
with access to a cohort of clientsin new
geographies, with the aim of providing
clients with opportunities for long-term
investment as another avenue to
building financial security.

As we expand into new markets, we
expect to welcome a new cohort of
clients with whom we aim to establish
enduring partnerships. Regardless of
client type, we uphold our high
standards of protection and suitability
to ensure every client receives the
same level of service excellence.

D

Net
revenue' by
clientbase

A — Trading B2B2-22%
B - Investing B2B-9%
C - Trading B2C®-64%
D - InvestingB2C -5%

1 CFDandspreadbet gross clientincome net of rebates, levies and risk management gains or losses and stockbroki_ﬁg revenue netof rebates.

2 Businesstobusiness (‘B2B”) —revenue frominstitutional clients and partnerships.
3 Businesstoconsumer (‘B2C”) —revenue from retail and professional clients.

4 Activeclientsrepresent those individual clients which have traded with or held CFD or spread bet positions o"rWon the Investplatformonatleastone. 0 S

_Rinancial statements

% Our geographical reach
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With a presence in 14 offices located M. ; >

major financial centres around the
world, CMC Markets operateson a

_ hub-and-spoke model. The company’s

headquarters are based in London,
while Germany serves as the hub for
our European operations, and Sydney
acts as the hub to support the Asia
Pacific & Canada (“APAC &

Canada”) region.

CMC willimminently launch a new
investment platformin Singapore, has
expanded our office in Dubaiand we
are exploring the possibility of launching
additional investing platforms in more
jurisdictions in the coming year.

A > .
Net A ko L
revenue' by - '
region
=]
1 ;‘;,6
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B — Europe -19%
C — APAC & Canada-49%

Read more about net revenue on page 62
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Our product offering

Contracts for difference
(“CFDs”)

Afinancial derivative product which
allows clients to speculate on price
changesinan underlying financial asset,
without certain costs and limitations
associated with physical ownership.

See more at www.cmcmarkets.com

Spread betting

Aproduct available exclusively to
residentsin the UK and Ireland which
is similar in many aspects to our
CFD product.

See more at www.cmcmarkets.com

Technology-driven

liquidity solution

Under our B2Barm, CMC Connect acts
as anon-bank liquidity provider offering
access to awide range of asset classes
including Spot FX, the globalinstitutional
standardin FX trading, exchange traded
funds ("ETFs”) and cash equities, which
are due to be released during 2024. For
larger institutions, we are able to offer
bespoke solutions to help facilitate and
access multi-asset class liquidity.

Outsourced trading
platform technology

We outsource our platform technology
to clients also under the CMC Connect
brand, where our award-winning CMC
trading platform can be fully customised
under a white-label partnership or
alternatively under a neutrally branded
platform for regulated entities looking to
introduce clients or trade on their behalf.

4-CMC Markets plc
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Stockbroking

Our Australian stockbroking business
offers our clients the opportunity to

trade Australian shares and international
shares from over 35 listing exchanges
inover 16 countries. This has been
supported through the launch of a fully
functional native mobile application
offering a variety of instruments including
shares, options, managed funds,
warrantsand ETFs.

Our UK business currently offers General
Investment Accounts (“GlAs”) and
Stocks and SharesISAs withaccesstoa
range of US and UK stocks, with mutual
funds and Self-Invested Pension Plans
("SIPPs”) being launched shortly. The
Group also plans to launch CMC Invest
within Singapore imminently.

Options

The addition of options on CMC's trading
platforms will bring added benefits to
our clients. New derivative products will
provide more flexibility to manage risks
and volatility compared to traditional
CFD and stock trading. Options and
other derivative products have the ability
toenhance portfolio diversificationand
reduce and manage risk compared to
many other financial instruments. Lastly,
the global options market is significant,
and the addition of these products has
the potential to be a significant revenue
generator for CMC and its stakeholders.


http://www.cmcmarkets.com
http://www.cmcmarkets.com
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Our business

Financial statements

Shareholder information 0

Trading

We are committed to expanding the range of
our productsinorder toimprove functionality
for our clients. With over 10,000 products
currently available through our trading
platforms, we aim to provide the most efficient
pricing structure possible. Our pricing system
undergoes continuous evolution toensure
sophistication and minimise latency. We

use high precision clock time-stamping
atmultiple points throughout the system
tomeasure latency in microseconds and
monitoritinrealtime. Our internal reporting
onbestexecutionenablesustosethigh
standards for execution quality.

We prioritise internal risk management

by storing trade andrisk datainahigh
frequency tick database. This enables us
torecord all stages of the risk management
system, ensuring that client order flow is
managed efficiently.

Toachieve this, we have large quantitative
analyticsanddatascience teamsthat
develop the hardware and software
components of our analytics environment.
Datascience and machine learningmodels
alsoplay acrucialroleinourreal-time and
offline decision-making processes.

Our ultimate goalis to offer our

clients market-leading access to liquidity,
alongside a best-in-class andresilient
platformacross allaspects of our offering.

Products utilised

Sustainability

Our Tomorrow: taking a positive position

Investing

We see significant growth potential
across global investment platforms due
tosecular shiftsininvestment trends,
and we are expanding our investing
businesses to capitalise onthese
opportunities. Following the success

of our Australian stockbroking business,

we launched our Invest UK platform

in April 2022 to tap into the growing
market for self-managed investing. This
iscomplemented with the imminent
launch of our Invest Singapore offering.
These strategic moves will help us to
establish more balanced and diversified

income streams for the Group over time.

See more on page 12

Products utilised

Institutional

Ourinstitutional clients are served by both
the trading and investing businesses.
Through our CMC Connect brand we
offer technology-backed solutions to
mid-sized and large financial institutions
inadditionto our retail services. CMC

is already a trusted service provider

for execution, clearing, and settliement
services to several Australian financial
servicelicensees.

Our B2B partnership directive will expand
toallour existing and new geographies
over the next 12 months. With growth
from our investing operations, we are
strategically positioning our business
toleverage some of the fastest growing
trends in trading and investing.

Our continued development work to
connect to multiple Electronic Crossing
Networks (“ECNs”) and the deployment
of acompetitive FX Spot product now
allow for significant growthin this asset
class.In2023 CMC Markets delivered
a95% uptick in B2B volumes versus the
prior year.

See more on page 12

Products utilised

Our goalat CMC Marketsis to align with the global capital markets’movement towards a sustainable future. We aim to achieve this by offering responsible
and innovative technological solutions that prioritise the protection, education, and inspiration of both our people and clients to invest for the future.

See more on page 34
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Operational highlights

— Whilst annual trading client numbers are down 9% from
2022, monthly active clients are up 25% compared to

pre-pandemic levels.

— Retention of trading clientincome® of 77% (2022: 80%).

— Continued to enhance the product offering within the
CMC Invest UK platform, with future developments on

track for release during 2024.

— Operational resilience remains high, with trading
platform uptime of 99.97% and investing platform

uptime of 99.93%.

to £3,968.

— Investment in the institutional business, through

enhancements to Spot FX including the launch of Give-
Ups, has resulted in a 95% increase in notional volumes.

Financial highlights

Net operating income'

£288.4m

22 £281.9m
21 £409.8m
Trading platform uptime
O
99.97%
22 99.95%
21 99.95%

Trading gross clientincome*

£303.5m

22 £288.5m

21 £335.3m

Statutory profit before tax’

£52.2m
es22m

22 £91.5m

21 £223.3m

Investing active clients?

218,310

22 246,120

21 232,053

Basic earnings per sharey’

14.7p
El

22 24.6p

21 61.3p

Net operatingincome represents total revenue net of introducing partner commissions and spread betting levies.
Active clients represent those individual clients who traded or held positions on the Next Generation platforms or traded on the Invest platforms on at least one occasion during the financial year.
Netrevenue generated from CFD and spread bet active clients. A reconciliation of revenue alternative performance measures (‘APMs”) to the Group’s primary statements can be found on page 188.

Ordinary dividends paid/proposed relating to the financial year.

— Trading revenue per active client up £393 (11%)

— B2Brepresents 31% of net revenue at £83.4 miillion.

Read more about net revenue and our financial measures on page 60

Trading active clients?

58,737

22 64,243

21 76,591

Trading revenue per active client®

£3,968

22 £3,575

21 £4,560

Ordinary dividend per share®

21 30.63p

The percentage of CFD and spread bet gross clientincome retained after rebates and gains or losses from risk management activities.

1
2
3
4 Spreads, financingand commissions on CFD and spread bet client trades.
5
6
7

2022 and 2021figures restated. Refer to note 33 for more information on 2022 restatement.

6-CMC Marketsplc
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Investment case

Award-winning

platforms 10,000+

Seemore onpages29to 33 financial instruments traded across
the CFD platform and over 40,000
instruments within Invest Australia

Ourdiverse

product offering 1 6%
share of Australian stockbroking market'

Launch of the Invest UK business.
Accessing a UK D2C market with some
£287 billion® of AuA

Our geographical
49%
of netrevenue generated outside the UK
and Europe regions
Our client
277,047
)
58,737 trading active clients and 218,310

investing active clients

Our Tomorrow

Seemore onpages 34048 5

core sustainability pillars

1 ASXand Chi-X combined trading statistics — IRESS.
2 Platforumdata February 2023.

Financial statements Shareholder information 0

The demands of our clients continue to evolve. Our purpose

is to constantly maintain a superior and unrivalled technology
experience for our clients. Continuous investment in our
proprietary technology across both our trading and investing
platforms allows us to offer a wide suite of products. Our online
and mobile platforms are continuously ranked as best-in-class by
ourclients.

We are investing to diversify by offering new products and
functionality across both our trading and investing platforms.

CFD and spread bet revenue remains at the core of what we

do. Thisis balanced with a world-class investing business in
Australia. Similarly, the launch of CMC Invest UK, the new UK
investment platform, underpins our expansion into the high growth
opportunities being seen across all of our geographies and meets
clientdemands.

Our global technology platforms allow access for retail,
professional and institutional clients through regulated offices and
branchesin 12 countries, with a significant presence inthe UK,
Australia, Germany and Singapore.

Our clients are at the heart of what we do, and their input is
intrinsic toimproving our business processes across product
development, marketing and client services as we tailor new
developments and target improvements. We employ and train
high quality client services staff to ensure best-in-class client
service. Platformresilience and user experience are at the core of
alldevelopments and upgrades we deploy.

Inthe previous year, we unveiled the Group’s sustainability
strategy, encompassing five strategic pillars designed to address
the material issues identified in our comprehensive materiality
assessment. This year, our primary emphasis was on establishing
specific goals and objectives related to these materialissues. We
diligently identified operational and performance targets, along
with appropriate metrics, and gained a deeper understanding of
our existing data sets within these domains.

7-CMC Markets plc
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The Board's strategy of income diversification through adapting and building
onour superior technology continues to develop. Whilst many of the benefits
of this diversification will only be seen over the longer term, itis becoming more
apparent as we continue to develop our offering how our business willchange
tothe benefit of our stakeholders over time.

We have maintained an ongoing dialogue with our clients and gathered their
feedback in order to develop further our products and platforms. Our staff
continue to be pivotal to both this development and our growth strategy. As
well as continuing toinvest in our current people, enhancing engagement
processes and career development practices, we have invested in additional
resourcesinorder to ensure we are able to continue to adapt at the correct
pace to achieve our growth plans.

Results and dividend

Net operating income rose 2% to £288.4 millionin the year, following a more
challenging environment in the final quarter of 2023 with lower monetisation
of client trading activity and increasing costs arising from the fulfiment of our
growth strategy.

Profit after tax for the year was £41.4 million. The Board recommends a final
dividend of 3.90 pence per share which results in a total dividend payment of
7.40 pence for the year, equal to 50% of profit after tax.

Board

Asdiscussedin the 2022 Annual Report and Financial Statements, we

were sorry to lose Clare Salmon from the Board during the year. We were
however delighted to welcome both Susanne Chishtiand Clare Francis to the
Board during the course of the year. Susanne is our Non-Executive Director
responsible for workforce engagement, and Clare is Chair of the Group Risk
Committee and our Director responsible for Consumer Duty.

People and stakeholders

Our workforce is our most valuable resource, and their efforts towards fulfilling
our strategic goals in diversifying our business have resulted in solid progress
across all business areas working towards that goal.

Our people strategy this last year has become a much more prominent
itemin Board and relevant Board Committee meetings. The scope of the
work undertaken by Susanne as our designated Non-Executive Director
responsible for workforce engagement s set out on page 86.

Our focus of expanding our product offering across our core trading and investing
platforms has led to our workforce growing by 28% over the past year.
Additionally, attracting the best talent helps to drive innovation and technology
development, whichis critical in today’s fast-paced business environment.

The Board would like to express gratitude to all our employees for their
significant contributions.

Sustainable based growth

Sustainability is an essential factor in the decision-making process for financial
institutions that aim to achieve long-term growth. Integrating sustainability

into business strategies helps financial institutions to reduce risks, increase
opportunities,and enhance their reputation.

Financial statements Shareholder information

0

“Our diversification strategy,
whilst creating short-term
pressures on resources and
returns because of associated
costs, will put the Groupina
strong position for the longer
term. This will be achieved
through an increased product
range, the full roll-out of the new
investment platform and the
expansion of our international
business.”

At CMC we recognise that customers and investors are increasingly
demanding that businesses prioritise sustainability, and financial institutions
that fail to do so may face reputational damage or loss of business. Read more
inour Sustainability section onpages 34 to 48.

Outlook

We will continue our diversification strategy and seek growth into new
products and geographies. The businessis evolving at pace and investment
will continue in partnership with our clients in order to maximise opportunities
asthey arise.

The Board recognises that this rapid period of growth does place pressure
onour resources. The Board regularly discusses the risks and opportunities
surrounding our strategy and this will continue to be a key area of consideration
over the coming year as our growth plan continues to develop at pace.

The Board will also be carefully monitoring volatility in financial markets and
ensuring that the Group is prepared to deal with any unexpected events and
taking note of certain market events creating uncertainty in recent months.
We have made significant investments in our infrastructure in order to ensure
we have a stable foundation on which to continue to grow and maintain
ourresilience.

6’»“}‘“ £~ A ondls

James Richards
Chairman
13June 2023
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Market overview

Leading the
market through
technology ana
diversification

Whilst the Group currently generates the majority
of its revenue from retail trading products, our
strategy to diversify has accelerated during the
year with a range of new product offerings within
both our investing and trading businesses. Group
revenues are split between our three regions, the
UK, Europe and APAC & Canada.

1 Investment Trends September 2022 - Singapore Online Investing Report.

2 https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/annual-savings-statistics-2022/commentary-
for-annual-savings-statistics-june-2022
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Group

Key market driver

Global interest rate environment
The period saw central banks in the majority of the Group’s markets raise
interest rates steeply fromthe historically low levels seeninrecent years.

Our response

The environment of rising interest rates, combined with a high inflationary
environment, has resulted in changes in client appetite to trade in certain
asset classes, most significantly ininvesting products, where investors
have reduced their activity given the uncertain economic outlook.

This change in client behaviour has been offset by significantincreases
ininterestincome for the Group, as operational and client cash balances
have been optimised to ensure appropriate returns on balances held.

The Group offers clients a diverse range of products across its
businesses and s investing significantly to enhance this offering further.
This broad offering enables clients to maintain all their financial needsin
multiple macroeconomic environments.

Key market driver

Inflation

The period saw a continuation of the highly inflationary environment in the
majority of markets that began to emerge towards the end of 2021.

Our response

The inflationary environment has had animpact on the Group’'s staff
expenses, driven by the need to attract and retain key talentinan
inflationary environment with unemployment at historically low levels.
Non-staff expenses have also beenimpacted throughincreasesin
energy costs along with suppliers passing on the impacts of inflation on
their cost base.

Key market driver

Scale

Operating at scale has significant benefits to the Group, with further
opportunities for risk management enhancements in the trading business
andimproved revenue within investing.

Our response

The clients onboarded during the ‘meme stock’ period in Q4 2021 have
seenaslightly higher attrition rate compared to other cohorts. However,
clientlevels remain broadly 25% higher than those seenin the pre-
COVID-19 period.

The Group continues to enhance its product offering to both retailand
institutional clients and is confident that it can continue to grow its client
base whilst benefiting from revenue diversity.

&


https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/annual-savings-statistics-2022/commentary-for-annual-savings-statistics-june-2022
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/annual-savings-statistics-2022/commentary-for-annual-savings-statistics-june-2022
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Investing

Key market driver

Volatility
The year saw periods of elevated volatility within markets, with the
majority of major stock indices declining over the period.

Our response

Despite the challenging environment for investing, CMC Invest

remains committed to supporting our clients inidentifying investment
opportunities through our innovative tools andresources. In Australia, we
are proud to offer our clients access to our award-winning mobile app,
cutting-edge algorithmic trading, and enriched educational content, all
designed to help investors make informed decisions in uncertaintimes.

Financial statements

Shareholder information 0

Trading

Key market driver

Regulatory change

In April 2022, ASIC extended its product intervention order for CFDs,
whichimposes conditions onthe issue and distribution of CFDs for
another five years, until 23 May 2027.

Our response

This extension has provided greater regulatory visibility for the Group,
ensuring that it can continue to operate within the regulatory framework
while growing its business.

The Group maintains engagement with regulators, to ensure that we are
compliant across alljurisdictions we operate within. We consistently strive
toensure our approach is market leading, whilst also allowing the Group
tobeinvolved in shaping future regulations within the sector.

The Group continues to be supportive of regulatory change that moves
towards a globally consistent regulatory environment.

Key market driver

Market size and share

Anindependent reportin Australia shows arise in online cash equities
transactions completed by 1.51 million individuals inthe past 12 months,
compared to 1.47 millionin May 2022. The addressable market within the
UK and Singapore is substantial with more than 300,000 online investors
in Singapore and 3.5 million? Stocks and Shares ISA holdersin the UK.

Our response

During the year, ANZ Bank clients successfully transitioned to the CMC
Invest brand and our award-winning CMC rate card, leading to a 44%
reductionin brokerage rates for former ANZ clients. This boosted our
brand awareness and consolidated our position as Australia’'s second-
largest retail broker with 16% of market share. We strategically positioned
our offering for the future by implementing a targeted retail pricing strategy
thatimproved our mobile offering, and introduced extended-hours
trading onthe US market.

We have recently launched our UK, and willimminently launch the
Singapore, Invest platforms to capture a portion of the significant
addressable client numbers withinthose markets.

Key market driver

Volatility

The year saw periods of increased volatility within markets, particularly
withincommodities, with the majority of major stock indices declining
over the period.

Our response

Higher volatility resultsinincreased trading activity from both existing clients
trading more frequently and new or previously inactive clients starting to
trade. However, short bursts of market activity which result in high velocity
movementsin the products that we offer are not necessarily beneficial to
our clients or the Group. Aside from notifying clients of changing levels of
market activity inatimely manner through a flexible marketing strategy, the
Group can have little influence on capitalising more or less than competitors
during short-term periods of raised market volatility.

Key market driver

Seasonality

In Australia the traditionally strong August and February earning seasons
have been muted due to arenewed focus on costs and prudencein
dividend distributions, dampening the appetite for equity investment.

11-CMC Markets plc
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Business model

Our business enablers

Technology and product

Technology and product has always beenkey to the
success of CMC Markets and this has won the business
recognition as the leader in our industry forinnovation
and service. Recognising thatinnovationis key to
retaining this reputation, the Group has continued to
invest significantly across the business to deliver new
products and offerings to our clients, with numerous new
products made available to clients during 2023.

See more on pages 29to 33

“Our Tomorrow: taking a positive
position” sustainability strategy

We launched our sustainability strategy in 2022 which
has shaped the sustainability activity for the Group
within 2023 and beyond. We have continued to drive a
sustainable business model through our five core pillars
which highlight how we protect, empower,innovate and
adapt tobe aresponsible business thatis committed to
the needs of people and our planet.

See more on pages 34t048

Financial strength

We aim to maintain our secure capital and liquidity
structure, ensuring thatitis appropriate for the

future growth and success of the Group. This
includes maintaining long-termlevels of capital to
withstand the demands of fluctuations in the financial
markets and access to a healthy level of surplus liquid
resources in line with the size of our business and the
growth opportunities.

See more on pages 60 to 66

Risk management

The Group's business activities naturally expose it to
strategic, financialand operational risks inherentin the
nature of the business it undertakes and the financial,
market and regulatory environments in whichit operates.
The Group recognises the importance of understanding
and managing these risks and that it cannot place a cap
orlimitonall of the risks to which the Groupis exposed.
However, effective risk management ensures that risks
are managedtoanacceptable level.

See more on pages 67t073
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Our client offering

Our clients are at the heart of
everything that we do.

Institutional (business to business)

CMC Connectacts as anon-bank liquidity provider offering access to
awide range of asset classes.

B

Trading - Investing
Contracts for Institutional Invest platforms
difference + (Australia, UK and Singapore)
Spread betting White-label solutions

Retail

White-label solutions

Multi-asset class
liquidity

v
Retail (business to consumer)

CMC Markets provides clients access to a wide range of products
across both trading and investing.

Our technology platforms

Our superior platforms and technology, combined with our risk management, deliver a best-in-class
experience for our clients and partners.

Risk management

Our trade andrisk systems generate real-time pricing, automate trade execution and optimise our risk
management process through better aggregation of client flows. They also bring scale and stability to our
platforms, especially during volatile market conditions. This enhances the client trading experience and
lessens the risk of price quotation outages.

CSee more onpages 67to73 )




~ Who our clients are
— Sophisticated
— Highvalue & 3.
— Experienced S

Governance

&3 -_\_Nhat we offer them:

S ='Cutting-edge technology
‘i~ Competitive pricing

8 = Excellentclient services

S - - Diverse product suite

How we make money
Trading

Gross clientincome

£303.5m

Spreads

Revenue earned through maintaining a transactional
spread (the difference between the buy and sell price)
on CFD and spread bet products.

Commissions

These are charged on both CFD equity trades and
institutional DMA trades. Clients are either charged a
minimum commission or a percentage based onthe
value of the trade.

Financing

Positions held by clients overnight may be subject
to financing costs, which can be positive or negative
depending on the direction of their holdingand the
applicable financing rate.

Investing

£379m

Net revenue in Australia predominantly earned
through brokerage charged for the execution of
exchange traded products, options, warrants,
ETFs, managed funds, interest rate securities and
bonds. Further, we earn feesincluding FX revenue
oninternational shares, and equity capital markets
("ECM")income.

Read more about our investing strategy
inour CEQ’s overview on pages 20 to 23

Rebates and levies

£(204m)

Volume-based rebates paid to professional, high value
retail and institutional clients and introducing brokers
onselected asset classes.

Risk management gains/(losses)

£(50.0m)

Revenue or losses from management of client
positions that the Group inherits. This consists of
gains or losses which accrue to the Group through
client positions and, secondly, the gains or losses
whichaccrue to the Group through the hedge
positions entered into by the Group, including
hedge transaction costs.

Retained clientincome

1%

The percentage of gross clientincome retained after
rebates and gains or losses from risk management
activities.

Interestincome - trading
andinvesting

£13.9m

Interestincome from the Group’s own cash and
clientdeposits.

Otherincome

£3.5m

Primarily income from charges on dormant
accounts and market data costs passed onto
B2B clients.

Financial statements

Shareholder information 0

How we add value

Sl

Shareholders

Dividend per share

740 pence

down 4.98 pence from 2022

Earnings per share

14.7 pence

down 9.9 pence from 2022

OOO

People

M%

employee engagement’
(2022:66%)

21%

permanent employees with us
forover five years

209
K

Clients

06%

gross clientincome generated from
trading clients of tenure greater
thantwoyears

14

awards for service
platform and technology

1 CultureAmpinternal survey. Percentage of
employees with fullengagement.
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Section 172 statement

Relationships with stakeholders

At CMC we understand our responsibilities towards all of our stakeholders.
We take these responsibilities seriously and continuously interact with all
partners with the aim of providing responsible and sustainable solutions for
all. More information on our engagement with stakeholders and the outcomes
over the financial year under review is included on pages 16 to 19.

The Directors are mindful of their duty under Section 172 of the Companies
Act 2006 (Section172) to actina way which they consider, in good faith,
ismost likely to promote the success of the Company and its members
asawhole and, in doing so, consider the matters set outin Section 172 at
eachmeeting. This includes,amongst other things, having regard to wider
stakeholder interests when making decisions and considering the interests of
the various stakeholders.

Our stakeholders

Shareholders

Clients

Regulators

Suppliers

14 - CMC Markets plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2023

Environment

Local community
/charities
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Key decisions

The key matters, and theirimpact on stakeholder interests, considered by the Board and/or management during the year are set out below:

Managed separation With the launch of CMC Invest in the UK, alongside a growing B2B platform
|] E&% 200

business, the Board undertook a strategic review to evaluate the merits of a
managed separation of the trading and investing businesses of the Group.

The review was consistent with the Board's continuous evaluation of strategic
opportunities to maximise shareholder value. After due consideration it was
concluded that, given the strong commercial and operational synergies between
the trading and investing businesses, stakeholders' interests would be best served
by ensuring that both businesses continue to operate within the current Group structure.

Application for alicence The Board agreed to apply for,and was pleased to be granted, alicence by the @
in Singapore regulatory authorities in Singapore to operate its Invest platform within the country. @Sy am
The Board continues tolook at other regions in which to expand as part of the
Group's growth strategy.

Three-year growth plan The Group's three-year growth plan, highlighted in the last Annual Report, was -
and strategic priorities discussed with senior management during the year and integrated into the people @
and technology plans. Potential issues relating to ensuring the business was
appropriately resourced to complete the numerous projects arising from the plan
were considered and actions taken, including the opening of a Manchester office
andthe expansionin Singapore. Despite difficult recruitment markets, we have
grown headcountin key areas during the year and restructured some key support
areas to ensure that we can manage our growth strategy. Recruitment markets
continue to cause us challenges in sourcing the right people and this is kept under
continuous review. The impact of the currentinflationary pressures is also regularly
discussed by the Board.

whether the current dividend policy was appropriate and how it interacted with
the share buyback programme that had been introduced. It was agreed that no
changes would be made at present.

Dividend Inresponse to aregular theme of shareholder enquiry, the Board reviewed
Sl

Sustainability strategy The Board recognises the importance of ensuring the sustainable growth of the
and targets Group. Following recommendations from the Sustainability Committee, which
was set upin April 2022 by the business andis chaired by the Group Head of
Sustainability, the Board has set targets on how we intend to monitor and measure
sustainability metrics which will support our objectives. More information is

included in the sustainability section on pages 34 to 48.

Volatility in exchange The Board considered the impact on the Group and its clients of interest rate rises

and interest rates and exchange rate volatility. It was concluded that in order to deliver animproved
outcome for customers, provide better value and build a competitive advantage,
CMC will pay interest on positive cash positions across its UK CFD and spread
betting trading platforms for eligible professional and Alpha customers from
1March2023.

Whistleblowing Adecision was taken to appoint an external provider to manage the Group's
confidential whistleblowing helpline to ensure ongoing independence and better
facilitate confidentiality. More information can be found on page 79.

Consumer Duty Toreflect the changing needs of the Board in relation to the oversight and
governance of risk and the Group’s Consumer Duty obligations, the Board was
delighted to appoint a new Chair of the Group Risk Committee, Clare Francis,
who will also be our Consumer Duty Champion. The Board continues to monitor
progress of the work being done by the business to comply with its obligations.

Please also refer to the Group's strategy and business model whichis described throughout our Strategic report, how we manage risk (pages 67 to 73), our
sustainability section (pages 34 to 48) and our corporate governance report (pages 75 and 79 to 86) for further information.

15— CMC Markets plc
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Stakeholder engagement

20
K

Clients

Why we engage

Going above and beyond to care for and protect our clientsis a core
responsibility. Our continual engagement ensures that the Group
remains aware of, and therefore develops products that solve, protect
and satisfy, our clients’needs.

How we engage

CMC actively engages with clients across arange of channels,
including our client service, sales and product teams, client events
and our trading publication, Opto. Our digital transformation
programme has also resulted in further emphasis on user experience
research with clients, which directly inputs into improvements that
can be made to our product and proposition. Marketing is carried
outinaresponsible way, making sure trading and investment

product opportunities are continually evolving, and a new wave of
self-directed investors opens new market segments for CMC.

Board oversight

The Boardreceives regular updates from management on client
satisfactionand feedback metrics. Any issues are discussed with the
Executives with a view to seeking to improve customer outcomes.
The Board has appointed Clare Francis as the Group’s Consumer
Duty Champion.

Outcomes

As previously reported, the launch of CMC Invest UK provided a
great opportunity for the Group to offer greener and more socially
orientated investing products. It also allowed us to consider and
discuss with the Board the target audience, customer experience
and expectations, platform availability and transparency and ease
of use. This goes alongside continual engagement with our trading
clients with the aim of improving the user experience for all of

our clients.

During the year, our engagement with certain clients allowed us to
make adaptations to the benefit of all of our clients. This evidences
the versatility of our platformin being able to respond to different
client profiles and adapt accordingly.

16 —CMC Markets plc
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People

Why we engage

Ouremployees define our culture and values. Fostering an engaged
workforce is central to our strategy, enabling us to deliver the
exceptional service that keeps us at the forefront of our markets.
Providing arewarding and safe working environment for our
employeesis a vital outcome we strive to achieve. Every employee
needs to be given the tools to excel within adynamic environment.

Nurturingadiverse and responsible workforce willallow us toachieve our
business objectives with the expectedlevels of integrity and focus we expect.

How we engage

Our future success depends on nurturing and enhancing an
environment that reflects our diverse client base and where employees
canreach their full potential. Our employee engagement is driven
through numerous channels. Thisincludes team meetings or one on
ones, and formally through the designated Non-Executive Director with
responsibility for workforce engagement. We hold a twice-yearly global
survey with follow-up focus groups to better understand the results

and monthly “town hall” style forums to enable purposeful engagement
between management and employees.

The business has adopted some key employee engagement practices
that enhance connections across the Group, with diversity, equity and
inclusion being at the forefront of our practices. These are championed
by our Sustainability and HR teams and are described withinthe
Sustainability sectionon pages 42 and 43.

Board oversight

The Nomination Committee (‘“NomCo’) receives regular updates from
the Global Head of HR on various HR metrics and employee issues and
the outcome of employee surveys. The designated Non-Executive
Director for workforce engagement holds regular sessions with
employees and reports back to the NomCo with the feedback from
these. More information on the key focus of the engagement via this
routeisincluded on page 86.

During the current reporting period the Group Risk Committee has
considered the impact of current difficult recruitment markets onthe
resourcing of the business during a period of concentrated growth.

Outcomes

The formal senior management communication calendar that was
developedinthe last reporting period to promote diversity, wellbeing
andinclusioninthe workplace has continued. Further HR initiatives are
described in the Sustainability section on pages 42 and 43.

2023 saw animprovement versus the very difficult recruitment markets
of 2022, where there were challenges because of competition for good
candidates and significant increases in salary expectations. CMC was
able to capitalise on the workforce reductions experienced by other
technology focused corporates, which helped drive additions to staff
numbers. The internal recruitment team established in 2022 also helps
us overcome theissues seen. Nevertheless, CMC still recognises that
buoyant recruitment markets and increasing staff costs will continue to
be a challenge for us as we move through 2024.
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Regulators

Why we engage

Engagement with regulatorsis key to ensuring that we are fully
compliant across alljurisdictions within which we operate. We are
taking steps to ensure our approachis market leading, whilst also
allowing the Group to participate in shaping future regulations within
the sector when approached by the regulators.

How we engage

We engage in open and active dialogue with regulators, seeking
opportunities to share the wealth of data we have available to help
inform them in their decision making. We ensure our actions are at the
minimum consistent with regulatory expectations. Our commitment
to upholding high standards of regulatory compliance and

aligning our interests with clients involves consistent dialogue with
regulators across all jurisdictions. We believe we have forged strong
partnerships with our regulators to responsibly benefit the operating
environment for all.

Board oversight

The Board and/or the relevant Board Committee receives regular
updates from management on the Group’s compliance with

its regulatory obligations and certain communications with the
regulators in eachregionin which we operate.

Outcomes

During the year, we have responded to a number of regulatory
consultations and guidance, and changed our operations where
appropriate inresponse, such as:

— UK:FCA guidance on consumer protection, anti-money
laundering controls and CFDs;

— Spain: CNMV consultation on further CFD intervention measures;

— Australia: ASIC consultationsin relation to technical and
operational resilience, alternative trading venues during amarket
outage and dispute resolution report; and

— Germany:response to the BaFin request for information on cross-
border activities.

— Singapore: following engagement with the Monetary Authority
of Singapore, the Group was successful in obtaining alicence to
operateintheregion.

Financial statements

Shareholder information 0

Suppliers
Why we engage

We expect all our suppliers to demonstrate the same integrity

and accountability as we do to our clients. Engagement with
suppliers which performany critical or material outsourced

service also ensures that we remain compliant with European
Banking Authority (‘EBA") requirements. We take a zero tolerance
approachtomodernslavery and human trafficking, as reflected
inour Modern Slavery Statement (available on our website at
www.cmcmarketsplc.com/footer/modern-slavery-statement/) and
our Group Anti-Slavery Policy, and are committed to acting ethically
and withintegrity in all our business relationships. A working group
of relevant individuals from across the business meets regularly to
review controls and procedures and assess their effectiveness.

How we engage

Openand frequent communicationis critical in maintaining strong
relationships with all our suppliers. All business partners follow a
mandatory procurement process to review the external market

and complete arobust evaluation of all available options. Once
asupplierisappointed, regular direct engagement between the
business owner and supplier is maintained through our Supplier
Management Programme (which sets out how we interact with our
suppliers and vendor management). As part of the Procurement
process, all suppliers are categorised, within our OneTrust tool,
according to the how critical the service or goods provided are to the
Group's ability to serviceits clients. This categorisation determines
the frequency of interaction and level of engagement between CMC
relationship owners and the suppliers. We are continually enhancing
this framework to ensure we are always abreast of all relevant
supplier issues or concerns and over the next year there willbe a
focus onaroadmap to determine the scope and frequency of our risk
assessments and monitoring activities for suppliers.

Board oversight

The Boardrelies on the Executives to manage the relationship with
suppliers on a day-to-day basis. Any significant new relationships will
be approved by the Board, which will also receive information onany
issues with current material outsourced services suppliers.

Outcomes

Our robust governance process allows the Group to select the best
supplier for the business and ultimately our clients. Our considered
approach also allows us to treat vendors with respect and prioritise
collaborationand value generation to mutually benefit all parties,
whilst remaining compliant with all relevant regulations. Regular
reportingis produced to ensure that our average time to pay invoices
isinline with our standard supplier payment terms of 30 days. This
ensures that all suppliers are treated fairly and receive payment for
services or goods providedin a timely manner.

17-CMC Markets plc
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Stakeholder engagement continued

Bl

Shareholders

Why we engage

Our shareholders’ support is paramount to our success and listening
tothemis a critical part of making sure our business is successfulin
thelongterm.

How we engage

Active engagement with current and prospective shareholders
continues throughout the year. Our team communicates the
Group’s strategy and performance as well as understanding the
issues that are mostimportant to them. The adoption of technology
continues toimprove the efficiency of our engagement. We offer
regular trading updates, half and full year presentations, the Annual
Reportand Financial Statements, our Annual General Meeting and
acomprehensive Investor Relations section of our website, as well
as active virtual media channels. We have a schedule of shareholder
meetings and roadshows, giving our stakeholders access to the
investor relations and management teams. The Chairs of the

Board and its Committees are also available to meet with major
shareholdersto discuss relevantissues.

Board oversight

Shareholder feedback and details of any major movements in our
shareholders are embedded within our regular Board meetings and
are integral to our decision-making process.

Outcomes

Many of our shareholders have been with us since our initial public
offeringin 2016. The regular, open and constructive dialogue with
investors promotes confidence in the Group’s strategy, resulting
inastrong share register built on long-term relationships, whilst
also ensuring our continued access to potential additional capital
and liquidity.

Our Chairman and Chair of the Remuneration Committee met with
shareholders on numerous occasions during the year. We offered
meetings with the Chairman and other Non-Executive Directorsin
order to gather views from our significant shareholders and in May
2023 our Chairman and Senior Independent Director had meetings
with those shareholders who had expressed an interest. More
informationisincluded on page 85.

Inresponse to shareholder feedback on the Group’s capital
management, a share buyback programme operated during the year
—more information on which can be found on page 120.

18 - CMC Markets plc
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Local community/charities

Why we engage
We recognise the importance of supporting our communities
throughinitiatives with our charity partners.

How we engage

We have an ongoing charity programme that promotes the work of
the charity partners that we have committed to support. Our charity
programme has developed beyond financial support to a fuller
engagement programme for our employees as we see a greater
appetite for groups to get together and we can do this with purpose.
The charity programme is led by our sustainability team and our goal
is to align our charity partners with the Our Tomorrow strategy. We
promote our charity actions using a charity champions network, a self
nominated group of employees from across our regional offices who
help with fundraising and volunteering.

Board oversight

The Board promotes the support of local charities in all our global
offices. The sustainability strategy set outin the Sustainability section
of the Annual Report is approved by the Board.

Outcomes

The Group and its staff have been involved in various charitable
initiatives, with more detail included in the Sustainability section on
pages 44 and 45.

Our employees have made use of the pound for pound matching
scheme offered by the Group and we have seen anincrease of use
of the volunteer day, an extra day of annual leave for purpose-driven
volunteering activity.
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Environment

Why we engage

CMC recognises that the Group has a duty to help improve the
ecosystemin which we operate and ensure we have a positive
impact onthe planet and the people within our communities. We
launched the Our Tomorrow sustainability strategy in 2022 which
encapsulates our commitments and how we have aligned to our core
values. Our sustainability strategy can be found on pages 34 to 48.

How we engage

We have undertaken an internal review of the Group’s Scope
1,2and 3 emissions and how we will seek to reduce our
impact onthe environment. More informationisincluded inthe
Sustainability section.

Board oversight

The Board has considered the appropriate sustainability targets
during the year under review, which includes ensuring that we can
collate baseline emission data in order to fully understand the Group’s
carbonfootprint. This willthen allow us to set targets to seek to meet
net zero goals and align to the Paris Agreement. The Sustainability
section sets out details of our Planet Positive initiatives and data on
our greenhouse gas emissions.

Outcomes

We have reported against the Task Force on Climate-Related
Financial Disclosures requirements and have adopted a deeper
methodology and scenario analysis this year. Our sustainability
findings/targets will be published in due course.

We remain committed to having a positive impact on the planet.

Haven House Gardening Day
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During the past year, we have made progress to refine and deliver our
diversification strategy. We have improved our product range across our core
trading CFD and spread bet businesses, offering our clients access to awider
range of financial instruments through our award-winning platforms. We have
leveraged our existing technology to launch the new investment platformin
the UK, with Singapore to follow imminently, as well as expanding our office in
Dubaito support the rapid growth we are seeing in our institutional business.

Our strategy is based on leveraging our technology to facilitate growth
through B2B expansion. By partnering with our clients directly we are able
to offer them access to our deep liquidity, products, and technology stacks.
We have already proven our ability to deliver in Australia, evidenced by the
Australiaand New Zealand Banking Group Limited (‘ANZ”) relationship, with
an extensive network of B2B partnershipsin CMC Invest Australia.

CMC and our B2B partners typically benefit from shared resources and

expertise, which canlead to cost savings and improved operational efficiency.

Fostering additional B2B partnerships s frontand centre in our strategy to
achieve sustainable long-term growth.

Trading business investment and expansion

We continue toinvest in our trading platforms, and we will be launching cash
equities and options across our various platforms over the next six months
toallow our clients better opportunities to trade or hedge existing portfolio
positions. Over the course of the next 12 months, we plan to introduce anew
multi-asset platform capable of trading a much wider range of instruments
over and above our traditional CFD and spread betting asset classes.

Investing business expansion

Our focus on the self-directed investment platform space continues, offering
improved technology, and client experience, with lower transaction costs
andfees. In addition to the successful release of our Invest UK platform, our
CMC Invest brand has beenrolled out to our existing Australian stockbroking
business andlam pleased to announce that we will be imminently launching
our CMC Invest Singapore offering as well. In Singapore, CMC Invest will
initially offer equities, exchange-traded funds, options, and futures building
onthe offeringin Australia. The UK D2C market represents a significant
opportunity, withaggregate assets under administration (‘AuA") standing at
¢.£290 billion' even after weaker capital markets seen over 2022.

“Our strategy is based on
leveraging our technology to
facilitate growth through B2B
expansion. By partnering with
our clients directly we are able
to offer our clients access to our
deep liquidity, products, and
technology stacks.”

Lord Cruddas
Chief Executive Officer

1 PlatforumFebruary 2023.
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Our Invest UK platform, which launched to the general public in September
2022, has delivered a number of milestones this year, with the current offering
now including equities, ETFs, ESG screening and flexible ISAs. Expansioninto
mutual funds and SIPPs will shortly follow. We see significant potential in the
UK market, including great B2B opportunities, and while D2C client numbers
are currently low given the recent launch, we expect these to grow significantly
over the coming years.

In Australia, we have successfully migrated the Share Investing client base
of ANZ, whichinvolved over 600,000 clients with total assets exceeding
AUD$37 billion.

Whilst market activity had beenlower over the past year, the migrated
clients will place CMC ina stronger position to deliver enhanced access to
improved mobile apps, education tools and resources, and lower brokerage
commissions across four major international markets and the local
Australian market.

Institutional offering expansion via CMC Connect
Inour institutional trading business, we continue to grow volumes as a non-bank
liquidity provider and are successfully forging new trading relationships across
the globe. We provide global market access to our clients, enabling them
torealise their revenue potential through multi-asset liquidity provisionand
award-winning trading technology.

FX—the story in numbers

Continued development work to connect to multiple Electronic
Crossing Networks (‘ECNs") and the deployment of a
competitive FX product now allow for significant growthin this
asset class. In 2023 CMC Markets delivered a 95% uptick in
total B2B notional volumes versus the prior year, with FX being a
significant contributor.

See more at www.cmcmarkets.com
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Chief Executive Officer’s statement continued

Institutional offering expansion via CMC Connect-

continued

Through our CMC Connect brand, we offer larger institutions the ability to develop
awhite-label trading proposition for their client base. This can be custom-built
inabespoke fashion to best suit the needs of our partners. By combining both
our natural client order flow and arange of external pricing sources we can
offer consistent liquidity, market depth and best execution.

Technology at our core

CMC has beena pioneer of platform technology, providing technology-backed

solutions for B2C and B2B clients and partners for over 30 years. This gives us
the scale, leverage, and agility to launch new platforms and enter new markets
rapidly, as well as drive down transaction costs.

At CMC, we continue toembrace innovative technologies and new ways

of working to deliver our digital transformation. We have demonstrated our
ability to deliver complex work programmes in the recent delivery of our CMC
Invest UK platform, but this is just one example where our internal technology
development team continue to excel.

Through our new APl ecosystem we can add new products and markets
quickly for our B2B and B2C clients. We believe this breadth and level of
flexibility through one industry standard connection protocol, will be the best-
in-class B2B and B2C financial services platform on the market. Importantly,
it will also allow the Group to grow and add new products quickly so we can
expand into different markets around the world.

Our experience gained from the launch of our Invest UK offering will also
accelerate the delivery of additional functionality across both our existing
trading and institutional business over the coming year. One example is
that the Groupis now ina strong position to offer cash equities onthe Next
Generation platformto institutional clients.

Our product development is augmented with the use of cloud technology
through our strategic partner Amazon Web Services (‘AWS”) that provides
the foundations for rapid cost-effective delivery of our growth plans. Through
its cloud platform, CMC can take advantage of the scale, elasticity and reduced
operational burden offered by AWS to deliver animproved customer
experience faster and with greater stability.

Financial performance

Over the past 12 months global markets have been volatile, influenced by
avariety of factors, including the recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic,
geopolitical developments, and shifting economic policies particularly in the
adjustment to rising inflation and interest rates.

Activity across our platforms reflected these trends. The trading business
benefited from the volatility seenin global F X rates whilst on the other hand
activity was lower in our Invest Australia business with lower client activity
thanhad been seenin the prior year, primarily driven by the reversal seenin
global equity markets from the peaks of 2021. Nevertheless, complementing
the volatility on global exchange rates, commodity price fluctuations also
presented a significant opportunity for our clients. Our wide-ranging, and
expanding, product offering across both our trading and investing business
gives me confidence in our ability to deliver returns for shareholders
regardless of the wider macroeconomic environment.

Interestincome increased substantially in the period at £13.9 million (versus

£0.8 millionin 2022) due toincreases in global interest rates and resulting
income from clientand own cash balances. Overall, the Group net operating
incomeincreased 2% versus the prior period, to £288.4 million. The Group’s
total cost base increased by 24% from £190.4" million to £236.2 million during the
year, mainly because of the significant investmentsin people and technology to
deliver our diversification and growth strategy.

1 2022 figure restated, refer to note 33 for more information.
2 Adefinition of net available liquidity can be found on page 65.
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Variable remuneration increased by £0.62 millionto £16.7 million reflecting
theincrease in staff over the period. Profit before tax at £52.2 million was
£39.3"millionlower than the previous year. Our dividend policy remains
unchanged, at 50% of profit after tax, therefore resulting in a proposed final
dividend per share of 3.90 pence.

Despite market volatility, the Group’s underlying fundamentals remain strong
inthe trading business. The Group's strategy of targeting and retaining higher
value, sophisticated clients continues to prove successful, with clientmoney
levels remaining close to record highs seenin the prior year, an encouraging
indicator of future investing potential.

The number of active clients within Invest Australia has decreased by 12%
t0 216,665, with B2C clients increasing by 120% to 123,681,and B2B clients
decreasing by 51% t0 92,984. Active clients within the trading business
decreased by 9% 10 58,737 but monthly average active clients remain 25%
above pre-COVID-19levels.

The Group's balance sheet reflects its strong financial position, with net available
liquidity? of £239.2 million and aregulatory own funds requirement ratio (‘OFR”)
of 369% at year end. This compares with £245.9 millionand aregulatory OFR
ratio of 489% at year end 2022.

Regulatory change

The regulatory framework has proved to be stable over the past 12 months.
Thelast meaningful change occurred on 29 March 2021, when ASIC
implemented measures regarding CFDs. These measures helped to
harmonise regulatory conditions globally, allowing the Group to focus on
growingits business. As expected, the new measures have reduced the
notional value of retail client trading in Australia and, combined with lower
market volatility, resultedin less active client trading than in the prior period.

InApril 2022, ASIC extended its product intervention order for CFDs, which
imposes conditions on the issue and distribution of CFDs for another five
years, until 23 May 2027. This extension has provided greater regulatory
visibility for the Group, ensuring that it can continue to operate within the
regulatory framework while growing its business.

People and sustainability

As the focus on sustainability continues to shape the financial markets,
our objectiveis to equip our clients and employees with the necessary
resources and knowledge to make responsible and confident investment
decisions. We recognise and embrace the responsibility bestowed upon
the finance industry to contribute to the world-wide sustainability efforts.
Furthermore, we understand that incorporating sustainable practices
can bring tangible business benefits. These advantages not only bolster
the long-term sustainability of the Group but also empower us to fulfil our
mission of delivering our clients an unmatched technology-driven investment
experience, along with exceptional access to capital markets.

Clients

At the core of our business, we prioritise our clients and their satisfaction.

We remain committed to developing our platforms and investing ininnovation
toensure that our user experience remains industry leading, promoting client
retention and lifetime value. We are pleased to welcome over 600,000 new
clientsto our Invest Australia business now fully transitioned from ANZ Share
Investing, and we look forward to providing them with new functionality and an
enhanced experience.

Furthermore, we have already embarked on partnering with new investors
over the long term through our Invest UK and Singapore platforms, aiming
tohelp themachieve prosperity at every stage of their investment journey.

3 2022figuresrestatedtoinclude social taxes onannual discretionary bonus within
variable remuneration.
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Share buyback programme

On15March 2022, the Company initiated a share buyback programme of

up to £30 million, demonstrating its strong capital position and consideration
of ongoing investment requirements for the business. This buyback
programme was part of the Group’s balanced approach to shareholder
returns, in conjunction with the current dividend policy and was completed on
17 October 2022.

Dividend

The Board has proposed a final dividend payment of £10.9 million, which
equates to 3.90 pence per share (compared to 8.88 pence in 2022), resulting
inatotal dividend payment of 7.40 pence per share for the year (compared
t012.38 pencein 2022). This amount represents 50% of profit after tax, in
accordance with Group policy. This policy results in sharing the benefits of
profitable growth to shareholders through a distribution alongside retaining
an equal amount of profits in the business, which are largely equivalent to cash
generation, to investin future growth. The Group Board considers the liquidity
andregulatory capital risks associated with paying a dividend in accordance
with the policy through the review of and consideration of stress scenarios.

Outlook

We acknowledge the current uncertainty prevailing not only in the financial
markets but alsoin various sectors and industries. Our experience in the
past few years has reinforced the importance of being prepared for the
unexpected and the extraordinary.

Our platforms have demonstrated their ability to continue servicing clients
robustly evenin extreme market volatility, and, as aresult, we have earned trust
and areputation for stability.

Over the past year we have made significant investments in our infrastructure,
which have served us welland will continue to do so, providing a solid
foundation for us to explore future opportunities.

Our performance this year reflects our focus on our trading and investment
businesses and ongoing success with B2B technology partnerships. We have
alarge addressable market, and we see an enormous opportunity to grow
withamore predictable and stable revenue stream.

As we continue to evolve and expand our investment offering, we are
leveraging our technology to enter new markets and geographies.

We are looking forward to updating investors on our strategy’s short-term
andlong-term expansion.

(o=,

Lord Cruddas
Chief Executive Officer
13 June 2023
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Q&A: The vision of future trading and
investment platforms

Q

In one sentence how do you envision the evolution and
purpose of trading and investing platforms over the
coming years?

Tosucceedin the future, trading and investing platforms will
need to allow clients to trade the fullgambit of instruments,
including equities, options, commaodities, funds and
currencies within one multi-asset environment all through a
single point of entry.

What changes at CMC are being planned in order to fulfil
these needs?

By developing our own multi-asset platform, we will be
able toimplement our diversification strategy effectively.
Our platformis designed to offer abroad range of financial
products that will also over time allow us to fulfil our

B2B ambitions.

What is your target market for this expansion?

We will target a global market, considering regional-specific
offerings including local stocks and shares and operating
viaupstream prime brokers. Our client focus is on family
office and wealth management sectors including asset
managers, hedge funds and private banks. Thisincludes
investment banks with underlying private clients as well.

What's the strategy around team expansion and marketing
toachieve these goals?

We are building out teams in local markets comprising sales
people who speak the native language and are sensitive

to cultural requirements, coupled with specific skill sets to
rapidly infiltrate the market. Marketing will be focused to
carve outasignificant budget to deliver specific goals and
collaborate with our partners through targeted road shows
andresearchreleases.

What do you see as CMC's core strengths to delivery?

Our strength lies in the fact that CMC has been building

and owning allits technology for the past 30 years.

This, coupled with our enduring prime broking relationships
andrisk management systems, allows us to adapt and
progress at a faster pace compared to our competitors.
Moving forward, this technological advantage willenable
us to broaden our reach and provide what we envision as
the ultimate multi-asset investment platform of the future.
Our goalis to bring fintech to the mid markets that we
consider to be underserved and facilitate market access for
all participants.
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Our strategy

Our focus
for 2024

Over the past year, we have made significant
strides in defining and executing our
diversification strategy. Our target to grow

net operating income by 30% over the next
three years is unchanged. This requires new
investment, but the benefits of this will be seen
with our expectation of PBT margin expansion
from 2025.

Our growth strategy is built on three core pillars.

Firstly, we will focus on delivering ongoing
product diversification and development of a
multi-asset interface across our core trading
business. This allows us to offer our clients a
significantincrease in asset classes available to
trade, broadening their options whilst deepening
our engagement with them to capture a larger
share of their trading volumes.

Secondly, we continue to invest in our technology
to drive expansion via B2B partnerships. Key

to thisis the development of our new open API
eco-system. Expanding our B2B partnerships is
central to our strategy, as it enables us to achieve
sustainable long-term growth.

Thirdly, we continue to open up new markets
via our investing and institutional businesses.
Shifting our focus towards helping our
clients create wealth over the longer term

is core to our strategy. In the same vein,

we recognise substantial prospects in our
institutional business, where we are steadily
expanding volumes as a non-bank liquidity
provider and actively creating fresh trading
partnerships worldwide.

1 Platforum February 2023.
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Trading platform product diversification

Opportunity

Ourinitial priority is to concentrate on providing continual product
diversification and developing a multi-asset interface within our core
trading business. This willenable us to furnish our clients withaccess toa
broader range of asset classes, thereby strengthening our engagement
and capturing agreater proportion of their trading volumes. Whilst CMC
has traditionally been reliant on CFDs and spread betting, with alarge
Invest businessin Australia, the imminent addition of cash equities,
options and other financial instruments throughout the coming year will
make our offering even more relevant to the new cohort of clients we

are attracting.

Priorities for 2023/24

— We willcontinue toinvest in our platform that is both responsive and
driven by insights, with a focus on facilitating client learning and growth
insmall steps.

We will continuously improve the delivery of new services that better
equip our clients to manage their performance and take advantage of
market opportunities.

We willexpand our product range across our platforms to enhance our
support for our clients’ investment portfolios and increase our share of
their wallet.

« Theseinclude cash equities, index options, cryptocurrencies and a
wider range of money market investment products.

We will continue to focus our marketing spend on premium clients.

We will drive geographical growth of our trading platforms in unison
with our institutional and invest platforms.

Technological evolution in 2023/24
— Investinginproprietary technology is crucial to meeting clients’evolving
demands and regulatory requirements. CMC's distinctive approach of
owningand developing our technology opens up significant opportunities
for future expansion, which s a defining feature of our growth strategy for
our traditionaltrading business.

As akey element of its broader technology strategy, CMCis
transforming the API layer through the use of cloud and the latest
“DevOps” practices to facilitate the faster introduction of new products
across our trading frontends.

Toimprove our clients’ overall experience, we are dedicated to

maintaining high platform availability and implementing continual
improvements to performance.

Progress against 2022/23 objectives

— Monthly client numbersin our trading business have declined
fromrecord highs butimportantly are still up 25% versus
pre-pandemic levels.

— The Group continued to win numerous awards for client service and
products throughout the year.

P



Investment in B2B technology capability

Opportunity

Toachieve sustainable long-term growth, our strategy involves
harnessing our technology to facilitate expansion through B2B
partnerships. Direct collaboration with our clients enables us to provide
them with access to our extensive liquidity, product and technology
stacks. Through the launch of our new Group-wide open APl ecosystem,
with shared resources and expertise, CMC and our B2B partners can
enjoy cost savings and improved operational efficiency.

Financial statements

Shareholder information 0

03

Expansion of invest platforms and institutional
offering

Opportunity

Centralto our strategy is a shift towards enabling our clients to generate
long-term wealth through our investing platforms. We believe that the self-
directedinvestment platform sector offers substantial growth potential
particularly inthe UK but also Singapore. In the same vein, we see major
prospectsinour institutional trading unit, as we persistently augment our
volumes as anon-bank liquidity provider and forge fresh trading alliances
across the globe.

Priorities for 2023/24

— We will persistin developing new B2B partnerships within Invest
Australia, building on the success of our historical ANZ Bank
partnership and the extensive network of B2B partnerships we
already have.

We will continue to evolve our existing product offering to cater to larger
institutions, resulting in greater revenue returns. Furthermore, we will
enhance our ECN connectivity to access a vast electronic market,
strengthening our position as the go-to non-bank liquidity provider in
the B2B market.

We will utilise the development of our open APl technology to pursue
new white-label opportunities across both our trading and investing
businesslines. Thisincludes work towards a new multi-asset platform
capable of delivering bespoke white-label solutions to our clients.

We will continuously improve the delivery of new services that better
equip our clients to manage their performance and take advantage of
market opportunities.

Priorities for 2023/24

— Invest: We will expand the development of our Invest platforms across
Australia, Singapore and the UK. The UK D2C market still poses a
significant opportunity, withaggregate AuA standing at ¢.£290 billion'
even after weaker capital markets seen over 2022.

Institutional: We willinvest in our institutional offering to upgrade our
product suite, thereby establishing CMC Connect as atechnical
innovator and institutional contender for price and liquidity construction.

Institutional: We will deliver the regional expansion of our institutional
offering via our Dubai office and dedicated sales teams.

Institutional: We will deliver a physical asset class solution to provide
access to new products and functionality, featuring best-in-class
technology for amarket seeking awider range of investment products.
Inaddition, we willexpand our instrument range to meet all market
liquidity requirements, including cash equities, ETFs, and other
financial instruments.

Institutional: We will continue toinvest in our technology and overall client

experience, with the aim of improved functionality with lower transaction
costsandfees.

Technological evolutionin 2023/24
— Weaimto enhance our core multi-asset capabilities to provide an
unparalleled and diverse trading experience for our expanding target
market across all platforms, whether trading or investing, including B2B
capabilities onall platforms.

Additionally, we will continue to invest in our people and technology;,
with our Londonand Sydney offices concentrating on developing all
new platform features based on our technology offerings.

We will establish new ways of working across our traditional trading
and growing investing and institutional businesses to accelerate
product delivery,improve organisational learning, and incrementally
increase the value we provide to our clients.

Technological evolution in 2023/24
— Intheinstitutional space, our objective is to establish CMC Connect as
acomprehensive fintech solution and non-bank liquidity provider.
Deliver ongoing technological enhancements within the institutional
andinvesting businesses to provide B2B capability.
We willenhance recently added new products, such as FX give-ups,
and our ECN connectivity to further cement our position.
We will also strive to enhance our technology stack to drive brand and
product awareness across all channels and distribution outlets across
both our investing and institutional platforms.

Progress against 2022/23 objectives

— Continued to deliver numerous user experience and technological
improvements to our customer onboarding processes across our
globalretail, institutional and investing businesses.

— Successfully transitioned over 600,000 of ANZ Bank'’s Share Investing
clientsto CMC's client base.

— Succeeded indelivering the first give-up trades with FX spot.

Progress against 2022/23 objectives
— Institutional revenue targets and expectations were exceeded in 2023.
Successfully expanded the Singapore office ahead of Invest launch.
Invest UK delivered significant expansioninits products including
Equities, ETFs, ESG screening and flexible ISAs.
Accelerated growthin the FX market with a marketing strategy to build
client groups across increasing geographies.
Successfully continued advancements as a non-bank liquidity provider
inthe spot market.
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Key performance indicators

Our Group KPIs monitor the delivery of long-term

value through a focus on client quality and

Tracking our progress

Group KPIs

Net operatingincome

£288.4m

22 £281.9m

21 £409.8m

Statutory profit before tax’

£52.2m
2

22 £91.5m
21 £223.3m
Profit after tax’

£41.4m
=

22 £71.5m

21 £177.6m

Basic earnings per share

14.7p

22 24.6p

21 61.3p

Ordinary dividend per share relating
to the financial year

1740
7.40!3

22 12.38p

21 30.63p

operating effectiveness.
KPIdefinition Why we measure
Thisis a statutory measure, which represents Key operating metric.
total revenue net of introducing partner .
Link to strategy

commissions and spread betting levies.

KPI definition

Thisis a statutory measure, which comprises net
operatingincome less operating expenses and
interest expense.

KPI definition
Thisis a statutory measure, which comprises
statutory profit before tax less tax expense.

KPI definition

Thisis astatutory measure, which is calculated
as earnings attributed to Ordinary Shareholders
divided by weighted average number of shares.

KPI definition
Any dividend declared, proposed or paidrelating
tothe financial year.

1 2022and2021figuresrestated. Further information on the 2022 restatement can be found within note 33.
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Why we measure
Key operating metric.

Link to strategy

Why we measure

Largest driver of shareholder equity and
Board-approved metric for calculating
dividend payable.

Link to strategy

Why we measure
Key shareholder value metric.

Link to strategy

Why we measure
Key shareholder value metric.

Link to strategy
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Trading business KPlIs

Gross clientincome

£303.5m

22 £288.5m

21 £335.3m

Trading active clients

58,737

22 64,243

21 76,591

Revenue per active client

£3,968

22 £3,575

21 £4,560

Clientincome retained

(7%

22 80%

21 104%

Platform uptime

99.97%

22 99.95%

21 99.95%

Governance

Financial statements

KPIdefinition

Spread, financing and commission fees charged
to CFD and spread bet clients. CFD net revenue
is the product of gross CFD and spread bet client
income, multiplied by clientincome retained.
Areconciliation of gross clientincome to the
Primary Statements s provided on page 188.

KPI definition

Individual clients who have traded or held CFD
or spread bet positions with CMC Markets on at
least one occasion during the financial year.

KPIdefinition

Net revenue generated from CFD and spread
bet active clients, divided by the number of active
clients during the year.

KPI definition

Percentage of gross clientincome retained after
rebates and gains and losses fromrisk
management.

KPIdefinition

The percentage of trading hours that clients
are able to trade on the Next Generation
CFDplatform.

Shareholder information 0

Key to strategy
0 Trading platform product diversification

e Investment in B2B technology capability

Expansion of invest platforms and
institutional offering

See more on pages 24 to 25

Why we measure

Used to measure the totalincome
generated from CFD and spread bet client
transaction charges.

Link to strategy

Why we measure

Representative of the continuing success of the
businessinacquiring and retaining clients which
trade onaregular basis.

Linkto strategy

Why we measure

High value clients are central to the Group’s
strategy and the growth in this figure is indicative
of the successin attracting and retaining
theseclients.

Link to strategy

Why we measure

Usedto measure the success of the risk
management strategy of converting client
spread, financing and commissions charges to
trading net revenue.

Linkto strategy

Why we measure

The platformis at the core of our business —if
clients are unable to trade, the Group willbe
unable to earnrevenue. Maintaining a very
high uptime is key to the continued success of
the Group.

Linkto strategy

27 -CMC Markets plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2023



Key performance indicators continued

Investing business KPls

Net revenue

£379m

22 £48.0m

21 £54.8m

Investing active clients!

218,310

22 246,120
21 232,053
Platform uptime?

99.93%

22 99.91%

21 99.80%

KPI definition
Income received from brokerage and FX spread
onclient trades, lessrebates.

KPIdefinition

Individual clients who have traded on Invest
platforms on at least one occasion during the
financial year.

KPI definition

The percentage of trading hours that
clients are able to trade onthe CMC Invest
Australia platform.

Why we measure

Revenue diversification and high value clients
are centraltothe Group's strategy and the
growthinthis figure isindicative of the successin
growing the invest business and attracting and
retaining high value clients.

Link to strategy

Why we measure

Representative of the continuing success of the
businessinacquiring and retaining clients which
trade onaregular basis.

Link to strategy

Why we measure

The CMC Invest platforms are at the core of
our business —if clients are unable to trade,
the Group willbe unable to earnrevenue.
Maintaining a very high uptime is key to the
continued success of the Group.

Link to strategy

1 Includes CMC Invest UK active clients of 1,645.
2 Uptimerepresents CMC Invest Australia only. CMC Invest UK uptime of 99.95% in 2023, a combined statistic will be reported in 2024.

28 - CMC Markets plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2023



Strategic report Governance

Technology and innovation

Technology strategy accelerates
CMC's digital transformation and

product delivery

With digital transformation, CMC is
driving growth and diversification
through technology, and at the heart
of this effort is our technology strategy.
This strategy serves as the strong
foundation for all of our new product
development and ensures that our
existing technology estate continues
toreceive the investment it deserves.
As aglobalinitiative, CMC'’s technology
strategy underpins the Group’s
expansion and diversification, making
it a crucial component of our overall
business strategy.

Reductionin 99th percentile
execution time:

Trading

4%

Invest Australia?

5%

1 99th percentile execution time of all trades within the period.
2 Invest UK notincluded given no prior year comparator.

' ."_".I:_'Flnanclalétatemen}s““\\‘ \%‘ é&arﬁor‘*{'nb;’“a&’ﬁ‘ we,

TR u'fﬁ ;:-,«',;';:.w-; N O L

3
. &
[ ,'.

pF & ; “‘.«. *:l» bn. L ;- 'D.-,.

% & il g%

Global'alignment delivering high standards e
CMC'stechnology strategy is rooted ina set of robust foundational technology
principles that serve as the cornerstone for the expanding technology teams. '
These principles ensure thatallindividuals are allgned and moving forward at
arapid pace Suchstrong alignment fosters efficiency, encourages reuse, and
helps us marntaln the hlghest standards ok .

Expan3|on of cloud technology

i ,The use of cloud technology was a key.accelerator inthe dehvery of
- CMC'sInvest UK platform and its ongoing.adoption, coupled with the latest

cloud engineering practices, is playing a growing partin CMC's product
development roadmap across all business areas. CMC's technology
principles promote adoption of cloud but recognise the value in on-premise
self-managed systems. We call this our hybrid-cloud model.

End-to-endinvestment

Itisimperative that all technological aspects of a financial service business
receive ongoing investment. Neglecting toinvestin core technology
platforms poses a significant risk. Ageing technology platforms are incapable
of supporting afast- paced andexpanding business, and this reality has

not escaped the attentlon of CMG'sleadership team. Gonsequently, the
technology feams are providedwith thenecessary investments not only for
new mltlatrVes but also to eontinually update and modernise all areas of our
technology platforms.

Talent

People are the most valuable asset underpinning CMC's technology. The
mosttalented technology staff want to work on fast-moving and progressive
technology platforms. The continued investment in technology, coupled with
adoption of new technology such as AWS cloud services, has allowed CMC to
attractand retain some of the most talented IT staffin London and Sydney.




Technology and innovation continued

Close alignment with technological and product development

At CMC, technology is always developed with strong alignment and
collaboration with our product teams. Product development provides
numerous opportunities to advance our technology platforms, and identifying
these strong synergies between product development and technology
strategy is a highly effective approach. By working closely with our product
teams, we can leverage their expertise to drive innovation and progressin

our technology, resulting in a more cohesive and efficient overall approach
tobusiness.

Operational excellence supporting leading-edge innovation

The diversification strategy and launch of the CMC Invest UK platform have
seenanincrease in the breadth and scale of the Group's platforms and
infrastructure. Despite this, the strong focus on operational resilience and
high standards of performance means that uptime across the platforms
remains strong. The trading platform achieved uptime in excess of 99.97%,
Invest UK 99.96% and Invest Australia 99.93%. Throughout the period, the
focus on performance and consistency of execution has remained critical
and the continued investment and improvement are reflectedin a further
reduction in the 99th percentile execution time for both the trading and
Invest Australia platforms, down approximately 44% and 35% respectively
compared tolast year. With the increasing breadth and diversity of products,
clients and geographies, the importance of continued operational excellence
is paramount. We continue to invest in our infrastructure, operations and
supporttomeet the growing demands and scale of the global business
andallof our clients.
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Open Platform API

At the core of CMC's trading platform technology lies its

APl layer, which plays a critical role in connecting all visible
components of CMC's platforms to its underlying core systems,
including the trading engine and pricing and risk technology.

As akey element of its broader technology strategy, CMCis
transforming this APllayer through the use of cloud and the
latest “DevOps” practices to facilitate the faster introduction
of new products across both institutional and retail segments.

The “Open”aspect of CMC's
Open APlis of particular
significance, asitis designed
to be fully accessible not only
to CMC'sinternal use, but
alsotoall of its counterparts,
providing them with direct
programmatic access to all of
CMC's underlying products and
services. Thisopenness also
extends over time toindividual
customers, giving them fulll
access to their trading dataand
empowering them with greater
control over their investments.

See more at www.cmcmarkets.com
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CMC Connectis theinstitutional offering
from CMC Markets. For over 30 years, we
have operated in the financial services
industry, offering access to global markets

via our award-winning, multi-asset trading
technology, through API connectivity or a C O N N E C T

white-label solution.

Continued growth

Theinstitutional business has continued to have a year of record growth, exceeding agreed targets, which
has set the tone for the new financial year.

As markets continue to evolve, we have continued to adapt. We have developed our institutional offering
further with the forthcoming inclusion of cash equities, ensuring we provide access to the assets we know
market participants need in order to provide an optimal trading environment. Once we have completed
development of the multi-asset trading platform during the coming year, CMC Connect will be able to
capitalise on the significant available opportunity and deliver revenue growth.

This continued expansion of our technology allows us to approach new client segments and differentiate
ourselves further.

Our multi-national and multi-lingual team based in London has been growing steadily and with a more mature
Spot FX product and the future inclusion of options, coupled with the imminent rollout of a cash equities
product for institutional clients, we are able toinfiltrate more European markets and service the APAC &
Canada client base with a holistic trade offering.

Geographical expansion

We recently expanded our presence in Dubai to reflect our rapidly growing suite of products servicing the
market, whilst recognising that the Middle East, with a specific lens on Dubai, is becoming one of the central
financial hubs across the globe. Dubaiis a city where many of our peers and competitors are now operating
and anarea tipped for significant growth in the years ahead.
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CMC Invest UK

The investment journey
with CMC Invest

CMC Invest UK’s mission is to empower every client to achieve their financial wellness. Launched to
the general public in September 2022, our strategy is to deliver a client focused proposition that is built
upon the technology and capabilities within the CMC Group, delivering an innovative investing solution
for our clients. Our complete end-to-end proprietary platform allows us to be nimble and agile when
addressing client needs, while also minimising our reliance on third-parties and passing those savings
ontoour clients.

Early April 2022 September 2022

Launch FO Opentogeneral public
select clients

February 2023

Paperless, in-app
August 2022 December 2022 transfer process
ETFsandInvestment December 2022 “Plus” tier subscription, with up-to-date
Trusts added ESGratings including flexible Stocks tracking status

and Shares ISAand USD
currency wallet

Annual Repor
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Client-centric technology and innovation

Our focus on technology andinnovationis based on the needs of our clients, who
are at the heart of our product roadmap prioritisation. Highlights of our client-
centric delivery are:

Flexible Stocks and Shares ISA

While Stocks and Shares ISAs are acommon offering across the investment
industry, flexible Stocks and Shares ISAs are not. We believe that if we can
deliver abetter investment ISA for our clients with maximum flexibility, our
clients willhave peace of mind that they will be able to access their funds when
they are needed without affecting their annual allowance.

In-app transfer process

Transferring assets can seem cumbersome with layers of manualand complex
processes. Our solution has been to build afully digital process which can be
kicked offinas little as 30 seconds with clear and transparent status of where a
customer’s transfer stands —all within the app.

Straight through execution

Speed and reliability are no longer interchangeable when trading. Our clients
have both. They can view real-time quotes and trade seamlessly — due to our
technical control of the value chain over complex operational solutions.

ESG ratings and preferences setting

A continuing focus for clients is socially responsible investing. With our
comprehensive ESG tools (powered by Sustainalytics), clients can not only
view ESG ratings, scores, and business involvement areas, they are also
able to set preferences based on their individual values. When viewing an
investment, they willinstantly see if the asset matches (or does not match)
their ESG values.

(e )

Which account type do you
want to transfer?

tenent aecount (OLA)

Genoral iveestment sccount
= sagmn

~ Shocks & shares I5A

b Stocks & shares ISA
' 3435019

% Hiowe o transtor works

\
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Straightforward and transparent subscription plans

Currently, we have two plans available to clients — Core and Plus. Premium
is expected to arrive later this year. All plans include zero commissionand a
competitive 0.50% FX fee (where applicable).

Core features (no charge)
— General Investment Account

- 3,000+ US stocks

— 100 UK large-cap stocks

— PopularETFs

— ESGratings and preferences setting
— Analyst ratings with price targets

— Limit orders (coming soon)

Plus features (£10 per month)
— Allfeaturesin Core

— Flexible Stocks and Shares ISA

— USD currency wallet

— Additional large and mid-cap UK stocks
— 300+ ETFsand Investment Trusts

— Company fundamental analysis

— Mutual funds (coming soon)

Premium features (cost to be confirmed) -
coming soon

— Allfeaturesin Core and Plus
— Self-Invested Personal Pension

— Additional benefits (to be confirmed)

“Money is personal —how we earn it, spend it,and invest it.
CMC Invest is designed for today's investors, who want to
invest the way they choose, focusing on their individual
goals. It is about providing meaningful value, backed by

best-in-class execution.”

Albert Soleiman
Head of CMC Invest UK
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Sustainability

Our Tomorrow: taking a positive position

“This has been an exciting year for the Group; we have
made strong progress in data collection, implementing

sustainable practices into the operations of the

business whilst developing the overall strategy and
mapping out our goals and objectives. Our ambition
remains focused on integrating sustainable practices
into all aspects and levels of our business to pave the

way for a positive future for us and our clients.”

Kelly Perry
Global Head of Sustainability

Last year we introduced the Group’s Our Tomorrow
sustainability strategy andits five core pillars structured to focus
delivery on our material environmental, social and governance
("ESG") risks. We have concentrated on obtaining a fuller
understanding of our current performance within these areas.

The Our Tomorrow strategy and five strategic pillars serve as
our framework for integrating sustainability throughout our
global business and outlines our commitment to safeguarding,
empowering, innovating, and adapting our responsible business
practicesinaway that prioritises the wellbeing of our people
and planet.

We remain focused on equipping both our clients and
employees with the necessary tools to invest in a better future
and strive to achieve this by offering cutting-edge technological
solutions that protect, educate, and motivate our clients and
employees toinvestinaway that has positive impacts now and
for the future. Our commitment to responsible practices and
values ensures that we are aligned with the world-wide shift
towards a sustainable future within capital markets.

As sustainability increasingly guides the financial markets, our
aimis to provide our clients and employees with the tools and
expertise needed toinvest responsibly and with assurance. We
acknowledge and embrace the responsibility placed onthe

finance industry to contribute to the global sustainability agenda,

none more so thanin the critical battle against climate change.
Moreover, we understand that implementing sustainable
practices canyield tangible business advantages, which not
only support the Group's long-term viability but also enable

us to fulfilour mission of offering our clients an unparalleled
technology-driveninvesting experience, coupled with
exceptional access to capital markets.
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2023 sustainability highlights
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Aligned to the frameworks of the Global Reporting Initiative ("GRI") and
Sustainability Accounting Standards Board ("SASB") to build robust
performance measures into our strategy.

Pledged to support gender balance across the financial industry and became
signatories of HM Treasury’s Women in Finance Charter demonstrating
our commitment to building a more balanced and fairer industry.

Introduced Sustainalytics data into the CMC Invest UK platform, for
clients to obtain sustainability data on assets, then went one step further and
integrated tools for clients to set preferences and screen assets according
to sustainability values.

Evolved our HR capabilities by hiring dedicated diversity, equity and
inclusion and learning and development specialists in our London
and Sydney offices.

Established a sustainability subcommittee aligned to the five strategic pillars
to provide support to the Sustainability Committee and effectively embed the
goals and objectives of the Our Tomorrow strategy into the DNA of our business.

Introduced CMC's ESG Academy, a targeted learning programme to
support the Sustainability Committee and subcommittee in developing their
understanding of sustainability topics.

Engaged with Normative, experts in carbon accounting, to support us on our
pathway to net zero and collected our first set of Scope 3 emissions data
forboth 2022 and 2023.

Undertook a deeper analysis of our climate-related risks via scenario
analysis to enhance our understanding of our climate-related risks and our
climate-related disclosures inline with the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures ("TCFD").

Nominated and shortlisted for a series of awards, IR Society Awards for
"Best Communications in Sustainability" and IR Magazine Awards for
'Best ESG Materiality Reporting',and were given a "Leading Light"
award from Making the Leap for our efforts in supporting social mobility.



Significance to stakeholders
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Developing our strategy based on materiality

Last year, we conducted an extensive review of our material ESG risks, opportunities and impacts, with the results of this assessment laying the foundations for
our strategic approach. We adopted a multifaceted engagement programme involving key internal and external stakeholders and conducted industry research,
the results of which are summarised in the materiality matrix below. This matrix serves as a visual representation of the most significant topics for our business
and our stakeholders.

. . CMC’s material risks:
Maximise

Manage
Client care and protection

Leadership and governance
Organisational culture

Incorporation of ESG factors into platforms
Diversity andinclusion

Talent development

Businessethics
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Energy transition
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Executive pay
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Greenfinance

=

Carbonemissions

.
o1

Financial capability andinclusion

)

Employee wellbeing

|

Nature and biodiversity
Mitigate 18, wastemanagement
19. Labour practices and humanrights

Monitor

CMC'srisk/opportunity exposure
20. Responsible procurement

® Environment Social ® Governance

The vertical axis represents the significance of the topics to our stakeholders, determined on the basis of interviews and surveys conducted with a
representative sample of our employees, clients, financiers, and shareholders. To assignimpact, represented on the horizontal axis, we conducted a
thorough risk and opportunity assessment for each topic to understand our exposure to potential consequences or benefits.

We then validated the findings from this prioritisation exercise in workshops consisting of members of our senior leadership team. This matrix and the
sustainability strategy we have developed will guide our focus over the next few years and we will continue to assess materiality on an ongoing basis.

Ayearinreview: over the last 12 months, we have taken significant actions to embed sustainability
into our decision-making processes and into the overall operations of our business. Kelly Perry,
Global Head of Sustainability, is at the forefront of our sustainability approach and ensuring engagement
with the Board, seeking input, obtaining approvals and providing regular updates on developments.
Kelly serves a crucial role in guiding the Board in our pursuit of sustainability practices and crafting
and developing the overarching strategy, setting goals and objectives for the Group, ensuringiitis
aligned with corporate strategy, and overseeing its effective implementation.

Our five We continued to work with our sustainability consultants, Ever Sustainable (part of Design Portfolio),
sustainability | ondefining relevant KPIs related to our material risks, being guided by the Global Reporting Initiative
piII ars ] ("GRI") and Sustainability Accounting Standards Board ("SASB") voluntary standards, and meeting the
requirements of the Task Force for Climate Related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD") and Streamlined
Carbonand Energy Reporting (‘SECR”).

Setting Our Tomorrow goals and objectives: our strategy development methodology provides
aconsistent and transparent narrative to all stakeholders. We have set clear goals and objectives to
ensure adefined direction for individuals, teams, and the Group. However, we continue to remain agile
and innovative and allow for flexibility in adjusting our strategy and related targets if needed, whilst
keeping the overall objectivesin mind.

Planet positive
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Sustainability continued

Using globally recognised frameworks we identified relevant KPIs and
established clear goals and objectives related to them. We also continue

to have active dialogue with internal and external stakeholders and gather
valuable feedback to help guide our strategic direction. Our goals and objectives
serve as guiding principles to help align efforts towards a common vision. We
have reviewed the industry recommended KPIs and identified areas to focus
on, which provided a framework to prioritise and focus our efforts.

As the strategy and implementation continues to evolve, so too does the
active collection of data to help us measure our progress and set realistic

but ambitious targets, against which we will track and disclose our progress
throughout the year. In defining our focus areas, we have also begunto review
dataand consider stretching targets, which we believe willenable individuals
andteams tofocus.

Ouraimis to motivate individuals and having a coordinated effort ensures we
have established common expectations, and foster collaboration towards
shared goals. This year we have focused onimplementing a structure for
measuring progress and success. Itis key for us to measure performance
soit can be evaluated and we recognise the importance measuring tools
haveinallowing for effective tracking of achievements andidentifying areas
forimprovement.

The Sustainability Committee and newly formed subcommittee are
accountable for the strategic direction and operationalimplementation
respectively and are proactive in taking actions across the five core pillars of
the Our Tomorrow strategy.

Client Positive

The collective collaboration of our entire ecosystemiis crucial to
ensure the enduring success of the "Our Tomorrow" sustainability
strategy and to truly create a meaningfulimpact.

Theinterplay between the five strategic pillars is pivotal to the future success
of our business. To effectively serve our clients and prioritise the wellbeing of
our people, we acknowledge the significance of two key mechanisms. Firstly,
we recognise our responsibility in shaping a sustainable future by mitigating
the impacts of climate change and exploring ways to contribute to alow
carbon future. Secondly, we understand that robust governance and strong
leadership form the foundation of our sustainability approach. Consequently,
we are actively enhancing our oversight and understanding of sustainability at
the highest levels of the organisation.

Reporting against our strategy: we are committed to transparency

inour reporting and will share updates via reporting and our corporate
website, on our performance to provide stakeholders with a comprehensive
understanding of our sustainability progress. We evolved our strategy further
toinclude setting goals and objectives against our KPIs, highlighting our
performance and to lay out the roadmap for success. Thisiterative reporting
process allows us to track our progress, adapt our approach as needed, and
ensure that we are effectively embedding sustainability across our business.

\

Driving our efforts to being a market leader by protecting our clients and instilling confidence in their

investment decisions. Protecting with purpose.

Link to material risks within the materiality matrix:

The behaviour of marketsisinfluenced by various factors, and it isimportant to acknowledge that market conditions are not always favourable. The Group
acknowledges the presence of risks and potential financial losses associated with our products and their potentialimpact on our clients. In addition to fulfilling

our regulatory obligations, we are actively pursuing aninnovative approach to client protection, aiming to enhance their experience while ensuring that the Group
maintains alignment with global regulatory bodies. We continue to monitor our overall commitment to our client base experience.

Goal Objective Key performance indicator FY22/23 performance

Client satisfaction: Qualtrics
and Investment Trends
% scores.

Understand our clients'
currentand future
investment needs.

Ensure we provide clients with an exceptional
service and innovative platforms to meet their
investment needs.

— Upper quartile Net Promoter Score ("NPS")
for UK, Germany, Australia and Singapore.

Progress to date: we are tracking customer advocacy and brand awareness through market research. Qualtrics is a tool we use to measure brand awareness
and attribution. Investment Trends produces research we use to understand the dynamics of the market and CMC's performance in areas such as customer
satisfaction and advocacy. We also use quantitative measurement via our own platform and third-party data sets such as Google Trends.

Roadmap: we have implemented a tracking service to establish our performance baseline and aim to set a target to reach the top quartile in our industry. We will
alsoinclude sustainability themes within this data capture tool for measurement.

Supporting our clients through education: as our product range continues to expand and diversify, we acknowledge the evolving client base which presents
the Group with exciting new opportunities. The new wave of investors differs from our traditional investor profile, as they may have less financial literacy. However,
they possess akeeninterest in engaging with our sector. We are fully committed to understanding how to best cater to the needs of these diverse and less
experienced investors, with a central focus on education.

To support this commitment, we have established a freely accessible Learning Hub on our website for allinvestors. This resource aims to assist new clients
in navigating the distinctions between spread betting, CFDs, and FX trading, as well as providing insights into key thematic trends in the market. Through this
initiative, we aim to empower investors with knowledge and help them make informed decisions.
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Goal Objective Key performance indicator FY22/23 performance
Provide clients with the tools to Develop anindustry-leading Client protection and — Ourexisting Learning Hub tracking tools have
expand their knowledge of CMC’s  Learning Hub to support clients financial literacy: number changed to OneTrust privacy managementin
trading andinvesting products with ~ whichincludes sustainable and % of active customers line with GDPR compliance. This has changed
anadditional focus onsustainable  investing themes. using financial literacy and the way we track our data. We aim to provide
investing themes/products. education tools. fuller performance datain future disclosures.

Progress to date: our freely available Learning Hub has beenimproved to include learning tools focused on trading strategies, CFDs and technical analysis in
theinitial build.

Roadmap: our aimis to embed further operational actions and evolutions which willinclude, but are not limited to: setting out CMC's principles of responsible
investing practices guide; developing aninteractive suite of sustainability-themed financial literacy resources; and developing education tools to understand risks
related to online trading. The future will also see the development of more performance-related metrics and targets as we continue to advance our approachin
thisarea.

Responsible marketing: the Group’s Marketing Communications Policy outlines the guidelines and criteria that govern the content usedin client
communications and financial promotions. It encompasses various aspects, including the nature of the content, the prominence given to specific information,
the presentation of data, and the inclusion of necessary disclosures or risk warnings. This policy ensures that our marketing communications maintain high
standards of transparency, accuracy, and compliance with applicable regulations. By adhering to these guidelines, we aim to provide clients with clear and
reliable information, enabling them to make well-informed decisions regarding our products and services.

Data privacy: our data privacy team aims to mitigate risks and create a global framework for data privacy-compliant business operations. The team helps to train
our employees to handle data responsibly and with clear accountability. It safeguards the Group by providing data privacy risk assurance and compliance with
relevant data privacy laws globally. Protecting our clients' digital assets and personal informationis fundamental to the products we offer. We aim to minimise our
susceptibility to data breaches, ensuring our customers trust us to keep their data safe. This safeguarding aligns us to our sustainability objectives. Learn more
about the global structure on: https://www.cmcmarkets.com/en-gb/privacy.

Consumer Duty: the FCA's Consumer Duty Regulation has given CMC the chance to analyse and review the retail client journey to determine whether our clients are
receiving good outcomes. Thisinvolves providing evidence that we are actingin good faith, avoid causing foreseeable harm and enabling clients to pursue their financial
objectives. CMC's Consumer Duty programmeis anchored across the culture of the organisation.

Goal Objective Key performance indicator FY22/23 performance

Ensure we meet or Aimto be industry Client protection and regulatory — Preparation for the UK Consumer Duty
exceedregulatory leadersinaddressing compliance: the most appropriate metricis requirements. We are focusing on the UK market
requirements to protect our commitments with currently being determined. and as we evolve our product line the requirements
ourclients. theregulators. of Consumer Duty will be rolled out globally.

Progress to date: aligned to consumer duty, business functions have worked collaboratively to assess and enhance areas such as product governance, client
onboarding, the assessment of fair value pricing and the identification of vulnerability characteristics in our retail client base. This work aims to build out the
required infrastructure to enable CMC to manage retail client outcomes effectively and will be underpinned by data-led monitoring and ongoing review. We have
also reviewed the storage of CMC physical records in conjunction with data privacy record management archiving at our data back-up centre.

Roadmap: we identified a need to collate baseline data, implement a tracking system and measure against industry benchmarks to set our performance targets.
We aimto be inaposition to disclose on data privacy breaches across our investment and trading platform.

Case study: Client Positive

Building trading competency through content and exciting initiatives: our content
strategy has focused oneducating users, uncovering trading opportunities and providing
insights and strategies from our in-house analysts and content team and top experts on
Wall Street. Through these partnerships, we offer in-depth analysis of market trends and
highlight trading opportunities in volatile environments. We have also been educating our
clients through regular updates to our Learning Hub on the Company website, authoring
trading guides and using experts to cover topics such as the correlation between different
financialinstruments. Additionally, we provide educational resources to teach clients new
trading methods and strategies. A good example of how we provide educational resources J “
is through hosting a webinar for clients on how to know when markets are overbought r

9—" .
versus oversold, thereby aiding clients to better time their market entry and exits. . . . . &

What Is On Your
Mind?
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Sustainability continued

Platform Positive ’

Pioneering innovative and sustainable investment products to solve our clients’ current
and future needs with platforms for good.

Link to material risks within the materiality matrix: @

Thelandscape of investment products continues to evolve and we are actively embracing this change, exploring opportunities in sustainable investment and
expanding our range of investment products and platforms to provide our clients with more options to direct their investment capital to assets that prioritise ESG
and sustainability.

Integrating sustainability-themed products and services: our primary focus in evaluating these opportunities is to ensure authenticity and credibility. We are
committed to offering our clients an investment product suite that enables them to invest responsibly and understand the growing trends towards sustainable
investments. By prioritising authenticity and aligning with core sustainability principles, we aim to provide our clients with genuine and meaningful options for
making sustainable investment choices. This year we integrated Sustainalytics data into our CMC Invest UK platform. This enables clients to obtain sustainability
dataonassets they are considering making investmentsin. We have also integrated tools for clients to set preferences and screen assets according to their own
sustainability preferences and values. Read more about our investments in technology and innovation on pages 29 to 33.

Goal Objective Key performance indicator FY22/23 performance

Provide clients with the opportunity toinvestin the net Leverage the growing ESGintegration:number — 89% of assets available onthe CMC
zero transition and integrate ESG factors into platforms demand for greenfinance of available products that Invest UK platform are powered by
designed with greener and more socially orientated todevelopauniguenichein  incorporate ESGfactors. Sustainalytics ESG data (3,421assets
solutions for both the trading and investment businesses.  the market. covered) as at end of 2023.

Progress to date: we made significant progress this year within the CMC Invest UK platform to integrate Sustainalytics sustainability data into individual assets
available onthe platform and introduced sustainability screening tools.

Roadmap: our planis to increase our sustainability-themed products and equities offering through the integration of ESG data across our platforms. We aim
to track client engagement with these evolving products and set targets. This exercise will be supported by tracking customer engagement and sustainable
investing patterns.

Your ESG preferences

Case study: Platform Positive

Powering CMC Invest with data: to support our sustainability focused investors, e
CMC Invest UK now offers anincreased level of transparency and personalisation when

customers are reviewing potential opportunities. Upon viewing an assetin the app andin
partnership with Sustainalytics, investors can see its ESG risk score, potential categories

of controversy, and businessinvolvement areas. Taking it a step further, investors are even
able to set preferences and screen assets according to their individual sustainability values,
suchas avoiding animal testing, palm oil, or weapons. They can instantly view whether
aninvestment matches or does not match, their principles, enabling them to make more
informed decisions.

[re——
=r=

Investing ininnovation and accessibility of our platforms: reviewing our trading and investment platforms through a diversity, equity, and inclusion ("DE&I")
lensis essential for us to gain a better understanding of the representation of our client base, and to ensure we are servicing a broad client demographic and
understanding their needs, perspectives, and experiences. This helps ensure that our platforms reflect the diversity of our audience and society.

Considering DE&I when evolving our platforms allows us to assess the accessibility of our online platforms for individuals from different backgrounds, abilities,
and identities. For example, studies show that 1in 12 (8%) males and 1in 200 (<1%) women are affected by colour vision deficiency ("CVD") or colour blindness
and the majority of those affected are red/green (trading up/trading down) CVD types. By identifying these patterns and addressing the barriers that may
hinder certain groups from fully engaging with our content and services, we can ensure we adapt our platforms to be more accessible to broader, more
diversified groups.
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Goal Objective Key performance indicator FY22/23 performance
Successfully integrate Develop aunique nichein R&D investmentininnovation — Researched the Web Accessibility W3C
sustainability factorsintothe client  the marketandleveragethe (productsand platforms,e.g. Principles as a measuring tool.
experience and ensure plgtforms opporf[gnlty for the growing ggces5|blllty): the mgst appropnate metric st eriTiepsT aTess sy s
are enhanced to meetadiversified  diversified client base by isinthe process of being determined. ) . )

) i with expertsin the field.

group of clients. addressing DE&I gaps.

Progress to date: we identified frameworks and operational build requirements to better enable accessibility across our platforms and we invested in our headcount by
hiring two specialists to support our platform focused DE&l agenda. We invested in web accessibility research with expert advisers in connection with National Inclusion
Week, providing colleagues with an opportunity to develop a deeper understanding of the importance of innovating technology towards accessibility.

Roadmap: this year we will measure against the Web Accessibility Initiative W3C Principles with a view to setting product development targets and increasing
our overallaccessibility performance to reach a broader demographic. We will thenimplement tools to track and measure our progress to support our
transparency and disclosure in this area.

g

Change Positive

Leading by example and demonstrating integrity, forward thinking and accountability at every step.

Link to material risks within the materiality matrix: e e e @

We uphold the highest standards when conducting our business and strive to be industry leaders through our commitment to business ethics and professional integrity.
Thiscommitmentis reflected in our robust governance processes concerning our material sustainability risks, encompassing both risks and opportunities. Through
the establishment of the Sustainability Committee and recent subcommittee, the constituents provide strong governance processes and accountability, and
the business is able to demonstrate our commitment to addressing sustainability risks and integrating responsible practices into our business operations and
decision making.

Accountability and oversight of the Our Tomorrow strategy: last year we formed a dedicated Sustainability Committee, which consists of Board members
and senior business leaders from various regions and fosters a cross-functional and holistic approach to sustainability governance. Leading the Committee

is our Global Head of Sustainability, who ensures effective co-ordination and alignment of sustainability efforts across our organisation. We took this one step
further this year, by initiating a self-nominated sustainability subcommittee who expressed aninterest in being advocates of change and joining the business on
the sustainability journey.

Purpose Responsibilities

— Provide strong governance of the sustainability strategy across the Group — Approve strategic sustainability plans

— Effectively manage the risks in our operating environment — Provide updates/obtain feedback from the Board

— Recognise and capture the opportunities presented — Approve sustainability practices

— Integration of Our Tomorrow into our global operations and decision making — Bring together internal networks to deliver against sustainability goals

— Define, deliver and measure KPls
— Accountability of the Our Tomorrow strategy and performance
— Provide strategic direction to the subcommittee

— Cross-functional transparency and collaboration
— Alignment with the regulatory requirements
— Orient the Group’s triple bottom line: People, Planet, Profit

Sustainability

Committee

Structure
— Boardrepresentation
— Committee members are cross-functional/cross-geography senior leaders

Sustainability subcommittee

— Broader employee collaboration to embed sustainable practices
intoour DNA

— Proactive approach to sustainability matters

— Constituents are cross-functional/cross-geography to
drive implementation

— Provide updates on developments to Sustainability Committee

— Regular meetings throughout the year, to drive Our Tomorrow strategy
— Subcommittee formed to help deliver sustainability goals
— Apermanent structure within CMC Markets

— Track and measure developments
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Sustainability continued

Change Positive continued
Goal Objective Key performance indicator FY22/23 performance
Leadby example Integrate sustainability objectives  Accountability: % of the Board, — DE&l objectives were set for all Executive Directors.
and ensure strong for leadership roles across the Sustainability Committee, Executive Performance against these objectives and the reward
governance of the Our businessandensure thereis Committee and senior managementwith  allocated for achievement are summarised on pages
Tomorrow strategy. meaningfullink toremuneration.  sustainability objectives embedded into 111and 112 of the Directors Remuneration Report.

remuneration.

Progress to date: all Executive Directors were set a DE&I performance objective for 2023 and we saw anincrease in senior female representationin our
London office.

Roadmap: we will be expanding Executive Director's objectives beyond DE&I to include the broader objectives of the Our Tomorrow strategy and a proportion
of their remuneration will be measured against progress; this will be conducted by the Remuneration Committee. The sustainability objectives will also be
cascaded toinclude members of the Sustainability Committee and senior management team. European offices will be introducing sustainability principles into
their organisational handbook. The Group willenhance its global Sustainability policy to incorporate the broader sustainability strategic approach and ensure our
employees have access and commit to the policy and our guiding principles.

Board diversity: we recognise that having a diversified Board with different backgrounds, perspectives and experiences leads to more robust discussions,
improved decision-making processes, and a wider range of innovative ideas and solutions. This leads to amore inclusive and balanced approach to governance.

ABoard with adiversified make-upis better equipped to identify and mitigate potential risks. Diverse perspectives can uncover blind spots, challenge
assumptions, and consider a broader range of scenarios, leading to more effective risk management strategies. We are committed to enhancing stakeholder
trust and confidence in our business and know that when the Board reflects the diversity of the society it operates in, stakeholders are more likely to perceive the
Group as fair, inclusive, and responsive to their needs.

In many jurisdictions, promoting board diversity is encouraged or even mandated by regulations and governance codes. Having a diverse board helps
organisations meet these requirements and maintain a positive corporate reputation. Board diversity is an essential element of social responsibility. It
demonstrates acommitment to fairness, equality, and inclusivity, contributing to a more equitable society and promoting positive social change.

Goal Objective Key performance indicator FY22/23 performance

Drive diversity at Boardlevel  Increase Board diversity to ensure representation Board diversity:gender  — Female representation onthe Board
andleveragethe benefitsof ~ fromagender and ethnicity perspectivetoalign  and ethnicity representation  increased from 25% to 33%.
diversity of thought. with FCA current and future requirements. at Board level.

— OurNon-Executive female representation
isnow 60%.

Progress to date: we continue to ensure diversity is a consideration as we source new talent for the Board and we drive fair recruitment processes for any
availableroles onthe Board.

Roadmap: we note the targets set out by the Listing Rules and we acknowledge that we do not comply with these targets at present, as disclosed inthe
Nomination Committee report on page 97. However, we will continue to ensure that full and proper considerationis given to gender and ethnic diversity as part
of the process for making appointments to the Board and keep our position in relation to appropriate targets under review. This year we will also focus on the
requirements outlined by the Womenin Finance Charter to support gender growthinto senior roles and track the diversity of Executive Director succession
candidates through our succession planning processes.

Upskilling at the top: CMC's Board of Directors plays a critical role in setting the overall direction and strategy of the organisation, overseeing management,
and ensuring the Group operates inthe best interests of its stakeholders. To effectively carry out these responsibilities, Board members need to possess the
knowledge, skills,and expertise necessary to make informed decisions and provide effective guidance. Learning and development programmes can provide
Board members with the opportunity to enhance their skills and knowledge in areas such as leadership, corporate governance, risk management, finance, and
strategy and this year we focused on providing tools for the Board, Executive Directors, Sustainability Committee and senior management to gain a greater
understanding of sustainability topics.

Goal Objective Key performanceindicator FY22/23performance

Increase knowledge andinsights Engage the senior level with Board, Executive — Introduced sustainability educationto the
onabroad range of topics and the facets of the Our Tomorrow Committee, Sustainability Committee and subcommittee in
trends related to the Our Tomorrow  sustainability strategy,increasing  Sustainability November 2022.

strategy, to enhance connection awareness andunderstandingof =~ Committee and senior

— 10 sustainability topics covered, 108 learning hours

to the sustainability agenda and sustainability principles, concepts, management learning :
. . . . made available, average of 6 hours per personand a
effectiveness asleaders and align and best practices. and education: number . .
. ) ) . 12-month completion window.
with expectations of our industry of learning hours and
stakeholders. topics covered.
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Case study: Change Positive

Sustainability subcommittee and advocates of change:in
forming the sustainability subcommittee, we operated an application
process, foremployees to demonstrate their appetite to be engaged with
CMC's Our Tomorrow sustainability direction. We received applications
from 6% of our global workforce. The Sustainability Committee reviewed
allapplications and identified key individuals to be our sustainability
"trailblazers", who were then assigned to the five strategic pillars of the
sustainability strategy. Together the Sustainability Committee and

newly formed subcommittee make up 8% of our employees and these
individuals will be accountable for delivering against the goals and
objectives of the Our Tomorrow strategy.

Progress to date: this year we rolled out the ESG Academy, which made sustainability specific educational tools available to members of the Sustainability
Committee and subcommittee including a selection of the Executive Committee and senior managers. The topics covered related to climate risk, ESG data and
ratings, factors and reporting; additional topics included sustainable and responsible investing and ethics, culture and conduct.

Roadmap: this year we will focus on embedding a training schedule whichincludes modules relating to sustainable themes. This will be rolled out to our
Executive Directors, Sustainability Committee members and senior management and we will aim to track participation and evidence progress to set
performance targets. We will also be providing training on sustainability matters to our Non-Executive Directors as part of their annual training plan.

Goal Objective Key performance indicator FY22/23 performance

Meet the expanding Aligning our business to Understand climaterisksandhowto - Compliant with 9 of 11 of the recommendations

requirements of TCFD. the climate risk reporting mitigate those risks: set metricsand of TCFD's 2021 guidance inaccordance with
requirements of TCFD. targets by end of 2024 and publish. ListingRule 9.8.6.

Progress to date: we made significant progress in understanding and assessing our climate risk, through the updates of our climate risk register and scenario
analysis. Find out more about our TCFD alignment and deeper analysis on pages 50 to 59.

Roadmap: this year we will be setting metrics and targets related to climate risk, as we are not ready to disclose on them without a deeper understanding of the
nature of these risks and their potentialimpacts to our business. Our aimis to address these final two of the 11 TCFD recommendations relating to metrics and
targets and update on our progress in our next disclosure.

Equal opportunities: we unequivocally reject any form of unlawful or unfair discrimination. When seeking talent, our commitment is to recruit the best individuals
froma wide range of applicants. We believe that all candidates deserve to be respected and valued for the contributions they bring to the Group. We are fully
committed to considering employment applications from individuals with disabilities and providing ongoing employment to current employees who may become
disabled during their tenure, whenever feasible. For those with disabilities seeking to join CMC Markets or existing employees who experience disabilities,
whether temporary or permanent, we strive to adapt the work environment and offer flexible work arrangements, training, and graduated back-to-work plansin
collaboration with occupational health.

Human rights: we uphold ethical business practices and are committed to promoting and protecting recognised human rights principles. The Group's stance
against slavery and human trafficking can be found in our dedicated statement, whichis available on our website (www.cmncmarkets.com/group). We actively
monitor employee remuneration to ensure compliance with living wage requirements or their local equivalents.

Anewly formed steering committee has been brought together to measure, monitor and enhance our approach to modern slavery. The committee meets
quarterly and consists of key stakeholders from legal, financial crime, sustainability, human resources, and compliance teams and is responsible for reviewing the
current effectiveness of our measures and enhancing our internal practices to mitigate our risk and exposure to modern slavery practices.

Anti-bribery and anti-corruption: the Group maintains a zero-tolerance approach towards bribery and inducements. We have implemented a comprehensive
anti-bribery and corruption policy that applies to all our global staff. This policy is overseen by the Heads of Compliance in the UK and Europe and is diligently
enforced by our financial crime team and compliance officers across our offices worldwide. In addition to this policy, we provide clear guidelines to our staff
regarding otherimportant areas such as politically exposed persons ("PEPs"), gifts, entertainment, and expenses.

To ensure transparency and accountability, we have a Whistleblowing policy that allows any member of our staff to anonymously raise concerns related to bribery
or corruption. We take these concerns seriously and investigate them promptly and thoroughly. Our commitment to maintaining the highest ethical standards is
unwavering, and we actively promote a culture of integrity, honesty, and compliance throughout the Group.
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Sustainability continued

People Positive ‘

Cultivating culture and fostering an inclusive and innovative workplace where everyone thrives.

Link to material risks within the materiality matrix: o

Theinvaluable contribution of our people has been at the heart of CMC Markets' success. We recognise that our future accomplishments hinge on cultivating
and enriching an environment where our employees can fully realise their potential. This involves prioritising areas such as workforce diversity, talent development,
gender and equal pay of our workforce, and taking decisive steps to create a workplace where everyone can flourish, irrespective of their beliefs and identities.

The Group made significant progress across a number of core people metrics this year. In a challenging post-COVID-19 employment market, CMC successfully
grew its headcount by 28% to support its growth and transformation strategies. We delivered 68% of hires through our internal talent team or employee referral,
significantly reducing cost whilstimproving the quality of the candidates we hired. Voluntary turnover decreased to 20% from 24% and employee engagement
improved from 66%in 2022 to 72% in 2023. Our focus on employee development and ensuring our reward structures are market aligned, saw over 200
employees benefiting from an internal promotion or developmental role change. We continue to evolve our HR model with dedicated resource to supportlearning and
development, DE&landreward.

Workforce diversity, equity and inclusion ("DE&I"): we value diversity across the Group and this year we will focus on gender, ethnicity and disability. Our
diverse workforce brings together individuals with different backgrounds, experiences, and perspectives. This diversity of thought and ideas fosters innovation
and creativity within the Company and diverse teams are more likely to generate a wider range of ideas, challenge conventional thinking, and offer unique
solutions to problems. Teams composed of individuals with diverse backgrounds and perspectives approach problem solving and decision-making from various
angles. This diversity helps to identify blind spots, consider alternative viewpoints, and arrive at more well-rounded solutions and the different perspectives can
lead to better critical thinking and more effective problem-solving strategies.

We have seen a shiftin the competitive job market towards prospective employees prioritising DE&I when considering potential employers. The Group values
and promotes diversity and we are attracting a wide pool of talented candidates. A diverse and inclusive workplace is essential for retaining our top talent, as
employees are more likely to stay in an environment where they feel respected, supported, andincluded.

Goal Objective Key performance indicator FY22/23 performance

Fosteran Adopt a proactive Workforce diversity: gender, — Overall global gender balance at CMC has remained stable at 29% female
inclusive DE&l strategy that ethnicity and disability: % of and 71% male. We saw a 3% increase of female representation in the UK
cultureand providesemployees employee diversity according to which was offset by a decrease in APAC & Canada.

workplacefor  withthetools gender, ethnicity and disability at

— Femalesinsenior management rolesimproved from 11% (October 2022) to

allcolleagues.  to reaqh their Q|ﬁergnt levels of.the organllsatlon 20% (March 2023) using the FTSE Women Leaders Framework.
potential. including Executive Committee,
senior management and entire — Directreports to Executive Directors: 6% self-identified as being froma
workforce of the organisation. diverse ethnic background.

Progress to date: this year we made great strides in DE&I when we became signatories of the Women in Finance Charter
("WiFC") andlaunched a comprehensive programme to engage our workforce in developments in DE&, these initiatives
included the launch of anew intranet portal, education and learning through guest speakers and panel discussions and
providing DE&I focused learning tools for National Inclusion Week and International Women'’s Day. We also recruited DE&I
specialistsin London and Sydney, who work closely with the business at all levels to ensure we achieve our diversity goals both
regionally and globally. We implemented a structured calendar to recognise and celebrate key moments throughout the year and
evolved our Employee Resource Group programme. This included our Women@CMC network, which this year launched a
mentoring programme for women in the UK and provided networking and professional development tools on topics such as:
managing limiting self-beliefs, financial wellbeing, and career planning. Toimprove the depth of our DE&I data we launched our
"Countmein" campaign and improved onboarding processes to maximise data capture upon joining our business.

Roadmap: we value all aspects of diversity and this year our focus areas will be gender, disability, and ethnicity. Our gender commitments are outlined by the
Womenin Finance Charter. Our ethnicity focus will see us measure against the Investing in Ethnicity ("lIE") Maturity Matrix and develop an alignment strategy. Our
disability focus will see us measure against the Business Disability Forum ("BDF") Disability Smart Assessment and develop an alignment strategy. We will deliver
training to allemployees to increase understanding of DE&-related topics and build our reporting capability for DE&I-related metrics. We will also planto report
against the Workplace Gender Equality Agency ("WGEA") in Australia and align with the requirements.
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Case study: People Positive -

HM Treasury's WomeninFinance Charter("WiFC"): this year we
are proud tobecome signatories of WiFC and committed to work together

within the sector to build amore balanced and fairindustry. We support

the Government's aspirations to see gender balance at all levels, withinthe
finance sector and concur that a balanced workforceis great for business, its
customers, profitability, workplace culture and more increasingly for investors.

Ourambitionis to align with the requirements of the WiFC and support
the progression of women into senior roles with a focus on the executive
pipeline and mid-tier level. As defined by the Charter we will set gender-
related targets and implement a strategy for achieving these targets.
We commit to being transparent on our progress and to deliver against

these targets.

Publicly reporting our developments will drive change today andin the
future and hold the organisation accountable for meeting the requirements

of the Charter.

Our engagement score

1%

animprovement of 5% on

Talent development: in the last four years our spending on learning and development has increased by 230% and
we are committed to employees' professional growth and advancement and giving employees opportunities to
learn new skills, acquire knowledge, and develop their talents. We have seen the benefits of this including reduced
employee turnover. Continuous learning and development enable our employees to stay updated onindustry trends,
best practices, and emerging technologies, allowing them to contribute more effectively to the organisation's goals.
Ultimately, this leads to improved performance and increased productivity.

Over recent years we have we developed a multi-channel approach to learning and development with an emphasis
ontechnology-based delivery platforms and open access product and have gone one step further this year
by consolidating the delivery platforminto Workday, our HR portal, so we have a single source of learning and

our 2022 survey development data. We have also supported internal mobility and career progression and seen employees benefit

fromaninternal promotion or career move within CMC in 2023. We also expanded our junior talent schemes toinclude
graduates in technology development, technology production, legal and quant teams.

Goal Objective Key performance indicator FY22/23 performance

Continually upskill our workforce, close knowledge gaps  Adopt a targeted approach to training Talent development: — Weinvested 1%

and ensure employees possess the necessary skills and development of our talent to Investment in educationand of global payroll

for our business to compete in the future and reduce demonstrate commitment to the training: average hours of intolearningand

reliance on third-party advisers. workforce andincrease retention. training per person. development.

Progress to date: we introduced career planning workshops and taster programmes in our APAC offices focused on the junior talent in our customer services
function. Our Women@CMC ERG group rolled out a mentor programme for its members which is now being evolved to provide a Group-wide programme. We
enhanced our technical provision with the introduction of industry recognised online resources such as Puralsight.

Roadmap: we will hire learning and development specialists in our main offices in London and Sydney to support enhancements to our junior talent and leadership
programmes to complement our management course. Tounderpin our graduate programme we willlaunch a paidinternship programme and we willengage with our
charity partner, Making the Leap, to ensure we attract a diverse range of candidates and utilise the Social Mobility Index to benchmark our current position. We will
supportemployee career progression within our career framework. Specialist educational development areas willinclude sustainability, conduct and consumer duty.
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Community engagement and impact: our commitment to sustainability extends beyond our business operations and into the communities where we operate.
Duetoimprovementsin CMC's global charity programme, we have seen significant increase in fundraising and engagement with our carefully selected charity
partners. These enhancements have helped to shape a strong purpose led culture across the Group and we are proud of employees commitment to charitable
actions this year to support various communities including, but not limited to, driving social mobility and economic empowerment.

Our European offices initiated their inaugural charity programme this year, with charity partners that closely align
O with our sustainability goals. We identified a team of "Charity Champions" to support the delivery of the programme,
led by our Head of Europe. We selected six charity partners across three countries in much needed areas of
O reforestation, gender employment support and career guidance for disadvantaged individuals. Our valuable

partnerships have engaged employees in various volunteering activities including tree planting, mentoring, career
increaseinvolunteer days guidance and fundraising.

Our UK offices continue to support economic empowerment and are in the third year of a three-year partnership with three charity partners focused on social
mobility from school age to young adults making their first steps into the professional world. As well as continuing to support our employees' choice charity, a
local hospice that supports individuals and their families through challenging times, we continue to support our partners through donations and fundraising
initiatives. This year we were delighted to see a significant increase in employees offering their time to volunteer with our charity partners throughinitiatives such
as gardening days, painting and decorating, business planning and career guidance.

Our APAC & Canada offices have a dedicated team of "Charity Champions" that develop and implement a yearly plan of initiatives which include many
volunteering opportunities such as providing food service for women who have experienced domestic abuse and supporting theirindependence and economic
empowerment. Our partners also provide support with numeracy through education and learning of young children.
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Case study: People Positive

Economic empowerment: our commitment to sustainability extends
beyond our business operations and into the communities where we
operate and empowering individuals to have financial stability. This year
our Singapore office commenced a partnership with Sophia, Asia's
firstand only female focused financial education platform to promote
financial literacy amongst young Singaporean women whose goal is to
make financial education accessible to all women and close the financial
literacy andinvestment gap. As part of the collaboration we sponsored
an education series including topics on making budgets, managing debt,
mindful spending, and the benefits of starting to invest early.
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Goal Objective Key performance indicator FY22/23 performance
Actively champion and support regional Setanannual pledge against Community engagement: — 26% increased usage of volunteer daysin
charities, aligned to the Our Tomorrow profits toadopt a faircommitment % of annual profits APAC & Canadain 2023 compared to 2022.
strategy across our global activity, to charities and increase workforce paidto charitable . .
o . ) : . o . — 1167% increased usage of volunteer daysin
delivering a fair and strategic approach to engagement with charity partners.  organisations, aligned to the .
. ) UKin 2023 compared to 2022.
philanthropy and increase engagement Our Tomorrow strategy.
with charity partners.

Progress to date: this year we delivered a fuller programme of volunteering and fundraising opportunities. We launched anew charity programme across
Europe and began aligning our partnerships with the goals of the Our Tomorrow sustainability strategy. We also launched our "Charity Chronicle" newsletter and
intranet site as a way of enhancing our engagement with our workforce with the purpose led activity.

Roadmap: our focus will be on delivering a more robust structure to our community engagement programme, through resourcing and ensuring governance and
oversight aligns our charities and activity to the Our Tomorrow goals. We will set a pledge demonstrating our financial commitment each year and we will focus on
increasing employee engagement with charity partners.

Planet Positive

Understanding and mitigating our climate impacts and exploring opportunities to support
the transition to a greener economy.

Link to material risks within the materiality matrix: e a @

We recognise that we have work to do to understand the full scale of ourimpacts on the environment and have committed to taking aleading role in the fintech
space to mitigate our environmental footprint, from finding ways to enhance our energy efficiency and reduce our carbonimpacts, to embracing more holistic
ways of thinking about technology and electronic waste. As we continue to expand and grow our business, we are reviewing our office spaces and specifying the
need for green credentials and utilising data provided by BREEAM ratings, or local equivalents on the buildings we are considering, to inform our decision making.

This year we have been focused on developing a more comprehensive climate strategy and full greenhouse gas emissions inventory. As a fintech business we
recognise that our overall carbon footprint may not be asimpactful as other sectors, however we remain committed to setting out our plan to mitigate climate
change and reduce our environmentalimpacts. We have set goals and objectives relating to absolute emissions, emissions intensity, and energy consumption
but also beyond, to identify how we mightimplement initiatives, and make strategic decisions to mitigate greenhouse gas emissions, promote sustainable
practices, and adapt to the effects of climate change.

As thefirst stepin this journey has been to understand the Group’s current overall carbon footprint, we initiated a data collection project which expanded beyond
previous years Scope 1and 2 emissions data to also include our Scope 3 emissions data. The Group believes we should focus beyond our own Company's direct
operations and encompass our entire supply chain. In addition to this, we are stepping up our commitment to the planet: our aimis to set net zero targets aligned to
international frameworks that limit global warming to a 1.5°C target for our own operations and well below 2°C for everything in our value chain.

Inthe future this willinvolve working with suppliers, contractors, and partners to encourage sustainable practices, reduce emissions, and promote responsible
sourcing. We know that collaboration and transparency throughout the value chainis crucial to effectively manage our environmental impacts and reduce the
carbonfootprint associated with the products and services we provide.

This year we engaged Normative which has a team of climate experts to support our climate strategy and a carbon accounting engine which helps us to calculate,
report, and reduce our carbon emissions. Normative uses the Greenhouse Gas ("GHG") Protocol and a database of emissions factors to bring scientific accuracy
to emissions accounting. The GHG Protocol represents a comprehensive global standardised framework to measure and manage GHG emissions from private
and public sector operations, value chains, and mitigation actions and is compatible with our net zero journey.

Our calculation methodology: GHG emissions are calculated in alignment with records used to produce the consolidated Financial Statements for the
relevant accounting period. CMC's GHG footprint follows the operational control approach and if we operate and control an area, the associated emissions will
fallinto Scope 1or 2 and all other emissions fallinto Scope 3. This year we have increased our reporting to cover Scope 3 emissions, using a hybrid method of
spend or activity data depending on the category and data availability.

We have made changes to our Scope categorisation, as we align with the GHG Protocol and calculate our Scope 3 emissions for the first time. Our gas consumption
has been recategorised from Scope 1to Scope 2 due to the fact that we do not have operational control over the boilers in our multi-tenanted buildings. We do not
have adirect contract with the gas supplier in our London office and energy is paid through service fees to the landlord.
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Planet Positive continued

Another key recategorisation relates to our external datacentres which have moved from Scope 2 to Scope 3 upstream leased assets as it was established to
be aleased co-location data centre space. We confirm that the emissions are stillincluded within Scope 3 data. Lastly the renewable energy percentage has
increased, as the London office has a 100% renewable contract, reducing our market-based Scope 2 emissions.

Ourapproach for any errors, updates, or restatements involves applying a threshold of 5%. In the event of an error or update identified in the prior period or
baseline, we will restate our GHG emissions if the error exceeds this threshold. Furthermore, we recognise the significance of acquisitions, disposals, and
changes within the Group from both a size and operations perspective. The figures below include emissions data fromall global offices where data is available
and,insome cases, estimates are used to calculate usage where actual consumption figures are not available.

Absolute emissions and emissions intensity: we have reviewed both absolute emissions intensity (e.g., reducing

5%

emissions by a percentage) and intensity based (e.g. reducing emissions per unit of output). We have also focused on
reviewing energy efficiency and our use of renewable energy to prioritise energy efficiency measures that reduce our energy
consumptionand associated emissions. This includes reviewing ways to implement energy-saving technologies, upgrading
infrastructure, identifying way to optimise processes, and promoting energy conservation among employees. Additionally,

we are building on our current purchasing from renewable energy sources to transition away from fossil fuels and further

energy fromrenewable sources reduce our carbon footprint.

Scope 2: to determine the carbonimpacts for electricity we used
emissions factors from the Association of Issuing Bodies ("AlB"). Cooling
isregional/district-specific and is otherwise covered by electricity
databases. Gas consumptionisincludedin Scope 2 and our external data
centres areincludedin Scope 3,in 2023.2022 and base year 2015 figures
have been restated to reflect the recategorisations.

Scope 3: we used emission factors from the Department for Business,
Energy and Industrial Strategy’s (“BEIS”), now Department for Business
and Trade ("DBT"), for fuel and energy related activities, business travel
and waste generated in our operations, coupled with Exiobase, whichis
an Environmentally-extended input-output analysis ("EEIO") model, for
capital goods, purchase goods and services, and upstream transportation
and distribution. External data centres are included in Scope 3in 2023.
2022 figures have been restated to reflect this recategorisation.

Defining the three scopes of corporate emissions according to the GHG Protocol

co CH N,0 HFC,

2 2 2

Scope 3
Indirect emissions

Scope 2
Indirect emissions

4{) Purchased Purchasedgoods 17 Waste generated
electricity, andservices in operations
steam, heating ) .
and cooling \& Capital goods 3% Businesstravel
forownuse

}9 Fuelandenergy- 2 Employee
related activities commuting

Transportation @ Leasedassets
anddistribution

Upstream activities

Reporting company

SF, NF, PFC,
Scope1 Scope 3
Direct emissions Indirect emissions
Company &= Transportation \/ End-of-life
facilities and distribution treatment of
sold products
&> Company (> Processingof
vehicles sold products 2 Leasedassets
)
\/ Lzl Q Franchises

products

Onll Investments

Downstream activities

Source: Normative Emissions Calculation Methodology Version 1.1- Jan 2023: The three scopes of corporate emissions according to the GHG Protocol.

46 -CMC Markets plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2023



Strategic report Governance Financial statements Shareholder information 0

Goal Objective Key performance indicators FY22/23 performance
Developaclimate Measure our Scope  Emissions: total (absolute) - Scope 2increase from 258.4tCO g, in 2022 t0 281.2tCO,ein 2023 due to
strategy thatalignsto  3emissionsandset  global greenhouse gas higher non-renewables in the grid as a result of disruptions to global energy
the Paris Agreement  anet zero science- emissionsincluding direct suppliesin 2023.
UL Lo e B Gl — Scope 3increase from 9,858.3tCO,ein 202210 12,2197 tCO,ein 2023
tosupport the global (Scope 2) and other indirect T , ) 2 ) -

N L primarily due to anincrease in Group operating expensesin 2023.
sustainability agenda. (Scope 3) emissions.

Emissions intensity: - Emissionintensity ratioincreased to 43.3tCO,e/£min 2023 from

emissions intensity ratio (total 35.9tCO,e/£min 2022.
globalemissions / net operating
incomeintCO,e/£m).

Progress to date: we engaged Normative, a carbon accounting and climate expert advisory team, to help develop our strategy, collected 2022 Scope 3
emissions and performed areview of Scope 1and 2 emissions data. We are including climate and sustainability factors in key projects and procurement activity,
suchas the selection and onboarding of our new global travel provider and the selection of our new data centre partner where 100% renewable energy and
strong sustainability strategy were a key part of the decision process. As part of the renovation of our office space in London, sustainability factors are being
takeninto consideration from demolition to redecoration, lighting, sustainably sourced materials and recycling/upcycling.

Roadmap: we have ambitious targets for this year and aim to align and sign up to Tech Zero. We also aim to include sustainability principlesin our tender, supplier
onboardingand due diligence process. We aim to set anet zero target following a full review of our emissions data for 2023.

Goal Objective Key performance indicator FY22/23 performance

Move towards renewable Drive downour Scopeland Emissions consumption: — Energy fromrenewable sources moves from 91%in 2022 to
energy sources to power 2emissionstoalignwithnet % of electricity consumption  95%in 2023.

ouroperations. zero ambitions. fromrenewable sources.

Progress to date: we performed areview of our global office energy use and collated data for 2023.

Roadmap: our focus will be on collating all energy supply data from across our global offices (where available). We will set a pledge that ensures we drive down
energy sources from fossil fuels. Following a review of our full renewable energy source data, we aim to set arenewable energy target.

Reporting and disclosure: we will continue to provide transparent reporting and disclosure of our environmental performance and progress towards our
climate goals. This involves measuring and monitoring of key performance indicators, tracking emissions, and reporting on our climate initiatives. We will continue
to align with the voluntary reporting frameworks of SASB and GRI and utilise the carbon accounting tools of the GHG Protocol and report against the Task Force
on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD") to communicate our climate actions to stakeholders.

Case study: Planet Positive

Launching our climate strategy: as part of the lead up to World Earth Day,

we hosted a panel discussion moderated by the Group CFO and Global Head of
Sustainability alongside the COO of Normative, the Group's carbon accounting
experts,and Ever Sustainable’s senior sustainability consultant. Both Normative

and Ever Sustainable have been engaged by the Group to support our carbon data
collectionand climate strategy. The purpose of the panel was toraise awareness of the
Group'scommitment to the planet and inform employees of the Group's progress and
continued steps toreduce its carbon footprint. We recognise the importance of taking
ouremployees on the carbon reductionjourney as everyone needs to play their partin
asustainable future.
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Greenhouse gas emissions by scope

Yearended

Year ended Yearended 31March 2015

Unit 31March 2023 31March2022! (baseyear)!

Scope 1: direct greenhouse emissions that occur from sources that are controlled or tCO.e = — —

owned by anorganisation kWh - — —

Scope 2: indirect market-based emissions from utility companies, such as electricity, tCOLe 281.2 2584 35604

heat, cooling and suppliers of steam? kWh  4,051,055.5 3,884,452.6 5,940,440.0
Scope 3indirect value chain greenhouse gas emissions except scope 2 categories,

upstream and downstream tCO.e 12,219.7 9,858.3 —

Total global emissions: sum of emissions of various gases tCOe 12,500.9 10,116.7 3,560.4

kWh  4,051,055.5 3,884,452.6 5,940,440.0

Net operatingincome £m 288.4 2819 1436
Headcount number 1,087.0 917.0 473.0
Intensity ratio (total global emissions/net operatingincome) tCOe/£m 43.3 359 24.8
Intensity ratio (total global emissions/employee) tCO,e/HC 1.5 1.0 75
Renewable % for electricity 95% 91% —

1 2022andbase year emission data has beenrestated to reflect the reclassification of gas consumption, moved from Scope 1to Scope 2 and external datacentres, moved from Scope 2to Scope 3.
Scope 3datafor 2022 has been calculated retrospectively. Please refer to calculation methodology on pages 45 to 46 for more information on the re-classifications.

2 Toalignwith GHG Protocol we have included district cooling datain 2023 and we recalculated our gas consumption for our London office usinga m? basis.

Global energy consumption by locationinkWh

Year ended Year ended Yearended Yearended

31March23  31March 23 (%) 31March 22 31March 22 (%)
UK 3,406,794.0 86% 3,440,7515 89%
Rest of the World 644,261.5 14% 443,701.0 1%
Total 4,051,055.5 100% 3,884,452.5 100%
Global energy emissions by locationin tCO,e

Year ended Yearended Yearended Yearended

31March 23 31March 23 (%) 31March22 31March 22 (%)
UK 4,901.6 64% 4,400.0 43%
Rest of the World 7,599.3 36% 5716.7 57%
Total 12,500.9 100% 10,116.7 100%

Global energy emissions (tCo,e) by scope

E! A — Scope1/0%
B - Scope2/2%
C - Scope 3/98%
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Group non-financial information statement

Set out below s the information required by Sections 414CA and 414CB of the Companies Act 2006 (the "Act”) necessary for an understanding of the Group’s
development, performance and positionin relation to the matters set out in the table below.

Reporting requirement

Group policies and statements

Financial statements

Shareholder information

Commentary, outcomes and KPIs

0

Environmental matters

— Healthand Safety Policy
— Traveland Entertainment Policy

Sustainability section pages 34 t0 48

Employees

— Equal Opportunity Policy

— Anti-Harassment and Bullying Policy

— Physical Security Policy

— UK Sabbatical Policy

— Diversity and Inclusion Statement and Policy
— BoardDiversity Policy

— Flexible Working Policy

Sustainability section pages 34 to 48
Nomination Committee section pages 94 to 97

Social matters

— Equal Opportunity Policy

— UK Sabbatical Policy

— Diversity and Inclusion Statement and Policy
— BoardDiversity Policy

Sustainability section pages 34 to 48
Nomination Committee section pages 94 to 97

Humanrights

— Equal Opportunity Policy

— Anti-Harassment and Bullying

— Physical Security Policy

— UK Sabbatical Policy

— Diversity and Inclusion Statement and Policy
— BoardDiversity Policy

— Flexible Working Policy

Sustainability section pages 34 t0 48
Nomination Committee section pages 94 to 97

Anti-corruption and
anti-bribery matters

— Group Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy
— Group AML Policy

— Group Financial Sanctions Policy

— Group Politically Exposed Persons Policy
— Group Anti-Slavery Policy

— Modern Slavery Statement

Stakeholder engagement section pages 16 to 19

Principal risks

Risk management section pages 671073

Business model

Our business model section pages12t013

Non-financial key
performance indicators

Key performance indicators section pages 26 to 28
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TCFD

Task Force on Climate-Related
Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”)

CMC acknowledges the systemic challenges posed by the climate crisis to
business and society. We also know that we have arole to play in mitigating
our ownimpacts on the climate whilst ensuring the resilience of our business.
CMC reported against the recommendations of the TCFD for the first time in
our 2022 Annual Report and Financial Statements. This year, we continue to
enhance our approach to understanding and managing climate-related risks
and opportunities in line with the TCFD’s 2021implementation guidance. In
accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.6 R, the climate-related financial disclosures
are consistent with 9 out of 11 of the TCFD recommended disclosures. Where
we are not yet compliant (recommendations 9 and 11 relating to metrics and
targets), we explain our position and forward-looking planin the relevant sections
below. We will continue to refine our approach to build resilience against the
potential physical and transition risks of climate change whilst also identifying
ways to reduce the Group’simpacts on the planet.

Governance

The Board oversees the Group's Our Tomorrow sustainability strategy, which
encompasses oversight of the risks and opportunities of the climate crisis.
The Board receives updates onthe Our Tomorrow strategy at least three
times each year and approves relevant KPIs and targets, including those
related to climate change. In 2023 the Board considered sustainability matters
atfour meetings, receiving updates on the Group’s progress toimplement its
sustainability strategy and the establishment of the Sustainability Committee
and its subcommittee and to discuss or approve the KPIs against which
progress of the strategy willbe measured and reported against.

This year we appointed a Chief Risk Officer (“CRO”) who brings experience in
implementing environmental,social and governance (‘ESG”) capabilities. The
CROisamember of the Sustainability Committee and will provide oversight
on climate changes risks to which the firmis exposed.
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The Board relays its thinking on climate-related risks and opportunities and
isinformed about CMC's performance against climate-related initiatives

and targets via the Sustainability Committee. The Sustainability Committee
reports up to the Board at least three times annually inaccordance with

its terms of reference. The Sustainability Committee includes two Board
members, the Chief Financial Officer and Head of Asia Pacific & Canada, who
represent the Board's position on climate-related topics andin turn act as
advocates for the priorities of the Committee at the Board level.

The Sustainability Committee is chaired by CMC'’s Global Head of Sustainability,
whose mandate includes the assessment and management of CMC

Markets’ sustainability risks and opportunities, including the impacts of climate
change. Committee membership is comprised of a cross-functional team

of senior management, including the above-mentioned Board members.

The Sustainability Committee provides the forum through which the Global
Head of Sustainability keeps senior management abreast of climate-related
initiatives and progress. For more details about the responsibilities of the
Sustainability Committee, see page 51.

A subcommittee specifically dedicated to the Planet Positive pillar of the
Our Tomorrow strategy is charged with helping the Committee embed the
goals and objectives of the Our Tomorrow strategy into the operations of
the business. In addition,a TCFD working group including representatives
from across different departments is convened to participate in climate risk
assessment exercises including climate scenario analysis.

The Board and relevant Committees consider climate-related issues when
considering its decisions and guiding major plans of action that could affect
the climate impact aspirations of the Planet Positive pillar of the Our Tomorrow
sustainability strategy. It also considers the risk and opportunities that climate
changeimpacts have onits operations.
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CMC’s governance of climate risks and opportunities

The Board

Provides oversight of the Group’s Our Tomorrow sustainability strategy, which encompasses monitoring KPIs and targets for climate-related risks and
opportunities and approving the contents of this TCFD Statement.

Group Audit Committee Group Risk Committee Nomination Committee Remuneration Committee
The Committee ensures an The Committeereceivesreportsfrom  The Committee considersthebalance The Committee considersthe
independent review of reporting the Executivesonthe principalrisksto  of skilsonthe Boardandensuresthat — performance of the Executive
onclimate change risks within the businessandreviews the TCFD any gapsareidentifiedandconsidered  Directors against performance
this TCFD Statement as part of its Statementinordertomakea whennew Boardmembersare metrics which are linked to
consideration of the AnnualReport  recommendation onits approval appointedand whenany training remuneration packages. This
and Financial Statements. tothe Board. needs for existing Non-Executive includes sustainability KPIs in
Directors are discussed. This will performance targets.

include considerationofthe
knowledge required by the Boardin
relation to sustainability matters.

Sustainability Committee Planet Positive subcommittee TCFD working group

The Committee ensures robust governance The Committeeis responsible for the deliveryof ~ The TCFD working group is convened to support
of the Our Tomorrow strategy and provides the Planet Positive KPIs including climate-related  climate risk assessment and to develop a
transparency to the Board on sustainability goalsand objectives as well as trackingthe data  decision-useful disclosure.

considerations and developments, including, needed for reporting.

but not limited to, alignment with regulatory
requirements, managing and identifying the
risk and opportunities in our operating
environment and providing strategic direction
to the subcommittees, and oversees the
implementation of sustainability initiatives
and the climate strategy, including climate
mitigation and resilience.
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TCFD continued

Risk management

Akey focus of the Group’s climate change agenda this year was toimprove

our approach toidentifying, assessing and managing climate-related risks

that couldimpact our business. Inaddition to reviewing our identification and
assessment methodologies, we conducted more rigorous climate scenario
analysis to test the Group's strategic resilience over the short, mediumand

long term. The Group also deepened alignment with existing risk management
approaches within the business with the hiring of a CRO who will support the
business in continuing to improve the integration of climate-related risks into the
Group's overarching risk management procedures. On pages 54 to 57 inour
summarised risk register, we provide further detail onhow we manage each
identified risk.

Risk identification and assessment

Building onlast year's work to identify climate risks, in 2023 the Group
conducted areview of our register of identified climate risks and the Group’s
approach to climate risk assessment. With the support of external consultants
from Ever Sustainable, this exercise included:

— research to enhance existing intelligence onindustry and
geographical considerations;

— mapping climate risks to our identified principal risks to better understand
the interplay with our core business risks; and

— conductinginternal interviews with stakeholders from departments
across the business.

Additionally, we defined clear time horizons to assess climate-related

risks and identified potential metrics to support the monitoring of risks
inaccordance with the TCFD's guidance on cross-sector metrics. We
undertook this exercise in order to:

— enhance our understanding of the climate risks facing our business;

— determine whether any changes to the materiality of identified risks
had occurred;

— uncover whether new climate-related risks had been identified;
— devise stronger monitoring capabilities for the identified risks;

— review and enhance our approach to integrating climate-related risks into
the Group’s enterprise risk management systems; and

— enhance our understanding of the key risks to be assessed in climate
scenario analysis.
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Therisk review led to several changes to our climate risk assessment
methodology. We streamlined the overarching risk identification taxonomy
used to assess CMC's climate-related risks from four categories

(physical, transition, liability and transboundary) to two (physical and
transition), which achieves greater consistency with the climate disclosure
standards adopted by our industry. We also elected to consolidate our
twelve identified risks to nine risks, which further supports alignment to
recognised climate risks impacting our industry and improves consistency
with CMC's internal risk language. We disclose these risks and their
potentialimpacts on pages 54 to 57.

Risk assessment and prioritisation

Amore granular risk prioritisation methodology was applied to improve our
assessment of climate-related risks. The risk assessment criteria align closely
to the Group's risk evaluation matrices in order to enhance integration with

the Group's overarching risk management systems and the judgements

and estimates appliedin our Financial Statements. The likelihood assessment
reflects the probability of the risk crystallising over the assessed time period,
taking into accountindustry and geographical considerations. Theimpact
assessment reflects the potential financial losses incurred if the risk were
toberealised.

We acknowledge the novelty of climate-related risks, which makes it challenging
to define precise financialimpacts for the business and will continue to iterate
its assessment criteria as greater understanding of financialimplications at
the entity level become known. At present, we have adopted the threshold
defined for a critical financial impact as greater than £5 million, which aligns
approximately to Group risk appetite as at year end.

At this time, the Group has deemed that the potentialimpacts of climate-related
risks do not surpass this threshold and are not expected to over the next three
years, the period over which we provide a viability statement. We have therefore
determined that no action currently need be taken to adjust our Financial
Statements and regard these disclosures to be consistent with the information
contained herein. Additionally, we have determined that climate change will
remain categorised as anemerging risk rather thana principal risk due to the
result of the current assessment which concluded that critical thresholds are not
expected to breach. We will continue to monitor this designation closely as we
enhance the Enterprise Risk Management Framework (‘ERM”). See page 67 for
more details onemergingrisks.
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Risk assessment criteria
Impact
Minor Important Significant Major Critical
£0to £50k £50k to £250k £250kto£2m £2mto£5m >£5m

Highly possible >80%

Possible 40-80%
°
3
= Unlikely 20-40%
2
—
Remote 10-20%
Veryremote <10%

M Veryhigh MHigh BMMedium [FlLow Very low

Strategy

The Groupidentified and assessed climate risks and opportunities to understand their potentialimpact on different areas of our business and the Group's
strategy over the short, medium and long term. These time horizons align with our business and financial planning timelines, including our viability assessment
period as noted above, as well as the timelines defined by others in our industry. These time horizons are defined as short term (2023-25), medium term (2026-
2035) and long term (2036+).

Different areas of the business including HR, facilities, technology, procurement, finance and operations are all considered as part of the risk assessment process.
Ourassessment of the potential consequences to different business units is captured through our mapping of each climate risk to the Group's principal risks.
Over the short, mediumandlong term, the Group's technology department represents the portion of the business with the greatest exposure to both physical
and transitionrisk. The Group’s HR and facilities departments are limited in their exposure in the short term, although in the medium to long term, physical risk
exposureislikely toincrease.

Additionally, the Group monitors variations in the potential climate risks across the geographic locations of the Group’s operations and markets, including the UK,
Europe,and APAC & Canada. The Group has determined that its exposure to physical risk is most critical in the Asia Pacific & Canada region over the medium
and long term. We will continue to monitor our exposure carefully and consider more granular assessment of our business units and geographical exposure as
appropriate. The results of our assessment of the potentialimpact and likelihood of our identified climate risks across three climate scenarios is disclosed in the
tables onpages 58 and59.
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TCFD continued

Strategy continued
Summary of CMC’s climate risk register

Physical risks - Floods and storms

Risk/opportunity description: the risk of floods, storms, and other extreme weather events causing damage to premises/other physical assets
and/or wider infrastructure on which we are reliant, and disrupting operations.

Mapping to principal risks Potential financialimpacts

— Business continuity and disaster recovery risk — Revenue losses linked to outages or loss of technical services that

— Informationtechnology and infrastructure risk affect client relationships and trustin CMC's platforms and products.

— Increased costs through damage repair, asset replacement or data
service provisionif providers are forced to invest more in adaptation and
resilience measures.

— Procurementand outsourcing risk

CMC’sresponse: we will continue to monitor the exposure of its assets and geographies to extreme weather events. As new facilities and data
service providers are introduced to the business, climate considerations will be increasingly embedded into decision-making processes.

Physical risks — Heatwaves

Risk/opportunity description: the risk of extreme heat disrupting operations through damage to premises/other physical assets and/or wider
infrastructure on which we are reliant, or affecting the physical safety and security of our people.

Mapping to principalrisks Potential financialimpacts

— Business continuity and disaster recovery risk — Revenue losses linked to outages or loss of technical services that

— Informationtechnology and infrastructure risk affect client relationships and trust in our platforms and products.

— Increased costs for energy (including outsourced services) to
keep key equipment and premises cool and employee absences or
— Procurementand outsourcing risk productivity losses.

People risk

CMC’sresponse: the Group will continue to monitor the exposure of its assets and geographies to heat stress. In particular, we willlook to embed
consideration of the exposure of our digital infrastructure and location of data centres as we make procurement decisions in the mediumto long term.

Transition risks - Technology (energy)

Risk/opportunity description: the risk of rising energy prices and unstable energy supplies increasing our costs and disrupting our services.

Mapping to principal risks Potential financialimpacts
- Information technology and infrastructure risk — Revenuelosses linked to disruption to energy supply could resultin the
N loss of technical services affecting client relationships and trustin CMC's
— Procurement and outsourcing risk
platforms and products.

— Increased costs for running business operations and outsourced
dataservices.

CMC’sresponse: the business continuity team held an incident response exercise to prepare for a real-life major incident, in response to the energy
crisis. These learnings will inform our ongoing approach to preparing for potential energy insecurity.
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Transitionrisks — Regulatory and compliance

Risk/opportunity description: the risk that climate-related policy may affect business expansion, current product or service offerings and

business operations.
Mapping to principal risks Potential financialimpacts
— Preparedness for regulatory change Increased costs and/or reduced revenues through:
— Regulatory and compliance risk — additional resources to meet new regulatory requirements or disclosures;
— Taxandfinancial reporting — finesinthe event of non-compliance;
— restrictions to product offerings; and
— taxestofund national climate policies.

CMC’sresponse: we continue to monitor the evolving regulatory environment closely.

Transitionrisks — Reputational

Risk/opportunity description: the risk that stakeholders perceive that our response to climate change is insufficient or inaccurate, leading to
reputational damage.

Mapping to principal risks Potential financialimpacts

— Reputationalrisk — Decreasing revenues as customersleave for more climate-friendly
) competitors.

— Peoplerisk

— Increased costs and/or reduced access to capital through damaged

o st el e e e S relationships with investors and banks.

— Increased costs through heightened employee recruitment and
retention challenges.

CMC’sresponse: through the Our Tomorrow sustainability strategy, we are increasing our engagement with key stakeholders to better understand
their priorities and ensure we are addressing any concerns.

Transition risks — Market

Risk/opportunity description: the risk that product/service offerings don't align with evolving customer preferences or that climate-related
factors negatively affect the value of assets on our platform, impacting revenues and profits.

Mapping to principal risks Potential financialimpacts
— Strategic/business model risk — Reduced revenues and profitability linked to declining customer
demand for products and services.

— Increased costs of R&D into products or services that support the low
carbontransition

CMC’s response: ongoing diversification of our product offering and client base helps to de-risk our exposure. The Group is investing inthe
integration of ESG considerations intoits products and platforms to ensure our offering is aligned with the trajectory of consumer demand.
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TCFD continued

Strategy continued
Summary of CMC’s climate risk register continued

Transitionrisks - Litigation

Risk/opportunity description: the risk that a perceived failure on behalf of the Group to consider, mitigate or adapt to the risks associated with
climate change results in litigation.

Mapping to principal risks Potential financialimpacts

— Legalrisks — Increased costs through legal fees and settlements to cover the costs

— Reputationalrisk of litigation.

— Reduced revenues as reputation and brand equity are damaged.

CMC’s response: we monitor our regulatory requirements closely to ensure our exposure to litigation remains minimal.

Transitionrisks - Investment

Risk/opportunity description: the risk that our business becomes less attractive to investors as aresult of our approach to managing climate
risks or that climate risks affect the value of our investments.

Mapping to principal risks Potential financialimpacts
— Marketrisk — Reduced capitalinflows asaresult ofimpacts oninvestment attractiveness.

— Reduced investmentreturns as climate factorsimpact the value
ofinvestments.

CMC’sresponse

The Global Head of Sustainability has developed a holistic strategy for addressing sustainability topics including climate change to better address
the concerns of investors and to bolster our risk management systems to account for climate risk.

Transition risks — Cost of capital

Risk/opportunity description: the risk of rising costs to the business as aresult of increasing borrowing rates and/or insurance premia due to
climate-related factors.

Mapping to principal risks Potential financialimpacts
— Insurance risk — Increased cost of borrowing affecting investment in the business and
its development.

— Rising cost of insurance premiums and/or losses resulting from
unpaid insurance claims willincrease the running costs of operations.

CMC’sresponse: we are alow debt business and regularly engage with banking counterparties to understand their expectations and forward-
looking plans.

Opportunities - Climate-related products and services

Risk/opportunity description: the opportunity to provide financial products that help our client base to investin the energy transitionand
climate-friendly investments.

Mapping to principal risks Potential financialimpacts

— Reputational risk — Increased revenue fromnew clients that are attracted to the platform
duetoits ESG capabilities.

— Strategic/business model risk

CMC’sresponse: we have introduced ESG filters within our investment platforms that allow clients to access climate-friendly investments.
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Opportunities - Enhanced stakeholder relationships

Risk/opportunity description: through proactive action on climate-related issues, we can enjoy reputational benefits with its employees,

customers andinvestors as leaders on climate actionin the financial services sector.

Mapping to principal risks
— Reputationalrisk

— Strategic/business model risk

Potential financialimpacts
— Enhanced access to capital through positive investor relationships.

— Increased revenue throughimproved productivity and innovation
through engagement withemployees.

- Increasedrevenue fromnew clients attracted to the platformfor its
positive climate reputation.

CMC’sresponse: we are taking proactive action toimprove our climate-related credentials and we proactively engage withemployees, investors

and other stakeholders.

Evaluating resilience with climate scenario analysis
Toenhance the Group’s understanding of our exposure to identified climate risks and to assess our strategic resilience, we conducted a climate scenario
analysis exercise facilitated by external consultants for three distinct scenarios. The parameters used to define the scenarios are summarisedin the table.

Parameter Selection Rationale

Scenario source Network for Greening the Financial System (‘“NGFS”) — The NGFS has the most comprehensive coverage of
Climate Scenarios for central banks and supervisors risks and opportunities for the financial sector.
(Phaselll) 2022 . :

— Brings together the complex dynamics of the energy,
economy and climate systems —including a strong
focus on policy and technology variables —and so has
strong alignment with CMC's driving forces.

— Phaselll scenarios were published inlate 2022 and take
account of latest trends, data and developments.

Base scenarios 1.5°C —Net Zero 2050 Scenario (‘NZ”) —transition risk — TheNZ Scenariois the most ambitious scenario and
closely aligned with the Paris Agreement.
1.6°C - Delayed Transition Scenario (‘DTS") — — DTS provides a middle-ground to test higher transition
transitionrisk and physicalrisks than NZ.
3°C+-Current Policies (“CP”) — physical risk — CPistheleastambitious scenario, assuming warmingin
line with current policy measures, giving a sense of what
“business as usual” would mean for CMC.
Timeframe Shortterm: 2023-2025 — The world needs to halve emissions by 2030 in order
Medium term: 2026-2035 tp rgach net zero by 2050 and thereforg limit the global
rise intemperature by 1.5°C above pre-industrial
Long term: 2036-2050 levels by 2100.
Geographies Global with basic focus on Australasia and Europe/UK — Asthis was the first time the Group has conducted a

asbenchmark markets

rigorous scenario analysis exercise, the focus has been
kept broad toidentify significant areas of risk and inform
whether more tailored geographical focusis necessary
moving forward.
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Tocraft the scenarios, narratives were constructed based on assumptions of
how overarching dimensions would develop policy, technology, energy, industry
macroeconomic, social and environment. These dimensions were mapped to
our climate risk register to help focus the content of the scenarios torisks with
higher ongoing risk ratings; however, the focus of this exercise was kept broad to

encompass the full register of risks. Indoing so, we aimed to further enhance our
understanding of the identified risks. Using the revised climate risk assessment
criteriaand as part of the climate scenario exercise, we assessed each of our
identified climate risks across the short, mediumandlong term for each of the
assessed scenarios, as shownin the tables below.

Net zero 2050

Key characteristics

— Temperature: below 2°C

— GDP:-3% by 2030 and -4% by 2050

— Risklevel: Physicalrisks are relatively low, but transition risks
are higher

— Policyimplementation level:immediate and stringent but orderly
with low regional variation

Strategicimpact

Considering higher carbon prices, clientsin the APAC & Canadaregion
may reduce trading on our investment platform as the economy adjusts
giventheregion'semphasis on heavy industry. Highinflation may also lead
toincreased staff overheads,and highinterest rates may initially reduce
trading activities if cashis preferred asamore stable alternative tomarkets
initially. Initial periods of high volatility and market instability would likely have
apositiveimpact onthe Group’'s trading business.

Ty

Floods and storms

Physn:al risk

Heatwaves
Technology risk (energy)

Reputationrisk
Market risk
Litigation risk

Transitional risk

Investmentrisk
Cost of capital risk

Delayed transition

Key characteristics
— Temperature: below 2°C
— GDP:-2% by 2030 and -6% by 2050

— Risklevel: higher Physical and transition risks over the medium
andlongterm

— Policyimplementation level: delayed until 2030, then sudden, with
highregional variation

Strategicimpact

We would expect toincrease our need for liquidity inthe mediumtermforits
institutional businesses in anticipation of customers sitting on cash toride
outa period of market volatility and uncertainty. Our trading business would
likely benefit fromincreased volatility in the marketplace.

Floods and storms
PhyS|caI risk
Heatwaves
Technology risk (energy)
Regulatory and compliance risk
Reputationrisk
Marketrisk

Litigationrisk

Transitional risk

Investment risk
Cost of capital risk
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Current policies

Key characteristics

Temperature: +3°C
GDP:-3% by 2030 and -8% by 2050 (up to-20% by 2100)

Risk level: substantial physical risks over the medium and long term

Policy implementation level: low; assumes that only currently
implemented policies are preserved

Strategicimpact

Short-termimpactislikely to be limited. As physical climate stressincreases
inthe mediumandlonger term, the Group's technology infrastructure could
beincreasingly exposed to heat-related stressin particular. The Australian
market would likely be exposed as dampening GDP prospects decreased
the appeal of the Group'sinvesting platform.

: Floods and storms
Physical risk
Heatwaves
Technology risk (energy)
Regulatory and compliance risk
Reputationrisk

Market risk
Litigation risk

Transitional risk

Investmentrisk

Costof capital risk

Aworkshop was held comprised of the TCFD working group, a cross-functional
group of individuals representing senior team members. Each scenario was
presented and interrogated to assess the potentialimpacts on the Group’s
strategic resilience. Based on the resulting risk heat map, additional exercises
were devised for each of the three scenarios and tailored to the time periods
where our climate risk exposure was greatest for each scenario.

The Group's trading business is unlikely to be negatively impacted and may
infact benefit from periods of volatility across the different scenarios. The
investing platform may experience more duressif sluggish markets and real
economy growthtranslate into less disposable income among our client
baseingeographies that are hit harder by physical and transition risks.

APAC & Canada has beenidentified as the region most likely to be impacted,
according to our desktop assessment of core geographies and future
scenario analysis exercises will be tailored to this region to explore how these
challenges may unfold. Diversification of geographical exposure and client
base was identified as the fundamental mitigating action that can be taken to
increase climate resilience, a strategy already in place. Overall, we believe our
strategy remains resilientin allthree scenarios, withimpactslikely to be negligible.
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Metrics and targets

We have made progress toimprove our data capabilities whenit comes to
climate change and itsimpact on the environment. This year, we began to
define our Scope 3 emissions as we strive towards setting net zero goals and
willbe reviewing our options to align with Science Based Targets Initiative
("SBTi") in2024. Ouir first step to setting ambitious goals has beento obtaina
better understanding of the Group's carbon profile. Information on our Scope
1,2 and 3 data definition, our carbon accounting methodology and current
carbon profile can be found on pages 45t0 48.

While we have made significant progress this year in understanding and
assessing our climate risks through the updates to our climate risk register and
scenario analysis, we are not yet ready to disclose metrics and targets related
to theserisks. We are quickly progressing our understanding of the nature

of these risks and their potentialimpacts to our business through the TCFD
working group; however, this process is ongoing and essential in identifying
meaningful metrics, putting processes in place to collect data and setting
targets against these. We have established this as a key operational goal for
this year to progress the monitoring and management of our climate-related
risks and will update on our progress in our next disclosure.
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strategic initiatives to drive diversification in 2023 and
beyond. Significant upgrades to existing trading and
investing platforms have been delivered, including
expanding the product offering within CMC Invest
UK. We remain on track for delivery of further product
and functionality upgrades throughout 2024.
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Net operating income of £288.4 millionincreased by £6.5 million compared
t0 2022, driven by increased clientincome, particularly in the institutional
B2B channel,and a significantincrease ininterestincome as aresult of
globalinterest rate rises. Operating expenses' increased by £45.6 million
asaresult of the Group's significant investments in technology, people, and
product throughout the year along with the impact of the elevated inflationary
environment seen across all regions. This resulted in a statutory profit before
tax of £52.2 million (2022: £91.5 million).

The Group saw adecrease in active clients across bothits trading and
investing businesses in 2023. The decrease ininvesting clients was a result of
unfavourable market conditions for long-terminvestors persisting throughout
much of the year, leading to lower overall client activity. On the trading side,
the decrease was largely driven by the cohort onboarded during the “meme
stock” period in the first calendar quarter of 2021. However the Group’s
continued focus on high value, sophisticated retail and institutional clients
resultedin higher clientincome year on year. The Group also exited the year
with significant prospects for future client growth, with the development of
the CMC Invest platforms in the UK and Singapore along with a significant
expansionin our institutional product offering giving multiple channels for both
clientacquisition and revenue per client expansion.

Summary Income Statement

Financial statements Shareholder information 0

Ourambitious digital transformation and technology investment plan has
made significant progress throughout 2023 with more frequent product
enhancements along with the retail launch of the CMC Invest platformin the
UK and therollout of the platformin Singapore on track for release imminently.
Theimprovements to our product offering within the institutional space has
also seen animmediate impact, with notional volumes in the B2B business

up 95% year on year and our ambition for ongoing 20%+ CAGR in volumes
remaining on track.

The Group Own Funds Ratio (‘OFR”) remains strong at 369%. Our total available
liquidity decreased to £414.1million (2022: £469.0 million) primarily due to the share
buy back programme that completedin October 2022. The strong liquidity and
capital position gives the Group an exceptional platform to continue investinginits
core strategicinitiatives.

2023 2022 Change Change

£m £m £m %

Net operatingincome 288.4 2819 6.5 2%

Operating expenses' (233.9) (188.3) (45.6) (24%)

Operating profit! 54.5 93.6 (39.) (42%)

Finance costs! (2.3) (21) (0.2) (7%)

Profit before tax’ 52.2 915 (39.3) (43%)
Profit before tax margin'? 18.1% 32.5% (14.4%) —

Profit after tax’ 1.4 75 (30.1) (42%)
2023 2022 Variance Variance

Pence Pence Pence %

Basic EPS' 14.7 246 (9.9) (40%)

Ordinary dividend per share® 74 124 (5.0 (40%)

Summary

Net operating income for the year increased by £6.5 million (2%) to £288.4 million, primarily through a result of strong growth ininterest income and the
institutional business, offset by a decrease inrevenue in the investing business. On the trading side, increases in institutional volumes resulted in higher client
income, with retail clientincome remaining broadly flat despite an overall drop in active clients, and risk management remaining solid, albeit with clientincome
retention falling slightly from the levels seenin 2022. The investing business saw a decrease in trading activity as a result of unfavourable market conditions
throughout the year. 2023 net operating income represents arecord for the Group when excluding the COVID-19 impacted 2021.

Total costs' have increased by £45.8 million (24%) to £236.2 million, with the primary driver being investments in our strategic initiatives resulting in higher
personnel costs, professional fees and technology costs. The high global inflationary environment also impacted the cost base in all three regions that the Group

operatesin.

Profit before tax' decreased to £52.2 million from £91.5 million and PBT margin®2 decreased to 18.1% from 32.5%, reflecting the high level of operational gearingin

the business.

1 2022figuresrestated - more informationis available within note 33.
2 Statutory profit before tax as a percentage of net operatingincome.

3 Ordinary dividends paid/proposed relating to the financial year, based onissued share capital as at 31 March of each financial year.

61-CMC Markets plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2023



Financial review continued

Net operating income overview

2023 2022

£m £m Change
Trading netrevenue 233.1 229.6 1%
Investing net revenue (excl. interestincome) 37.9 48.0 (21%)
Net revenue! 271.0 2776 (2%)
Interestincome 13.9 0.8 1,569%
Other operatingincome 3.5 35 —
Net operatingincome 288.4 2819 2%

1 CFDandspreadbetgross clientincome net of rebates, levies and risk management gains or losses and stockbroking revenue net of rebates.

Trading net revenue increased by £3.5 million (1%) driven by increases in gross clientincome being largely offset by clientincome retention decreasing to 77%.
Theincreasein gross clientincome was a result of market volatility broadly remaining at levels seenin H2 2022, resulting in higher levels of client trading, despite
anoverall decrease in active clients. Clientincome retention was lower during the period at 77% (2022: 80%) as a result of a change in the mix of asset classes
traded by clients. This resulted in revenue per active client (‘RPC”) increasing by £393 (11%) to £3,968.

Trading active client numbers decreased by 9% in comparison to 2022; however, monthly average active clients remain 25% above pre-COVID-19 levels,
demonstrating the structural shiftin the Group’s client base.

Investing net revenue was 21% lower at £37.9 million (2022: £48.0 million), with an unfavourable market environment resulting from uncertainty around the global
economic outlook, inflationary pressures and the resultant impact on interest rates dampening client activity.

B2B and B2C netrevenue
2023 2022
£m £m % change
B2C B2B Total B2C B2B Total B2C B2B Total
Trading net revenue 173.0 60.1 23341 185.5 441 2296 (7%) 36% 1%
Investing net revenue 14.6 23.3 37.9 9.6 384 48.0 53% (39%) (21%)
Netrevenue 187.6 834 271.0 1951 825 2776 (4%) 1% (2%)

B2C trading net revenue fell 7% due to decreases in active clients and lower clientincome retention. The increase in B2B revenue was aresult of the
enhancements to the institutional product offering attracting new clients and higher trading levels from current clients, with an associated increase in net revenue.

Theinvesting business saw a shift from B2B to B2C as aresult of the completion of the transfer of the ANZ Bank Share Investing clients during the year.

Regional performance overview: trading

2023 2022 % change
Net Client Net Client Net Client
revenue income’ Active RPC revenue income! Active RPC revenue income! Active

£m £m clients £ £m £m clients £ £m £m clients RPC
UK&Ilreland  88.8 114.8 14,717 6,035 78.8 10741 16,264 4,848 12% 7% (10%) 24%
Europe 50.2 61.3 14,254 3,520 437 511 15,747 2,778 15% 20% (9%) 27%
UK&
Europe 139.0 1761 28,971 4,797 122.5 158.2 32,01 3,827 13% 1% (9%) 25%
APAC &
Canada 94.1 1274 29,766 3,160 1071 130.3 32,232 3,322 (12%) (2%) (8%) (5%)
Total 233.1 303.5 58,737 3,968 229.6 288.5 64,243 3,575 1% 5% (9%) 1%

1 Spreads, financingand commissions on CFD and spread bet client trades.
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Trading

UK &Europe

Net revenue and clientincome grew by £16.5 million (13%) and £17.8 million
(11%) to £139.0 millionand £176.0 million respectively. This was despite a 9%
(8,040) decrease in active clients, resulting in RPC growth of 25% (£970).

UK &lreland

Clientincome increased by 7% against the prior year to £114.8 million (2022:
£1071million), driven by growthin the B2B business. The drop in active clients
was predominantly driven by the B2C business, which saw a commensurate
dropinclientincome.

Europe

Europe comprises offices in Austria, Germany, Norway, Poland and Spain.
Clientincome and net revenue grew by 20% (£10.2 million) and 15%

(£6.5 million) to £61.3 million and £50.2 million respectively, driven by B2B
growth. RPCincreased by 27% to £3,520 (2022: £2,778) due to the higher net
revenue achievement combined with a 9% (1,493) decrease in the number of
active clients.

APAC & Canada

Our APAC & Canada business services clients from our Sydney, Auckland,
Singapore, Toronto and Shanghai offices along with other regions where
we have no physical presence. Active clients were down 8% to 29,766
(2022:32,232); however, the region continues to retain its high value client
base resulting inacomparatively smaller dropin clientincome of 2% to
£127.4 million (2022: £130.3 million).

Investing

Investing net revenue from the Invest Australia business fell 21% to

£37.9 million (2022: £48.0 million) impacted by heightened geopolitical
uncertainties and the resultant inflationary pressures, dampening investor
appetite for cash equities. Partially offsetting the impact was a material
increase ininterestincome at £6.5 million (2022: £0.9 million).

While active clients decreased 12% to 217k (2022: 246k), client logins across
all platforms were up 5%, indicating strong client engagement and readiness
to trade at the right market opportunity. Further, AuA at AUD$73 billion,
remained stable despite reduced discretionary expenditure.

Interestincome

Globalinterest rates, having remained at historically low levels for many
years, saw significantincreases in all regions from the second half of calendar
year 2022, resulting ininterestincome increasing to £13.9 million from

£0.8 millionin2022.

The majority of the Group’s interestincome is earned through our segregated
clientdepositsinour UK, Australia, New Zealand and Invest Australia subsidiaries.
Ourinvesting business generated 47% of the Group’s interestincome,

with 53% being generated in our trading business. The Group continually
monitorsits returns on both own and segregated client deposits to ensure
optimal returns.

Financial statements Shareholder information 0
Expenses
Total costs?increased by £45.8 million (24%) to £236.2 million.

2023 2022

£m £m

Net staff costs —fixed (excluding variable remuneration)'! ~ 84.9 68.8
IT costs 33.7 287
Marketing costs 32.3 245
Sales-related costs 6.0 2.8
Premises costs 5.7 45
Legaland professional fees 8.6 8.6
Regulatory fees 9.4 56
Depreciation and amortisation? 15.6 124
Irrecoverable sales tax 3.0 2.8
Other 18.0 135
Operating expenses excluding variableremuneration?  217.2 172.2
Variable remuneration’ 16.7 16.1
Operating expensesincluding variable remuneration> 233.9 188.3
Interest? 2.3 21
Total costs? 236.2 1904

Net staff costs

Net staff costs including variable remunerationincreased £16.7 million

(20%) to £101.6 million following significant investment across the business,
particularly within technology, marketing and product functions, to support the
delivery of strategic projects. The globalinflationary environment and post-
COVID-19 employment market also resulted in growthin gross pay within
certainareas of the business to ensure the Group continues to remunerate
staff inline with market rates to assist talent retention within the organisation.
Variable remunerationincreased in line with headcount growth, offset by
reductionsinthe Group discretionary bonusinline with performance.

2023 2022

£m £m

Gross staff costs excluding variable remuneration! 92.9 724

Performance-related pay’ 14.5 137

Share-based payments (note 31) 2.2 24

Total employee costs 109.6 88.5

Contract staff costs 3.1 39
Net capitalisation (11.1) (7.5)

Net staff costs 101.6 84.9

1 2022figuresrestated to include social taxes for annual discretionary bonus within variable
remuneration. Social tax for annual discretionary bonus were previously included within net
staff costs.

2 2022figuresrestated - more informationis available within note 33.
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Expenses continued

Depreciation and amortisation costs

Depreciation and amortisation have increased by £3.2 million (26%) to
£15.6 million, primarily due to amortisation of staff development costs which
were capitalised at the end of the previous financial year and increased
depreciation and amortisation of IT assets delivering the product roadmap.

Marketing costs

Marketing costsincreased by £7.8 million (32%) to £32.3 million driven

by £2.6 million of marketing for the new Invest UK platform, £2.4 million of
additional marketing within Invest Australia and increased spend across all
regions within the trading business.

Sales-related costs

Sales-related costsincreased by £3.2 million (110%) to £6.0 million primarily
due toarelease of provisions for client complaints within 2022 and additional
client-related costs during the year following the relaxing of COVID-19restrictions.

IT costs
IT costsincreased by £5.0 million (17%) to £33.7 million as aresult of a larger
IT systems footprint given the expanded product offering.

Regulatory fees
Regulatory feesincreased by £3.8 million (69%) primarily as aresult of a higher
FSCSlevy.

Premises costs
Premises costsincreased £1.2 million (27%) due to global inflationary
pressures, predominantly across utilities.

Other expenses

Other costs increased due to a number of factors, with the main drivers being
FXlosses onbalance sheet revaluation and higher recruitment fees being
partially offset by lower bad debt charges.

Taxation

The effective tax rate for 2023 was 20.6%, down from the 2022 effective tax
rate, which was 21.9%. The effective tax rate has decreased in the period due
toalower proportion of Group PBT being generated in Australia, where the
corporation taxrate is higher than the UK.

Profit after tax for the year

The decrease in profit after tax for the year of £30.1 million (42%) was due to
higher net operatingincome being offset by increases in expensesincurred
as part of the investment roadmap and the impacts of the global inflationary
environment.

Dividend

Dividends of £35.0 million were paid during the year (2022: £72.6 million), with
£25.3 millionrelating to a final dividend for the prior year paid in August 2022,
and a £9.8 millioninterim dividend paid in January 2023 relating to current
year performance. The Group has proposed a final ordinary dividend of

3.90 pence per share (2022: 8.88 pence per share).
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Non-statutory summary Group Balance Sheet

2023 2022
£m £m
Intangible assets 35.3 304

Property, plant and equipment 141 13.0

Net lease liability (2.7) 49
Fixed assets 46.7 39.3
Cashand cashequivalents 146.2 176.6
Netamounts due from brokers 179.3 196.5
Financialinvestments 30.6 279
Otherassets 2.0 13.4
Net derivative financial instruments 11 (0.4)
Title transfer funds (49.5) (44.1)
Own funds 309.7 369.9
Working capital 8.2 (43.0)
Net tax receivable/(payable) 8.6 —
Deferredtax net asset 0.8 27
Net assets 374.0 3689

Thetable above is anon-statutory view of the Group Balance Sheet and line names do not
necessarily have their statutory meanings. Areconciliation to the primary statements canbe
found onpage 188.

Fixed assets

Intangible assets increased by £4.9 million to £35.3 million (2022:

£30.4 million) as aresult of the capitalisation of internal resource dedicated
to the development of new products and functionality in 2023.

Net lease liability decreased by £1.4 million during the year due to the net
length of lease contracts being lower at the end of 2023 than the prior year.

Own funds

Netamounts due from brokers relate to cash held at brokers either for
initial margin or balances in excess of this for cash management purposes.
The reduced client trading exposures throughout the year, particularly in
equities, resulted in decreases in holdings at brokers for hedging purposes.

Cashand cashequivalents have decreased during the year primarily as aresult
of the Group's share buyback scheme that commencedinMarch 2022 and
completedin October 2022 and £9.0 million payments to ANZ Bank to complete
the transition of its Share Investing clients, partially offset by the Group's operating
performance, inaddition to the Group holding less cash at our brokers for
margining purposes.

Financialinvestments mainly relate to eligible assets held by the Group as core
liquid assets used to meet Group regulatory liquidity requirements.

Title transfer funds increased by £5.4 million, reflecting the high levels of
account funding by a small population of mainly institutional clients.
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Working capital

The £51.2 million decrease in working capital requirements year on year is
primarily as aresult of the increased market volatility in Q4 of the prior year,
which significantly increased the value of stockbroking payables yet to settle
at the prior year end.

Net tax receivable
Tax moved to anet receivable position due to overpaymentsin the UK
and Australia.

Deferred tax net asset
Deferred nettax assets decreased as aresult of accelerated research and
development tax deductionsinthe UK and Australia.

Impact of climate risk

We have assessed the impact of climate risk on our balance sheet and have
concluded that there is no materialimpact on the Financial Statements for the
year ended 31March2023.

Regulatory capital resources

The Group and its UK regulated subsidiaries fallinto scope of the FCA's
Investment Firms Prudential Regime (“IFPR”), with the Group’s German
subsidiary, CMC Markets Germany GmbH, subject to the provisions of the
Investment Firms Regulation and Directive (“IFR/IFD”).

The Group's total capital resourcesincreased to £326.8 million (2022: £311.5 million)
withincreasesinretained earnings for the year being partly offset by the
interimand proposed final dividend distribution. Inaccordance with the IFPR all
deferredtax assets must now be fully deducted from core equity tier 1capital
("*CET1capital”).

At 31March 2023 the Group had a total OF R ratio of 369%, down from 489%
in2022 asaresult of anincrease in own funds requirements.

The following table summarises the Group's capital adequacy position at the
year end. The Group's approach to capital management is described in note
30to the Financial Statements.

2023 2022

£m £m

CET1 capital' 363.1 3445
Less:intangibles and net deferred tax assets? (36.3) (33.0)
Total capital resources after relevant deductions 326.8 311.5

Own fundsrequirements (‘OFR")® 88.6 63.6
Total OFR ratio (%)* 369%  489%

1 Totalaudited capital resources as at the end of the financial year of £374.0 million, less
proposed dividends.

2 Inaccordance withthe IFPR, all deferred tax assets must be fully deducted from CET1
capital. Deferred tax assets are the net of assets and liabilities shown in note 14.

3 Theminimum capital requirementinaccordance with MIFIDPRU 4.3.
4 The OFRratiorepresents CET1capitalasapercentage of OFR.
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Liquidity
The Group has access to the following sources of liquidity that make up total
available liquidity:

— Ownfunds: The primary source of liquidity for the Group. It represents the funds
that the business has generated historically,including any unrealised gains/
losses onopen hedging positions. Allcash held on behalf of segregated clients
isexcluded. Own funds consist mainly of cashand cashequivalents. They also
include investmentsin UK government securities, of which the majority are
held to meet the Group'sregulatory liquidity requirements, short-term financial
investments, amounts due from brokers and amounts receivable/payable on
the Group’s derivative financialinstruments. For more details refer to note 29
ofthe Financial Statements.

— Titletransfer funds (“TTFs"): This represents funds received from
professional clients and eligible counterparties (as definedin the FCA
Handbook) that are held under a title transfer collateral agreement
("“TTCA"),ameans by which a professional client or eligible counterparty
may agree that full ownership of such fundsis unconditionally transferred
to the Group. The Group does not require clients to signa TTCAin order
tobe treated as a professional client and as aresult their funds remain
segregated. The Group considers these funds as an ancillary source of
liquidity and places noreliance on them for its stability.

— Available committed facility (off-balance sheet liquidity): The Group has
access to a facility of up to £55.0 million (2022: £55.0 million) in order to
fund any potential fluctuations in margins required to be posted at brokers
tosupport the risk management strategy. The facility consists of a one-year
term facility of £27.5 million (2022: £27.5 million) and a three-year term
facility of £27.5 million (2022: £27.5 million). The maximum amount of
the facility available at any one time is dependent upon the initial margin
requirements at brokers and margin received from clients. There was no
drawdown on the facility as at 31 March 2023 (2022: £nil).

The Group's use of total available liquidity resources consists of:

— Blocked cash: Amounts held for operational purposes to meet the
requirements of local regulators and exchanges, in addition to liquidity in
subsidiaries in excess of local segregated client requirements to meet
potential future client requirements. Cash committed to the purchase of
shares withinabuyback programme is also classified as blocked cash. This
was £nilat 31 March 2023 (2022: £28.0 million).

- Initial margin requirement at broker: The total GBP equivalent initial margin
required by prime brokers to cover the Group’s hedge derivative and
cryptocurrency positions.

Ownfundshave decreased by £60.2 millionto £309.7 milion (2022: £369.9 million).

2023 2022

£m £m

Own funds 309.7 369.9
Title transfer funds 49.4 441
Available committed facility 55.0 55.0
Total available liquidity 4141 469.0
Less: blocked cash (68.8) (1031)
Less:initial margin requirement at broker (106.1) (120.0)
Net available liquidity 239.2 2459
Of which: held as liquid asset requirement 30.6 279
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Client money

Total segregated client money held by the Group for trading clients was
£549.4 million at 31 March 2023 (2022: £546.6 million).

Clientmoney represents the capacity for our clients to trade and offers an
underlying indication of the health of our client base.

Client money governance

The Group segregates allmoney and assets held by it on behalf of clients
excluding asmallnumber of large clients which have entered a TTCA with
the firm. Thisis in accordance with or exceeding applicable client money
regulations in countriesin which it operates. The majority of client money
requirements fallunder the Client Assets Sourcebook (‘CASS”) rules of the
FCAinthe UK, BaFinin Germany and ASIC in Australia. All segregated client
funds are held in dedicated client money bank accounts with major banks
that meet strictinternal criteria and are held separately from the Group’s
ownmoney.

The Group has comprehensive client money processes and proceduresin
place to ensure client money is identified and protected at the earliest possible
point after receipt as well as governance structures which ensure such
activities are effective in protecting client money. The Group’s governance
structure is explained further on pages 79 to 86.

Viability statement

The Directors of the Company have considered the Group’s current financial
position and future prospects and have areasonable expectation that the
Group willbe able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall
due over the period of the assessment. In reaching this conclusion, both the
prospects and viability considerations have been assessed.

Long-term prospects

During the year the Group’s risk management has continued to be optimised
and strategic initiatives have progressed well, with the launch of the Invest
UK platform to retail clients during the year, Invest Singapore remaining on
track for delivery in early 2024 and improvements to the Group’s institutional
product offering being rolled out throughout the year. This diversification

into new geographies and productsis anticipated to help the Group achieve
its target of 30% revenue growth over the next three years. On this basis,

the Group maintains its belief that it will continue to demonstrate delivery of
sufficient cash generationto support operations.

Conservative expectations of future business prospects through delivery

of the Group strategy (see pages 24 and 25) are presented to the Board
through the budget process. The annual budget process consists of a
detailed bottom-up process with a 12-month outlook whichinvolves input
fromall relevant functional and regionalheads. This includes a collection of
resource assumptions required to deliver the Group strategy and associated
revenue impacts with consideration of key risks. This is used in conjunction
with external assumptions such as aregion-by-region review of the regulatory
environment and incorporation of any anticipated regulatory changes,
revenue modelling, market volatility, interest rates and industry growth that
could materially impact the business. The process also covers liquidity and
capital planning and, in addition to the granular budget, a three-year outlook
is prepared using assumptions on industry growth, the effects of regulatory
change, revenue growth from strategic initiatives and cost growth required
to supportinitiatives. The budget was reviewed and approved by the Board
at the March 2023 Board meeting. The process for ongoing review and
monitoring of risks is outlined in the Risk Management section of this report
(pages 67 to 73). The Board approved budget is then used to set targets
across the Group.

The Directors concluded that three years is an appropriate period over which
to provide aviability statement as this is the longest period over which the
Board reviews the success of Group strategic projections and this timeline is
also aligned with the period over which internal stress testing occurs.
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Viability

The Group performs regular stress testing scenarios. Available liquidity

and capital adequacy are central to understanding the Group’s viability and
stress scenarios, such as adverse market conditions and adverse regulatory
change, and are consideredinthe Group's Internal Capital Adequacy and
Risk Assessment (‘ICARA") document, whichis shared with the FCA on
request. The results of the stress testing showed that, due to the robustness
of the business, the Group would be able to withstand scenarios, including
combined scenarios across multiple principal risks, over the financial planning
period by taking management actions that have been identified within the
scenario stress tests.

The Group's revenue, whichis driven by client transaction fees and interest
income on both own and client funds, has seenincreases resulting from client
trading activity andincreases in global interest rates during the year, despite
lower overall active client numbers. Projections of the Group's revenue have
included revenue benefits from new product releases over the three-year
period, which will serve to reduce risks to the Group’s viability as a result of
increased revenue diversity. In addition, conservative estimates of market
volatility were assumed for the current businesses over the three-year period.
Projections also include assumptions oninterest rates that are derived

from central bank rate forecasts, where available. No significant changes to
regulatory capital and liquidity requirements have been assumed over the
forecasting period.

Inaddition to considering the above, the Group also monitors performance
against pre-defined budget expectations and risk indicators, along with
strategic progress updates, which provide early warning to the Board, allowing
management action to be taken where required including the assessment of
new opportunities.

The Directors have noreason to believe that the Group willnot be viable over a
longer period, given existing and known future changes to relevant regulations.

Goingconcern

The Group satisfies its ongoing working capital requirements through its
available liquid assets. The Group's liquid assets exclude any funds heldin
segregated client money accounts. In assessing whether itis appropriate
toadopt the going concern basis in preparing the Financial Statements,

the Directors considered the resilience of the Group, taking account of its
liquidity position and cash generation, the adequacy of capital resources, the
availability of external credit facilities and the associated financial covenants,
stress testing of liquidity and capital adequacy that take into account the
principal risks faced by the business. Further details of these principal risks
and how they are mitigated and managed are documented in the Risk
Management section on page 67.

Having given due consideration to the nature of the Group's business, and
risks emerging or becoming more prominent, the Directors consider that the
Company and the Group are going concerns and the Financial Statements
are prepared onthat basis.

f v Mool

Euan Marshall
Chief Financial Officer
13June 2023
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Risk management

Our Risk Management Framework enables a consistent
approach to the identification, mitigation and management
of risks, whichis essential to achieve our strategic objectives.

The Group's business activities naturally expose it to strategic, financial and
operationalrisks which are inherentin the nature of the business it undertakes and
the financial, market and regulatory environments in which it operates. The Group
recognises theimportance of understanding and managing these risks and that
itcannot place acap orlimitonall of the risks to whichitis exposed. However,
effective risk management ensures that risks are managed toan acceptable level.

Toassist the Board in discharging its responsibilities, it has in place a

Risk Management Framework to support identification, mitigationand
management of risk exposures. The Group regularly reviews the risk
framework, risk capabilities and tools to maintain effective ongoing risk
management to ensure it remains commensurate with current operations
alongside its aspirations and diversification objectives.

During the period, an external review was commissioned of the Group's ERM
Framework and several recommendations for improvement were made
which are being taken forward by the business. Heightened monitoring was in
place during periods of market volatility and, although the Group was not
materially impacted, lessons learnt were identified and will be actioned
accordingly.

The Board, throughits Group Risk Committee, is ultimately responsible for
the implementation of an appropriate risk strategy and the main areas whichiit
encompassesare:

— identifying, evaluating and monitoring the principal and emerging risks to
whichthe Groupis exposed;

— implementing the risk appetite of the Board in order to achieve its strategic
objectives;and

— establishing and maintaining governance, policies, systems and controls to
ensure the Group is operating within the stated risk appetite.

Risk management is acknowledged to be a core responsibility of all
colleagues at CMC and the oversight of risk and controls management is
provided by Management and Board Committees as well as the Group risk
and compliance functions.

The Group's risk management and internal controls framework is designed to
manage rather than eliminate risk and follows the “three lines of defence” model.
Risk management and the implementation of controlsis the responsibility

of the business teams which constitute the first line. Oversight and guidance

is provided primarily by the Group's risk and compliance functions which
constitute the secondline, and third line independent assurance is provided

by the Group'sinternal audit function. This construct ensures that the Group is
effectively identifying, managing and reportingits risks.

The Board hasimplemented a governance structure whichis appropriate

for the operations of an online financial services group andis aligned to the
delivery of the Group's strategic objectives including its diversification into
investing businesses. The structure is regularly reviewed and monitored

and any changes are subject to Board approval. Furthermore, management
regularly considers updates to the processes and procedures to embed good
corporate governance throughout the Group.

The Boardundertakes arobustassessment of the principalrisks and emerging risks
facingthe Groupas wellasareview of risk appetite onat leastanannual basis.

The Group's risk appetite is an articulation of the nature and type of risks that
the Groupis willing to accept, or wants to avoid, in order to achieve its business
objectives and strategy. This processis assessed as part of the Board's
review of the Group’s Risk Appetite Statement (“RAS”) which is a unified view
of the Group'srisk appetites and tolerances. It isimportant that the integrated
risk appetite remainsin line with business strategy to support the Group’s
strategic objectives. Risk appetite plays a key part in the Group's risk, capital

Executive Committees
— “Execution of Board'srisk strategy including risk appetite.

-
-
-
-
—
-
-—
—
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

Risk and control functions

— Comprised of compliance, financial crime, financial risk,
liquidity risk and operational risk. Inaddition, legal, finance,
dataprivacy and security functions are also considered as
part of the control functions within the Group.

Business functions

— |dentify,own,assess and manage risks. Design,
implementand monitor suitable controls, issue
management, KRland risk appetite reporting.

and liquidity management, with the setting of risk appetites being an essential
elementin achieving effective risk control across the Group and achieving
positive client outcomes.

The Board has carried out an assessment of the emerging and principal
risks facing the Group, including those that would threaten its business
model, future performance, solvency, or liquidity. We have determined that
climate change willremain categorised as an emerging risk due to the result
of the current assessment which concluded that critical thresholds are not
expected to breach. More informationis available within the TCFD report on
pages50t059.

The principalrisks reported here are those attracting the greatest focus, and
towhichthe Group has the largest exposure. The principal risks are linked to
risk appetite and key risk indicator (“KRI”) measures for reporting. In assessing
allrisks, CMC considers the reputationalimpacts of risks materialising and
theimpacts onits clients, of negative publicity, and risks to the achievement of
business objectives. The following top principal risks were considered, their
management is set outin note 30 to the Financial Statements, and they are:

— Regulatory and compliance risk: there has been anincreasing conduct
focus on the sector from various regulators globally. CMC must meet
regulatory expectations including delivering inline with the upcoming
FCA Consumer Duty regime to help ensure the right outcomes for
clientsandinthat regard the Group has established a project to deliver
theregulation. The Group’s approach to regulatory horizon scanning
continues to be strengthened to ensure we keep abreast of key regulatory
changes. Regulatory projects within the Group remain prioritised to ensure
compliance and ongoing process improvement.

— Business changerisk: as we continue to grow the business and implement
strategic change, project delivery risk naturally becomes heightened. Some
challenges have included project pipeline build-up and rapid re-prioritisation;
however, the establishment of delivery pillars with ring-fenced resources has
helped maintain dedicated resource pools and allocations to strategic projects.

— Peoplerisk: our people are the key to delivering on our purpose and
strategy. Failure in our ability to attract and retain key talent puts at risk our
strategic delivery and slows our velocity and our ability to maintain our high
service standards. While a number of key people metrics are positive (e.g.
retention rates and number of open vacancies), we still face anumber of
market headwinds and continue to monitor in this regard.

— Information and data security risk: cyber-criminal activity continues to
increase in sophistication, severity and frequency and attacks in the form
of ransomware and Distributed Denial of Service (‘DDoS”) are particularly
relevant for the Group given the online nature of the business. Dedicated
specialistin-house IT security resource, strong partnerships with leading
security vendors and continued improvement to internal controls and
governance help to mitigate the risk to CMC.

Further information on the structure and workings of the Board and
Management Committees is included in the Corporate governance report on
pages 79to118.
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Principal risks

The Board has considered the following principal risks in arriving at its viability statement.

Business and strategic risks

Acquisitions and disposals risk

Description Management and mitigation
Therisk that mergers, acquisitions, disposals — Robust corporate governance structure including strong challenge from independent
or other partnership arrangements made by Non-Executive Directors.

the Group do not achieve the stated strategic
objectives or that they give rise to ongoing or
previously unidentified liabilities.

Group Head of Corporate Development appointed ensuring alignment of business and strategic risk.

Vigorous and independent due diligence process.

Alignand manage the businesses to Group strategy as soon as possible after acquisition.

Strategic/business model risk

Description Management and mitigation
Therisk of anadverse impact resulting from the — Strong governance framework established including five independent Non-Executive Directors
Group's strategic decision making as well as including the Chairman sitting on the Board.

failure to exploit strengths or take opportunities.
Itisarisk which may cause damage or loss,
financial or otherwise, to the Group as awhole. — Managing the Groupinline with the agreed strategy, policies and risk appetite.

— Robust governance, challenge and oversight from independent Non-Executive Directors.

Preparedness for regulatory change risk

Description Management and mitigation

Therisk that changes to the regulatory Active dialogue with regulators, the auditor, consultants and industry bodies.
framework the Group operatesinimpact the
Group's performance.

Monitoring of market and regulator sentiment towards the product offering by way of ongoing horizon
scanning (utilised viaan automatic screening tool as wellas monthly key stakeholder meetings).

Such changes couldresultin the Group's product
offering becoming less profitable, more difficult to
offer to clients, or an outright ban on the product
offeringin one or more of the countries where the — Abusiness modeland proprietary technology that are responsive to changes inregulatory requirements.
Group operates.

Monitoring by, and advice from, compliance department onimpact of actual and possible
regulatory change.

Reputational risk

Description Management and mitigation
Therisk of damage to the Group's brand or — The Groupis conservative inits approach to reputational risk and operates robust controls to ensure
standing with shareholders, regulators, existing significant risks to its brand and standing are appropriately mitigated.

and potential clients, the industry and the

pUblBatIarge — Proactive engagement with the Group's regulators and active participation with trade and industry

bodies as well as positive development of media relations with strictly controlled media contact.

— Systems and controls (including brand tracking) to ensure we continue to offer agood service to
clients and quick and effective response to address any potential issues.
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Financial risks

Credit and counterparty risks

Description Management and mitigation

Therisk of losses arising froma — The Group's management of client counterparty risk is significantly aided by automated liquidation
counterparty failing to meet its functionality. Thisis where the client positions are reduced should the total equity of the account fall below a
obligations as they fall due. pre-defined percentage of the required margin for the portfolio held.

— Tiered marginrequires clients to hold more collateral against bigger or higher risk positions.
— Mobile phone access allowing clients to manage their portfolios on the move.
— Guaranteed stop loss orders allow clients to remove their chance of debt from their position(s).

— Position limits which can be implemented on aninstrument and client level. The instrument level enables the
Group to control the total exposure the Group takes onin a single instrument. At a client level this ensures that
the client can only reach a pre-defined size inany one instrument.

— Monitoring and reporting counterparty exposures against policy limits.

— Monitoring the creditworthiness of counterparties by observing and reporting key quantitative metrics
(including, where available: share price; relative performance against index; CDS spreads; volatility skew; and
credit ratings), as well as qualitatively, by reviewing industry commentary.

Insurance risks
Description Management and mitigation
Therisk that aninsurance claim by the — Use of areputable insurance broker who ensures cover is placed with financially secure insurers.

Groupis declined (infull or in part) or

o . — Annual review of all policies to ensure comprehensive levels of cover are maintained.
thereisinsufficientinsurance coverage.

— Rigorous claim management procedures are in place with the broker.

— Fullengagement with relevant business areas regarding risk and coverage requirements and related
disclosure to brokers andinsurers.

Tax and financial reporting

Description Management and mitigation

Therisk that financial, statutory or — Robust process of checking and oversight in place to ensure accuracy.
regulatory reportsincluding VAT and
similar taxes are submitted late, are
incomplete or areinaccurate.

— Knowledgeable and experienced staff undertake and overview the relevant processes.
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Principal risks continued

Financial risks continued

Liquidity risk

Description Management and mitigation

Therisk that there isinsufficientavailable - Risk managementis carried out by a central LRM team under policies approved by the Board andinline

liquidity to meet the liabilities of the withthe FCA's Investment Firms Prudential Regime (“IFPR”). The Group utilises a combination of liquidity

Group as they falldue. forecasting and stress testing to identify any potential liquidity risks under both normal and stressed
conditions.

— The provision of timely daily, weekly and monthly liquidity reporting and real-time broker margin requirements
to enable strong management and control of liquidity resources.

— Maintaining regulatory and Board approved buffers and managing liquidity to a series of Board approved
metrics and key risk indicators.

— Acommitted bank facility of up to £55 millionis in place (access to the facility is tested regularly) and provides a
means to meet its liabilities, including funding broker margin, if CMC's own on balance sheet liquidity resources
areinsufficientatapointintime.

— Aformal Contingency Funding Plan (‘CFP”)is in place that is designed to aid senior management to assess
and prioritise actions in aliquidity stress scenario.

Market risk

Description Management and mitigation

Therisk that the value of our residual — Trading risk management monitors and manages the exposures it inherits from clients on areal-time basis and
portfolio will decrease due to changes inaccordance with Board-approved appetite.

inmarketrisk factors. The three
standard market risk factors are price
moves, interest rates and foreign
exchangerates.

— The Group predominantly acts as a market maker inlinear, highly liquid financial instruments in which it can
easily reduce market risk exposure throughits prime broker arrangements. This significantly reduces the
Group's revenue sensitivity to individual asset classes and instruments.

— Financial risk management runs stress scenarios on the residual portfolio, comprising a number of single
and combined company-specific and market-wide events in order to assess potential financial and capital
adequacy impacts to ensure the Group can withstand severe moves in the risk drivers to which it is exposed.

Operational risks

Business change risk

Description Management and mitigation
Therisk that business change projects — Governance processin place for all business change programmes with Executive and Board oversight
are ineffective, fail to deliver stated and scrutiny.

objectives, or resultin resources being
stretched to the detriment of business-
as-usual activities.

Key users engaged in development and testing of all key change programmes.

Significant post-implementation support, monitoring and review procedures in place for all change programmes.

Strategic benefits and delivery of change agenda communicated to employees.

Business continuity and disaster recovery risk

Description Management and mitigation
Therisk that abusiness continuity event ~ — Multiple data centres and systems to ensure core business activities and processes are resilient to
or system failure resultsinareduced individual failures.

ability or inability to perform core
business activities or processes.

Remote access systems to enable staff to work from home or other locations. in the event of a disaster
recovery or business continuity requirement.

Periodic testing of business continuity processes and disaster recovery.

Robust incident management processes and policies to ensure prompt response to significant systems
failures or interruptions.
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Operational risks continued

Financial crime risk

Description Management and mitigation
Therisk that the Groupisnotcommitted - Establishing and maintaining arisk-based approach towards assessing and managing the money laundering,
to combatting financial crime and terrorism financing, anti-bribery and corruption, market abuse, fraud or sanctions evasion risks to the Group.

ensuring that our platformand products
are not used for the purpose of money
laundering, terrorism financing, anti-
bribery and corruption, market abuse, — Establishing and maintaining risk-based systems for surveillance and procedures to monitor ongoing
fraud or sanctions evasion. customer activity.

— Establishing and maintaining risk- based Know Your Customer (“KYC”) procedures, including Enhanced Due
Diligence (“EDD’) for those customers presenting higher risk, such as Politically Exposed Persons (‘PEPS”).

— Procedures for reporting suspicious activity internally and to the relevant law enforcement authorities or
regulators as appropriate.

— Establishing and maintaining procedures relating to mitigation of risk derived from clients that are repeat
offenders of market abuse.

— Maintenance of appropriate records for the minimum prescribed record keeping periods.
— Trainingand awareness for allemployees.
— Provision of appropriate Mland reporting to senior management of the Group's compliance with the requirements.

— Oversight of Group entities for financial crime in line with the Group AntiMoney Laundering/ CTF
oversight framework.

Information and data security risk

Description Management and mitigation

Therisk of unauthorised access to or Dedicated information security and data protection expertise within the Group.
external disclosure of client or Company
information, including those caused by
cyber attacks.

Technical and procedural controls implemented to minimise the occurrence or impact of information security
and data protection breaches.

— Accesstoinformation and systems only provided on a “need-to-know” and “least privilege” basis consistent
with the user’s role and also requires the appropriate authorisation.

Regular system access reviews implemented across the business.

Information technology and infrastructure risk

Description Management and mitigation
Therisk of loss of technology services — Continuous investment inincreased functionality, capacity and responsiveness of systems and infrastructure,
due toloss of data, system or data including investment in software that monitors and assists in the detection and prevention of cyber attacks.

centre or failure of a third party to restore

L — Software design methodologies, project management and testing regimes to minimise implementation and
servicesinatimely manner.

operational risks.

— Constant monitoring of systems performance and, in the event of any operational issues, changes to
processes are implemented to mitigate future concerns.

— Operation of resilient data centres to support each platform.

— Systems and data centres designed for high availability and data integrity enabling continuous service to
clientsin the event of individual component failure or larger system failures.

— Dedicated Support and Infrastructure teams to manage key production systems. Segregation of duties
between development and production support teams where possible to limit development access to
production systems.
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Principal risks continued

Operational risks continued

Legal (commercial/litigation) risks

Description Management and mitigation

Therisk that disputes lead to -
litigation proceedings.

Operations (processing) risk

Compliance with legal and regulatory requirements including relevant codes of practice.
Early engagement with legal advisers and other risk managers, and where appropriate external counsel.
Appropriately managed complaints which have alegal/litigious aspect.

An early assessment of the impact and implementation of changes in the law.

Description Management and mitigation

Therisk that the design or execution -
of business processes s inadequate

or fails to deliver an expected level

of service and protection to client or -
Company assets.

Procurement and outsourcing risk

Investment in system development and upgrades to improve process automation.
Implementation of robust, preventative controls and processes as required.
Enhanced staff training and oversight in key business processing areas.

Monitoring and robust analysis of errors and losses and underlying causes.

Description Management and mitigation

Therisk of third-party organisations -
inadequately performing, or failing to

provide or perform the outsourced

activities or contractual obligations to the
standards required by the Group.

People risk

Responsibility for procurement, vendor management and general outsourcing owned by the Chief Financial
Officer under the Senior Managers and Certification Regime, with the accountability to ensure compliance
to the Group procurement process and completion of key activities, based on the risk profile of the service
required by the organisation.

Outsourcing only employed where there is a strategic gain in resource or experience, which is not
availablein house.

Outsourcing arrangements require assessment as to their materiality to the business. Material outsourcing
arrangements need to be reported to the FCA.

Due diligence performed onservice supplier ahead of outsourcing being agreed.

Service level agreements in place and regular monitoring of performance undertaken.

Description Management and mitigation

Therisk of loss of key staff having -
insufficient skilled and motivated

resources available or failing to operate
peoplerelated processestoan

appropriate standard.
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The Board has directed that the Group maintains active People, Succession and Resource Plans for the
Group and all key individuals and teams, which will mitigate some of the risk of loss of key persons. It willadopt
policies and strategies commensurate with its objectives of:

- attractingand nurturing the best staff;

« retainingand motivating key individuals;

« managing employee related risks;

- achieving a highlevel of employee engagement;

- developing personnel capabilities;

- optimising continuous professional development; and

- achieving areputation as agood employer with an equitable remuneration policy.
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Operational risks continued

Regulatory and compliance risk

Description Management and mitigation

Therisk of regulatory sanction or legal — Internal audit outsourced to anindependent third-party professional services firm.
proceedings as aresult of failure to
comply with regulatory, statutory or
fiduciary requirements or as a result — Comprehensive monitoring and surveillance programmes, policies and procedures designed by compliance.
of adefective transaction.

— Effective compliance oversight and advisory/technical guidance provided to the business.

— Strongregulatory relations and regulatory horizon scanning, planning and implementation.

— Controls for appointment and approval of staff holding a senior management or certified function and annual
declarations to establish ongoing fithess and propriety.

— Governance and reporting of regulatory risks through Group and local Boards, the Group Audit Committee
and the Group Risk Committee.

— Robust anti-money laundering controls, client due diligence and sanctions checking.

Conduct risk
Description Management and mitigation
Therisk that through our culture, — Treating Customers Fairly (“TCF”) and Conduct Committees are in place across the Group.

behaviours or practices we fail to meet

the reasonable expectations of our

customers, shareholders or regulators. — Effective conduct policy ensuring conduct-related matters, including any serious concerns, breaches of the
Group orlocal Codes of Conduct, serious complaints specific to an employee or any concerns with a senior
management or certified function are addressed.

— Robust Management Information focusing on good client outcomes.

Client money segregation risk

Therisk that the Group failstoimplement - The Client Money and Asset Protection Committee (‘CMAPC”) is a fundamental part of the Group’s client
adequate controls and processes to money and assets governance framework.

ensure that client money and assets
are segregated in accordance with
applicable regulations. — Comprehensive Client Money resolution pack.

— Robust Client Money and Asset Protection policy.
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Strategic report Governance

Dear shareholder,

Onbehalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Group’s Governance
report for the year ended 31 March 2023. The Board continues to recognise
that effective governance is key to the successful delivery of the Group’s
strategy and long-term sustainable success, and ensuring value for our
shareholders and stakeholders.

As previously reported, in conjunction with Independent Audit Limited we
undertook a governance review in 2022 —the work started last year to
improve our governance processes has continued through the year. We
have made changes to our Board, the number of meetings held, types of
matters being discussed and have reviewed the content of the papers being
presented to the Board.

We instructed an external review of our ERM framework and the governance
processes in place to monitor risk. Although this process highlighted

that our framework is comparable to our peersit also provided some
recommendations to be considered as part of our ongoing aim of improving
our practices and processes. We have made agood start over the latter part
of the year to move forward with our improvements, which will really start

to accelerate following the appointment of Tracy Costello as our Chief Risk
Officer in February 2023. She will, in conjunction with our new Group Risk
Committee Chair, help drive forward the recommendations from the external
enterprise risk framework review. We have also continued our ongoing
programme of internal controls improvements, both inrelation to areas
previously identified and to ensure we are well placed to be able to comply
with new requirements. These are discussed in more detail in the report of the
Group Audit Committee.

UK Corporate Governance Code

As acompany listed on the Main Market of the London Stock Exchange, CMC
Markets plcis subject to the principles and Provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2018 (the “Code”) published by the Financial Reporting
Council ("FRC”) and available at www.frc.org.uk.

For the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the Board considers that the
Company complied with the principles and Provisions of the Code throughout
the period, with the exception of:

— Provision 11, which requires that at least half the board, excluding the
chair, should be non-executive directors whom the board considers to be
independent. Whilst the Board’s composition did not meet this requirement
for the full year, this has been corrected by the year end. As advisedin
last year's Annual Report,inthe prior year with the Group considering
its diversification strategy and the shape of the business, the Board held
off appointing further Non-Executive Directors whilst these issues were
clarifiedinternally and progress in the diversification was evident.

The Governance report and individual Committee reports on pages 79 to
118 sets out the ways in which the Company has applied the principles and
complied with the Provisions of the Code and describes the activities of the
Board andits Committees and the matters they have considered during the
financial year.

Leadership

Itis critical that the Board has the right composition, so it can provide
balanced leadership for the Group and the independent discharge of its
duties to shareholders. This relies on the Board having the right balance of
skills, experience and objectivity, as well as a good working knowledge of the
Group's business.

Financial statements Shareholder information 0

During the year we welcomed Susanne Chishti to the Board asa Non-Executive
Director (effective as of 1 June 2022). Susanne has brought a wealth of
technology and fund experience to the Board's composition.

Clare Francis joined the Board as a Non-Executive Director with effect from
19 December 2022 and she brings extensive knowledge of risk management
frameworks and financial services.

These appointments have added to the diversity of the Board in terms of
experience and viewpoints and both new Directors are already having a
beneficial effect on the governance of the Group. Their appointments also
means that 60% of the Non-Executive Directors are female.

Board biographies can be found on pages 76 to 78. More details on Board
changes, our assessment of the balance of leadership skills and experience,
and our talent and succession planning processes, can be found inthe
Nomination Committee report on pages 94 to 97.

The balance of skills, experience and independence of the Board and individual
Directorsis subject to ongoing review by the Nomination Committee.

ESG and sustainability

The Board has spent time, with support from the Sustainability Committee,
over the past year reviewing its ESG policies and practices and how it can
improve and set KPIs and targets to ensure that the Group is sustainable over
the longer term and consider how its operations impact its stakeholders. More
informationisincluded in the Sustainability section on pages 34 to 48.

Stakeholder engagement

Our stakeholders are essential to the success of the Group and the Board
recognises the importance of engagement with them. The Section 172
statement, our summary of engagement with stakeholders on pages 14 to 19
and the statements on pages 85 and 86 of the Governance report provide
more details inrelation to how the Group has managed thisin the year

under review.

As Chairman, |am responsible for the effective communication between
shareholders and the Company and for ensuring the Board understands
the views of major shareholders and | will also always make myself available
tomeetany of our shareholders who wish to discuss matters regarding the
Company. To that end | have, with the Senior Independent Director, met with
anumber of shareholders of the course of the last 12 months. The principal
communication with private shareholdersis through our full year and interim
results announcements, ad hoc updates, the Annual Report and our Annual
GeneralMeeting (‘AGM”). We are holding our AGM on Thursday 27 July 2023
and hope that our shareholders will attend. My fellow Directors and | will

be available to answer any questions that shareholders may have about

the Company.

Priorities for the year ahead

The Groupis continuing to grow and it will be important to ensure that the
governance practices and processes in place are aligned to the changing
requirements of the Group. We have made changes to our senior leadership
team and Board which will support this and we will continue to review and
develop what we do and what information we receive from managementin
order toallow us to discharge our duties appropriately.

60‘*‘“ £~ davds

James Richards
Chairman
13June 2023
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Board of Directors

Committee membership

Group Audit Committee
ﬂ Remuneration Committee
Group Risk Committee
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James Richards

Independent Chairman
Appointment
1April 2015

Committee membership

c]R]N]

Lord Peter Cruddas

Chief Executive Officer
Appointment
3June 2004

Committee membership

Paul Wainscott
Senior Independent

Director
Appointment
19 October 2017

Committee membership

(Alc]R]N]

Executive Risk Committee
Nomination Committee
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Skills and experience
Jamesjoined the Group asaNon-
Executive Directorin April 2015 and
was appointed as Chairman with
effect from1January 2018 and Chair
of the Nomination Committee from
31January 2018.

He has previously held positions

as Chair of the Remuneration
Committee, interim Chair of the
Group Risk Committee and been
amember of the Nomination
Committee and Group Audit
Committee. James was admitted to
theroll of solicitorsin England and
Walesin 1984 andin the Republic

Skills and experience

Peter founded the Group and
became its Chief Executive Officer
in1989. Peter held this role until
October 2007,and again between
July 2009 and June 2010. Between
2003 and March 2013, he also
served as the Group's Executive
Chairman.InMarch 2013, he

once again became the Group's
Chief Executive Officer andis
responsible for running the Group
onaday-to-day basis. Prior to
founding the Group, Peter was chief
dealer and global group treasury
adviser at S.C.F.Equity Services,

Skills and experience
Pauljoined the Group asan
independent Non-Executive
Directorin October 2017 and acts
as the Group’s Senior Independent
Director. Paul served as finance
director at the Peel Group for 27
years untilMarch 2018. During his
time at the Peel Group, Paul gained
wide experience at board leveland
inseveral different business sectors,

Executive Committee
[l chairman

of Irelandin 2012. James was a
partner at Dillon Eustace, alaw firm
specialising infinancial servicesin
Ireland (2012 to 2016). Prior to this
he was a finance partner at Travers
Smith LLP for 14 years. Having
occupied various senior positions
withinleading law firms, James has
extensive experience in derivatives,
debt capital markets and structured
finance and his leadership skills are
key to the long-term sustainability of
the Group.

Current external appointments
None

where he was responsible for all the
activities of adealing room whose
principal activities were tradingin
futures and options in currencies,
precious metals, commodities

and spot forwards on foreign
exchange and bullion. His continued
entrepreneurial leadershipis
important to the long-term growth
and sustainability of the Group.

Current external appointments
— ThePeter Cruddas Foundation
—director

— Finada Limited—director

— UKHouse of Lords—member

including real estate, transport,
media and utilities. Paul's financial
experience, gained viaa variety of
sectors, is key to his contributions
andto the long-term sustainability of
the Group.

Current external appointments
None
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SarahIng
Independent
Non-Executive

Director
Appointment
14 September 2017

Committee membership

(Alc]r]N]

Clare Francis
Independent
Non-Executive

Director
Appointment
19 December 2022

Committee membership
[Afc]r]n]

Other responsibilities:
Consumer Duty Champion

Susanne Chishti
Independent
Non-Executive

Director
Appointment
1June 2022

Committee membership
[A]clR]N]

Other responsibilities:
Non-Executive Director for workforce
engagement.
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Skills and experience
Sarahjoined the Group asaNon-
Executive Director in September
2017.She has over 30 years’
experience inaccountancy,
investment banking and fund
management, including time with
HSBC and UBS. Sheisachartered
accountantand was a top-rated
equity research analyst covering
the general financials sector. Sarah
also founded andran ahedge fund
investment management business.

Sarah’sinvestment and financial
knowledge and the experience
she brings from her other plc
appointments add value to the
ongoing sustainability of the Group.

Skills and experience

Clare joined the Group as a Non-
Executive Director in December
2022.Having started her career
atNatWest, she has over 25 years’
experience operating at board level
inlarge companiesin the UKand
overseas and has spent over 25
yearsinbankingand markets. She
has experience indriving emerging
markets across Asia, Africaand
Americas. Sheisanhonorary fellow
of the Association of Corporate
Treasurersand has satonthe
boards of AFME and BAB.

Clare was most recently the globall
banking head of Europe, chief
executive of Standard Chartered
Bank UK and global head of
investors and insurance at Standard
Chartered Bank. Clare has also held

Skills and experience
Susannejoined the Group asaNon-
Executive Director in June 2022.
She started her career working for
afinancial technology (“fintech”)
company in Silicon Valley. She has
25 years' experience in fintech,
banking, investment management
and consulting, including time with
Deutsche Bank, Lioyd’s Banking
Group, Morgan Stanley Investment
Management and Accenture.

Susanneis the co-author of
seven fintech books published
by Wiley. She is ofteninvited
to share her fintech thought

Shareholder information 0

Current external appointments

— Marex Group plc—non-executive
director, chair of the audit and
compliance committee and
member of the remunerationand
risk committees

— XPS Pensions Group plc—
non-executive director, chair
of the sustainability and audit &
risk committees and member
of the remunerationand
nomination committees

— GreshamHouse plc—
non-executive director, chair of
the audit committee and member
of thenomination,remunerationand
sustainability committees

roles as head of global corporates/
international and global head of
financial market sales at Lloyd’s
Banking Group and was head of
European financial market advisory
atHSBC. She has recently been
appointed as a senior adviser to
Provenance Blockchain which will
provide insight into fintech and the
disruption of financial services.
Clare’s extensive global experience
and her inputinto the ongoing
improvementsto the Group's risk
andinternal controls managementis
key to the long-term sustainability of
the Group.

Current external appointments
— Department of International Trade
TAG-board member

— Infrastructure Exports: UK —
board member

leadership atinternational fintech
conferences andas ajudge at
fintech competitions. Her extensive
knowledge of the fintech sector

and experience of advising on
leadership and engagement matters
areinvaluable to the long-term
sustainability of the Group.

Current external appointments
— FINTECH Circle —chief
executive officer

— Crown Agents Bank Limited —
non-executive director

— CabtechHold Co Limited—
non-executive director
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Euan Marshall

Chief Financial Officer
Appointment
1November 2019

Committee membership

an

Matthew Lewis
Head of Asia Pacific &

Canada
Appointment
1November 2019

Committee membership

e[ v]

David Fineberg
Deputy Chief Executive

Officer

Appointment
1January 2014

Committee membership

oo

Committee membership

Group Audit Committee
ﬂ Remuneration Committee
Group Risk Committee

Executive Risk Committee
Nomination Committee
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Skills and experience
Euanjoined the Groupin November
2011and he has held a variety of
roles across the finance function,
including Group Head of Finance.
He was appointed as Chief Financial
OfficerinNovember 2019, where he
is responsible for the management
of allfinance functions globally and
investor relations. Euanhasbeena
member of the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants

since 2005 and has over 20 years’
experience working in financial
services and business consulting
including at Barclays, HSBC and
Deloitte. EuanholdsaBScin

Skills and experience

Matthew joined the Groupin
September 2005and hashelda
variety of roles including Senior
Dealer, Head of Eastern Equities,
Head of Sales Trading ANZ, Head of
Trading Eastern Region and Director
of Asia.Inhis currentrole as the
Head of Asia Pacific & Canada, he
isresponsible forimplementing the
Group's business strategies across
the APAC & Canadaregion for both
the retailand wholesale CFD and
foreign exchange business. He is
alsoresponsible for the Group's
Invest Australia business. Prior to
joining the Group, Matthew worked
for Commonwealth Securities,

Skills and experience

David joined the Groupin November
1997 working on the trading desk
and developing the Group’s multi-
asset CFDand spread bet dealing
desk.As aSenior Dealer he was
responsible for managing the UK
and US equity books. Between
April 2007 and September 2012, he
was the Group's Western Head of
Trading, covering allasset classes
for the westernregion. In September
2012 David was appointed to the
role of Group Head of Trading and
inJanuary 2014 was appointed as
the Group Director of Trading with
overallresponsibility for the trading

Executive Committee
[l chairman

Economics from the University
of Nottingham.

Euan's knowledge of the Group'’s
operations globally and his
understanding of the regulatory
environmentit operatesinare key to
ensuring the long-term sustainability
of the Group.

Current external appointments
None

Australia’s largest provider of
financial services, dealingin equities,
before movinginto derivatives as
anoptions trader and warrants
representative. Matthew has over
20 years' experiencein financial
services and holds a Bachelor of
Economics from the University

of Sydney.

Matthew’s understanding of the
APAC business and its growth
and developmentisimportant
to the long-term sustainability of
the Group.

Current external appointments
None

and pricing strategies and activities
across the Group.

InJune 2017 his role further
expanded when he became Group
Commercial Directorand then

in April 2019 he was promoted

to the position of Deputy Chief
Executive Officer.

David'sin-depth knowledge of the
business and the opportunities
for growthand evolving strategy
areimportant to the long-term
sustainability of the Group.

Current external appointments
None
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Corporate governance

The Board

Therole of the Board

The Board provides entrepreneurial leadership and strategic oversightin
relation to the long-term, sustainable success of the Company.

The Board, taking account of relevant stakeholder interests, is responsible
for the establishment of the Group’s purpose, values and strategy and has
oversight of implementation within necessary financial, human resources and
cultural frameworks.

The Board has ultimate responsibility to prepare the Annual Reportand
Financial Statements and to ensure that appropriate internal controls and risk
management systems arein place in order to assess, manage and mitigate risk.

The Board delegates the in-depth review and monitoring of internal controls
and risk management to the Group Audit Committee and Group Risk
Committee respectively.

The terms of reference of these Board Committees (and the Remuneration
and Nomination Committees) are available onthe CMC Markets plc Group
website (https://www.cmcmarketsplc.com/investors/corporate-
governance/committees/).

Board leadership and purpose

The Board provides entrepreneurial leadership and oversight of the
delivery of strategic objectives and the long-term, sustainable success
of the Company, taking into account stakeholder priorities and employee
engagement feedback.

The Board considers any diversification of the Company’s product offerings
toensure arobust range of products designed to be successful withina
changing regulatory environment and appeal to changing stakeholder
requirements, with the objective of preserving long-term value.

Stakeholder and employee-related matters form part of the Board's decision
making processes, facilitated by the investment in employee engagement

Financial statements Shareholder information 0

surveys, the work of the Designated Non-Executive Director for workforce
engagement, ongoing shareholder dialogue and market feedback.

Our Section 172 statement on pages 14 and 15 and the separate reports of

the various Board Committees provide more detail onhow the Boardand its
Committees have discharged their duties during the year. The Sustainability
sectiononpages 34 to 48 sets out the work being done by the Groupinrelation
to sustainability matters and the Strategic report on pages 2 to 73 provides more
detailonsome of the activities to continue the diversification of the business and
implement strategy and culturalinitiatives. The Board'sleadership recognises
the importance of aworking culture which promotesinclusionand acceptance
of differing approaches to facilitating the successful delivery of strategic projects
andinitiatives. We have a future focused culture with a goal to constantly maintain
asuperior and unrivalled technology experience for our clients whichis aligned to
our purpose, values and strategy. To support thisitisimportant that our staff are
engaged with this goaland have the knowledge to ensure they are motivated to
provide agood client experience. Our Section 172 statement, engagement with
stakeholder engagement sectionand Sustainability section provide information
onsome of the initiatives undertaken throughout the year toengage with
employees and embed our cultural values throughout the organisation.

The Group has an established process inrelation to the reporting and
processing of employee-related issues. Within a structure ultimately overseen
by the Board, any employee canraise amatter of concern at any time through
day-to-day management reports or whistleblower channels as appropriate.
The Boardreceives a whistleblowing report annually which will highlight
matters raised and any updates to the whistleblowing procedures and Group
policy. During the year the whistleblowing process was enhanced by the
appointment of a vendor, Safecall, to allow any concerns to be raised viaan
independent channel.

The Board recognises the importance of understanding employee
engagement and the prevailing Group culture to enable alignment with
delivery onstrategy ina way that ensures acommitment to the Group’s values.

Board composition
The Directors who held office during the financial year, and their attendance at scheduled meetings, is shown below.

Board Group Audit Group Risk Nomination Remuneration
Name Position meetings Committee Committee Committee Committee
Number of meetings 6 6 6 5 7
James Richards Chairman 6(6) — 6(6) 5(5) 7(7)
Susanne Chishti' Independent Non-Executive Director 5(5) 5(5) 5(5) 3(3) 5(5)
Clare Francis? Independent Non-Executive Director 2(2) 2(2) 2(2) 1(1) 3(3)
SarahlIng Independent Non-Executive Director 6(6) 6(6) 6(6) 5(5) 7(7)
Clare Salmon?® Independent Non-Executive Director 2(2) 1(2) 2(2) 2(2) 2(2)
Paul Wainscott* Senior Independent Director 6(6) 6(6) 4(6) 4(5) 7(7)
Lord Cruddas Chief Executive Officer 6(6) — — — —
David Fineberg Deputy Chief Executive Officer 6(6) — — — —
Matthew Lewis Head of Asia Pacific & Canada 6(6) — — — —
EuanMarshall Chief Financial Officer 6(6) — — — —

Thefiguresin brackets denote the number of meetings the Director was eligible to attend.
1 Susanne Chishtiwas appointed with effect from 1 June 2022.

2 ClareFrancis was appointed with effect from 19 December 2022.

3 Clare Salmonretired with effect from 28 July 2022.

4 Paul Wainscott was unable to attend meetings due to prior commitments when meetings were convened or moved at short notice.
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Corporate governance continued

The Board continued

Board composition continued

The Board also met on various occasions onanad hoc basis throughout the
year to discuss matters such as potentialinvestments, finaland interim results,
dividends and the appointment of anew NED. Attendance at these ad hoc
meetingsis notincludedin the table on page 79.

Activities of the Board

The Board has a comprehensive meeting planner that ensures all matters for
Board consideration are presented and reviewed in atimely manner.

Key areas of focus during this financial year were:

— consideration and approval of the Annual Report and Financial Statements,

half year results and interim dividend approvals;

— issuance of shares to the Employee Benefit Trust;

— approvalof Group property managementissues and Group Board appointments;

— employee engagement survey results review;
— ongoing review of CMC Markets plc governance arrangements;
— consideration of intra-group outsourcing and service arrangements;

— thedevelopment and launch of new products and expansioninto
new regions;

— riskmanagementand risk appetite;
— thereview and approval of ICARA and other regulatory documents;
— oversight of CASS reporting and compliance;

— ongoing oversight of the transition to Enhanced Firm status under the
SMCR atrelevant UK regulated Group entities;

— stakeholder engagement;

— approval of Board policies, e.g. whistleblowing;

— consideration of sustainability strategy, targets and KPls;

— assessmentof theimpact onthe Group of the FCA's consumer duty regulations;

— evaluation of a potential managed separation of the trading and investing
businesses;and

— insurance renewal arrangements and approvals.

Some of the key decisions made by the Board impacting stakeholders during
the year are describedinthe Section 172 statement on pages 14 and 15.
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Board balance

Provision 11 of the Code recommends that at least half of the Board, excluding
the Chairman, be independent Non-Executive Directors. As shownin the
table below, the Company was not compliant with this Provision during

part of the year under review but took steps to rectify this positionandis
currently compliant.

Position
Period Compliance status ED' NED? Impactingevent
1April 2022 - Non-compliant 4 3 Non-compliant while
31May 2022 additional NED search

undertaken

1June 2022 - Compliant 4 4 Susanne Chishti appointed
28 July 2022 on1June 2022
29July2022-  Non-compliant 4 3 Clare Salmonretired on
18 December 28 July 2022
2022
19 December Compliant 4 4 Clare Francis appointed on
2022-31March 19 December 2022
2023

1 Executive Directors.
2 Non-Executive Directors excluding the Chairman.

Board support

The Board operates inaccordance with the provisions of the Articles
of Association and established processes and approved policies, as
appropriate, and has access to relevant resources as required.

Each Director has access to the Company Secretary, whois responsible

for advising the Board on governance matters and supporting the efficient
functioning of the Board and its Committees. The Company Secretary
provides meeting papers to Directorsin a timely manner to allow for conducive
and effective Board and Board Committee meetings and attends all Board
and Committee meetings in order to provide appropriate advice on corporate
governance and matters of procedure. The appointment and removal of the
Company Secretary is amatter for the Board.

As stated in each of the Board Committees’ terms of reference, the Directors
may take independent professional advice at the Company's expense.
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Matters reserved for the Board

NiC

markts

Itis recognised that certain matters cannot, or should not, be
delegated and the Board has adopted a schedule of matters
reserved for Board consideration and approval. The matters
reserved for the Board fallinto the following areas:

— strategy and management;

structure and capital;

— financial reporting and controls;

— internal controls and risk management;

— contracts;

— communications;

— Board membership and other appointments;
— remuneration;

— delegation of authority;

— corporate governance matters;

— policies;

— political and charitable donations;

— appointment of principal professional advisers;
— materiallitigation;

— whistleblowing;

— Modern Slavery Act statement;

— pensionschemes;and

insurance.

The schedule of matters reserved for the Boardis
available on the CMC Markets plc Group website,
https://www.cmcmarketsplc.com/investors/
corporate-governance.

81-CMC Markets plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2023


https://www.cmcmarketsplc.com/investors/corporate-governance/

Corporate governance continued

Division of responsibllities

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) are separate, clearly defined in writing
and agreed by the Board.

Chairman

Responsibilities of the Chairman include:

leadership of the Board, with responsibility for its overall effectiveness in directing the Company, and ensuring open and effective communication

between the Executive and Non-Executive Directors;

ensuring Directors receive accurate, timely and clear information and that Board meetings are effective by setting appropriate and relevant agenda
items, creating an atmosphere whereby all Directors are engaged and free to enter healthy and constructive debate;

ensuring effective communication between major shareholders and the Board;

overseeing each Director’sinduction and ongoing training; and

leadership of the Board effectiveness process through his role as Chair of the Nomination Committee.

CEO

Responsibilities of the CEQ include:

day-to-day management of the Group's business and implementation of the Board-approved strategy;

acting as Chair of the Executive Committee and leading the senior management teamin devising and reviewing Group development for

consideration by the Board;
responsibility for the operations and results of the Group; and

promoting the Group's values, culture and standards.

Senior Independent Director

Responsibilities of the Senior Independent
Director include:

acting as a sounding board for the Chairman and serving as an
intermediary for the other Directors as necessary;

acting as lead independent Non-Executive Director;

leading the Non-Executive Directors in the performance
evaluation of the Chairman, with input from the Executive
Directors;and

being available to shareholders in the event that the Chairman,

Chief Executive Officer or other Executive Directors are unavailable.
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Non-Executive Directors

Responsibilities of the Non-Executive
Directorsinclude:

providing strategic guidance and constructively challenging
management proposals and providing advice in line with their
respective skills and experience;

helping to develop proposals on strategy;

reviewing the performance of management and individual
Executive Directors against agreed performance objectives;

having a prime role in appointing and, where necessary;,
removing Executive Directors; and

having anintegral role in succession planning.
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Governance structure as at 31 March 2023

Group Board

Independent
Assurance

Group Audit Group Risk | Nomination Remuneration Regulated
Committee Committee Committee Committee Subsidiaries

Executive
Committee

Executive Risk
Committee

External Auditor

Bl Board/Board Committee Hl Subsidiaries — Directreportingline
Bl Senior Management Committee Internal assurance - - - Reportingline for certain matters
Management Committee Il Independentassurance
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Corporate governance continued

Accountabllity

Election and re-election of Directors

The 2023 Annual General Meeting (‘AGM”) will be held at 10.00 am on 27 July
2023 at 133 Houndsditch, London EC3A 7BX.

Directors newly appointed to the Board are required to submit themselves
for election by shareholders at the AGM following their appointment. In
accordance with the Code, all other current Directors will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

Following recommendations from the Nomination Committee and review by
the Chairman, the Board considers that all Directors continue to be effective,
remain committed to their roles and have sufficient time available to perform
their duties. Biographies for each Director, which set out the reasons why the
Board believes each Director’s contribution is, and continues to be, important

tothe Group’s long-term sustainable success, are available on pages 76 to 78.

Chairman’s tenure

James Richards was appointed to the Board on1April 2015 and willhave
therefore served on the Board for nine years with effect from 1 April 2024.
QOut of these nine years, he served for two years and nine months as a
Non-Executive Director and will have served six years and three months
as Chairman.

Having regard to the Provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code, the
Nomination Committee, led by the Senior Independent Director, met without
James presentin May 2023 to discuss the Chairman’s succession.

Inline with arecommendation from our major shareholder and CEO, the
Committee considered, and agreed to recommend to the Board, that James’
appointment to the Board and as Group Chairman be extended until the
close of the AGMin 2025 in order to provide continuity while we navigate
through our diversification strategy, increase our product range and expand
our institutional business. This proposal was approved by the Board and
aresolutioninrelation to James' re-election will therefore be presented to
shareholders for approval at both the 2023 and 2024 AGMs.

The Committee will continue to consider succession plans for the Chairman,
James'tenure and his membership of various Committees inline with the
Provisions of the Code, with relevant disclosures in relation to the ongoing
positionmade in next year's Annual Report.

Independence of Non-Executive Directors and
time commitment

The Board carries out areview of the independence of its Non-Executive
Directors onanannual basis and considers each of the Non-Executive
Directors, including the Chairman, to be independent in character and
judgement. Each Director is aware of the need to allocate sufficient time

to the Company in order to fulfil their responsibilities and is notified of all
scheduled Board and Board Committee meetings. Non-Executive Directors
are expected to obtain the agreement of the Chairman before accepting
additional commitments that might affect the time they are able to devote to
their rolein the Company.
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Directors’ induction, training and evaluation

Onappointment, new Directors receive acomprehensive and formal
induction, whichis facilitated by the Company Secretary in consultation with
the Chairman.

The Nomination Committee ensures that an annual evaluation of the Board,
Board Committees and individual Directors is undertaken. More information is
provided in the Nomination Committee report on page 99.

The Boardregularly updates a skills assessment for the Non-Executive
Directors which, together with any observations made as part of the Board
evaluation process, is used by the Company to tailor induction meetings and
training requirements for each Director. One-to-one meetings are arranged
between the Director and the management teamsin relevant areas of

the business as part of the induction. This allows anincoming Director to
familiarise themselves with the management team and their respective roles
and responsibilities and to gain a greater understanding and awareness of
the firm's business and the industry in which it operates. These meetings also
provide an opportunity for new Directors to discuss the business strategy
and model, risk management, governance and controls, the requirements of
the regulatory framework and the culture of the Group. These meetings and
training arrangements formakey part of the learning and development plan.

Non-Executive Directors attend internally and externally facilitated training
sessions and have access to online and digital platform-based training and
information resources, including onrelevant financial services matters with
emphasis on responsibilities with regard to regulation and compliance. They
also have access to other knowledge resources and education programmes
offered by third-party service providers with which the Group has established
relevant links. A programme of technical business briefings related to CMC's
businessis being prepared for 2024.

Board responsibilities in relation to the Annual Report
and Financial Statements

The Board has ultimate responsibility for reviewing and approving the Annual
Report and Financial Statements and it has considered and endorsed the
arrangements enabling it to confirm that the Annual Report and Financial
Statements, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and

that it provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Company’s position and performance, business model and strategy. With the
assistance of the Group Audit Committee, the Board ensured that sufficient
time and resources were available to encompass the disclosure requirements
to which the Groupis subject and that the Annual Report and Financial
Statements met all relevant disclosure requirements.

The Board believes inthe governance principles of being open, transparent
and compliant with the Principles of the Code. Following review by the
Group Audit Committee, which considered the processes and controlsin
place for the preparation and verification of the Annual Report and Financial
Statements, the Board concluded that the Annual Report and Financial
Statements contained the necessary information for shareholders to assess
the Company’s performance, strategy and overall business model.
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Group Audit Committee

The Group Audit Committee has been delegated responsibility for the
monitoring and oversight of the external and internal audit and financial
internal controls. The Committee’s responsibilities, main activities and
priorities for the next reporting cycle are set out on pages 87 to 90.

Group Risk Committee

The Group Risk Committee has been delegated responsibility for

the monitoring and oversight of risk management, mitigation and
recommendation for and approval of the risk appetite to the Board. The
Committee’s responsibilities, main activities and priorities for the coming year
are setoutonpages 91t0 93.

Shareholder engagement

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
shareholders. Board members regularly meet with a cross-section of the
Company's shareholders to ensure that the Group strategy takes due
consideration of shareholder views.

The investor relations and management teams are in regular contact with
shareholders through a programme of shareholder meetings and roadshows.
During the year there were a number of meetings with significant shareholders
and potential investors to ensure the Board was regularly apprised of
shareholder sentiment and shareholder correspondence was also shared
with the Board as appropriate. Investor relations reports are distributed to the
Board and considered at each Board meeting.

Inaddition to meetings held between our Executive Directors and the
Chairman and Chair of the Remuneration Committee onanad hoc basis
during the year, subsequent to the year end we offered major shareholders
the opportunity to meet with our Chairman and other Non-Executive
Directors. Two shareholders expressed aninterest to meetin May 2023, and
the feedback from these meetings will be discussed with the wider Board to
consider whether there are any matters to be addressed.

The principal communication method with private investorsis through our final
results, half year report, any ad hoc market announcements and the AGM.

At the AGM separate resolutions are proposed for each item of business
presented to shareholders for approval, with voting conducted by a poll. Al
valid proxy appointment forms are recorded and counted and information
regarding votesis published on the Company’s website. The Notice is posted
to shareholders at least 21days before the date of the AGM.

Should a significant proportion of the votes cast be against any resolution, the
Company is required to explain when announcing the results what action it
will take to understand why this has been the result. There were no significant
votes against any of the resolutions put to shareholders at the 2022 AGM.

Inaccordance with the Companies Act 2006, members representing at least
5% of the voting rights, or atleast 100 members having aright to vote, can
requisition the Board to circulate aresolution or statementin relation to the
AGM tomembers.

Our Stakeholder engagement report on pages 16 to 19 sets out some other
engagement methods with shareholders and how their views impact Board
discussions and decisions.
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2022/23 key shareholder events

June 2022
2022 full-year results

July 2022
Q12028 trading update and Annual General Meeting 2022

October2022
H12023 pre-close trading update

November 2022
H12023 interim results

January 2023
Q32023 trading update

March 2023
Pre-close trading update

Stakeholder engagement

The Boardrecognisesits various legal, fiduciary, statutory and governance
obligations and duties inrelation to stakeholder engagement, including those
specifiedin the Principles and Provisions of the Code andits duty to promote the
success of the Company under Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006. The
Boardreceives regular stakeholder engagement updates in the Board papers
on stakeholder engagement, including in the Board papers provided to facilitate
Board decision making. Please also see the Stakeholder engagement section
onpages 16 to 19 forasummary of the Group's stakeholders, the engagement
that has taken place during the year anditsimpact on decisionmaking. The
Sustainability section on pages 34 to 48 provides further details of engagement
with our key stakeholders regarding responding to stakeholders' needs.
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Corporate governance continued

Accountability continued

Employee engagement

Susanne Chishtiis our designated Non-Executive Director for workforce
engagement with responsibility for engaging with (and overseeing
engagement with) the Group’s employees to discern the views of the
workforce and report back to the Nomination Committee regularly. Susanne
also plays an active role in ensuring the views of the workforce are, within

the matters reserved for the Board and the Nomination Committee terms

of reference, considered as part of Board and Committee discussions and
decision making. She brings over 25 years of industry expertise including at
board level, with a strong focus on governance.

During the year, the workforce engagement activities focused on by Susanne
for the Group included:

— hosting female talent focus group sessions;
— beinginvolved in Women@CMC initiatives;
— hosting a career webinarin the APAC region;

— working with the Group Head of Sustainability to promote sustainability
priorities, including diversity, equity and inclusion;

— being apanellist during adiversity and inclusion week;

— providing anew year 2023 video message to all global employees thanking
them for their hard work and introducing the bi-annual pulse survey;

— meeting withemployees to seek further feedback onresponses to the
pulse survey;

— visiting the Vienna office to engage with employees in that region;
— meeting with new joiners as part of the “Meet the Exec Team” initiative;

— celebrating the success of employees and key initiatives both in private and
inpublic;and

— settingup an “Ask the NED” channel,an anonymous way of engaging with
her onany employee matters.

Initiatives to reflect feedback from the workforce engagement
processesinclude:

- the Group flexible working policy now applies to allemployees, not only
to parents;

— thecareer development structure and competency framework provide
clearer career paths, transparency around skills required for promotional
opportunities and better publication of opportunities to progress;

— more educational support to be provided to employees, with the introduction
of training champions and transparency on the training available; and

— aGroup-wide mentoring scheme has been introduced across all regions.
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The Board believes this engagement mechanism has worked well during
the year and that it continues to be an effective way of ensuring direct and
independent Board understanding of the views of the workforce.

The Nomination Committee reviews and considers the results of the various
employee engagement and pulse surveys undertaken throughout the year
and reports to the Board accordingly.

The Board has considered anumber of employee-related initiatives during the
year as set outinthe Sustainability section on pages 42 and 43.

Internal control and risk management systems over
financial reporting

The Group has aninternal control framework and risk management systems,
as set out below, in place to ensure that the financial information produced
isaccurate, reliable and timely such that it can be used by all stakeholders to
monitor performance and aid effective decision making.

— Expertise: The utilisation of appropriately qualified and experienced
colleagues, and regular knowledge sharing within the team.

— Forecasting and budgeting: The Group has a detailed forecasting and
budgeting processin place that is wellembedded across the Group.

— Financialaccounting and reporting: The finance team produce Group
consolidated accounts onamonthly basis. There are full reconciliation
and reporting processes in place to ensure that any issues are identified
andresolved in a timely manner. Detailed reconciliations are completed
betweenthe trading systems and the general ledger to ensure completeness.

— Management reporting: The Group has a detailed suite of management
information (“MI”) that is prepared, daily, weekly, monthly and quarterly. This
Mlwas prepared and improved throughout the year to reflect appropriate
measurements as the business has changed.

— Tax: The Group has a formal tax strategy, reviewed and approved annually
by the Group Audit Committee, in addition to monthly tax compliance
monitoring, quarterly attestations with items raised within the Group’s Tax
Risk Committee.

— Segregation of duties: Appropriate segregation of duties to ensure that no
individual controls the end-to-end process;

— ITenvironment: The Group is heavily reliant onits IT systems and has
procedures and controls to ensure that they are operational and accessible
atalltimes. There have beennoIT issuesin the year that could impact the
financial reporting of the Group.

Information on the Group's risk management systems and how the Board
oversees risk management is detailed in the risk management section on
pages67to73.

sw £~ o

James Richards
Chairman
13 June 2023
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Group Audit Committee report

Paul Wainscott
Senior Independent Director and
Chair of the Group Audit Committee

Members and attendance

Paul Wainscott 000000
Committee Chair

Susanne Chishti 00000

Independent Non-Executive Director

Clare Francis (X )

Independent Non-Executive Director

SarahIng 000000

Independent Non-Executive Director

® Attended meeting
O Didnotattend ameeting held during tenure
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Dear shareholder,

As Chair of the Group Audit Committee (the “Committee”) |am pleased to
present the Group Audit Committee report for the year ended 31 March 2023.

The Committeeis the independent Board Committee that assesses and has
independent oversight of financial reporting and the effectiveness of internal
control systems. This report summarises the activities, key responsibilities and
future focus of the Committee.

Principal responsibilities of the Group Audit Committee

The Committee operates within agreed terms of reference, which outline the
key responsibilities of the Committee.

The Committee’s terms of reference can be found on the Group’s website:
https://www.cmcmarketsplc.com/investors/corporate-governance/committees/.

Inaccordance with the terms of reference the Committee is required to
evaluate its own performance. In the year under review this was done as part
of the wider Board and Committee evaluation, as described on page 96.

Areas of focusin 2022/23

The Committee’s mainresponsibilities, in compliance with the requirements of
the Code, were as follows:

— tomonitor the integrity of the Financial Statements of the Group;

— toconsider any materialinformation presented within the Financial
Statements insofar asit relates to audit and to review the final and half year
results before making recommendations to the Board on their contents and
whether they are fair, balanced and understandable;

— toreview andreport to the Board on significant financial reporting issues
andjudgements;

— toassess the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
systems and identify, assess, manage and monitor financial reporting risks
andreport to the Board on any key findings;

— toreview onanannual basis the procedures for detecting fraud and
financial crime;

— toreview the tax strategy of the Group;

— toreview and approve the internal audit charter and annualinternal
audit plan;

— toreview the findings of allinternal audit reports, make recommendations
as appropriate and monitor resolution plans;

— toreview the performance of the internal audit function and consider the
structure of the function;

— toreview the effectiveness andindependence of the Company’s
external auditor including appointment, reappointment, removal and the
remuneration of the external auditor,

— tooversee the transition to the new external auditor and review any findings
thatarose;

— toreview and approve the policy on the provision of non-audit services by
the auditor;and

— toreview the findings of the external auditor and how any challenges made
to management, and responses to such challenges, have been dealt with,
including inrelation to key judgements.
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Group Audit Committee report continued

Composition and advisers

The Committee is chaired by Paul Wainscott with Susanne Chishti (from
1June 2022), Clare Francis (from 19 December 2022) and Sarah Ing as
members. The Committee is considered independent to management and
the members are allindependent Non-Executive Directors.

The Code requires the inclusion onthe Committee of at least one member
determined by the Board as having recent and relevant financial experience.
The Committee Chair is considered to continue to fulfil this requirement. The
Committee as a whole has competence inrelation to the trading, investing and
institutional business sectors in which the Company operates.

The Committee held six meetings during the financial year. The key activities
and discussion points are outlined in the relevant section of this Committee
report. Committee attendance is presented on page 79.

The Group Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Chief Executive

Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Asia Pacific & Canada, Group Head of
Finance, Chief Risk Officer, Company Secretary and Group Head of Financial
Crime & UK Money Laundering Reporting Officer attend Committee meetings
by invitation. Representatives of Deloitte LLP (*Deloitte”), the external auditor,
and Grant Thornton LLP, the internal auditors, attend the Committee meetings
by standing invitation. Representatives of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
("PwC”) also attended a meeting in May 2022 in their capacity as statutory
auditor for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Internal audit

The Group'sinternal audit functionis externally facilitated by Grant Thornton
LLP. Theinternal audit function has a reporting line to the Committee and has
directaccess to the Committee Chair and each Committee member. The
Committee reviews allinternal audit reports, follows up verification reports
onany findings identified by internal audit, and annually approves the internal
audit planand charter.

Representatives of the internal auditors attend each meeting where internal
audit reports are presented. The Committee regularly discusses with them
progress against the internal audit plan and any open audit actions. This
allows the Committee to review the effectiveness of the internal audit function
onacontinual basis over the course of the year. The Committee has agreed
that the internal audit process could be enhanced by the appointment of a
dedicatedinternal resource to manage the relationship with the external third
line services provider and this will be taken forward over the course of 2024.

External auditor

The Committee considers the reappointment of the external auditor annually
and such considerationincludes review of the independence of the external
auditor and assessment of the auditor’s performance.

As previously reported, the Group conducted a competitive tender process
inrelation to the provision of audit servicesin the year ended 31 March 2022.
Shareholders approved the appointment of Deloitte as the Group's external
auditor at the Annual General Meeting held on 28 July 2022. Fiona Walker is
the audit partner at Deloitte.

The Group confirms that it has complied with the provisions of the CMA Order
inrespect of The Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies Market
Investigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender Processes and Audit
Committee Responsibilities) Order 2014.

The Committee, in line with Financial Reporting Council (‘FRC”) guidance,
continues to review the qualification, expertise, resources, effectiveness and
independence of the external auditor.
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These matters were considered in detail as part of the audit tender process
and have continued to be monitored subsequently. The Committee has
received reports throughout the year on the progress of the transition from
PwC to Deloitte along with the preparations made by Deloitte to complete the
half year review and fullauditinrelation to the year ended 31 March 2023. As part
of the transition, Deloitte challenged management on anumber of accounting
judgements which were then discussed with the Committee. Following discussion
of the final audit report for the year, the level of appropriate challenge, and the
interactions with management and the Board, the Committee believes that the
audit has been effective for the year under review and has recommended the
reappointment of Deloitte as statutory auditor.

The Committee continues to believe that Deloitte are independent by virtue of
the level of non-audit fees, procedures in place in relation to the employment
of ex-employees of the auditor, the internal processes and policies in place

at Deloitte to avoid conflicts and the nature of discussions held between the
Committee and Deloitte without representatives of management present.

The Group's audit and other services fees are disclosed in note 8 of the Financial
Statements. Other services fees include the controls opinionrelating to the
Group's processes and controls over client money segregation, compliance
with The Capital Requirements (Country-by-Country Reporting) Regulations
2013 and the mandatory regulatory audit of the Group’s German subsidiary.

Non-audit services policy

The Group has anumber of relationships with independent advisory and
assurance firms which provide alternatives to using the external auditor.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, PwC and Deloitte provided non-audit
services to the Group. However, all services provided fall under categories
explicitly permitted under the FRC 2019 Ethical Standard.

Inorder to ensure compliance with the Ethical Standard issued by the FRC
regarding the requirement for safeguarding independence of the external
auditor, the Committee has in place a formal policy governing the engagement
of the auditor to provide non-audit services, which was reviewed and
reapproved in March 2023. The Committee approves any significant non-
audit services and fees and receives details of any other non-audit spend
approved by the Chief Financial Officer and/or Committee Chair by way of
delegated authority by the Committee.

Priorities for financial year 2024

The Committee will continue to ensure that all relevant accounting practices
and disclosures are adhered to and that the work being done to improve
controls around these obligations promote a strong culture of disclosure
and transparency.

The Committee will oversee the work being done to ensure the Group can
comply with the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy’s,
now the Department for Business and Trade (‘DBT"), recommendations
inrelation to restoring trust in audit and corporate governance (the “DBT
recommendations”). Although the final scope and required reporting period
fromwhich compliance is required has yet to be confirmed, itis anticipated that
it will be required to be in place from the reporting period starting 1 April 2025.
As aresult, the Group has commenced a project based on the draft scope
to have requirements and monitoring of compliance in place from that date.
Initial steps taken during the year to reach compliance within the anticipated
timeframe included a financial reporting controls current state assessment
conducted by an external adviser.

The enhancement of the Group’s internal audit capabilities through the
appointment of adedicated internal resource who willmanage the relationship
with the external third line services provider will also be a key focus during the
financial year.



Strategic report

Main activities during the financial year

Governance

Financial statements

Shareholder information

0

Agendas for scheduled Committee meetings are based on a pre-agreed annual meeting planner to ensure that the Committee fulfils its responsibilities in line with

its terms of reference and regulatory obligations.

At each scheduled meeting the Committee:

— Receivesareport fromthe Chief Financial
Officer on the year to date financial
performance of the Group.

May 2022

— Considered the year-end audit report
presented by the external auditor and
discussed the audit with the lead audit partner,
including relevant significant audit and
accounting matters. Inline with the Committee
terms of reference, the Committee met with
the Group auditor without management or the
Executive Directors present.

July 2022

— Considered the draft Q1 trading update and
recommended to the Board for approval.

September 2022

— Considered and approved the Tax Strategy
and Policy.

November 2022

— Considered the half-year audit report
presented by the external auditor and
discussed the report with the lead audit
partner, specifically inrelation to certain
accounting judgements and disclosures and
impairment reviews undertaken as part of
Deloitte’s first audit review of the Group.

January 2023

— Considered the Q3 trading update and
recommended to the Board for approval.

March 2023

— Considered anupdate onthe progress
of the year-end audit presented by the
external auditor.

Receives an update on current and planned
internal audits and any internal auditissues
highlighted in completed audit reports.

Receives a Group tax update.

Reviewed the Annual Report and Financial
Statements, including the specific

disclosures such as going concern, viability
and risk management, fair, balanced and
understandable and internal controls reporting,
for recommendation to the Board.

Discussed non-audit fees.

Discussed with the auditor the accounting
treatment of the Group’s cryptocurrency
balances,impairments of intangible assets and
the share buyback.

Considered revised procedures and checklists
inrelationto dividend approvals.

Discussed the UK government'siinitial
response to the DBT consultation and the
impact onthe Group.

Reviewed the interim results, including
consideration of going concern, risk
management and internal controls reporting
for recommendation to the Board.

Agreed the management representation letter
and audit plan, noting that the audit fee and
engagement letter had been approved as part
of the audit tender process in the previous
reporting period.

Discussed the current positioninrelationto
the contingent liability relating to UK banking

Considered accounting treatment adjustments
discussed with the external auditor.

Discussed the control environment with the
external auditor.

Receives an update on significant
accountingjudgements.

In2022/2023, received an update onthe
transition of external audit services.

Recommended the appointment of Deloitte
as Group auditor.

Discussed the work being undertaken
toensure anorderly transitionto the new
external auditor.

Considered the effectiveness of the internal
control framework.

Reviewed the annual report from the Money
Laundering Reporting Officer (‘MLRO”).

Considered 2022 audit scope changes.

Received an update in relation to non-audit
services and fees.

Considered correspondence fromthe FCAin
relation to anti-money laundering controls and
management’s response.

surcharge tax as describedin note 35to
theaccounts.

Reviewed the non-audit services policy.

Approved the internal audit plan and internal
audit charter.

Reviewed the terms of reference of the Committee.
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Group Audit Committee report continued

Role of the Committee

Going concernand long-term viability

[tis required that the Directors make statements
inthe Annual Report as to the going concernand
longer-term viability of the Group.

Controlimprovements and remediation

The Group continued its work toimprove itsinternal
controls which was started in 2022 and considered
the additional requirements to be imposed on the
Group arising fromthe DBT recommendations.

Share buyback programme

A share buyback programme was launchedin
March 2022, for an aggregate purchase price of up
to £30 million.

Appointment of new external auditor

The Committee closely monitored the transition of
the external audit work from PwC to Deloitte.

Responsibilities discharged

The Committee reviewed reports from
management that assessed the impact of various
stress tests and longer-term business risks to
determine how the Group would be able to remain
viable through periods of liquidity or capital stress.

The Committee requested detailed and regular
progress updates from management in relation
to theimprovement of internal controls arising
fromissuesraised as part of the 2022 external
audit, the 2023 interim review and the DBT
recommendations.

The Committee reviewed with the new auditor the
accounting treatment of the buyback programme
anditsimpact on the Group's capital, liquidity and
Financial Statements.

The Committee received updates from both PwC
and Deloitte on the work being done to transition to
the new auditor over the course of the 2022 audit,
and from Deloitte subsequently inrelation toits
work to prepare for the 2023 audit.

Review of Interim Results and Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Committeeis responsible for considering
the Annual Report and Financial Statements
and providing challenge to management and
the external auditor on significant accounting
judgements and treatments.

RS —

Paul Wainscott

Senior Independent Director and
Chair of the Group Audit Committee
13June 2023

90-CMC Markets plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2023

The Committee considered disclosures made in
the 2023 Annual Report and Financial Statements
and discussed significant areas with management
and the external auditor.

Conclusion or action taken

Following challenge of management on the
individual scenarios and impacts thereof, the
Committee agreed torecommend the going
concernand viability statement to the Board
forapproval.

The Committee requested to be kept informed
onthe project toimprove internal controls and
continues to monitor progress.

The Committee concluded that for the year
under review the accounting treatment of the
programme, which was inline with the prior period,
was appropriate.

The Committee concluded that the transition from
PwC to Deloitte had been conducted appropriately
and the interim review work done by Deloitte had
evidenced their understanding of the Group. It was
felt that there has been the appropriate level of
challenge inrelation to the final audit for 2023.

The two main areas of significant risk considered
by the Committee were the capitalisation and
impairment assessment of the CMC Invest UK
intangible asset and management override of
controls. A number of areas of audit focus were
also discussed including the accounting of
intangibles resulting from the migration of ANZ
Bank clients to CMC Invest Australiaand the UK
Banking Surcharge exemption. There was also
material discussion and consequent approval
regarding prior period re-statements for the Group
and Company which the incoming statutory
auditor, Deloitte LLP identified.



Strategic report Governance

Group Risk Committee report

Clare Francis
Independent Non-Executive Director and Chair
of the Group Risk Committee

Members and attendance

Clare Francis o0
Committee Chair

Susanne Chishti 00000

Independent Non-Executive Director

SarahIng 000000

Independent
Non-Executive Director

James Richards 000000

Independent Group Chairman

Paul Wainscott 000000

Independent Non-Executive Director

® Attended meeting
O Didnotattend ameeting held during tenure

Financial statements Shareholder information 0

Dear shareholder,

Havingjoined the Board in December 2022, and taken the role of the Chair of
the Group Risk Committee (the “Committee”) in January 2023, 1 am pleased to
present the Group Risk Committee report for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Theresponsibility for the Group’s Risk Management Framework and
agreeing the appropriate risk appetite sits with the Board. The Committee
assists the Board inits oversight of risk within the Group, with a particular
focus onreviewing and advising the Board on changes to the Group’s risk
appetite, advising onrisk strategy and monitoring the effectiveness of,and
improvements being made to, the Group's Risk Management Framework.
The Committee ensures that a robust risk culture continues to be embedded
across the business and actively monitors and discusses the latest risk and
regulatory developments affecting the Group.

The Group's approach to risk management and how it evaluates and
manages the principal risks and uncertainties the Group faces are set out
within the risk management section of the Strategic report as detailed on
pages67t073.

The Committee has considered the potentialimpacts of challenges arising from
the external environment on the business, including geopolitical events, increasing
inflationary pressures andinterest rates and recent volatility in financial markets. It
has discussed with managementits responses to these challenges and, although
ongoing vigilance isimportant, the Committee is cautiously optimistic about the
Group's abilities to navigate current difficult markets.

Consumer Duty has also been a key focus for the Committee over the
year, following the FCA's publication of its final rules intended to set higher
and clearer standards of consumer protection across financial services.
The Committee has received regular updates on the Group’s Consumer
Duty implementation plan and monitored progress of the project to deliver
compliance with obligations.

The Committee has also considered the results of an external review of the
Group’s enterprise risk management (‘ERM”) framework, monitored changes
inthe regulatory landscape and reviewed and made recommendations to

the Boardinrespect of the Group’s Internal Capital and Risk Assessment
("ICARA), Internal Capital and Risk Assessment (Liquidity) (‘ICARA(L)") and
Contingency Funding Plan (“CFP”).

Onbehalf of the Committee, thanks are extended to Clare Salmon, who
stepped down as Committee Chair in July 2022, for her hard work and valued
contributions, and to James Richards for acting as Interim Committee Chair
until January 2023.

Principal responsibilities of the Group Risk Committee

The Committee assists the Board inits oversight of risk within the Group, with
particular focus on the Group's risk appetite, risk profile and the effectiveness
of the Group's Risk Management Framework.

The key responsibilities of the Committee include:
— monitoring the Group’s risk appetite, tolerance and strategy;

— review and recommendation of the Risk Appetite Statement and Risk
Management Framework;

— provision of advice and recommendations to the Board to assist in Board
decision makinginrelation to risk appetite and risk management;

— oversight of financial and liquidity risks including the responsibilities of the
risk management functions;

— review, challenge and recommendation to the Board withregard to the
GroupICARA,ICARA(L) and CFP;

— oversight of,and recommendations to the Board on, current risk exposures
and futurerisk strategy;
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Group Risk Committee report continued

Principal responsibilities of the Group Risk Committee
continued

— consideration of the Group's principal and emerging risks and related
disclosuresinthe Annual Report and Financial Statements, including
the risk and opportunities arising from climate change disclosedinthe
TCFD statement;

— review of the risks associated with proposed strategic transactions;
— approval of the annualrisk plan;
— consideration of the Group's compliance framework;

— review of risk taking by Directors and senior management as itimpacts their
remunerationincentives; and

— consideration of the Group's compliance with regulations and how
management acts onany new obligations.

The Committee’s terms of reference can be found on the Group's website
(www.cmemarkets.com/group/committees/).

Composition and attendance

The Committee is chaired by Clare Francis (from the conclusion of the
Committee meeting on 19 January 2023) with James Richards, Susanne
Chishti (from1June 2022), Sarah Ing and Paul Wainscott as members, all of
whom are considered independent. Clare Salmon was Committee Chair
until 28 July 2022. Thereafter James Richards stepped into the role of Interim
Committee Chair until Clare Francis stepped into the role, following a period
of handover.

The Committee met six times during the year under review and attendance for
the membersis shown onpage 79.

The Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer,Head of Asia Pacific & Canada, Chief Risk Officer,and Company
Secretary attend Committee meetings by standinginvitation. Representatives
from other areas of the business attend the Committee meetings by invitation
as appropriate to the matter under consideration. The Committee Chair

also holds regular individual meetings with the Chief Risk Officer, Heads of
Compliance, the Company Secretary and other relevant members of the
executive and senior management teams. During the year the Committee
Chair also met with Grant Thornton UK LLP, to which third-line internal audit
services are outsourced, and the external auditor, Deloitte LLP.

Operation of the Committee

Anannual Committee calendar is maintained, which is aligned with the
Committee’s terms of reference. The Chair of the Committee is supportedin
preparing meeting agendas by the Company Secretary and Chief Risk Officer.

Following each Committee meeting, the Committee Chair reports to the
Board onits proceedings and the matters withinits duties and responsibilities,
and makes recommendations to the Board and to other Board Committees,
asappropriate.

At management level, the Group has established an Executive Risk
Committee ("ERC”) within the Group’s governance framework as part of

our continuous improvement of the risk management process. Reporting to
the Executive Committee, the purpose of the ERC is to assist the Executive
Directors and the Chief Risk Officer inidentifying and synthesising the Group’s
risks. These risks are then presented to the Committee for review by the Chief
Risk Officer, as second line of defence, and the Executive Directors, as firstline
of defence.
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Main activities during the financial year

During the year, the Committee’s key activities included:

May 2022

— Review and recommendation of Risk Appetite Statement
and Risk Management Framework.

— Robust assessment of the Group's principal and
emerging risks.

— Annual review of effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems.

— Review of Annual Report and Accounts risk disclosures.

— Update onannualrisk plan.

July 2022

Update on actions following the Group Governance Review
inrelationtorisk.

Review of the potentialimpact and measures takenin
respect of the Ukraine conflict.

Consideration of Consumer Duty implementation programme.

Review of the Contingency Funding Plan.

September 2022

— Review and recommendation of Group internal capital and
risk assessment.

— Review of annual notional position limits summary report.

— Consideration of management’s assessment of the impact
onthe businessidentified as part of the Consumer Duty
implementation programme.

November 2022

— Update on ERM framework review.

— Review and recommendation of principal andrisks for the
half year.

January 2023

— Received the final ERM framework review report.

— Consideration of Consumer Duty implementation programme.

March 2023

— Update on ERM framework review.

— Pre-year-end discussion of principal and emerging risks.
— Update on Consumer Duty implementation programme.
— Review of proposed Committee annual planner.

— Consideration of lessons learnt from market turmoil in
March 2023 and a programme of planned actions for further
enhancement of processes.
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Group Governance Review

Asdisclosedinlast year's report, following the Group Governance Review
undertaken by Independent Audit Limitedin 2021, which included areview
of the Group's risk management systems, several recommendations were
made inrespect of the Group's risk oversight, information and governance
framework. Work has continued during the year to address the topics raised
by the Governance Review, and the Board additionally commissioned

an external assessment of the Group’s ERM framework. The Committee
continues to encourage the enhancement of the Group's risk framework,
aligned to the scale and complexity of a Group of our size. The findings of
the review were reported to the Committee in January 2023 and whilst

it was highlighted that our ERM was comparable to our peers, several
recommendations were made which built on the themes arising from the
Governance Review.

The main areas of focus include:
— continued evolution of the Group’s governance structure;

— further development and embedding of the three lines of defence model
and associated processes and reporting frameworks;

— enhancement of risk identification, assessment and reporting techniques
with consideration to be given to the implementation of a Group
governance, risk and compliance tool to support the creation of a single
source for risk data, risk events andissues, risk appetite monitoring and
reporting; and

— promotion of risk culture as an underpin to the delivery of the Group strategy.

The Committee has discussed these areas of focus and management’s action
planonhow it proposes to address them and will be kept abreast of progress.

Risk appetite and exposure

As part ofits oversight of current risk exposures and future risk appetite and
strategy, the Committee reviews the risks associated with proposed strategic
transactions and the effectiveness of risk mitigation and monitoring processes.

Throughout the year the Committee has monitored the Group's top risks
and emerging risks. The Committee routinely invites members of the senior
management team to present an overview of the risk management practice
andreceives updates onkey issues. In the financial year ended 31March
2023 the Committee specifically discussed people risk, project delivery risk,
cyber risk and regulatory risk. The Committee reviewed proposed changes
to the Group risk appetite statement and Risk Management Framework

and made recommendations for Board approval of both documents. The
Committee recommended the Group's ICARA, ICARA(L) and CFP to the
Board for approval.

Risk management and internal controls

The Group continues to invest inrisk management systems and internal
controls and challenges the business to improve and enhance the Risk
Management Framework.

The Committee confirmed at its May 2023 meeting, acting as a Committee

of the Board, that it was satisfied that the Group’s risk management systems
andinternal controls were effective. This assessment was based on feedback
from the Chief Risk Officer, the external and internal auditor and the external
ERMreview.

Financial statements Shareholder information 0

Regulatory compliance

The Committee considers regulatory changes that will have a significant
impact on the Group. Inthe year under review, this included the
implementation of the FCA Consumer Duty and the FCA's Contracts for
Difference strategy.

Priorities for financial year 2023/24

Inthe year ahead the Committee will focus on further enhancing the Group’s
risk management systems and continuing to ensure that a robust risk culture
remains in place across the business. The Committee Chair and new Chief
Risk Officer will play a pivotal role inenhancing our risk and internal control
processes and ensuring that the recommendations of the external report
onthe Group’'s ERM framework are taken forward as appropriate. This will
include the development of how we look at conduct risk as we continue to
work through the implementation of Consumer Duty. The Committee will
undertake deep dives on areas of specific risk to informits deliberations, which
are likely toinclude more detailed consideration of anti-money laundering
processes, operational risk resilience and risks related to climate change, data
privacy/security, new products and fraud, together with the models used to
monitor these.

Itis anticipated that the challenging economic environment, geopolitical
issues and market volatility will continue in the year ahead. The Committee will
remain highly vigilant in monitoring the impact on the Group.

The Committee will continue to take an active role in advising the Board on risk
matters and monitoring the risks associated with regulatory change and the
impact that any changes could have on the Group.

Clare Francis
Independent Non-Executive Director and Chair of the Group Risk Committee
13 June 2023
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Dear shareholder,

lam pleased to present the Nomination Committee (the “Committee”)
report which summarises the work of the Committee during the year ended
31March2023.

Throughout this period the Committee has continued its review of the
composition of the Board and succession planning at both Board and senior
management level, with changes made which will support the growth of the
business and strengthen our controls and risk processes.

Further information on our activities and our priorities for the next year are
provided on the following pages.

Principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee

The Committee is responsible for keeping under review the composition of
the Board and senior management, succession planning, appointments to the
Board, the Board evaluation process, and the Group's People Strategy.

Key roles and responsibilities of the Committee include:

— toevaluate and review the structure, size and composition of the Board
including the balance of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of the
Board and keep under review the leadership needs of the Company to
ensure its continued ability to compete effectively in the marketplace;

— toensure plans arein place for both an orderly and emergency succession
inrelation to the Board and senior management and oversee the
development of adiverse pipeline for succession, taking into account
the challenges and opportunities facing the Company and the skills and
expertise needed in the future;

— toidentify and nominate suitable candidates for appointment to the Board
including evaluating the balance of skills, knowledge and diversity on the Board
and preparing adescription of the role required for a particular appointment;

— tooversee the Board evaluation process and, in analysing the results of
the evaluation, identify whether there are any skill gaps or opportunities to
strengthen the Board;

— toassessthe Board Directors’ conflicts of interest;

— toassessandkeep under review the independence, time commitment and
engagement of each of the Non-Executive Directors; and

— tooverseethe Group's People Strategy including talent management,
diversity andinclusion and workforce engagement.

The Committee’s full terms of reference are available on the Group’s website:
www.cmcmarkets.com/group/committees.
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Composition and attendance

The Committee is chaired by James Richards with Susanne Chishti (from
1June 2022), Clare Francis (from 19 December 2022), Sarah Ing and Paul
Wainscott as members. All of the Committee’'s members are considered
independent Non-Executive Directors, including the Chairman.

The Committee met six times during the year under review and attendance
levels for the members is shown on page 79. In addition to the members of the
Committee, the Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Human Resources attend
by invitation when itis considered appropriate.

Board appointments

The Committee leads the process to consider Board appointments and
makes recommendations to the Board once appropriate candidates have
been found. The Committee will review the process for recruitment, including
whether an external search agency will be used, the role specification and
capabilities required for the role (taking into account the current balance of
skills and experience on the Board) and potential candidates both inside and
outside the organisation, ensuring a diverse pool of candidates is considered.
The Committee willalso manage the structure of the interview process,
referencing requirements and engagement with the Board and other Board
Committees as appropriate.

During the period, the Committee recommended and the Board approved the
appointment of Susanne Chishti with effect from 1June 2022, which appointment
was subsequently approved by shareholders at the 2022 AGM. Susanne
also joined the Audit, Nomination, Remuneration and Risk Committees and
has been appointed as the Non-Executive Director (‘NED”) for workforce
engagement for the Group. Susanne brings extensive fintech knowledge
alongside expertise in technology driven innovation which will be highly
beneficial as the Group continues to developits strategy and enhance its
offering to clients.

As aresult of Clare Salmon’s decision to step down from the Board at the
conclusion of the 2022 Annual General Meeting (‘AGM”), and consequently
as Chair of the Risk Committee, the Committee instigated the process to find
asuccessor. The search focused on seeking someone with risk management
and financial services experience. The Inzito Partnership, which has no
connection withthe Group or individual Directors, was appointed to assist with
the search for candidates. Clare Francis was identified as a suitable candidate
and following aninterview with the Chairman and the Senior Independent
Director, she was invited to meet the rest of the Board prior to the Committee
considering any recommendation being made to the Board. Following

this process, the Committee recommended and the Board approved the
appointment of Clare Francis with effect from 19 December 2022. Clare also
became Chair of the Group Risk Committee, the Consumer Duty Champion
for the Group and amember of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration
Committees. From her senior executive experience in the UK banking
industry, Clare brings extensive knowledge of risk management frameworks
and financial services to CMC. Shareholders will be asked to approve her
appointment at the 2023 AGM.

Shareholders have the opportunity to annually vote on resolutions proposing
each Director for re-election (or electionif they have joined the Board since
the last AGM) at the AGM. Details of the Directors standing for election/re-
election atthe 2023 AGM are included in the notice of AGM, and information
oneach Director’s contribution to the Group isincluded in their biography
onpages 76 to 78 of thisreport. The Committee considers whether to
recommend Directors for election or re-election and has done soinrelation to
all Directors standing at the 2023 AGM, including the Chairman who willhave
served nine yearsin April 2024 (see page 84 for more information).
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Main activities during the financial year

Agendas for scheduled Committee meetings are based ona
pre-agreed annual meeting planner to ensure that the Committee
fulfilsits responsibilities in line with its terms of reference and
regulatory obligations.

May 2022

— Consideration of the report on diversity and inclusion.

Considered Non-Executive Director (‘“NED”) recruitment.

Considered NED time commitment and independence.

Determined Directors' eligibility for re-election.

June 2022

— Considered NED recruitment.

September 2022

— Considered the results of the annual employee
engagementsurvey.

— Discussed Group people strategy.
— Received anupdate onNED recruitment.

— Received an update from the Designated NED for workforce
engagement and considered the current engagement
programme.

— Reviewed the Group’s values statement.

November 2022

Received an update from the Designated NED for
workforce engagement.

Reviewed the Board diversity policy.

Discussed NED recruitment.

Received a Consumer Duty update.

January 2023
— Received anupdate on Group People Strategy.

— Considered the annual Board and Committee
evaluation process.

— Reviewed the Committee terms of reference.

Subsequent to the year end the Committee has also considered
aBoard training programme and Board and senior management
succession planning.
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Board evaluation

The Committee is responsible for agreeing the annual Board performance
evaluation process, reviewing its results and reporting on the conclusions and
recommendations to the Board.

Incompliance with the Code, an externally facilitated performance evaluation
of the Board and its Committees is carried out every three years. An externally
facilitated performance evaluation was carried out as part of the Group's
Governance Review in 2021 by Independent Audit Limited, anindependent
external consultant with no other connection with the Company. The next
externally facilitated evaluation is due to be carried outin 2024.

The Committee determined that this year's review would be conducted internally
and led by the Chairman, supported by the Company Secretary. The format
of the process was a questionnaire completed by all Board members seeking
narrative answers on anumber of specific questions relating to the operation
of the Board and its Committees and requesting a written self-evaluation from
each Non-Executive Director.

Based on the responses received, the Company Secretary prepared a

report which was discussed with the Chairman before being presented to

the Committee. The responses received were insightful and provided useful
feedback onthe operation of the Board and its Committees, the topics that
should be a focus for 2024 and how the Board receives information from
management. A number of recommendations were made by the Committee
for consideration by the Board, which will be taken forward over the remainder
of 2023. Notwithstanding these recommendations, it was agreed that the
Board and its Committees were operating effectively.

The Committee discussed the performance and time commitment of each
Non-Executive Director and agreed that they all continued to make the
expected contribution to the Board and its Committees and no concerns were
raised inrelation to their other commitments.

The Senior Independent Director led the Non-Executive Directorsin evaluating
the performance of the Chairman at a meeting of the Nomination Committee
without James Richards present.The Nomination Committee recommended,
and the Board approved, the conclusion that the Chairman continued to
provide exemplary leadership to the Board.

People strategy

The Committee has worked closely with the Executives to consider the
Group's People Strategy, whichis designed to align with the Group’s overall
strategy, purpose and values and also has due regard to the environmental,
socialand governance initiatives being undertaken by the Group and
matters raised by employees. There was a focus on ensuring that CMCis
aplace where people want to work, with career progression and a good
working environment.

The Committee regularly receives updates from Susanne Chishtiregarding
her activities as the NED for workforce engagement, and discusses the results
and key themes arising from various employee engagement and “pulse”
surveys that have taken place throughout the year. The main areas of focus
highlighted as a result of employee engagement activities that have taken
place across the business are included in the corporate governance section
onpage 86.

The Committee continues to believe that the engagement methods used to
ensure that the Board is aware of the views of the wider workforce is effective
but does keep this under review and will seek to adapt it and include additional
engagement methodsiif it feels appropriate.
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Succession planning

The Board considers succession planning at least annually, including the
tenure of Non-Executive Directors, the developing needs of the business and
any skills gaps to be filled in both the short and long term.

The Committee also considers the senior management team succession
plan periodically, taking into account the opportunities and challenges facing
the Group and the skills, experience and knowledge that willbe neededin
thefuture.

Succession planning willbe a key focus over the course of the remainder of
2023, withan emphasis onimproving diversity in our pipeline.

The Committee metin May 2023 without James Richards in attendance to
discuss the succession of the Chairman, who willhave served nine yearsin
April 2024. Out of those nine years, he served two years nine months as a
Non-Executive Director and will have served six years and three months as
Chairman. The Committee recommended to the Board, whichin turn has
recommended to shareholders, the re-election of James at the 2023 AGM,
notwithstanding that his nine year tenure expires ahead of the 2024 AGM.
More information on the Company’s plans beyond thisisincludedin the
Governance sectionon page 84.

Diversity, equity and inclusion

The Committee recognises the benefits of diversity, equity and inclusion
("DE&I"). The CMC Markets plc Board diversity policy recognises the benefits
of having a diverse senior management team and sees increasing diversity
atasenior level as an essential element in maintaining an effective Board.

Our policyis to ensure that there is broad experience and diversity on the
Board. We consider diversity to include age, ethnicity, disability, gender, sexual
orientation and socio-economic and geographic backgrounds. Appointments
tothe Board are made on merit, in the context of complimenting and
expanding the skills, knowledge and experience of the Board as a whole.

The Committee reviews and assesses Board composition on behalf of

the Board and recommends the appointment of new directors. The
Nomination Committee also oversees the conduct of the annual review of Board
effectiveness.

Inorder to maintain an appropriate range and balance of skills, experience and
background on the Board, the Nomination Committee considers the benefits
of allaspects of diversity including, but not limited to, those described above.

Inidentifying suitable candidates for appointment to the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider candidates against objective criteria with due regard
for the benefits of the herein mentioned attributes and diversity on the Board.

As part of the annual performance evaluation of the effectiveness of the
Board, Committees and individual Directors, the Nomination Committee
considers the balance of skills, experience, independence and knowledge of
the CMC Group on the Board, and the diversity representation on the Board.

The Committee regularly discusses Board, senior management and
workforce diversity and how the Group’s position can be improved. Itis
important that more is done to attract people into the fintech industry early in
their careersin order that our metrics canimprove over the longer term which
willbe of benefit to the Group and its strategy. More information on our DE&I
strategy andinitiatives isincluded in the Sustainability section on page 40.

Ourdisclosures and statement on the diversity of our Board, senior
board positions and executive management in compliance with Listing
Rule 9.8.6R(9) and Listing Rule 14.3.33R (1) (the “New Rules”) are set out
onpage 97
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The New Rules set the following targets:
— atleast40% of the board are women;

— atleastone of the senior board positions (Chair, Chief Executive Officer
("CEQ"), Senior Independent Director (“SID") or Chief Financial Officer
("CFQ”)isawoman);and

— atleastone member of the boardis from a minority ethnic background (which
is defined by reference to the categories recommended by the Office of
National Statistics (‘ONS”) as coming from a non-white ethnic background).

The tables below show the data required to be presented by the New Rules.
This data shows that the Group is not currently in compliance with any of the
requirements. We recognise the importance of diversity and, whilst ensuring
that appointments continued to be based on merit, we gave full and proper
considerationto gender and racial diversity as part of the appointments

we made to the Board during the current financial year. Following these
appointments, 60% of the Non-Executive representation on the Boardis

Diversity data

Diversity databased on sex
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female. Our overall Board diversity is negatively impacted by the fact that we
have four male Executive Directors. We feel we currently have the right people
fulfilling these Executive roles and have to accept the impact on our diversity
statistics of having a larger Executive team than some of our peers when
making comparisons on our progress. Whilst we do not feel it appropriate

to set ourselves goals to comply with these targets at present, as Board
composition should be driven by the specific needs of the Group and any skill
gaps, we continually review our position on this. The Board is committed to
seeking toimprove diversity and will continue to have regard to these matters
as part of our Board and senior management succession planning and
recruitment processes.

Asreferenced in the Sustainability section, we have committed to setting
measurable targets to increase the diversity of the wider workforce which
willhelp create a pipeline toimprove senior executive diversity over time.
Asat 31March 2023, 347 (29%) of our workforce, excluding contractors,
were female.

Number of senior

positions on the Numberin Percentage of

Number of Percentageof  Board (CEO, CFO, executive executive

Board members Board SIDand Chair) management management

Men 6 66.67 4 28 80.00

Women 3 33.33 — 7 20.00

Not specified/prefer not to say — — — — —
Diversity data based on ethnic background

Number of senior

positionsonthe Numberin Percentage of

Number of Board Percentageof  Board (CEO, CFO, executive executive

members Board SIDand Chair) management management

White British or other white (including minority-white groups) 9 100.00 4 14 40.00

Mixed/multiple ethnic groups — — — 1 2.86

Asian/Asian British — — — 1 2.86

Black/African/Caribbean/black British — — — — _

Other ethnic group, including Arab — — — — —

Not specified/prefer not to say — — — 19 54.28

Notes:
1 Alldataisat31March2023.

2 Executive managementis represented by all direct reports of the Executive Directors innon-administrative roles.
3 Datais collected via self-reporting from employees on joining the Group by the completion of a questionnaire asking them to identify against various gender and ethnicity categories.

Priorities for financial year 2023/24

Inthe year ahead the Committee will focus on senior management succession and diversity, the people strategy, ensuring actions arising from the Board
evaluation are appropriately implemented and considering the succession of the Chairman.

60#‘% ﬂ Aol

James Richards
Chairman and Chair of the Nomination Committee
13June 2023
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SarahIng
Independent Non-Executive Director and
Chair of the Group Remuneration Committee

Members and attendance

SarahIng 0000000
Committee Chair

Susanne Chishti 00000

Independent Non-Executive Director

Clare Francis 000

Independent Non-Executive Director

James Richards 0000000

Independent Non-Executive Director

Paul Wainscott 0000000

Independent Non-Executive Director

® Attended meeting
O Did not attend a meeting held during tenure

98- CMC Marketsplc
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2023

Dear shareholder,

As Chair of the Remuneration Committee, |am pleased to present the Directors’
remuneration report for the year ended 31 March 2023. This report comprises three
sections. First, my annual statement as Chair of the Remuneration Committee; second, the
Remuneration Policy which was approved by shareholders at the 2021 Annual General
Meeting ("AGM"); and third the Annual report on remuneration which sets out how the 2021
policy was implemented for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Remunerationinrelation to the year ended 31 March 2023

Throughout the year, the Committee has given careful consideration to remunerationin the
context of the external environment and the Group's performance. The outcomes for the
specific reward elements are as follows:

Base salary - No adjustments were made to the base salaries of the Executive Directors
during the year.

Combined Incentive Plan (“CIP”) Awards - The financial year ended 31 March 2023 was
the fourth year of the implementation of the CIP and the plan was assessed against Group
financial, strategic and individual performance targets, as approved by the Committee
asfollows:

— 60% based on financial performance (earnings per share — threshold 15.4 pence, target
20.7 pence and maximum 25.7 pence);

— 30% based on strategic performance (a detailed disclosure of strategic objectivesis
outlinedinthe table on pages 111and 112);and

— 10% based on achievement of personal and mandatory risk objectives (a detailed
disclosure of personal objectivesis outlined in the table of pages 111and 112).

— Ashighlighted, the Group did not meet its EPS targets with a diluted EPS of 14.6 pence
against a minimum target of 15.4 pence, resulting in no award of this element of the Plan,
i.e.60% of the maximum award.

To determine the overall outcomes under the CIP, the Committee also reviewed individual
Executive Directors’ performance against their strategic and personal objectives which
were set at the beginning of the year. The Committee assessed each Executive Director
against their strategic objectives and determined whether these had been partially met,
significantly met, materially met or met. Further details of the Group's strategy are set outon
pages 24 to 25.

Thisresultedinthe Committee awarding 36% of potential award to the Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ") ; 35% to the Deputy CEQ; 36% to the Chief Financial Officer (‘CFQ”) and
36% to the Head of Asia Pacific & Canada. Further details on how the Executive Directors
performed against their objectives can be found on pages 111and 112.

The Committee has considered the formulaic outcome and determined that it was
appropriate, in light of the holistic performance of the Company and the experience of
shareholders and employees, and that no adjustments needed to be applied.

The 2023 awards comprise a40% cash award and a 60% share award which was changed
to comply with the MIFIDPRU Remuneration code from a 45% cash award and a 55% share
awardin2022.

Inprevious years the CEO has only received the cash element of the Award. In the light of
the new prudential framework for UK MiFID investment companies and the MIFIDPRU
Remuneration Code, his award will now be split between cash and sharesinline with the
other Executive Directors, albeit subject to a maximum award of 135% of salary.

Share Awards will be granted, post the release of the Group's results for the year ending
31March 2023. The share awards will be assessed against a performance underpin after a
further three-year period ending 31 March 2026 and, if the underpinis achieved, continue to
vest until 2028.
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Remunerationin relation to the year ended 31 March 2023
continued

During the year, the Committee assessed the performance underpin for CIP
share awards grantedin 2020 over the three years ending 31 March 2023.
Takinginto account an assessment of factors such as the Company'’s Total
Shareholder Return (“TSR”) performance, aggregate profit levels and any
regulatory breaches over this period, the Committee determined that it was
appropriate to allow these shares to vest without any further adjustment.

Remunerationin relation to 2024

The Committee has decided to make salary adjustments for David Fineberg
and Matthew Lewis of 4.5% with effect from1June 2023. This adjustment is
below the average increase for the wider workforce of 5%. The Committee
decided not to adjust the salary for Peter Cruddas this year.

Euan Marshall was appointed to the role of CFO inlate 2019. At that time his
remuneration arrangements were positioned relatively low compared to
market levels for comparable roles taking into account the promotion and

the developmental nature of his appointment. At that time the Committee
committed to continue to review positioning as he gained greater experience
inthe role. With effect from 1June 2023, the Committee has decided to apply
aone-off adjustment to his base salary level from £250,000 to £300,000 to
reflect his significant development inthe role and contribution. It is anticipated
that future salary increases will generally be no greater than those for the
wider workforce. Inrespect of the coming year, his CIP maximum opportunity
will also be aligned to the 300% of base salary that is applicable for the Deputy
CEO and Head of Asia Pacific & Canada.

The Committee proposes to continue to use Group financial, strategic and
individual performance against targets for the 2024 financial year as the
basis on which the combined incentive willbe awarded. The performance
measures applied to the CIP will be:

— 60% financial performance;
— 30% strategic performance;and
— 10% personal objectives.

Inrelation to the financial target, the Committee has ensured that a sufficiently
stretching range has been set by taking account of anumber of internal and
external reference points and the impact of regulatory change. The target
range is considered commercially sensitive and so will be disclosed in next
year's Annual Report. With regard to the strategic and personal objectives,
these willbe evaluated based on quantitative measurable objectivesin the
significant majority of cases. Again, these are considered commercially
sensitive so detailed disclosure of these quantitative performance measures
and associated outcomes will be included in the 2024 Annual Report and
Financial Statements.

Inorder to comply with the MIFIDPRU Remuneration Code, CIP awards willbe
made 40% in cash and 60% in shares. The remuneration policy operated as
intended throughout the period.

Financial statements Shareholder information 0

Engagement with stakeholders

The Committee takes into consideration the guidelines of investor bodies
and shareholder views when determining remuneration and welcomes
feedback. We undertook an extensive consultation with our key institutional
shareholders and main proxy advisory bodies on the proposed 2021
Remuneration Policy and the comments we received inrelation to key
elements of the policy such as pension alignment and post-employment
shareholder guidelines have helped shape the final policy approved at the
2021 AGM. This year we have not undertaken a formal consultation exercise
but continue to welcome constructive engagement with our shareholders.
The Remuneration Policy will again be put to shareholders at the AGMin 2024
and the Committee intends to engage with our shareholdersinthe coming
year as part of areview of our arrangements.

Workforce remuneration and engagement

The Committeeis responsible for reviewing the Group’s wider employee
remuneration policies and how reward aligns to the culture of the Group.
During the year, the Committee discussed the bonus allocation and salary
reviews for the wider workforce, reviewed and agreed the Group’s approach
tolong-termincentives beyond the Executive Directors, reviewed the Group’s
gender pay gap data and the steps that could be taken to close the existing
gap, and discussed the operation of and participationin the Group's all-
employee share plan.

During the year, allemployees have been given the opportunity to participate
in our twice-yearly engagement surveys and provide feedback on all topics,
including remuneration. In addition, the Committee has received an update
on theinitiatives we have undertakento support and develop employees and
managers throughout the year. Susanne Chishtiis the designated Non-
Executive Director with responsibility to engage and oversee engagement
with our employees and more detail on her activitiesisincluded in the
Nomination Committee report on page 84.

I hope you find this report provides a clear understanding of the Committee’s
approach to remuneration and that you will be supportive of the resolutions
relating toremuneration at the 2023 AGM.

SarahlIng

Independent Non-Executive Director and Chair of the Remuneration
Committee

13June 2023
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy

This policy was reviewed in 2021and approved by shareholders at the AGM held on 29 July 2021. The policy as approved can be viewed on the Company’s
website at https://www.cmcmarketsplc.com/investors/.

Policy table
The below table summarises the key components of the Remuneration Policy for the Executive Directors.
Purpose andlink to strategy Operation Maximum opportunity Performance measures
Base salary The policy is for base salary to be competitive. Executive Director salary increaseswill  Business performance
Toreflect the market value Inmaking this assessment the Committee has normally beinline with those awardedto  isconsideredinany
of the role andindividual's regard for: the wider employee population. adjustment tobase salary.
experlenge, rgspon&blllty — theindividual'srole, responsibilities Increases may be above this level if
and contribution. ) . . . :
and experience; (i) thereis anincrease in scale, scope

or market comparability of the role
and/or (i) where an Executive Director
has been promoted or has had achange
— salarylevels for similar roles at inresponsibilities.

relevant comparators; and

— business performance and the
external economic environment;

Where increases are awarded in excess
— salaryincreasesacross the Group of the wider employee population, the
payableincash. Committee will provide an explanationin

) ) N therelevant year's Remuneration report.
Salaries are reviewed on an annual basis, with any

increase normally taking effect from1June.

Pension Executive Directors participate in adefined Aligned to the allemployee maximum Not applicable.
To provide competitive contribution pension scheme ormay receiveacash employer contribution level, which
retirement benefits. allowanceinlieu. is currently 7%in the UK and 9.5%

inAustralia. Thisisinalignment with
Provision 38 of the UK Corporate

Governance Code.
Share Incentive Plan (“SIP”) Inline with HMRC rules, Executive Directors are Inline with HMRC permitted limits. Not applicable.
Toencourage broad employee entitled to participate in the SIP on the same terms
share ownership. as other employees.
Benefits Benefits include life insurance, permanent health Benefits may vary by roleandindividual ~ Notapplicable.
To provide market insurance, private medicalinsurance, dental circumstancesandare reviewed periodically
competitive benefits. insurance, health screening/assessment, critical toensure they remain competitive.

illnessinsurance, interest-free season ticket loans,
gymmembership, eye tests, cycle to work, childcare
vouchers, dining card, travel insurance and club
membership.

The maximum value of the benefitsis
unlikely to exceed 10% of salary.

Where appropriate, other benefits may be offered
including, but not limited to, allowances for
relocation and other expatriate benefits to perform
hisor herrole.
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy continued

Policy table continued

Purpose and link to strategy

Operation

Financial statements

Maximum opportunity

Shareholder information

0

Performance measures

Combined incentive plan
(CIP)

Toensure thatincentives
arefully aligned tothe
Group's strategy.

The value of an award will be determined based on
performance achieved in the previous financial year
against defined financial and strategic targets.

Performance conditions and targets are reviewed
prior to the start of the year to ensure they are
appropriate and stretching and reinforce the
business strategy. At the end of the year the
Committee determines the extent to whichthese
were achieved.

The award willbe delivered as follows:

Cashaward: 40% of the award will be settled in cash
as soon as practicable following the financial year.

Deferred Shares: 60% of the award will be deferred
into shares for up to five years following the financial
year. This portion of the award will vest subject to the
achievement of a three-year performance underpin
toensure the deferred portion of the awardis
warranted based on sustained success.

Subject to the achievement of the performance
underpin and continued service, the Deferred Share
portion of the award will vest over a period of at least
five years.For 2022/23, itis anticipated this will be
as follows, although the Committee will continue to
monitor both market and regulatory developments
inrespect of vesting and holding periods and may
for future awards adjust the vesting schedule:

— 40% after three years;'
— 30%after four years;'and
— 30% after five years.

The Combined Incentive awards are discretionary.
Dividend equivalents may accrue on the Deferred
Share portion of the award and be paid on those
shares that vest.

Awards under the CIP are non-pensionable and
are subject to malus and clawback for a seven-year
period from grant in the event of a material financial
misstatement, gross misconduct, calculation error,
failure of risk management, material reputational
damage or any other circumstance the Committee
considers appropriate.

1 4,5and6yearsintotal respectively allowing for the one-year
performance period to determine the deferred award amount

Participantsin the CIP willinclude the
Executive Directors.

Executive Directors (excluding CEQ):
Awards may be up to 300% of salary
delivered asfollows:

— cashaward: 135% salary (120% of
salary from 2023); and

— Deferred Shares 165% salary (180%
from 2023).

Current CEO:

Inrespect of the current CEO,

Peter Cruddas, awards may be made
only up to 135% of salary. From 2023 40%
of the award willbe made incash and
60% deferredinto shares.

Performanceis assessed
against Group and individual
performance measures as
considered appropriate by the
Committee.

Financial performance will
account for atleast 60% of an
award. For this portion, 25%
of the maximum would be
payable for performance at
Threshold level and 50% for
Target performance.

Itis anticipated that the
performance measures
appliedin 2022/23 willbe:

— 60% financial:based on
achievement of absolute
earnings per share targets;

— 30% strategic:based onthe
achievement of measurable
objectives against targets
relating to strategic
business development
milestones; and

— 10% personal objectives.

The Deferred Share

portion will vest subject to
aperformance underpin
measured over a period of at
least three years starting from
the end of the year used to
determine the amount of the
award. The Committee will
review Group performance
over the relevant period, taking
into account factors such

as, a) the Company’s TSR
performance, b) aggregate
profitlevels and c) any
regulatory breaches duringthe
period or any other such factor
that the Committee considers
appropriate which may include
personal performance of the
relevant Executive Director.
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy continued
Policy table continued

Purpose and link to strategy Operation Maximum opportunity Performance measures

2015 Management Inrespect of Executive Directors, LTIPawardsmay  125% of salary innormal circumstances ~ Awards will generally vest
Equity Plan (“LTIP”) only be granted by the Remuneration Committeeto  andup to 200% of salary inexceptional  subject to the Company’s
Toreinforce delivery facilitate external recruitment—i.e.tobeusedasthe  circumstances oranequivalent performance and continued
of sustained long-term vehicle for buying outincentive awards forfeitedon ~ economic value where anawardis a employment.

success, and aligntheinterests leaving a previous employer as per the recruitment  combination of shares and options.

of participants with those of policy set out below. Awards may consist of The Committee has flexibility

) 4 " Vesting for threshold performance toadjustany performance
shareholders. performance shares (nil cost options or conditional . o
; . ) inrespect of any performance share measures and weightings
rights to receive shares) or market value options or ) . .
L awards is up to 25% of maximum. inadvance of each future
acombination of the two.
award cycle toensure
LTIPawards normally vest after three years. they continue to support
The Committee may extend the LTIP time horizon delivery of the Company’s
by introducing a holding period of up to two strategy. Over the term of this
years, or by extending the vesting period, e.g. if policy, performance will be
regulations require. predominantly dependent on
The number of performance shares and/or options financial, and/or share price-
L . related measures.
vesting is dependent on the degree to which any
performance conditions attached to the LTIP award The Committee has flexibility
have been met over the performance period. toadjust downwards the

formulaic outcome based on
its assessment of underlying
performance, and results

Dividend equivalents may accrue on performance
shares and be paid on those shares which vest.

The award levels and performance conditions are being achieved within the
reviewed in advance of grant to ensure they are Company's risk appetite, over
appropriate. the performance period.

Awards under the LTIP are non-pensionable

and are subject to malus and clawback provisions
for aseven-year period from grantin the event of a
material financial misstatement, gross misconduct,
calculation error, failure of risk management, orin
any other circumstance the Committee considers
appropriate.

Notes to the policy table

Inaddition to the elements of remuneration detailed in the policy table, any historical awards or commitments described in this report which were made prior to,
but due to be fulfilled after the approval and implementation of, the Remuneration Policy detailed in this report will be honoured.

Shareholding guidelines

Executive Directors are required to build up a holding of 200% of base annual salary. Executive Directors will be required to build up to this level over a period
of five years, starting from the date of our listing in 2016 for the Executive Directors who were inrole at the time the 2018 Remuneration Policy was approved
and from the date of appointment for any recruits since that time or in future. Executive Directors will be expected to retain at least 50% of shares vesting (net of
tax) until the guideline levelis achieved. For the purposes of satisfying the shareholding requirement, shares held by a connected person (e.g. a spouse) will be
consideredto beincluded.

A post-employment shareholding requirement will apply of 200% of base annual salary (or the actual shareholding at date of exit if lower) for a period of two years
after leaving employment.
Dividend equivalents

Dividend equivalents are payable on the Deferred Share portion of the combined incentive.

Clawback and malus provisions

Awards under the CIP and LTIP will be subject to provisions that allow the Committee to withhold, reduce or require the repayment of awards after vesting if there
is found to have been: (a) material misstatement of the Company’s financial results, (b) gross misconduct onthe part of the award holder, or (c) any other material
event as the Committee considers appropriate.
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy continued

Risk considerations

The Remuneration Policy is also designed to promote sound and effective risk management. The Remuneration Committee reviews and approves the
Remuneration Policy for allemployees, including for Material Risk Takers and senior risk and compliance employees, to help ensure pay arrangements
encourage appropriate behaviour and compliance with the Company’s risk appetite. For example, allemployees receive a salary which reflects their market
value, responsibilities and experience. Anindividual may only receive an annual incentive award if they operate within the risk appetite of the Company and

has demonstrated appropriate behaviour. Key senior managers are eligible for consideration of LTIP awards, with any vesting based on performance over at
least two years. The Committee has flexibility to adjust the formulaic outcome if the Company’s recorded performance is not a genuine reflection of underlying
business performance or if results were not achieved within the Company's risk appetite. CIP awards are subject to malus and clawback for all participants in
various circumstances, including a failure of risk management. The Chief Financial Officer is closely involved in the remuneration process to ensure that both
Remuneration Policy and outcomes reinforce compliance with the Company’s risk appetite, including reporting independently to the Committee at least annually
on compliance with the risk appetite, on any notable risk events and on the behaviour of the Material Risk Takers.

Incentive plan discretions

The Committee will operate the Company’s incentive plans according to their respective rules and the Policy set out above, and in accordance with relevant
financial services regulations, the Listing Rules and HMRC rules where relevant.

Followingamendmentsin 2019 the CIP specifically includes relevant clauses to ensure the Remuneration Committee are able to use their discretion to reduce the
value of a Cash Award or the number of Shares to a Share Award or the extent to which a Share Award will vest, to avoid an otherwise formulaic outcome.

Inline withcommon market practice, the Committee retains discretion as to the operation and administration of these incentive plans, including:

— whoparticipates;

— thetiming of grantand/or payment;

— thessize of anaward and/or payment (within the plan limits approved by shareholders);

— themannerinwhich awards are settled;

— the choice of (and adjustment of) performance measures and targets in accordance with the Remuneration Policy set out above and the rules of each plan;

— inexceptional circumstances, amendment of any performance conditions applying to an award, provided the new performance conditions are considered fair
andreasonable, and are neither materially more nor materially less challenging than the original performance targets when set;

— discretionrelating to the measurement of performance in the event of a variation of share capital, change of control, special dividend, distribution or any other
corporate event which may affect the current or future value of an award;

— determination of agood leaver (in addition to any specified categories) for incentive plan purposes, based on the rules of each plan and the appropriate
treatmentunder the planrules;and

— adjustments required in certain circumstances (e.g. rights issues, share buybacks, special dividends, other corporate events, etc.).

Any use of the above discretions would, where relevant, be explained in the Annual report on remuneration. As appropriate, it might also be the subject of
consultation with the Company’s major shareholders.

Performance measurement selection

The Company’sincentive plans are designed to incentivise the achievement of demanding financial and business-related objectives, using a balance of
measures which could include absolute and relative performance measures, as appropriate, selected to support the Group's key strategic priorities.

The CIPis designed to align the interests of our participants with the longer-terminterests of the Company’s shareholders by rewarding them for delivering
sustained increases in shareholder value, within the Group's risk appetite. CIP performance measures selected reinforce the Group's strategy over the medium
tolong term, and provide a balance of internal and external perspectives. The Committee has selected EPS as the primary measure as this is a widely accepted
measure of bottom-line financial performance and is well aligned with shareholder interests. Performance measures and targets are reviewed by the Committee
ahead of each performance period to ensure they are appropriately stretching and achievable over the performance period.

The CIP strengthens the alignment of pay with the measures of performance that are important in creating value for shareholders and also forms a strong
retention and motivation mechanism for Executives. The performance measures selected are acombination of financial performance, strategic performance
and individual objectives. The achievement of these performance measures will be reviewed by the Committee ahead of any award and the vesting of share
awards willbe subject to the achievement of a performance underpin over the vesting period.
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy continued

Executive Directors’ remuneration scenarios

The charts below provide estimates of the potential future reward opportunity for each of the four Executive Directors, and the implied split between the different
elements of remuneration under three different performance scenarios: “Minimum”, “On target” and “Maximum”.
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Assumptions underlying each element of remuneration are provided in the table below.
Maximum with
Component Minimum Ontarget Maximum share price growth
. Base salar Latestsalar n/a n/a n/a
Fixed y y
Pension Contributionapplies tolatest n/a n/a n/a
salary
Other benefits As presented asasingle n/a n/a n/a
figure onpage 110
Combinedincentive No payment 50% of maximum 100% of maximum 100% of maximum

with50% growthin share
price

The column headed “Maximum with share price growth” is the maximum figure but including share price growth of 50% for any part of the CIP paidin shares.
Otherwise, the projected value of the deferred element of the combined incentive excludes the impact of share price growth and any potential dividend accrual.

Actual remuneration delivered, however, will be influenced by these factors. Deferred awards are subject to continuing employment.
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy continued

Remuneration Policy for new hires
Inthe case of hiring or appointing a new Executive Director, the Committee may make use of all the existing components of remuneration.

The salaries of new appointees will be determined by reference to their role and responsibilities, experience and skills, relevant market data, internal relativities
and their current salaries. New appointees will be eligible to receive a pension contribution or allowance and benefits and participate in the Company’s HMRC
approved all-employee Share Incentive Plan, in line with the Remuneration Policy.

New appointees will be entitled to participate in the CIP, as described in the policy table, with the relevant maximum being pro-rated to reflect the period served.
The Deferred Share portion of a new appointee’s combined incentive award will normally vest on the same terms as other Executive Directors, as describedin the
policy table. Individual objectives will be tailored to the individual's role.

Indetermining appropriate remuneration for a new Executive Director, the Committee will take into consideration all relevant factors (including quantum, nature
of remuneration and the jurisdiction from which the candidate was recruited) to ensure that the remuneration arrangements are appropriate andin the interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The Committee may consider it appropriate to “buy out” incentive arrangements forfeited by an Executive onleaving a
previous employer,and may exercise the discretion available under Listing Rule 9.4.2 if necessary. In doing so, the Committee will ensure that the value of any
buyout will as closely as possible mirror the expected value of awards forgone (taking into account progress against any performance conditions attached), and
take into consideration the timeframe, performance conditions attached and type of award foregone when constructing a buyout award. Buyout awards willbe
subject to continued employment over the performance period.

Incases of appointing anew Executive Director by way of internal promotion, the Remuneration Committee will be consistent with the policy for external
appointees detailed above. Where an individual has contractual commitments made prior to their promotion to Executive Director level, the Company will
continue to honour these arrangements.

Inthe case of hiring or appointing anew Non-Executive Director, the Committee will follow the policy as set out in the table on page 107.

Service contracts

The Executive Directors are employed under contracts of employment with CMC Markets UK plc. The principal terms of the Executive Directors’ service
contracts are as follows:

Notice period from
Executive Director Position Effective date of contract Company Notice period from Director
Peter Cruddas Chief Executive Officer 1February 2016 12 months 12 months
EuanMarshall Chief Financial Officer 1November 2019 6months 6 months
David Fineberg Deputy Chief Executive Officer 1February 2016 6 months 6 months
Matthew Lewis Head of Asia Pacific & Canada 1November 2019 6 months 6months

The terms shownin the table above are in line with the Company policy of operating notice periods of up to nine months in the case of Executive Directors, except
for the CEQ service contract which can have a notice period of up to 12 months. Allemployees including Executive Directors are subject to a six-month probation
period. The contracts have no fixed duration.

Executive Directors’ contracts are available to view at the Company’s registered office.

Letters of appointment are provided to the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors. Non-Executive Directors have letters of appointment which means that
they retire at each AGM and are put up for re-election at the AGM. Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appointment are available to view at the Company’s
registered office.

Non-Executive Directors are all on a three-month notice period, details of the effective date of Non-Executive Directors'letters of appointment are set out below:

Non-Executive Director Date of initial letter Date of latest letter Date of appointment
James Richards 20 October 2014 16 February 2018 1April2015
Sarahing 7 July 2017 7 July 2017 14 September 2017
Clare Salmon! 19 July 2017 19 July 2017 2 October 2017
Paul Wainscott 11Jduly 2017 11July 2017 19 October 2017
Susanne Chishti 1June 2022 1June 2022 1June 2022

Clare Francis 14 December 2022 14 December 2022 19 December 2022

1 Clare Salmonresigned as a Non-Executive Director on 28 July 2022
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy continued
Exit payment policy

The Company considers termination payments on a case-by-case basis, taking into account relevant contractual terms, the circumstances of the termination
and any applicable duty to mitigate. In such an event, the remuneration commitments in respect of Executive Directors’ contracts could amount to salary, benefits
inkind and pension rights during the notice period, together with payment in lieu of any accrued but untaken holiday leave, if applicable.

The Committee would apply general principles of mitigation to any payment made to a departing Executive Director and would honour previous commitments as
appropriate, considering each case on anindividual basis.

The table below summarises how the awards under the Combined Incentive Plan and LTIP are typically treated in different leaver scenarios and on a change of
control. The Committee retains discretion on determining “good leaver” status, but it typically defines a “good leaver” in circumstances such as retirement with
agreement of the Board, ill health, injury or disability, death, statutory redundancy, or part of the business in which the individual is employed or engaged ceases to
be amember of the Group. Final treatment is subject to the Committee’s discretion.

Event Timing of vesting/award Calculation of vesting/payment
“Good leaver” Onnormal vesting date (or earlier Unvested awards vest to the extent that any performance conditions
atthe Committee’s discretion). have been satisfied and are pro-rated to reflect the proportion of the
cIP vesting period served.
“Badleaver” Unvested awards lapse. Unvested awards lapse on cessation of employment.
Change of control' Onthedate of the event. The Committee will determine the level of vesting taking account of

the extent to which performance conditions have been or are likely
to be satisfied and, unless the Committee decides otherwise, the
proportion of the vesting period served.

“Good leaver” Onnormal vesting date (or earlier Unvested awards vest to the extent that any performance conditions
at the Committee’s discretion). have been satisfied and are pro-rated to reflect the proportion of the
LTIP vesting period served.
“Bad leaver” Unvested awards lapse. Unvested awards lapse on cessation of employment.
Change of control' Onthe date of the event. The Committee will determine the level of vesting taking account of

the extent to which performance conditions have been or are likely
to be satisfied and, unless the Committee decides otherwise, the
proportion of the vesting period served.

1 Incertaincircumstances, the Committee may determine that any Deferred Share awards under the annual incentive and both unvested and any deferred awards under the LTIP and CIP willnot vestona
change of controland instead be replaced by an equivalent grant of anew award, as determined by the Committee, in the new company.

Upon exit or change of control, SIP awards will be treated in line with the approved planrules.

If employment s terminated by the Company, the departing Executive Director may have a legal entitlement (under statute or otherwise) to additional amounts,
which would need to be met. In addition, the Committee retains discretion to settle other amounts reasonably due to the Executive Director, for example to
meet the legal fees incurred by the Executive Director in connection with the termination of employment, where the Company wishes to enter into a settlement
agreement (as provided for below) and, in which case, the individual is required to seek independent legal advice.

In certain circumstances, the Committee may approve new contractual arrangements with departing Executive Directors including (but not limited to) settlement,
confidentiality, restrictive covenants and/or consultancy arrangements. These will be used sparingly and only entered into where the Committee believes that itis
inthe bestinterests of the Company and its shareholders to do so.

Consideration of conditions elsewhere in the Group

In making remuneration decisions, the Committee takes into account the pay and employment conditions of employees across the Group. In particular, the
Committee considers the range of base pay increases across the Company as a factor in determining the base salary increases for Executive Directors. The
Committee does not consult with employees on the Executive Directors’ Remuneration Policy nor does it use any remuneration comparison measurements.

Remuneration Policy for other employees

CMC Markets' approach to annual salary reviews is consistent across the Group. Allemployees are eligible to participate in the annual incentive award scheme
oranequivalent scheme, with targets appropriate to their organisational level and business area. Key senior managers are also eligible for LTIP awards to further
support long-term alignment with shareholder interests.
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy continued

Consideration of shareholder views

The Committee is committed to an ongoing dialogue on Directors’ remuneration. It is the Remuneration Committee’s intention to consult with major shareholders
prior to any major changes to its Remuneration Policy.

Group’s Remuneration Policy for Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

The Board determines the Remuneration Policy and level of fees for the Non-Executive Directors, within the limits set out in the Articles of Association. The
Remuneration Committee recommends the Remuneration Policy and level of fees for the Chairman of the Board. The Group's policy is:

Purpose andlink to strategy Operation Maximum opportunity Performance measures
Fees Annual fee for the Chairman Feeincreases are appliedinline withthe Not applicable.
Toattract suitable Annual base fee for the Non-Executive Directors. outcome of the review.
individuals with a broad Additional fees are paid to Non-Executive Directors . .
range of experience for additional services such as chairinga Board Aggregatefees willnot exceed the fimit

. . : ’ approved by shareholdersin the Articles of
and skillsto oversee Committee, performing the role of Senior Independent PP Y

shareholders’interestsand  Director, etc. Association whichis currently £750,000.

Company strategy. Fees are
set to reflect market value of
therole and the individual's

Feesare reviewed from time to time taking into account
time commitment, responsibilities, and fees paid
by companies of a similar size and complexity. Fee

time commitment, ) o .
. increases are applied in line with the outcome of
responsibility, performance .
e thereview.
and contribution.
Expenses

The Company may reimburse NEDs in cash for
reasonable expenses (including any tax due thereon)
incurredin carrying out their role.

Minor changes

The Committee may make minor amendments to the Policy set out above (for regulatory, exchange control, tax or administrative purposes or to take account of a
change inlegislation) without requiring prior shareholder approval for that amendment.

Annual report on remuneration
Principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee

The Committee is responsible for determining the Remuneration Policy for the Executive Directors and ensuring that incentive payments are aligned to the
Company'’s purpose, values and strategy in order to promote long-term sustainable success. The Committee is also responsible for setting the remuneration
of the Chairman of the Board, members of the Senior Leadership Team, including the Company Secretary, and overseeing the remuneration framework

and practices for the wider workforce.

The mainrole andresponsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are:
— toreview and agree appropriate Remuneration Policies which comply with all relevant regulations;
— toreview and determine the remuneration of the Executive Directors and the senior management team having regard to remuneration of the wider CMC workforce;

— toreview and ensure thatincentive payments to Executive Directors are linked to the achievement of stretching financial performance and both strategic and
individual agreed objectives;

— toensure that remuneration incentivises and retains key employees including the Executive Directors and senior management;
— toensure that Executive remunerationis linked to the delivery of the long-term success of the Company;

— have oversight of the operation of remuneration arrangements across the CMC Group through regular review of “management” information including gender
related data;

— toreview any major changes to employee benefit structures, including new share schemes, and ensure that shareholders are consulted, and the required
approval processes followed;

— toreview the appropriateness of remuneration against the risk management strategy following advice from the Group Risk Committee; and

— toensureallrelevant regulations relating to Executive Director remuneration are adhered to.
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Committee composition, attendance and advisers

The Committee is chaired by Sarah Ing with James Richards, Paul Wainscott, Susanne Chishti (from 1June 2022), and Clare Francis (from 19 December 2022) as
members, all of who are considered independent. Clare Salmon served on the Committee until 28 July 2022.

The Committee held seven scheduled meetings in the financial year, attendance by Committee membersis shown on page 79.

During the year, the Committee was advised by independent remuneration consultants Willis Towers Watson (“WTW”) on various remuneration matters
including providing advice on all elements of remuneration for the Executive Directors, the Remuneration Policy and best-practice and market updates. WTW
isamember of the Remuneration Consultants Group (‘RCG”) andis a signatory to the RCG's Code of Conduct. It was confirmed that none of the Committee
members had any connection or conflicts of interestin regard to this appointment. Additional legal advice was sought from Tapestry Compliance Limitedin
respect of the Group’s share-based plans.

The Chief Executive Officer, Deputy CEO, Chief Financial Officer and Head of Asia Pacific & Canada attend Committee meetings by invitation but do not attend to
take partin any discussions relating to their own remuneration. The Head of HR attends Committee meetings where appropriate to the matters being considered
including both Executive and wider workforce remuneration. No Director or employee is involved in discussions regarding their own pay.

Main activities during the financial year

May 2022
— Overview of corporate salary review andbonus
allocation for 2022

— Consideration of CIP and MEP performance conditions

July 2022
— Senior management performance and consideration of — Approving the grant and vesting of Incentive schemes
LTIPawards
— Approving 2023/24 Executive Director performance
— Reviewing the draft Directors' Remuneration Report objectives

— Consideration of Executive Director performance and CIP awards

— Indicative vesting of 2020 MEP awards

November 2022
— Criteria for and identification of material risk takers — Approving senior management performance
— Review of the Committee’s terms of reference objectives 2023/24
- Implications of the IFPR on the CEO’s remuneration and, in - Receivingan update onmarketand governance
particular, the split of his CIP awards between cash and shares developments

— Considering diversity and inclusion targets

January 2023 — Approving 2023/24 CEO performance objectives
— Considering the CEO performance objectives

— Receiving H12023 performance management update
— Approving the Group remuneration policy

— Approving the re-appointment of remuneration consultants
— Consideration of the CIP performance underpin

— Consideration of remuneration matters arising from senior

hires and exits Febuary 2023
- Receiving a progress update on Diversity & Inclusion - Discussing the CIP performance underpin

progress update — Considering LTIP vesting performance conditions and

vesting structure
— Discussing indicative performance review ratings for business

March 2023 teams/senior staff
— Consideration of fair pay analysis and gender pay i i '

reporting 2022/23 — Approving the Group remuneration policy

— Discussion of the proposed bonus pool for 2023 and corporate
salary review

— Discussion on Executive Director performance
— Consideration of CIP performance underpin

— Review of Committee’s annual calendar
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Compliance with the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code

The Committee considers the Remuneration Policy and current practices to address the requirements contained within Provision 40 of the Code. As notedinthe
Committee Chair's statement, Susanne Chishtiis the designated Non-Executive Director for engaging with the workforce on a variety of topics including remuneration.

Provision

How addressed

Clarity — remuneration arrangements should be transparent
and promote effective engagement with shareholders and
the workforce.

The Remuneration Policy is clearly disclosed in this report and the Committee has proactively
engaged with key institutional shareholders as part of the renewal process. The Committee
receives regular updates on market practice and has received updates on pay within the
wider workforce.

Simplicity —remuneration structures should avoid complexity
and their rationale and operation should be easy to understand.

The Committee aims for our arrangements to be as simple as possible by, for example,
operating asingle combined incentive arrangement. Our aimis for disclosure in this report to
be easy to understand for our stakeholders.

Risk —remuneration arrangements should ensure reputational
and other risks from excessive rewards, and behavioural risks
that can arise from target-based incentive plans, are identified
and mitigated.

The Company's discretionary incentive plans ensure the Committee has discretionto reduce
the size of awards and awards are subject to malus and clawback provisions. The Committee
has discretion to adjust formulaic outcomes if it does not consider them appropriate (see
policy pages 100 to107).

Predictability — the range of possible reward values to individual
Directors and any other limits or discretions should be identified
and explained at the time of approving the policy.

Scenario charts for all Executive Directors are included in the Remuneration Policy and show
estimates of potential future reward opportunity and the implied split between the different
elements of remuneration under three different performance scenarios. The policy includes
an explanation of the discretions that can be exercised by the Committee.

Proportionality — the range of possible reward outcomes,
the delivery of strategy and the long-term performance of
the Company should be clear. Outcomes should not reward
poor performance.

Asignificant part of an Executive’'s rewardis linked to performance with a clear line of sight
between business performance and the delivery of shareholder value.

Alignment to culture —incentive schemes should drive
behaviours consistent with Company purpose, values
and strategy.

The incentive arrangements and the performance measures used are strongly aligned to
those that the Board considers when determining the success of the implementation of the
Company's strategy. Please see pages 24 to 28 of this report for more information onthe
Company’s strategy and key performance indicators.

The Remuneration Policy operated as intended in the year ending 31 March 2023 and the following section sets out the remuneration arrangements and
outcomes for the year ended 31 March 2023, and how the Committee intends the Remuneration Policy to apply during the year ending 31 March 2024.

The following pages have been prepared in accordance with Part 3 of The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 (as amended) and Rules 9.8.6 and 9.8.8 of the Listing Rules. The Directors’ remuneration report, excluding the Remuneration Policy, will be put
toanadvisory shareholder vote at the Annual General Meeting on 27 July 2023.
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Annual report on remuneration continued
Single total figure of Executive Director remuneration (audited)

The table below sets out the single total figure of the remuneration received by each Executive Director who served during the years ending 31March 2022 and 31
March2023.

Totalfixed Annual Long-term Total variable
Year ended Salary Benefits' Pension* Other®  remuneration incentives? incentives®  remuneration Total

Name 31March £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £°000

2023 700.0 3.0 —_ —_ 703.0 137.6 - 137.6 840.6
Peter Cruddas”

2022 700.0 30 — — 703.0 155.2 — 155.2 858.2

2023 350.0 17 30.8 1.8 384.3 148.2 159.2 307.4 691.7
David Fineberg

2022 350.0 17 24.5 18 378.0 165.4 926.5 1,091.9 1,469.9

2023 250.0 17 13.2 1.8 266.7 72.5 31.6 104.1 370.8
EuanMarshall

2022 250.0 17 13.2 1.8 266.7 69.2 — 69.2 335.9

2023 288.2 0.4 13.3 _ 301.9 1314 59.1 190.5 492.4
Matthew Lewis®

2022 2970 05 127 — 310.2 146.8 3325 479.3 789.5

1 Benefits: taxable value of benefits received in the year by Executive Directors comprises private healthinsurance and club membership for Peter Cruddas and healthinsurance for David Fineberg, Euan Marshalland life
assurance forMatthew Lewis.

2 Thetotal cashelementof the CIP award earnedin respect of performance during the relevant financial year.

3 Thelong-termincentive paymentin 2023 to David Fineberg, Euan Marshalland Matthew Lewis relates to the vesting of the first tranche of the CIP award granted in 2020. The Remuneration Committee agreed
there were no factors prompting the application of the performance underpin therefore the first tranche will vest in full. Dividend equivalents are included in the figures. The value of the award was calculated
using the average closing share price in the last three months of 2023 of £2.34. The value attributable to share price growthis -£48,646,-£9,654 and -£18,073 for David Fineberg, Euan Marshall and Matthew
Lewisrespectively. This was calculated using the grant price of £3.49 and the vesting price (share price as at date of award vest) of £2.34.

Thelong-termincentive paymentin 2022 to David Fineberg and Matthew Lewis relates to the vesting of the November 2018 LTIP Performance Award. The majority of the performance targets were yieldinga
total vesting of 97.3% of the granted shares. Dividend equivalents are included in the figures. The value attributable to share price growth is £458,093 and £175,456 for David Fineberg and Matthew Lewis
respectively. This was calculated using the grant price of £2.05 and the vesting price of £4.66.

4 Pension:during the year ended 31 March 2023, David Fineberg and Euan Marshall were eligible to receive a Company pension contribution of up to 7% of salary in line with the maximum contribution received
by employees across the Group. Matthew Lewis received contributions to the Superannuation planin Australia. Peter Cruddas opted out of the plan and no compensation was provided. None of the Executive
Directors have a prospective right to afinal salary pension by reference to years of qualifying service.

5 SharelIncentive Plan:employees, including the Executive Directors, are entitled to participate in the SIP throughout the year, it allows employees and Directors to receive one matching share for every
partnership share purchased under the SIP up to the limits defined by HMRC. In 2023, 719 matching shares were allocated to David Fineberg, and 719 matching shares were allocated to Euan Marshall,
calculated on the dates of purchase. In 2022, 568 matching shares were allocated to David Fineberg, and 568 matching shares were allocated to Euan Marshall, calculated based on the dates of purchase.
The free and matching shares will be forfeited if, within three years from the date of grant, the individual leaves employment in certain circumstances. Peter Cruddas and Matthew Lewis do not participate in
theplan.

6 Thedecreaseinsalary for Matthew Lewis reflects prevailing exchange rates.

7 Duringthe year £5,592.23 relating to a personal expense for Peter Cruddas was paid by CMC Markets UK plc due to an administrative error. This amount will be reimbursed.

CIP for the year ended 31 March 2023 (audited)

During the year ended 31 March 2023 the Executive Directors participated in the Combined Incentive Plan with a maximum opportunity of up to 135% of salary for
Peter Cruddas, CEO, up to 300% of salary for David Fineberg, Deputy CEO and Matthew Lewis, the Head of Asia Pacific & Canada, and up to 200% of salary for
EuanMarshall, the CFO.

In considering the combined incentive Cash Award and Share Award, together comprising the Award, due to the Executive Directors for the year ended 31March
2023, the Committee reviewed Group earnings per share ("EPS”) against targets over the period.

Group financial performance measure
Financial performance measures account for 60% of the total award.

Measure Threshold Target Maximum Actual

Group earnings per share (‘EPS”) 15.4 pence 20.7 pence 25.7 pence 14.6 pence

Whilst the Group has had another strong year diluted EPS was 14.6 pence against a threshold target of 15.4 pence, resulting in a 0% award from this element
of the Plan.
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CIP for the year ended 31 March 2023 (audited) continued

Group strategic and personal performance measures

Financial statements

Shareholder information

0

Strategic performance measures account for 30% of the total award and personal measures account for 10% of the total award.

Chief Executive Officer strategic objectives (30%) Score Assessment

Inline with the programme approved by the Board drive the delivery of all projects grow and CMC'’s 100%  Thelaunchofthe Invest productin Singapore s due to be delivered on time and within

investing products into new jurisdictions, meeting all relevant KPIs and financial metrics. budget. Enhancements to the UK and existing APAC & Canada investing product suites
have also been delivered to a high standard.

Provide strategic leadership for the key project initiatives across CMC's platform and product offering 90%  Strongprogresshasbeenonthe majority of the initiatives many of which are now

including the provision of options and equities to Connect clients, and improved Treasury management generatingenhanced revenues.

capabilities.

Drive CMC's trading business to ensure levels of client retention and overall satisfactionareimprovedand ~ {0(0%  The Remuneration Committee has considered anumber of measures including client

notimpacted by the diversification of the business. retention, Net Promoter, CSAT and Trust Pilot scores which confirm this objective has
beenmet.

Continue to evolve and develop the senior leadership team to reflect the increasing complexity and 75%  Experiencedhires have been made to support the delivery of the options and cash equity

strategic ambition of CMC. products. Risk, compliance and legal have also improved their overall capabilitiesinline
with the plannedincrease in product complexity.

Jointly sponsor with the wider ED team, the development and delivery of a strategy toimprove Diversity & 75%  Goodprogress has beenmadein the development of the strategies but further work is

Inclusionand ESG across CMC. now needed set tangible targets and a programme of initiatives to meet those targets.

Award for strategic objectives 26%

Personal and mandatory risk objective (10%):

Lead CMC Markets to deliver its vision and objectives by demonstrating leadership skills fully aligned 100%  Peterhascontinuedtolead by example to deliver to the Company’s values, ways of

with CMC values, Ways of Working and conduct code. workingand code of conduct.

Award for personal objective 10%

Total for strategic and personal objectives (40%) 36%

Deputy CEO strategic objectives (30%) Score Assessment

Lead the delivery of significantimprovementsin the quality of the client offering with the trading, investing 90%  Strongprogress has been made on the majority of the initiatives many of which are now

and premium proposition. generating enhanced revenues.

Sponsor the establishment of the new office inManchester. 100%  Officeisfully operational with sixemployees in place to date.

Establish a programme of continuous improvement for the institutional product offering. 100%  Davidhasledaprocess to establishacomprehensive strategy to significantly expand
ourinstitutional offering and the team has delivered record results once againin this
financial year.

With the CFO, jointly lead the Transformation programme globally. 75%  Good progresshasbeen made in establishing and prioritising the relevantinitiatives for
CMC. Theresourcing of squads is progressing well along with the aligning processes toa
digitalapproach.

With the wider Executive Director team lead a programme to align CMC toits strategic initiatives and core 75%  Keyfunctionshave beenaligned to each pillar and nitiatives given dedicated resource

product pillars. allocationand specific accountability. Good progress has been made in delivering the
Enterprise Risk Management Framework.

Ensure CMC’s Net Promoter and Client Satisfaction scores are sustained to the following levels: 75%  TheRemuneration Committee has considered anumber of measures including client

Threshold —maintain current position during 2023; On target —improve current position during 2023. retention, Net Promoter score, CSAT and Trust pilot scores which confirm this objective
has beensignificantly met.

Jointly sponsor with the wider ED team, the development and delivery of a strategy toimprove Diversity & 75%  Goodprogress has beenmadein the development of the strategies but further work is

Inclusionand ESG across CMC. now needed to set tangible targets and a programme of initiatives to meet those targets.

Award for strategic objectives 25%

Personal and mandatory risk objective (10%):

Lead CMC Markets to deliver its visionand objectives by demonstrating leadership skills fully alignedwith -~ {0(0%  David has continued to lead by example to deliver to the Company's values, ways of

CMC values, Ways of Working and conduct code. workingand code of conduct.

Award for personal objective 10%

Total for strategic and personal objectives (40%) 35%
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Annual report on remuneration continued
CIP for the year ended 31 March 2023 (audited) continued

Chief Financial Officer strategic objectives (30%) Score

Assessment

Lead aprogramme toimprove the performance monitoring of the strategic initiative
programme globally.

100%

The programme has delivered a suite of metrics and reports by which strategic initiatives are
assessedand progress is monitored.

Deliver enhanced segmental cost reporting to better understand the prospective value generated  100%
by eachpillar of the business.

Significantimprovements have been made to these processes leading to an enhanced
understanding of value generation business wide.

With the wider Executive Director team lead a programme to align CMC to its strategic initiatives 75%  Keyfunctionshave beenrestructured toalignto each pillar andinitiatives given clearly resource

and core product pillars. allocationand accountability. Good progress has been made in delivering the Enterprise Risk
Management Framework.

Lead the delivery of an enhanced Treasury management function for CMC. 100% Significantimprovements madein client money, reporting and own fund utilisation. Programme of
furtherimprovementsis progressing.

Withthe Deputy CEO, jointly lead the Transformation programme globally. 75%  Goodprogress hasbeenmade in establishing and prioritising the relevantinitiatives for CMC. The
resourcing of squadsis progressing wellalong with the aligning processes to a digital approach.

Jointly sponsor with the wider ED team, the development and delivery of a strategy toimprove 75%  Good progress has been made inthe development of the strategies but further work is now needed

Diversity & Inclusionand ESG across CMC. tosettangible targets and a programme of initiatives to meet those targets.

Award for strategic objectives 26%

Personal and mandatory risk objective (10%):

Lead CMC Markets to deliver its vision and objectives by demonstrating leadership skills fully 100%  Euanhascontinuedtolead by example to deliver to the Company's values, ways of working and

aligned with CMC values, Ways of Working and conduct code. code of conduct.

Award for personal objective 10%

Total for strategic and personal objectives (40%) 36%

Head of Asia Pacific & Canada strategic objectives (30%) Score  Assessment

Lead the successfultransition of the ANZ Share Investing customer base to CMC's platform. 100%  Excellent progress has been made with thiskey transaction for CMC with Matthew successfully
leading the process. The programme is being delivered to time and budget, and meeting all the
relevant commercial performance measures.

Lead the successful delivery of the Invest Singapore project. 90% InvestSingaporeis due tobe successfully delivered to time and budget and a softlaunch process
has commenced.

Deliver significantimprovements in the quality of the client offering in the APAC & Canadaregion. 100%  Strongprogress has beenmade on the allinitiatives many of which are now generating enhanced
revenues. APAC & Canada now taking the lead on the global development and roll out of certain
products for example our MT4 product.

Lead the successfuldelivery of physical cryptocurrencies for Invest Australia. 90%  Deliveredtobudgetand time withalaunch date scheduled for Q1.

Jointly sponsor with the wider ED team, the development and delivery of a strategy toimprove 50%  Goodprogresshas been madein the development of the strategies but further work is now needed

Diversity & Inclusionand ESG across CMC. settangible targets and a programme of initiatives to meet those targets.

Ensure CMC's Net Promoter Scores sustained to the following levels: Threshold —maintain 75%  TheRemuneration Committee has considered anumber of measures including client retention,

current position during 2022; On target —improve current position during 2023. Net Promoter score, CSAT and Trust pilot scores which confirm this objective has been
significantly met.

Award for strategic objectives 26%

Personal and mandatory risk objective (10%):

Lead CMC Markets to deliver its vision and objectives by demonstrating leadership skills fully 100%  Matthew hascontinued tolead by example to deliver to the Company’s values, ways of working and

aligned with CMC values, Ways of Working and conduct code. code of conduct.

Award for personal objective 10%

Total for strategic and personal objectives (40%) 36%
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Annual report on remuneration continued
CIP for the year ended 31 March 2023 (audited) continued
Based on the outcomes against the performance targets the Committee recommended the following awards under the Combined Incentive Plan.

Executive Directors, Combined Incentive outcomes

Cashaward Share award
Maxaward  Overalloutcome (% Award Totalaward
Role %salary  of maxopportunity) (as % salary) (£'000) (£'000) % salary (£'000) % salary
Peter Cruddas Chief Executive 135% 36.4% 49% 344.0 1376 20% 206.4 29%
Officer
David Fineberg Deputy Chief 300% 35.3% 106% 3705 148.2 48% 2223 58%
Executive Officer
Euan Marshall Chief Financial 200% 36.3% 73% 181.3 725 29% 108.8 44%
Officer
Matthew Lewis Head of Asia Pacific 300% 36.5% 110% 3285 1314 44% 1971 66%
&Canada
Vesting of awards under the CIP in the financial year ended 31 March 2023 (audited)
No awards made to any Executive Director under the LTIP which vested in the year.
Share awards granted in year (audited)
The table below provides details of the deferred element of the 2022 CIP.
Director Face value of award (£'000) No. of shares awarded
Peter Cruddas 155.2 67,560
David Fineberg 165.3 71,981
EuanMarshall 68.1 30,115
Matthew Lewis 146.8 63,901

Notes:
The awards were granted as conditional shares. The award share price was £2.808, calculated using the three-day average share price prior to the date of grant
of theaward.

Awards vest at 40%, 30% and 30% after three, four and five years respectively and are subject to a performance underpin assessed at the end of three financial
years following the one-year performance period. The performance underpin will consist of a broad review of the performance of the business and will take into
account the Company’s three-year TSR performance, three-year aggregate profit levels and any regulatory breaches during the period. The Committee has
discretion to apply other factors.

Implementationin 2023/24

Salary

The Chief Executive Officer will not receive a pay rise with effect from 1 June 2023. David Fineberg and Matthew Lewis will receive 4.5% increase with effect from
1June 2023. Euan Marshall will receive a 20% increase with effect from 1June 2023 the rationale for which is detailed in the Remuneration Committee Chair's
letter. The table below summarises these changes:

Name Role Previous salary Adjustedsalary Percentage change
Peter Cruddas Chief Executive Officer £700,000 £700,000 —
David Fineberg Deputy Chief Executive Officer £350,000 £365,750 4.5%
EuanMarshall Chief Financial Officer £250,000 £300,000 20.0%
Matthew Lewis Head of Asia Pacific & Canada £300,000 £313,500 4.5%
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Annual report on remuneration continued
Implementationin 2023/24 continued

Combined Incentive Plan
The Committee also proposes to continue to use Group financial, strategic and individual performance against targets for the 2023/24 financial year as the basis
onwhich the combined incentive willbe awarded. The performance measures applied to the combined incentive will be:

— 60% financial;
— 30% strategic performance; and
— 10% personal objectives.

Inrelation to the financial target, the Committee has ensured that a sufficiently stretching range has been set by taking account of anumber of internal and
external reference points and the impact of regulatory change. The target range will be disclosed in next year's Annual Report and Financial Statements.

With regard to the strategic and personal objectives, these will be evaluated based on quantitative measurable objectives in the significant majority of cases.
The Directors believe that these performance measures are commercially sensitive therefore detailed disclosure of these outcomes will be included in the 2024
Annual Report and Financial Statements. The maximum awards achievable under the CIP for the 2024 will be 300% of salary for the CFO, Deputy CEO and
Head of APAC & Canada. For the CEO the maximum award achievable is 135% of salary.

Pension
With the exception of the CEO who does not currently participate in the scheme, the Executive Directors based in the UK can receive a pension contribution of 7%
of salary, or cashinlieu of pension (net employer costs). The Head of Asia Pacific & Canada receives Superannuationin Australia.

Share ownership and share interests (audited)

The Committee has adopted guidelines for Executive Directors and other senior Executives to encourage substantial long-term share ownership. Executive
Directors are expected to build and hold shares of at least 200% of salary and to retain at least 50% of shares vesting (net of tax) until the guideline is achieved.

The table below shows the interests of the Directors and connected persons in shares and the extent to which CMC Markets' shareholding guidelines
areachieved.

Unvested Unvested

Total share Total share awards awards

interests at interests not subject to subjectto

31March 2023 31March 2023 Requirement performance performance
Number asa%salary met conditions! conditions?

Executive Directors

Peter Cruddas (including shares held by spouse) 174,149,738 43,736% Yes — 67,560
David Fineberd'(including shares held by spouse) 464,010 230% Yes 2,798 336,956
Euan Marshall' (including shares held by spouse) 37,197 23% No 4458 112,305
Matthew Lewis' (including shares held by spouse) 281,464 157% No 1,437 221,10

1 David Finebergand Euan Marshallhave interests under the Share Incentive Plan subject to forfeiture for three years. Matthew Lewis has interests in the International Share Incentive Plan.

2 Unvested Deferred Share awards under made the CIP are included as unvested awards subject to performance conditions and do not count towards the total share interests.

David Fineberg and Euan Marshall have continued to participate in the Share Incentive Plan, each acquiring 172 matching shares and 172 partnership shares
during Apriland May.

There are no other changes to shareholdings between 31 March 2023 and 30 May 2023.

Total shareholder return (“TSR”) performance and CEO single figure

The below chart compares the total shareholder return (“TSR”) of the Company against the FTSE 250 Index based on £100 invested at listing (5 February 2016).
The FTSE 250is used as the benchmark as CMC Markets is a constituent of thisindex.
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CEOQO pay history

Yearended Yearended Yearended Yearended Yearended Yearended Yearended Year ended
Name 31March2016! 31March 2017 31March2018 31March2019  31March2020 31March 2021 31March2022  31March 2023
CEO single figure of
remuneration (£'000) 739.9 412.8 845.8 4344 1,048.5 1,459.4 858.2 840.6
Annualincentive payout
(as % of maximum) 100% 0% 83% 0% 100% 9N1% 37% 36%
Long-termincentives
(as % of maximum) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

1 CMCMarkets plclisted on the London Stock Exchange on 5 February 2016; however the full-year single figure has beenincluded here for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Percentage change in remuneration

The table below shows the annual percentage change in salary, taxable benefits and annual incentive for each Director with colleagues employed by the Group

who are also not Directors of the Group:

2021 2022 2023

Taxable Annual Taxable Annual Taxable Annual
% Changein ED & NED remuneration Salary/fees benefits incentive Salary/fees benefits incentive  Salary/fees benefits incentive
Executive Directors
Peter Cruddas 34% 0% 43% 18% 0% -60% 0% 0% -11%
David Fineberg 3% 7% 0% 0% 0% -61% 0% -3% -10%
EuanMarshall 0% 0% 14% 0% 0% -64% 0% -3% 5%
Matthew Lewis® 24% 0% 18% 7% 0% -60% -3% 0% -10%
Non-Executive Directors
JamesRichards 18% n/a n/a 1% 4,692%° n/a 0% 72% n/a
Paul Wainscott 8% 0% n/a 5% 513%° n/a 6% 448% n/a
Sarahing 8% n/a n/a 5% n/a n/a 4% n/a n/a
Susanne Chishti n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Clare Francis® n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Clare Salmon' 8% n/a n/a 10% n/a n/a -66% n/a n/a
Allemployees? 5% 0% 15% 8% 0% -5% 9% 0% -9%

1 Clare Salmonresigned as a Non-Executive Director on 28 July 2023.

2 Theemployee figure relates to those “same store” employees i.e. those employed on 1 April 2022 and compares their salary then to 31 March 2023. Annualincentive figure is based on the corporate bonus

awards and does notreflect stock awarded to employees.

Susanne Chishti was appointed on 1June 2022.

Clare Francis was appointed on 19 December 2022.

o o~ W

Pay ratio reporting

The salary decrease for Matthew Lewis is as aresult of exchange rate movements.

Theincreasein taxable benefits reflects the limited travel allowed in 2021 due to the pandemic.

The Company is required to publish information on the pay ratio of the Group Chief Executive to UK employees. The table below sets out the ratio of the pay and
benefits of the median UK employee (P50) and those at the 25th (P25) and 75th (P75) percentile to the remuneration received by the Group Chief Executive
Officer. We have used “method A" as we believe it provides the most consistent and comparable outcomes. The ratios reflect allremuneration received by an
individual in respect of the relevant years, and includes salary, benefits, pension, and value received fromincentive plans. Employee pay and benefits were
determined on 31 March 2023 using the same approach as used for the Single Total Figure. Pay ratios have remain unchanged for P50 and P75, with pay
increases within the P25 population during 2023 reducing the P25 ratio to 171 from 18:1.

Totalremuneration

Financial year Methodology P25 (lower quartile) pay ratio P50 (median) pay ratio P75 (upper quartile) pay ratio
2023 A 171 1111 81
2022 A 18:1 1111 81
2021 A 331 211 151
2020 A 26:1 171 1241
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Annual report on remuneration continued
Pay ratio reporting continued

The changeinratioin 2022 and 2023 compared to 2021 reflects the non-achievement of the financial objective under the CIP scheme. The change from 2022 to
2023 also reflects the reductionin the cash element of the award from 45% to 40%. Comparative employee reward elements are detailed below:

CEO P25 (lower quartile) P50 (median) P75 (upper quartile)

£'000 £000 £'000 £000

Total salary 7038.0 443 705 90.5
Totalremuneration 8405 48.6 79.3 108.2

Our principles for pay setting and progression in our wider workforce are the same as for our Executives, with total reward being sufficiently competitive to attract
and retain high calibre individuals without over-paying and providing the opportunity for individual development and career progression. The pay ratios reflect
how remuneration arrangements differ as accountability increases for more senior roles within the organisation, and in particular the ratios reflect the weighting
towards long-term value creation and alignment with shareholder interests for the CEO. Our employees received a presentation on how executive remuneration
aligns to that of the wider company in March 2022. This presentation will be given again in July 2023 to reflect our 2023 reward outcomes.

We are satisfied that the median pay ratio reported this year is consistent with our wider pay, reward and progression policies for employees. The median
reference employee has the opportunity for annual pay increases, annual performance payments and career progression.
Relative importance of spend on pay

The chart below illustrates the Group's actual expenditure on shareholder distributions (including dividends and share buybacks) and total employee pay
expenditure for the financial years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023.
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Dilution

The Company’s share schemes are funded through a combination of shares purchased in the market and new-issue shares, as appropriate. The Company
monitors the number of shares issued under these schemes, compared to the relevant dilution limits set by the Investment Association in respect of all share
plans (10% in any rolling ten-year period) and Executive share plans (5% in any rolling ten-year period).

Payments to past Directors and for loss of office (audited)

There were no payments to past Directors and for loss of office during the year.

Non-Executive Director remuneration

The table below sets out the remuneration for the Non-Executive Directors for the year ending 31 March 2023. The fees for the Chairman have not changed this
year. The Non-Executive Director fee hasincreased from £70,000 to £75,000, the Committee Chair and SID fees increased from £10,000 to £15,000, and the
Workforce Engagement Non-Executive Director fee has increased from £7,500 to £10,000 to reflect the increased time commitment in fulfilling these roles for
CMC Markets. During the year an additional fee of £10,000 was approved for the new position of Non-Executive Director responsible for Consumer Duty.

Role £'000
Chairmanfee 210.0
Non-Executive Director fee 75.0
Committee Chairman additional fee 15.0
Workforce Engagement Director fee 10.0
Consumer Duty Non-Executive Director Fee 10.0
Senior Independent Director additional fee 15.0

The fees detailed above for 2023 will be unchanged for the year ending 31 March 2024.
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Annual report on remuneration continued

External appointments

Itis the Board's policy to allow Executive Directors to take up external non-executive positions, subject to the prior approval of the Board. Any fee earnedin
relation to outside appointments is retained by the Executive Director. Peter Cruddas was a Director of The Peter Cruddas Foundation, Finada Limited and
Crudd Investments Limited during the year ended 31 March 2023 and received no feesin relation to these appointments. No other Executive Director held any
outside appointments.

Single total figure of Non-Executive Director remuneration (audited)

The table below sets out the single total figure of the remuneration received by each Non-Executive Director who served during the year ended 31 March 20283.
The fees setoutin the table below reflect the actual amounts paid during the year. The Non-Executive Directors do not receive any variable remuneration.

Remuneration comprises an annual fee for acting as a Chairman or Non-Executive Director of the Company. Additional fees are paid to Non-Executive Directors
inrespect of service as Chair of the Group Audit, Group Risk or Remuneration Committees, Senior Independent Director, Workforce Engagement Non-
Executive Director and Consumer Duty Non-Executive Director.

Stakeholder / Client

Yearended Basefee Committee fee SIiDfee NEDfee Benefits' Total?

Name 31March £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
JamesRichards 2023 210.0 - — — 20.6 230.6
2022 210.0 — — — 120 222.0

Paul Wainscott 2023 7.7 17 8.3 — 8.4 100.1
2022 70.0 10.0 5.0 — 15 86.5

Clare Salmon? 2023 25.3 3.3 — — — 28.6
2022 737 10.0 — — — 837

SarahlIng 2023 7.7 17 — — — 83.4
2022 70.0 10.0 — — — 80.0

Susanne Chishti4 2023 60.0 - — 4.6 — 64.6
Clare Francis® 2023 21.6 3.8 — 2.5 0.5 28.4

1 Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to benefits. Benefits (and any tax due thereon) relates to reimbursed travel expenses.
2 Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to receive share-based payments and no award of shares was granted to any NEDs during the period.

3 Clare Salmonresigned as a Non-Executive Director onthe 28 July 2022. An error was made inimplementing her final date of employment which caused an over payment. The over paymentis being recovered
sothese figuresreflect the correct emoluments due.

4 Susanne Chishti was appointed on1June 2022.

5 ClareFrancis was appointed on 19 December 2022.

Non-Executive Director share ownership and share interests (audited)

The table below shows the interests of the Non-Executive Directors and connected personsin shares.

Ordinary Shares  Ordinary Shares
heldat held at
Name 31March 2022 31March 2023

JamesRichards — —
Paul Wainscott — —
Clare Salmon! 824 824
SarahlIng — —
Susanne Chishti — —
Clare Francis — —

1 Clare Salmon’s shareholdingis up to her leaving date of 28 July 2022.
There are no other changes to shareholding between 31 March 2023 and 30 May 2023.
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Annual report on remuneration continued
The Remuneration Committee

During the year, the Committee sought internal support from the Executive Directors, who attended Committee meetings by invitation from the Chair. Advice was
sought on specific questions raised by the Committee and on matters relating to the performance and remuneration of senior managers. No Director was present
forany discussions that related directly to their own remuneration. The Company Secretary, or their deputy, attends each meeting as Secretary to the Committee.

Advisers to the Remuneration Committee

Inundertaking its responsibilities, the Committee seeks independent external advice as necessary. Willis Towers Watson (“WTW”) have continued to

actas advisers to the Committee throughout the year. WTW were appointed in 2017 by the Committee following a review of advisers. WTW are voluntary
signatories to the Code of Conduct for Remuneration Consultants, which assures clients of independence and objectivity. Details of the Code can be found at
www.remunerationconsultantsgroup.com. During the year, WTW provided independent advice on arange of remuneration matters including current market
practice, benchmarking of Executive pay and incentive design. The fees paid to WTW in respect of work carried out, on a time and expenses basis, for the
Committee for the year under review totalled £46,500. The Committee is comfortable that the advice it has received has been objective and independent.In
addition to advising on Executive Director and senior management remuneration WTW are also the principle providers of market data for the wider employee
populationinLondonand Sydney.

Statement of voting at the AGM

The Company AGM was held on 28 July 2022 where the Directors’ remuneration report were tabled. The result of the vote on these resolutions is set out below:
Remuneration Policy

(at 2021 AGM when the current Remuneration Report
policy was approved) (at2022 AGM)
% of votes % of votes
(excluding Number (excluding Number
withheld) of votes withheld) of votes
For 99.65 261,580,649 97.25 249,427,646
Against 0.35 913,806 2.75 7,043,454
Total votes cast 262,494,455 256,471,100
Withheld' 55,779 8,310

1 Avote withheldis notavoteinlaw and sois not counted for the purposes of the calculation of the proportion of votes “for” and “against” a resolution.

This report will be submitted to shareholders for approval at the AGM to be held on 27 July 2023.
Approved by the Board on 13 June 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

%ELU\S

SarahlIng
Independent Non-Executive Director and Chair of the Remuneration Committee
13June 2023
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Strategic report Governance

Directors' report

CMC Markets plcis a public limited company incorporated in England and
Wales under the Companies Act 2006 with registered number 05145017.

The Directors present their report, together with the consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31March 2023. For the purpose of the FRC's
Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule (‘DTR”) 4.1.8R, the Strategic
reportis also the Management report for the year ended 31 March 2023.

The corporate governance sections that appear on pages 75and 79 to 119,
together with this report of which they form part, fulfils the requirements of the
Corporate governance statement for the purpose of the DTRs.

Directors

With the exception of Clare Francis, all Directors will seek re-election at the
2023 Annual General Meeting ("AGM”) on Thursday 27 July 2023. Following
recommendation by the Nomination Committee, a Director may be appointed
to the Board by the Board of Directors and will then be put forward at the
following AGM for election by the shareholders. The Company'’s Articles

of Association, available on the CMC Markets plc Group website, detail the
appointment and removal process for Directors. The Board approved the
appointment of Clare Francis with effect from 19 December 2022 and Clare
will seek election at the 2023 AGM. Clare Salmon retired from the Board on
28 July 2022. The Company has not adopted any special rules regarding the
appointment and replacement of Directors other than as provided for under
UK company law.

Details of Directors’ interests and conflicts

The Directors have a statutory duty to avoid conflicts of interest. The Board
has established a procedure to deal with any potential or actual conflicts

of interest and to ensure that all such interests are disclosed and, where
appropriate, authorised by the Board (with any limits or conditionsimposed as
applicable) inaccordance with the Articles of Association and the Companies
Act 20086. Details of all Directors’ conflicts of interest are recorded in a register
of conflicts which is maintained by the Company Secretary and all approvals
are formally minuted. Upon appointment, new Directors are advised of the
procedure for managing conflicts, which includes the notification of any actual
or potential conflicts or changes to the circumstances of any such conflicts.
Any decision of the Board to authorise a conflict of interest is only effective

if it is agreed without the conflicted Director(s) voting or without their votes
being counted. In making such a decision, the Directors must actina way they
consider in good faith will be most likely to promote the success of the Group.
The management of potential conflicts has been operating inaccordance
with the procedure throughout the year in review and subsequently. Details

of the current Directors’ interests inthe Company’s shares and securities

can befound in the Directors' remuneration report on pages 114 and 117 and
their biographies, including details of other directorships, are disclosed on
pages 76to078.

The Directors of the Company who were in office during the year and up to the
date of signing the Financial Statements were:

James Richards Chairman

Susanne Chishti Non-Executive Director (appointed 1June 2022)

Lord Cruddas Chief Executive Officer

David Fineberg Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Clare Francis Non-Executive Director (appointed 19 December 2022)
SarahlIng Non-Executive Director

Matthew Lewis Head of Asia Pacific & Canada

EuanMarshall Chief Financial Officer

Clare Salmon Non-Executive Director (retired on 28 July 2022)

Paul Wainscott Senior Independent Director

Financial statements Shareholder information 0

Directors’ indemnities

As permitted by the Articles of Association, the Company has granted
indemnities to each of its Directors and the Company Secretary to the extent
permitted by law.

A qualifying third-party indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of

the Companies Act 2006 was in force throughout the last financial year and
remainsin place inrelation to certainlosses and liabilities which the Directors
or Company Secretary may incur to third parties in connection with their
positioninthe Company or any associated company. The Company also
maintains appropriate insurance to cover Directors' and Officers' liability,
whichis assessed annually and approved by the Board. No amount was paid
under the Directors’and Officers' liability insurance during the year.

Branch offices

CMC Markets plc does not have any overseas branches. Various subsidiaries
inthe Group have overseas branches, as detailed in pages 186 10 187.

Strategic report

The Companies Act 2006 requires the Group to prepare a Strategic report,
which commences at the start of this Annual Report and Financial Statements
up to page 2. As permitted by Section 414C(11) of the Companies Act 2006,
some matters required to be included in the Directors’report have instead
beenincludedinthe Strategic report. These disclosures are incorporated by
reference inthe Directors'report. The Strategic reportincludes information
onthe Group's operations and business model, going concern and viability,
review of the business throughout the year, anticipated future developments,
key performance indicators, principal risks and uncertainties, information

on stakeholder and employee engagement and the Board's statement in
accordance with Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006. The use of financial
instrumentsisincludedin the report and further covered under note 29 to the
consolidated Financial Statements.

The Group's visionis to be a global provider of online retail financial
services and to maintain its status as a pioneer of platformtechnology.

Its strategic objective is to provide long-term value to shareholders by
ensuring superior returns. This long-term success is generated through the
consistent and sustainable delivery of growth in revenue and improvement
to operating margins through operational excellence including product
innovation, geographical diversification, technology and services. The
strategic objectives to achieve this are also set out in the Strategic report on
pages2to73.

Dividends

On12 June 2023, the Board recommended a final dividend of 3.90 pence
per Ordinary Share inrespect of the full financial year ended 31 March 2023,
subject to shareholder approval at the 2023 AGM. If approved, the dividend
willbe paid on 11 August 2023 to shareholders on the register of members at
the close of business on 14 July 2023. The shares will go ex-dividend on 13
July 2023. Aninterim dividend of 3.50 pence per Ordinary Share was paid on
5January 2023, bringing the total dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023
to 7.40 pence per Ordinary Share.

Further information on dividends is shown in note 11 of the Financial
Statements andisincorporated into this report by reference.
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Share capital

The Company’s share capital comprises Ordinary Shares of 25 pence
each and Deferred Shares of 25 pence each. At 31 March 2023, there were
279,815,463 Ordinary Shares (99.12% of the overall share capital) and
2,478,086 Deferred Shares (0.88% of the overall share capital) inissue.

Further information about share capital can be foundin note 25 of the
Financial Statements.

Ordinary Shares

The holders of Ordinary Shares are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Company. All Ordinary Sharesinissue inthe Company rank equally
and carry the same voting rights and the same rights to receive dividends and
other distributions declared or paid by the Company. Throughout the year, the
Ordinary Shares were publicly listed on the London Stock Exchange and it
remains so as at the date of this report. There are no specific restrictions on the
size of a shareholding nor on the transfer of shares which are both governed
by the Articles of Association and prevailing law. The Directors are not aware
of any agreements between holders of the Company’s shares that may
resultin restrictions on the transfer of shares or on voting rights. No person
has special rights of control over the Company’s share capital and allissued
shares are fully paid.

Shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust rank pari passu with the Ordinary
Shares and have no special rights. Voting rights and rights of acceptance of
any offer relating to the shares held in this trust rest with the trustees, who may
take account of any recommendation from the Company. Voting rights are not
exercisable by the employees on whose behalf the shares are held in trust.

Deferred Shares

The holders of Deferred Shares do not have the right to receive notice of any
general meeting of the Company nor the right to attend, speak or vote at any
such general meeting. The Deferred Shares have norights to dividends and,
onareturn of assetsinawinding-up, entitle the holder only to the repayment
of the amounts paid upon such shares. The Deferred Shares may be
purchased at nominal value at the option of the Company by notice in writing
served on the holder of the Deferred Shares. No application has been made
oriscurrently intended to be made for the Deferred Shares to be admitted
to the Official List or to trade on the London Stock Exchange or any other
investment exchange.
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Share capital and Directors’ powers

The powers of the Directors, including in relation to the issue or buyback

of the Company’s shares, are set out in the Companies Act 2006 and the
Company’s constitution. The Directors were granted authority to issue and
allot Ordinary Shares and to buy back Ordinary Shares at the 2022 AGM.

Shareholders will be asked to renew these authorities in line with the latest
institutional shareholder guidelines at the 2023 AGM.

On2March 2022 the Company announced itsintentionto launch a share
buyback programme (the “Buyback Programme”) as part of its approach

to shareholder returns. Inlight of the Company’s robust capital position and
having considered the ongoing investment in the business, the Board decided
toreturn excess capital to shareholders via the repurchase of Ordinary
Shares up to an aggregate purchase price of £30 million, subject to continuing
regulatory approval. Regulatory approval was obtained from the FCA and

the buyback programme launched on 15 March 2022. During the year ended
31March 2023, the Company purchased and cancelled 10,478,456 of its
issued fully paid Ordinary Shares with anominal value of £0.25 at an average
price paid of £2.60 (and £27,236,000 in aggregate). The share buyback
programme concluded on 17 October 2022 and as a result there have been no
purchases following year end.

Controlling Shareholder Disclosure

The Company entered into a Relationship Agreement with Lord Peter

and Fiona Cruddas (the “Controlling Shareholders”) on 26 January 2016,

the terms of which came into force onlisting the Company to trade on the
Main Market of the London Stock Exchange. The principal purpose of the
Relationship Agreement is to ensure that the Company is capable at alltimes
of carrying onits business independently of the Controlling Shareholders

and their associates, that transactions and relationships with the Controlling
Shareholders and their associates are at arm’s length and on normal
commercial terms (subject to the rules on related party transactionsin the
Listing Rules) and to ensure the Controlling Shareholders do not take any
action that would prevent the Company from complying with, or circumvent,
the Listing Rules. The Relationship Agreement will stay in effect until the earlier
of: (i) the Controlling Shareholders ceasing to own in aggregate aninterestin
atleast 10% or more of the Ordinary Sharesinthe Company (or aninterest
which carries 10% or more of the aggregate voting rights in the Company from
time to time); or (i) the Ordinary Shares ceasing to be listed on the premium
listing segment of the Official List and admitted to trading on the London Stock
Exchange’s Main Market for listed securities. The Company has complied with
the independence provisionsincluded in the Relationship Agreement and, so
far as the Company is aware, such provisions have been complied with during
the period under review by the controlling shareholders and their associates.

Significant contracts and change of control

The Company has alarge number of contractual arrangements which it
believes are essential to the business of the Company. These can be split

into three main categories, which are a committed bank facility, prime broker
arrangements, and market data and technology contracts. The committed
bank facility includes provisions which may, on a change of control, require any
outstanding borrowings to be repaid or result in termination of the facilities.

The Group's share andincentive plans include usual provisions relating to
change of control. There are no agreements providing for compensation for
the Directors or employees on a change of control.
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Information required to be part of this Directors’ report can be found elsewhere in the Annual Report as indicated below. These sections are deemed to be

incorporated by reference into the Directors’ report:

Information

Locationin Annual Report

Section 172 statement and stakeholder engagement (including clients and suppliers)

Employees (employment of disabled persons and employee engagement)
Employee share schemes
Financial risk management, objectives and policies

Pages14t019
Pages42t045

Note 31,pages 17410 176
Note 30, pages 167 to 174

Future developments Page 23
Internal controls over financial reporting Page 86
Directors’interestsin shares of the Company Pages 114 and 117
Related party transactions Note 34, page 181
Greenhouse gas emissions, energy consumption and energy efficiency action Page 48
TCFDdisclosures Pages50t059
Disclosure table pursuant to Listing Rule LR 9.8.4C
Listing Rule Information to be included Disclosure
9.8.4(1) Interest capitalised by Group. None.
9.8.4(2) Unaudited financial information (LR 9.2.18R). None.
9.8.4(4) Long-termincentive scheme informationinvolving Board Directors  Details can be found on pages 110 to 114 of the Directors’ remuneration
(LR9.4.3R). report.
9.8.4(5) Waiver of emoluments by a Director. None.
9.8.4(6) Waiver of future emoluments by a Director. None.
9.8.4(7) Non-pre-emptive issues of equity for cash. None.
9.8.4(8) Non-pre-emptive issues of equity for cashinrelation to major None.
subsidiary undertakings.
9.8.4(9) Listed company is a subsidiary of another company. Not applicable.
9.8.4(10) Contracts of significance involving a Director or a Controlling None, except for Lord Cruddas’ service contract.
Shareholder.
9.8.4(1) Contracts for the provision of services by a Controlling Shareholder.  None, except for Lord Cruddas’ service contract.
9.8.4(12) Shareholder waiver of dividends. The trustees of the CMC Markets plc Employee Share Trust have a dividend
waiver inplace inrespect of Ordinary Shares which are its beneficial property.
9.8.4(13) Shareholder waiver of future dividends. The trustees of the CMC Markets plc Employee Share Trust have a dividend
waiver inplace inrespect of Ordinary Shares which are its beneficial property.
9.8.4(14) Agreement with Controlling Shareholder. See Controlling Shareholder Disclosure on page 120 of the Directors’
report.
Substantial shareholdings Shareholder Number of . hof
Asat 31March 2023 voting rights voting rights
Information prowdgd to thg Company by substant!al shareholders pursuant Lord Peter Andrew Cruddas 165155374 5002
tothe DTRsis published via a Regulatory Information Service and onthe
Company’s website. The table below sets out details of the shareholdings of AberforthPartners LLP 14,446,286 500
Lord Peter Andrew Cruddas and Mrs Fiona Cruddas, and further provides Schroders Plc 14,167,409 4.90
details of the interestsin the voting rights of the Company’s Ordinary issued Mrs Fiona Cruddas 8,994,364 3.21

share capital as at 31 March 2023, notified to the Company under DTR
5.Holdings may have changed since being notified to the Company as
notification of any change is not required until the next applicable threshold
iscrossed.

Between the year end and 6 June 2023 (being the latest practicable date)
there have been no changes notified to usinrespect of these holdings.

The shareholdings of CMC Markets plc Directors are listed within the

Directors' remuneration report on pages 114 and 117.
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Articles of Association

Any amendments to the Company’s Articles of Association may only be made
by passing a special resolution at a general meeting of the shareholders of
the Company.

Research and development

The Group continues toinvest in the development of the trading and investing
platformsin addition to maintaining existing infrastructure, with considerable
effort applied by the technical and software development teams. In addition,
the Group has capitalised development costs relating to new product

and functionality development. During the year development expenditure
amounting to £11.3 million has been capitalised (2022: £8.5 million).

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information to auditor

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’

report confirmthat, so far as they each are aware, there is no relevant audit
information (being information needed by the external auditor in connection
with preparing their audit report) of which the Company’s external auditor is
unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps that he or she is obliged
to take as a Director in order to make himself/herself aware of any relevant
auditinformation and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of
that information. This confirmationis given pursuant to Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006.

Independent auditor

Inaccordance with Section 489 and Section 492 of the Companies Act 2006,
resolutions to reappoint Deloitte LLP as the Company’s auditor and authorise
the Group Audit Committee to determine the auditor's remuneration will be put
tothe 2023 AGM.

Political donations

No political donations were made by the Company during the year.

Annual General Meeting

The 2023 AGMis to be held at 10.00 am.on Thursday 27 July 2023 at 133
Houndsditch, LondonEC3A 7BX.

Due to the Controlling Shareholder disclosure on page 120, the independent
shareholders’ voting results on the re-election of independent Non-Executive
Directors (excluding the Chairman) will be disclosed when the voting

results are published. Should the required percentage of the independent
shareholders’ vote to approve re-election not be achieved, then a further vote
willbe held at a subsequent general meeting within the prescribed time period.

Events after the reporting period

Details of events occurring subsequent to the year end are made in note 37.

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the
Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Financial Statements for each
financial year. Under that law the Directors have prepared the Group and

the parent company Financial Statements in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the Financial Statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
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of the Group and parent company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that
period. In preparing the Financial Statements, the Directors are required to:

— selectsuitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

— state whether applicable UK-adopted international accounting standards
have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explainedin the Financial Statements;

— make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and
prudent;and

— prepare the Financial Statements onthe going concern basis unlessitis
inappropriate to presume that the Group and parent company will continue
inbusiness.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and parent company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records

that are sufficient to show and explain the Group’s and parent company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Group and parent company and enable them to ensure that the
Financial Statements and the Directors’ remuneration report comply with the
Companies Act 2006.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
parent company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of Financial Statements may differ from
legislationin other jurisdictions.

Directors’ confirmations

The Directors consider that the Annual Report and Financial Statements,
takenasawhole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group and parent
company’s position and performance, business model and strategy.

Eachof the Directors, whose names and functions are listed on pages 76 to
78, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge:

— the Group and parent company Financial Statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting
standards, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial
position of the Group and parent company, and of the profit of the
Group; and

— the Strategic reportincludes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Group and parent
company, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
thatit faces.

The Annual Report and Financial Statements were approved by the Board on
13 June 2023.

By order of the Board

=5

DeborahFish
Company Secretary
13June 2023

CMC Markets plc
Registered number: 05145017
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Independent auditor’s report
To the members of CMC Markets plc
Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

1. Opinion

In our opinion the Financial Statements of CMC Markets plc (the “parent company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”):

give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 March 2023 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

the Group Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted international accounting standards and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB);

— the parent company Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted international accounting standards and as
appliedinaccordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

- the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
We have audited the Financial Statements which comprise:

— the Consolidated Income Statement;

the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income;

the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position;

the parent company Statement of Financial Position;

the Consolidated and parent company Statements of Changes in Equity;

the Consolidated and parent company Cash Flow Statements;

the statement of significant accounting policies; and

therelated notes 1to 37.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group Financial Statements is applicable law, United Kingdom adopted
international accounting standards and IFRSs as issued by the IASB. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent
company Financial Statements is applicable law and United Kingdom adopted international accounting standards and as applied in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006.

2. Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements
inthe UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's (‘FRC's") Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. The non-audit services provided to the Group and parent company for the year are disclosed in note 8 to the
Financial Statements. We confirm that we have not provided any non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard to the Group or the parent company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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3.Summary of our audit approach
Key audit matters The key audit matters identified in the current year are:
— the carrying value of intangible assets under development relating to CMC Invest; and

— presentation of positions with hedging counterparties.

Materiality The materiality that we used for the Group Financial Statements was £2.6 million, determined on the basis of profit before tax
from continuing operations (‘PBT").

When planning the Group audit, we considered the risk of errors that may exist which, when aggregated, could exceed £2.6 million.
Inorder to reduce the risk of unidentified errors that could aggregate to this amount, we used a lower materiality, known as
performance materiality, of £1.82 million to identify the individual balances, classes of transaction and disclosures that were
subject to audit.

We asked the teams carrying out audit procedures over in-scope entities to perform their audit procedures to an assigned
materiality which reflects the magnitude of operations subject to audit.

Scoping Thisis the first-year audit for Deloitte, having been appointed auditor of the Group and parent company for the year ended
31March2023.

Our audit scoping is performed on the basis of financial significance and consideration of qualitative factors. Throughout

our transition and in order to gain a detailed understanding of the Group and parent company, we performed a number of
procedures, including but not limited to: understanding the business and its operating environment; performing walkthroughs
of key business process cycles; and carrying out reviews of the audit files of the predecessor auditor.

We have identified three financially-significant entities across the Group, which were subject to full-scope audit procedures
and six entities which are subject to audit procedures on specified account balances.

Our Group audit achieved a coverage of 99% of Group Total Assets, 99% of Group Revenue, and 98% of Group PBT across
management’s business segments.

Significant changesin our Key audit matters:

approach ‘Cryptocurrency assets (Group)’ and ‘Investment in subsidiaries (parent company)’ were considered key audit matters by the
predecessor auditor however we did not consider them to represent key audit matters for the current year audit. This is due to
enhancements in the control environment relating to cryptocurrency assets, and sufficient recoverable assets available in the
underlying subsidiaries of the parent company.

We have identified a new key audit matter for this year over the presentation of positions with hedging counterparties. The
right to offset positions requires compliance with International Accounting Standard 32: (‘IAS 32"), including the interpretation
of supporting contractual documentation. The financial year 2022 comparative amounts were restated to present, ona gross
basis, positions which were previously offset.

4. Conclusions relating to going concern

Inauditing the Financial Statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the Financial
Statementsis appropriate.

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Group's and parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:
— obtaining an understanding of management's evaluative process to arrive at their conclusion to prepare the Financial Statements on a going concern basis;

— with the involvement of our regulatory specialists, challenging the liquidity and capital stress testing assumptions used by management, including consideration of
management actions and whether applied stresses were reasonable in the context of the Group's and parent company’s operating environment;

— assessing emerging operational and market risks facing the Group and parent company, including the impact of ongoing volatility in global financial markets;
— assessing the key assumptions supporting the Group's and parent company’s latest budget forecasts;

— assessing the historical accuracy of forecasts prepared by management; and

— assessing the appropriateness of going concern disclosures made in the notes to the Financial Statements.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast
significant doubt on the Group's and parent company'’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least 12 months from when the Financial Statements
are authorised for issue.

Inrelation to the reporting on how the Group has applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing material to add or draw attention to in relationto the
Directors' statement in the Financial Statements about whether the directors considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.
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Independent auditor’s report continued
To the members of CMC Markets plc

5.Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period and
include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters included those which had the
greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit, and the direction of the efforts of the audit engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

5.1 Carrying value of intangible assets under development relating to CMC Invest

Key audit matter The Group has capitalised a total of £121million of intangible assets relating to the UK CMC Invest trading platform - a multi-year development

description

programme to build a full-service, non-leveraged, wealth management business in the UK (‘CMC Invest”) (see note 12). The platform was officially
launched across the UK on 30 September 2022, and offered a limited number of products and features with a pipeline of new products and
features to be added over the coming months.

Capitalisation of expenditure on internally-generated intangible assets is subjective and involves judgement on the part of management in respect
of whether such expenditure qualifies for recognition in accordance with International Accounting Standard 38: Intangible Assets (‘IAS 38”).
Capitalised expenditure comprises the time spent on the development of the intangible asset, by both internal staff and external contractors.

Furthermore, a high degree of management judgement is required to assess capitalised expenditures forimpairment. This is due to challenges in
developing accurate forecasts to support value-in-use (*ViU") assessments where the business is at a nascent stage. Given the subjective nature
of the key assumptions underpinning these forecasts and their unobservability with reference to available market data, we have deemed this to
be akey audit matter.

Discount rates, useful economic life, cost per trading customer acquisition, customer retention rates, average portfolio sizes and B2B revenues
represent significant sources of estimation uncertainty, as disclosed in note 1on page 141.

This matter is also discussed in the Group Audit Committee report on pages 87 to 90.

How the scope
of our audit
responded to
the key audit
matter

We obtained a detailed understanding of the relevant controls established by the Group over the capitalisation of expenses relating to CMC
Invest, as well as the associated financial reporting processes. Our audit procedures in respect of capitalisation and impairment included the
following:

— anevaluation of whether costs were eligible for capitalisation, in accordance with IAS 38;
— anassessment of the appropriateness of the basis of measurement model supporting the ViU assessment;
— anevaluation of management'’s valuation methodologies with reference to standard valuation practices;

— the development of independent estimates for the key inputs to the value-in-use calculation, which were compared against the inputs used by
management;

— involving our corporate finance specialist to apply specialist knowledge and audit procedures tailored for inherent valuation risk as
described above;

— obtaining an understanding of the methodology applied in management's assessment of whether objective evidence of animpairment loss
exists;and

— anevaluation of the appropriateness of disclosures made in relation to CMC Invest.

Key observations We found the carrying value of the intangible asset to have been based on reasonable, supportable assumptions, noting that appropriate

disclosures are provided in the Financial Statements.
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5. Key audit matters continued

5.2 Presentation of positions with hedging counterparties

Key audit matter
description

As disclosed in note 30, the Group economically hedges its derivative exposure arising from open client positions by entering into trades with
several hedging counterparties (“Brokers”). The Group's position versus each Broker consists of collateral and open trade equity (“unrealised
gains or losses across multiple contracts”), typically across multiple currencies.

These hedge trades are collateralised in accordance with underlying contractual documentation, consisting of International Swaps and
Derivatives Association (ISDA’) agreements and their respective Credit Support Annexes (‘CSAs’) which govern the relationship between CMC
and each respective Broker.

PerIAS 32: Financial Instruments — Presentation (“IAS 32”), paragraph 42, “a financial asset and a financial liability shall be offset, and the net
amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when, an entity:

(a) currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
(b) intends either to settle ona net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.”

The evaluation of whether the IAS 32 offsetting criteria as set out above have been met requires management to interpret and apply the specific
terms of the underlying contractual documentation, as well as have an understanding of the operational realities in respect of settlement and the
posting or receiving of collateral payments. This evaluation will result in either gross or net presentation of these positions, which has a material
impact to the balance sheet.

Although management's intent is to realise these positions on a net basis, they determined that the offsetting criterion outlined in (a), above
and in respect of positions with certain brokers, had not been met. The accounting treatment applied in previous years was, therefore, notin
accordance with IAS 32.

As aresult, management have restated the financial year 2022 comparative amounts where previously-offset positions were required to be
presented on a gross basis with the impact of this restatement set out in note 33.

This matter is also discussed in the Group Audit Committee report on pages 87 to 90.

How the scope
of our audit
responded to the
key audit matter

We have performed the following procedures to evaluate whether the IAS 32 offsetting criteria as set out above have been met, and whether
offsetting is permissible:

— assessed the contractual documentation underpinning the Group's relationship with each Broker, in place in the current and prior years, to
determine whether the Group has a legally-enforceable right to offset the underlying positions, and cash flows across multiple currencies;

- held discussions with management and, for each Broker relationship, evaluated the operational processes in place to determine
management’s intent in respect of gross or net settlement; and

— alongside our technical accounting specialists, held discussions with the Group's in-house legal counsel to challenge management's
interpretation of the terms of the underlying contractual documentation.

We also evaluated the appropriateness of disclosures in relation to the restatement of prior year comparative figures.

Key observations

We found that the positions with hedging counterparties are presented appropriately, including the associated disclosures with respect to the
restatement of the prior year comparative figures. We have communicated a control deficiency to the Group Audit Committee around the need
to further enhance the process where the underlying contractual realities are assessed in accordance with IFRS.

6. Our application of materiality

Materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the Financial Statements that makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the Financial Statements as a whole as follows:

Group Financial Statements Parent company Financial Statements

Materiality £2.6 million (2022 predecessor auditor: £4.6 million) £1.68 million (2022 predecessor auditor: £1.7 million)

Basisand 5% of PBT. Thisis consistent with the benchmark and threshold We have used 1% of Net Assets as the materiality benchmark as the

rationale for appliedin the prior year by the predecessor auditor. parent company of the Group primarily holds investmentsin

determining underlying subsidiaries.

materiality Thisis consistent with the benchmark and threshold used in the prior
year by the predecessor auditor.

Rationaleforthe  PBT isanappropriate basis for materiality as the Group is profit- Net Assetsis anappropriate basis for materiality as CMC Markets plc

benchmark orientated. This measure is considered significant to the users of the  is aholding company for the Group, therefore this measure would be

applied Financial Statements as earnings are used to predict future share significant to the users of the Financial Statements.

price and the Group's ability to make dividend distributions.
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Independent auditor’s report continued
To the members of CMC Markets plc

6. Our application of materiality continued

Materiality continued

Group materiality £2.60m

Component materiality range

£1.30mto £2.50m
PBT £52.20m
BEPBT
L Audit Committee
Group materiaiity reporting threshold
£013m

6.2 Performance materiality
We set performance materiality at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceed the
materiality for the Financial Statements as a whole.

Group Financial Statements Parent company Financial Statements
Performance materiality 70% (2022 predecessor auditor 75%) of Group materiality 70% (2022 predecessor auditor 75%) of parent
(% of materiality) company materiality

Basis and rationale for determining In determining performance materiality, we considered the following factors:

f terialit
periormancematenaity the fact that this is the first year of external audit being undertaken by Deloitte;

the quality of the control environment and whether we were able to rely on controls;

control observations identified by internal audit and the predecessor auditor; and

the nature, volume and size of misstatements identified in the prior year audit.

6.3 Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Group Audit Committee (‘GAC”) that we would report to it all audit differences in excess of £130,000 (2022 predecessor auditor: £227,000),
as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the GAC on disclosure matters that we
identified when assessing the overall presentation of the Financial Statements.

7.Anoverview of the scope of our audit

711dentification and scoping of Group entities

The scope of our Group audit was determined by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including Group-wide controls, our review of the
audit files of the predecessor auditor, and our assessment of the risks of material misstatement at the level of the Group Financial Statements. The Group comprises
several entities globally, and has operations in over 10 countries. As such, a portion of our audit planning effort was dedicated to ensuring that the scope of work
performed is appropriate in order to address the identified risks of material misstatement.

The factors that we considered when assessing the scope of the CMC Markets plc audit, and the level of work to be performed at the entities that are in scope for
Group reporting purposes, include the following:

the nature of the Group and the parent company, how entities are organised, and the significant extent of centralisation of the control environment and the
processing of transactions across the Group;

the financial significance of an entity to the Group's PBT, Revenue and Total Assets, including consideration of the financial significance of specific account
balances or transactions;

the effectiveness of the control environment and monitoring activities, including entity-level controls; and

findings, observations and audit differences that we noted through review of the predecessor audit files.
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7.An overview of the scope of our audit continued

71l1dentification and scoping of Group entities continued
As aresult, we identified three financially-significant entities (2022 predecessor auditor: four entities) which are subject to full scope audit procedures. Our audit
procedures inrespect of these entities were performed to a materiality in the range of £1.3m - £2.5m.

Inaddition, audit procedures on specified account account balances were performed across six entities which were not considered to be financially significant
(2022 predecessor auditor: 2 entities).

The remaining entities are not individually significant to the Group, and include a number of small, low risk entities and balances. On aggregate, these represent 2%
of Group PBT, 1% of Group Revenue and 1% of Group Total Assets. For these entities, we performed analytical reviews and undertook additional risk assessment
procedures. We also tested management’s Group-wide controls across these entities. We concluded that through these additional procedures, we have reduced
the audit risk of the detection of a material misstatement to a sufficiently low level.

Audit procedures were performed for entities subject to full-scope audit and audit of specified account balances by audit teams based in both the UK (Group audit
team) and Australia.

The audit of the Group consolidation s performed by the Group audit team. In addition, the Group audit team performed audit procedures over the Group’'s global
trading Revenues (CFD), and the corresponding Trade Receivables.

7.2 Our consideration of the control environment

Our audit approach was to place reliance on management's relevant controls where we found the controls to be designed and operating effectively. Our controls
testing procedures comprised an assessment of the design and implementation, and the testing of a sample of controliterations across the year to determine the
operating effectiveness, of each relevant control. These procedures consisted of a combination of enquiry, observation, inspection and re-performance.

Insome situations, we were not able to take a controls reliance approach due to identified deficiencies ininternal control, where insufficient mitigating or alternative
controls could instead be relied upon. In such situations, we adopted a non-controls reliant (i.e. fully substantive,) approach. All control deficiencies which we
considered to be significant were communicated to the GAC. Please refer to the Group Audit Committee report on pages 87 to 90. All other deficiencies were
communicated to management. For all deficiencies identified, we considered the impact on our audit plan and the need to adjust our audit approach accordingly.

The nature of the Group's information technology (“IT”) environment is complex, and we scoped various the Group's IT infrastructure according to their relevance to
the entity’s financial reporting process.

We planned to rely on the General IT controls (‘GITCs") associated with these systems, where these GITC were appropriately designed, implemented, and operating
effectively. To test the operating effectiveness of GITCs we worked alongside our IT specialists to perform testing on access security, change management, data
centre operations and network operations. In some instances, we identified GITCs did not operate effectively across the full year, requiring additional substantive
procedures to be performed in order to mitigate the risk, allowing us to maintain a controls-reliant approach in the impacted areas.

7.3 Our consideration of climate-related risks
In planning our audit, we have considered the impact of climate change on the Group's operations and subsequent impact onits Financial Statements. The Group
sets out its assessment of the potential impact on pages 50 to 59 of the Strategic Report of the Annual Report.

We have held discussions with the Group to understand their:

— process for identifying affected operations, including governance and controls over this process, and the subsequent effect on the Group's financial reporting; and
— long-term strategy to respond to climate change risks as they evolve, including the impact on the Group's forecasts.

Our audit work involved:

— obtaining an understanding of management's analysis, used to inform the Group's climate risk assessment; and

— assessing the sufficiency and extent of disclosures in the Annual Report and the consistency between the Financial Statements and the remainder of the
Annual Report.

Oraudit procedures require us to read and consider these disclosures, and to evaluate whether they are materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or
knowledge obtained in the performance of our audit. We did not identify any such material inconsistencies as a result of these procedures.

7.4 Working with other auditors

The Group audit team are responsible for the scope and direction of the audit process and provide direct oversight, review, and coordination of our global audit
teams. We interacted regularly with each team during each stage of the audit and reviewed key working papers. We maintained continuous and open dialogue with
our global teams in addition to holding formal meetings so that we were fully aware of their progress and results of their procedures.

The Group audit team conducted in-person visits, in addition to remote communication, to exercise engagement and oversight with the Australian audit team. These
meetings included discussing the audit approach including risk assessments and any issues arising from the audit team’s work, meeting with local management, and
reviewing key audit working papers on higher and significant-risk areas to drive a consistent and high quality audit. In addition, a global planning meeting was held
virtually in September 2022, led by the Group audit team, partners and staff from full scope entity audit teams, as well audit teams responsible for testing in support of
local, statutory audits globally.
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To the members of CMC Markets plc

8. Otherinformation

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report other than the Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Directors
are responsible for the other information contained within the Annual Report.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or
our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in
the Financial Statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

9. Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Financial Statements and for being satisfied
that they give atrue and fair view, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of Financial Statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or
the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

10. Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error,and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
inaccordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

Afurther description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements is located on the FRC's website at: wwwifrc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor report.
11. Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to
detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below.

11.11dentifying and assessing potential risks related to irregularities
Inidentifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we considered
the following:

— thenature of the industry and sector, control environment and business performance including the design of the Group's remuneration policies, key drivers for
Directors' remuneration and bonus levels;

— the Groups own assessment of the risks that irregularities may occur either as a result of fraud or error that was approved by the Board on 31 May 2023;

— results of our enquiries of management, internal audit, Directors, and the Audit Committee about their own identification and assessment of the risks of
irregularities, including those that are specific to the Group's sector;

— any matters we identified having obtained and reviewed the Group's documentation of their policies and procedures relating to:
- identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance;
« detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud
- theinternal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulation.

— the matters discussed among the audit engagement team, including financially-significant entity audit teams, and relevant internal specialists, including tax,
valuations,and IT specialists regarding how and where fraud might occur in the Financial Statements and any potential indicators of fraud. These discussions also
involved fraud specialists with whom the engagement team discussed fraud schemes that had arisen in similar sectors and industries.

As aresult of these procedures, we considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and identified the greatest potential
for fraud in the following areas:

— Carrying value of intangible assets under development relating to CMC Invest.
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11. Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud continued

11.11dentifying and assessing potential risks related to irregularities continued
Incommon with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of management override.

We also obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the Group operates in, focusing on provisions of those laws and regulations that had
adirect effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the Financial Statements. The key laws and regulations we considered in this context
included the UK Companies Act, as well as those laws and regulations prevailing in each country in which we identified a full-scope entity.

Inaddition, we considered provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the Financial Statements but compliance with which may be
fundamental to the Group’'s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty. These included the Group's obligations under respective regulatory regimes, transaction
reporting, capital and liquidity requirements.

11.2 Audit response torisks identified

As aresult of performing the above, we identified the carrying value of intangible assets under development relating to CMC Invest as a key audit matter related to the
potential risk of fraud. The key audit matters section of our report explains the matter in more and also describes the specific procedures we performed in response
to that key audit matter.

Inaddition to the above, our procedures to respond to risks identified included the following:

— reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with provisions of relevant laws and regulations
described as having a direct effect on the Financial Statements;

— enquiring of management, the Audit Committee and external legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims;
— performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material misstatement due to fraud;

— reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and reviewing correspondence with relevant tax authorities and
regulatory bodies; and

— inaddressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessing whether
the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluating the business rationale of any significant transactions that
are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team members, including internal specialists and global
audit teams, and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

12. Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
Inour opinion the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

— theinformation givenin the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the Financial Statements are prepared is consistent with the
Financial Statements; and

— the strategic report and the Directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not
identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors report.

13. Corporate Governance Statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the Directors’ statement in relation to going concern, longer-term viability and that part of the Corporate Governance
Statement relating to the Group's compliance with the Provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review.

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following elements of the Corporate Governance Statement is materially
consistent with the Financial Statements and our knowledge obtained during the audit:

— the Directors' statement with regards to the appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis of accounting and any material uncertainties identified set out
on page 66;

the Directors' explanation as to its assessment of the Group's prospects, the period this assessment covers and why the period is appropriate set out on page 66;

the Directors’ statement on fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 84;

the board's confirmation that it has carried out a robust assessment of the emerging and principal risks set out on page 67;
— the section of the Annual Report that describes the review of effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems set out on page 86; and

— the section describing the work of the Audit Committee set out on pages 87 to 90.
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14. Matters on which we are required to report by exception

141 Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

— we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

— adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us; or

— the Parent Company Financial Statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

14.2 Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration have not been made or the part of the
Directors' remuneration report to be audited is not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

15. Other matters which we are required to address

15.1 Auditor tenure
Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appointed by the members on 28 July 2022 to audit the Financial Statements for the year ending 31
March 2023 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals and reappointments of the firmis 1year.

15.2 Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the Audit Committee
Our audit opinionis consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee we are required to provide in accordance with ISAs (UK).

16. Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

As required by the Financial Conduct Authority (‘FCA’) Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule (‘DTR”) 4114R, these Financial Statements will form part of

the European Single Electronic Format (‘ESEF”) prepared Annual Financial Report filed on the National Storage Mechanism of the UK FCA in accordance with the
ESEF Regulatory Technical Standard (‘ESEF RTS"). This auditor report provides no assurance over whether the annual financial report has been prepared using the
single electronic format specified in the ESEF RTS.

Fiona Walker, FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom
13June 2023
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Year ended Yearended

31March2023 31March2022

(Restated)

GROUP Note £000 £000
Revenue 311,210 325,809
Interestincome 13,927 834
Total revenue 4 325,137 326,643
Introducing partner commissions and betting levies (36,714) (44,693)
Net operatingincome 3 288,423 281,950
Operating expenses 5 (233,945) (188,291)
Operating profit 54,478 93,659
Finance costs 7 (2,315) (2,164)
Profit before taxation 8 52,163 91,495
Taxation 9 (10,724) (20,016)
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent 41,439 71479

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 10 14.7p 24.6p
Diluted earnings per share 10 14.6p 24.5p

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own income statement or statement of comprehensive income.

The Company had no other comprehensive income.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Year ended Yearended
31March 2023 31March2022
(Restated)
GROUP Note £000 £000
Profit for the year 41,439 71,479
Other comprehensive income/(expense):
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to income statement
Loss onnetinvestment hedges, net of tax 27 (86) (1,089)
Gains recycled from equity to the income statement 27 237 —
Currency translation differences 27 (1,760) 1,761
Changesin the fair value of debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income, net of tax 27 (210) (54)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income for the year (1,819) 618
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners of the parent 39,620 72,097
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Consolidated statement of financial position

At31March 2023

31March 2023 31March2022

(Restated)

GROUP Note £°000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 12 35,342 30,328
Property, plant and equipment 13 22,771 23,170
Deferredtax assets 14 4,768 6,022
Financialinvestments 19 34 13,448
Trade and other receivables 16 2,666 1,797
Total non-current assets 65,581 74,765
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 16 130,616 148,208
Derivative financial instruments 17 14,231 8,788
Current tax recoverable 9,066 1,649
Otherassets 18 1,984 13,443
Financial investments 19 30,572 14,497
Amounts due from brokers 188,154 208,882
Cashand cashequivalents 20 146,218 176,578
Total current assets 520,841 572,045
Total assets 586,422 646,810
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 182,284 212,626
Amounts due to brokers 8,927 12,394
Derivative financial instruments 17 2,033 3,679
Share buyback liability - 27,264
Borrowings 22 — 194
Lease liabilities 23 5,590 4,949
Current tax payable 431 1,729
Provisions 24 815 369
Total current liabilities 200,080 263,204
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 23 6,228 9,302
Deferredtax liabilities 14 4,012 3,309
Provisions 24 2,087 217
Total non-current liabilities 12,327 14,728
Total liabilities 212,407 277932
EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital 25 70,573 73193
Share premium 25 46,236 46,236
Capitalredemptionreserve 25 2,901 281
Ownshares heldintrust 26 (1,509) (1,094)
Otherreserves 27 (50,535) (75,980)
Retained earnings 306,349 326,242
Total equity 374,015 368,878
Total equity and liabilities 586,422 646,810

The Financial Statements on pages 133 to 182 were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 June 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

( rudelo-=, { vour Aozl |

Lord Cruddas Euan Marshall
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Parent company statement of financial position

At31March 2023
Company registration number: 05145017

31March 2023 31March 2022
(Restated)

COMPANY Note £000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 15 167,090 167,722
Total non-current assets 167,090 167,722
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 16 1,932 1,020
Cashand cashequivalents 20 586 28,446
Total current assets 2,518 29,466
Total assets 169,608 197188
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 122 176
Share buyback liability — 27264
Total current liabilities 122 27440
Total liabilities 122 27,440
EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital 25 70,573 73193
Share premium 25 46,236 46,236
Capital redemptionreserve 25 2,901 281
Share buyback reserve 27 — (27,264)
Ownshares heldin trust 26 (1,509) (1,094)
Retained earnings at 1 April 78,396 49,156
Profit for the year attributable to the owners 33,763 102,841
Other changesinretained earnings (60,874) (73,601)
Retained earnings at 31March 51,285 78,396
Total equity 169,486 169,748
Total equity and liabilities 169,608 197,188

The Financial Statements on pages 133 to 182 were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 June 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

5 /Zz/k/ﬁ“":'b

Lord Cruddas Euan Marshall

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Capital

Share Share redemption Ownshares Other Retained Total

capital premium reserve heldintrust reserves earnings equity
GROUP Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2021 (Reported) 73,299 46,236 — (382) (49,334) 330,698 400,517
Correctionof errors — — — — — (968) (968)
At 1 April 2021 (Restated) 73,299 46,236 — (382) (49,334) 329,730 399,549
Profit for the year — — — — — 71479 71479
Loss onnetinvestment hedges, net of tax — — — — (1,089) — (1,089)
Currency translation differences — — — — 1,761 — 1,761
Changes inthe fair value of debt instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive income,
netof tax — — — — (54) — (54)
Total comprehensive income for the year — — — — 618 71,479 72,097
New sharesissued 175 — — — — — 175
Acquisition of own shares held in trust 26 — — — (1,006) — — (1,000)
Utilisation of own shares held in trust 26 — — — 294 — — 294
Share buyback 25 (281) — 281 — (27,264) (2,975) (30,239)
Share-based payments — — — — — 59 59
Tax onshare-based payments — — — — — 553 553
Dividends 11 — — — — — (72,604) (72,604)
At 31 March 2022 (Restated) 73,193 46,236 281 (1,094) (75,980) 326,242 368,878
Profit for the year - - - - - 41,439 41,439
Lossonnetinvestment hedges, net of tax — — — — (86) - (86)
Gainsrecycledfromequity to theincome statement - —_ - - 237 - 237
Currency translation differences — — — — (1,760) - (1,760)
Changes inthe fair value of debt instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive income,
net of tax — — — — (210) - (210)
Total comprehensive income for the year — — - — (1,819) 41,439 39,620
Acquisition of own shares held in trust 26 — — — (1,106) — - (1,106)
Utilisation of own shares held in trust 26 — — — 691 — — 691
Share buyback 25 (2,620) — 2,620 — 27,264 (27,264) -
Share-based payments - - - - - 972 972
Dividends 1 — — — — — (35,040) (35,040)
At 31March 2023 70,573 46,236 2,901 (1,509) (50,535) 306,349 374,015
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Parent company statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Capital
redemption  Share buyback Ownshares Retained

Sharecapital ~ Share premium reserve reserve heldintrust earnings Totalequity
COMPANY Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 31March 2021 (Reported) 73,299 46,236 — — — 49,153 168,688
Correctionof errors — — — — (382) 3 (379)
At1April 2021 (Restated) 73,299 46,236 — — (382) 49,156 168,309
Profit and total comprehensive income
forthe year — — — — — 102,841 102,841
New sharesissued 175 — — — — — 175
Acquisition of own shares heldin trust 26 — — — — (1,006) — (1,006)
Utilisation of own shares held in trust 26 294 — 294
Share-based payments — — — — — 1,978 1,978
Share buyback 25 (281) — 281 (27,264) — (2,975) (80,239)
Dividends 11 — — — — — (72,604) (72,604)
At 31March 2022 (Restated) 73,193 46,236 281 (27,264) (1,094) 78,396 169,748
Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year — — — - — 33,763 33,763
Acquisition of own shares heldin trust 26 — — — - (1,106) — (1,106)
Utilisation of own shares held in trust 26 — — — - 691 — 691
Share-based payments — —_ - - - 1,430 1,430
Share buyback 25 (2,620) — 2,620 27,264 — (27,264) —
Dividends 11 — — — - — (35,040) (35,040)
At 31 March 2023 70,573 46,236 2,901 - (1,509) 51,285 169,486
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Consolidated and parent company statements of cash flows
For the year ended 31 March 2023

GROUP COMPANY
Year ended Yearended Year ended Yearended
31March 2023 31March 2022 31March 2023 31March 2022
(Restated) (Restated)
Note £°000 £000 £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 28 76,584 171128 607 13,921
Interestincome 13,950 1,742 — —
Finance costs (2,315) (2,138) (318) (475)
Tax paid (17,060) (14,651) - —
Net cash generated from operating activities 71,159 156,081 289 13,446
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (7,091) (8,500) — —
Investmentinintangible assets (21,130) (12,313) — —
Purchase of financial investments (17,345) (28,337) — —
Proceeds from maturity of financial investments 14,415 27,511 — —
Outflow on netinvestment hedges (8) (998) - —
Amounts contributed by subsidiaries in relation to share based
payments —_ — 1,001 1,030
Dividendsreceived — — 34,260 103,617
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (31,159) (17,637) 35,261 104,647
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings (1,194) (10,945) - (13,549)
Proceeds from borrowings 1,000 10,000 - —
Principal elements of lease payments (5,454) (4,808) — —
Acquisition of own shares (1,106) (831) (1,106) (831)
Payments for share buyback (27,264) (2,975) (27,264) (2,975)
Dividends paid (35,040) (72,604) (35,040) (72,604)
Net cash used in financing activities (69,058) (82,163) (63,410) (89,959)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (29,058) 56,281 (27,860) 28134
Cashand cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 20 176,578 118,921 28,446 312
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (1.302) 1,376 — —
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 20 146,218 176,578 586 28,446

Please refer to note 33 for more information on the restatement for the year ended 31 March 2022.
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Notes to the consolidated and parent company financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2023

1. General information and basis of preparation

Corporate information
CMC Markets plc (the “Company”) is a public company limited by shares incorporated in the United Kingdom and domiciled in England and Wales under the
Companies Act 2006. The nature of the operations and principal activities of CMC Markets plc and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group’) are set out in note 3.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the Financial Statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The Group's Financial Statements are presented in Sterling (GBP), which is the Company's functional and the Group's
presentation currency. Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies set outin note 2.

Goingconcern
The Directors have prepared the Financial Statements on a going concern basis which requires the Directors to have a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of the Financial Statements.

The Group has considerable financial resources, a broad range of products and a geographically diversified business. Consequently, the Directors believe that the
Groupis well placed to manage its business risks in the context of the current economic outlook.

Accordingly, the Directors have reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources for that period and believe it is appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the Financial Statements. Further details are set out in the Viability statement on page 66.

Basis of accounting
The Financial Statements of the Group and the Company have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards in conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and the disclosure guidance and transparency rules sourcebook of the United Kingdom's Financial Conduct Authority.

The Financial Statements of the Group and the Company have been prepared in accordance with the going concern basis, under the historical cost convention,
except in the case of “Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVPL")” and “Financial instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI")". The financial information is rounded to the nearest thousand except where otherwise indicated.

The Company and Group's principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements are set out in note 2 below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all years presented, with the exception of the adoption of the new and revised standards as set out below. The Financial Statements
presented are at and for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022. Financial annual years are referred to as 2023 and 2022 in the Financial Statements.

Application of new and revised accounting standards
The following standards and interpretations applied for the first time in the current financial year, but do not have a significantimpact on the Financial Statements of
the Company and the Group:

Reference to the conceptual framework — Amendments to IFRS 3
Annualimprovements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020

New accounting standards inissue but not yet effective
At the date of authorisation of the Financial Statements, the following new standards and interpretations relevant to the Company and the Group were inissue but not
yet effective and have not been applied to the Financial Statements:

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current — Amendments to IAS 1

Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments to IAS 1and IFRS Practice Statement 2

Definition of Accounting Estimate — Amendments to IAS 8

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction — Amendments to IAS 12

The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material impact on the Financial Statements of the Company and the Groupin
future periods.

Basis of consolidation

The Financial Statements incorporate the financial information of the Company and its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power to direct the activities of the entity.

CMC Markets plc became the ultimate holding company of the Group under a Group reorganisation in 2006. The pooling of interests method of accounting was applied
to the Group reorganisation as it fell outside the scope of IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”. The Directors adopted the pooling of interests as they believed it best reflected
the true nature of the Group. All other business combinations have been accounted for by the acquisition method of accounting.

Under the acquisition method of accounting, the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured initially at their fair values at the date of
acquisition, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the Consolidated Income
Statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial information of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those adopted by the Group.

Allinter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of animpairment of the asset transferred.

140 - CMC Markets plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2023



Strategic report Governance Financial statements Shareholder information 0

1. General information and basis of preparation continued

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain significant accounting judgements. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the Consolidated Financial Statements are:

Contingent liabilities
Judgement has been applied in evaluating the accounting treatment of the specific matters described in note 35 (Contingent Liabilities), notably the probability of any
obligation or future payments arising.

Accounting for cryptocurrencies

The Group has recognised £1,984,000 (31 March 2022: £13,443,000) of cryptocurrency assets and rights to cryptocurrency assets on its Statement of Financial
Position as at 31 March 2023. These assets are used for hedging purposes and held for sale in the ordinary course of business. A judgement has been made to apply
the measurement principles of IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” in accounting for these assets. The assets are presented as ‘other assets on the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position. Please refer to Note 2 for other assets accounting policy.

Intangible assets

The Group has recognised £13,550,000 (31 March 2022: £14,237,000) of customer relationship intangible on its Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2023
relating to the transaction with Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited (‘"ANZ”) to transition its portfolio of Share Investing clients to CMC for AUD$25
million. A judgement has been made to apply the recognition and measurement principles of IAS 38 “Intangibles” in accounting for these assets.

Key financial estimates

The Group has recognised £11,316,000 (31 March 2022: £7,965,000) of internally generated software in intangible assets on its Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 March 2023, of which £5,016,000 (31 March 2022: £6,054,000) relates to the development of CMC Invest UK trading platform. In performing the annual
impairment assessment, which concluded that no impairment was required, it was determined that the recoverable amount of the asset is a source of estimation
uncertainty whichis sensitive to the estimated future revenues from the CMC Invest UK business. We found the recoverable amount of the intangible asset to have
been based onreasonable, supportable assumptions. B2B revenue, discount rates, useful economic life, cost per trading customer acquisition, customer retention
rates and average portfolio sizes represent significant sources of estimation uncertainty. Relevant disclosure is included in note 12.

2.Summary of significant accounting policies

Totalrevenue

Revenue

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received from the provision of online financial services in the ordinary course of the Group's activities, net of
client rebates. Revenue is shown net of value added tax after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group generates revenue principally from commissions, spreads and financing income associated with stockbroking and acting as a spread bet and contract
for difference market maker toits clients, and the transactions undertaken to hedge the resulting risks.

Trading — Contracts for difference (“CFD”) and spread bet
Revenue from CFD and spread bet represents:

— fees paid by clients for commission and funding charges in respect of the opening, holding and closing of financial spread bets and contracts for difference,
together with the spread and fair value gains and losses for the Group arising on client trading activity; less

— fees paid by the Group in commissions and funding charges arising in respect of hedging the risk associated with the client trading activity and the Group's
currency exposures, together with the spread and fair value gains and losses incurred by the Group arising on hedging activity.

Spread, fair value gains and losses, commission and funding charges are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and IFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement”. Commission income is earned and recognised when the trade is placed, and funding charges when an open positionis held by a customer at
5:00pm New York time. Open client and hedging positions are fair valued on a daily basis and the unrealised gains and losses arising on this valuation are recognised
inrevenue, alongside realised gains and losses on positions that have closed.

Investing — Stockbroking revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from the provision of financial information and stockbroking services to third parties represents fee and commission income. These are are accounted for
inaccordance with IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. The Group recognises this revenue when the amount for the service can be determined and
the performance obligation has been satisfied, this leads to the revenue being recognised on the date of the Group providing the service to the client.

Other revenue from contracts with customers
Other revenue from the provision of financial information, dormancy fees and balance conversions are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”.

Interestincome

Totalrevenue also includes interest earned on the Group's own funds, Money market funds, clients' funds and net broker trading deposits net of interest paid to clients
ontheir free cash balance. Interest income is accrued based on the effective interest rate method, by reference to the principal outstanding/free cash held and at

the interest rate applicable. In addition, the Group earns interest income on UK government securities held as financial investments, calculated using the effective
interest method.
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2.Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Total revenue continued

Interestincome continued

Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases. This is presented within other interestincome.

Introducing partner commissions and betting levies

Commissions payable to introducing partners and spread betting levies are charged to the income statement when the associated revenue is recognised and are
disclosed as a deduction from total revenue in deriving net operating income. Betting levy is payable on net gains generated from clients on spread betting and the
Countdowns products.

Segmental reporting

The Group's segmental information is disclosed in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (‘CODM”). The
chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the
CMC Markets plc Board. Operating segments that do not meet the quantitative thresholds required by IFRS 8 are aggregated. The segments are subject to annual
review and the comparatives restated to reflect any reclassifications within the segmental reporting.

Share-based payment
The Group issues equity settled and cash settled share-based payments to certain employees.

Equity settled share-based payments are measured at fair value (excluding the effect of non-market-based vesting conditions) at date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity settled share-based payment is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate
of shares that will eventually vest. At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest as a result of

the effect of non-market-based vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the income statement such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the retained earnings.

The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

Cash settled share-based payments are measured at expected value at vesting date at least once per year, along with the likelihood of meeting non-market-based
vesting conditions and the number of shares that are expected to vest. The cost is recognised in the income statement with a corresponding liability recorded.

Retirement benefit costs

Adefined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan into which the Group pays fixed contributions to a third-party pension provider and has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Contributions are recognised as staff expenses in profit or loss in the years during which related employee services
are fulfilled.

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes for its Directors and employees. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group
inindependently administered funds.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and movements in deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the Consolidated Income Statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Groups liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount

of assets and liabilities in the financial information and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxable profit. In principle, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences may be utilised. Deferred tax is calculated using tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the asset or liability is settled.

Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction, which affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities onanet basis.

Current and deferred tax is charged or credited in the Consolidated Income Statement, except wheniit relates to items credited or charged directly to equity, in which
case the tax is also dealt with in equity.
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2.Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Foreign currencies

Transactions denominated in currencies, other than the functional currency, are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. Ateach
balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Gains
and losses arising on retranslation are included in the income statement for the year, except for exchange differences arising on non-monetary assets and liabilities
where the changes in fair value are recognised directly in equity.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group's overseas operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income
and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates applicable to the relevant year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and
transferred to the Group’'s translation reserve.

Such translation differences are recognised as income or expense in the year in which the operation is disposed of.
Goodwilland fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwillrepresents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Groupss interest in the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of a subsidiary, at the date of acquisition. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is included within “intangible assets” at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

Goodwillis tested for impairment annually. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the Consolidated Income Statement and is not subsequently reversed. On
disposal of a subsidiary, the attributed amount of goodwill, which has not been subject to impairment, is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwillis allocated to cash-generating units for purposes of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination, identified according to business segment.

Computer software (purchased and developed)
Purchased software is recognised as an intangible asset at cost when acquired. Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an
expense as incurred. Costs directly attributable to internally developed software are recognised as an intangible asset only if all of the following conditions are met:

— itis technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use;

— management intends to complete the software and use it;

— thereis anability to use the software;

— itcan be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits;

— adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use the software are available; and
— the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured.

Where the above conditions are not met, costs are expensed as incurred. Directly attributable costs that are capitalised include contractor costs associated with the
development of software. Costs which have been recognised as an asset are amortised on a straight-line basis over the asset's estimated useful life from the point at
which the asset is ready to use.

Trademarks and trading licences
Trademarks and trading licences that are separately acquired are capitalised at cost and those acquired from a business combination are capitalised at the fair value
at the date of acquisition. Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Client relationships

The fair value attributable to client relationships acquired through a business combination is included as an intangible asset and amortised over the estimated useful
life on a straight-line basis. The fair value of client relationships is calculated at the date of acquisition on the basis of the expected future cash flows to be generated
fromthat asset. Separate values are not attributed to internally generated client relationships.

Following initial recognition, computer software, trademarks and trading licences and client relationships are carried at cost or initial fair value less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is provided on all intangible assets at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value based on prices prevailing at the
balance sheet date, of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life as follows:

Item Amortisation policy
Computer software (purchased and developed) 3-10years or life of licence
Trademarks and trading licences 10-20years
Client relationships 10-14 years

Usefullives are also examined on an annual basis and adjustments, where applicable, are made on a prospective basis. Assets under development are transferred
to the relevant intangible asset class and amortised over their useful life from the point at which the asset is ready to use. Assets under development are tested for
impairment annually.
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2.Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE”) is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes the original purchase
price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Depreciationis provided on all PPE at rates calculated to
write off the cost, less estimated residual value based on prices prevailing at the balance sheet date, of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life
as follows:

Item Depreciation policy
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5years
Computer hardware 5years
Leaseholdimprovements 15yearsor life of lease

The useful lives and residual values of the assets are assessed annually and may be adjusted depending on a number of factors. Inreassessing asset lives, factors
such as technological innovation, product life cycles and maintenance programmes are taken into account. Residual value assessments consider issues such as

future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values. Consideration is also given to the extent of current profits and losses on the

disposal of similar assets.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement.

Investment in subsidiary undertakings
Inthe Parent Company Statement of Financial Position, investment in subsidiary undertakings is stated at cost less any provision forimpairment.

Impairment of assets

Assets subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset
may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cost to selland value in use. Value in use is the estimated discounted future cash flows generated from the
asset’s continued use, including those fromits ultimate disposal. Net realisable value is the estimated amount at which an asset can be disposed of, less any direct
selling costs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

Anassessment is made at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated and previously recognised impairment losses are reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of
the asset s increased toits recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of animpairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Financial instruments
Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

— those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income (“OCI"), or through profit or loss); and
— those to be measured at amortised cost.

Measurement

Atinitial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset measured through other comprehensive income or at
amortised cost, transaction costs that are both incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Regular way transactions are recognised
ontrade date.

The Group subsequently measures cash and cash equivalents, amounts due from brokers and trade and other receivables at amortised cost. The Group
subsequently measures derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, unless designated as instrument in an effective hedge accounting
relationship, and financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Afinancial asset or liability is generally derecognised when the contract that gives rise to it is settled, sold, cancelled or expired.

Cashand cash equivalents
Cashand cash equivalents comprises of cash on hand and short-term deposits. Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. This includes money market funds.

Amounts due from/due to brokers

Amounts due from/due to brokers represent funds placed with hedging counterparties, a proportion of which are posted to meet broker margin requirements.
Allfinancial instruments used as hedges held for trading are margin traded. Assets or liabilities resulting from profits or losses on open positions are recognised
separately as derivative financial instruments, where IAS 32 offsetting criteria is not met.
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2.Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Other assets
Other assets represent cryptocurrencies controlled by the Group. The Group offers CFDs on cryptocurrencies as a product that can be traded onits platform. As
part of a wider hedging strategy, the Group purchases and sells cryptocurrencies to hedge the clients’ positions.

The Group holds cryptocurrency assets for trading in the ordinary course of its business, effectively acting as a commodity broker-dealer in respect of the underlying
cryptocurrency asset. The assets are recognised on trade date and measured at fair value with changes in valuation being recorded in the income statement in the
period in which they arise. Cryptocurrency assets are not financial instruments, and they are categorised as non-financial assets.

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables primarily comprise amounts due from clients and stockbroking settlement balances. They are short term in nature are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less an allowance for expected credit losses.

Trade receivables are short term and do not contain a significant financing element and therefore expected credit losses are measured using the simplified approach
permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from the initial recognition of the receivables. Amounts are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery of the amount.

The expected loss model for these trade receivables has been built based on the levels of loss experienced, with due consideration given to forward-looking information.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement within
netimpairment gains/(losses) on financial assets. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against netimpairment gains/(losses) in the income statement.

Financialinvestments
Under IFRS 9, financial assets that are debt instruments held in a business model that is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling and that
contain contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (‘SPPI”) are measured at FVOCI.

Financial investments in UK Government securities are non-derivative financial assets and are recognised on a trade date basis. These financial investments are
initially measured at fair value plus directly related transactions costs. They are re-measured at fair value. Interest calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised inthe income statement. All other net gains and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income until the assets are sold or disposed of. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCl are reclassified to the income statement.

Financial investments in Equity securities are non-derivative financial assets and are recognised on a trade date basis and are measured at FVTPL.

The Group recognises a charge for expected credit losses in the income statement. As financial investments are measured at fair value, the charge does not adjust
the carrying value of the asset, and this is reflected in other comprehensive income.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, comprising index, commodities, foreign exchange and treasury futures and forward foreign exchange contracts, are classified as “fair
value through profit or loss” under IFRS 9, unless designated as accounting hedges. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
changesin fair value of derivatives that are not designated as accounting hedges, and gains or losses on their settlement, are recognised in the income statement.

For accounting hedges, the Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk
management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedging transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and onan
ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

The Group categorises certain derivatives as either:

Held for trading

The Group uses derivative financial instruments in order to economically hedge derivative exposures arising from open client positions, which are classified as
held for trading. All derivatives held for trading are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with gains or losses recognised in revenue in the income
statement.

Held as hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Where a foreign currency derivative financial instrument is a formally designated accounting hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation, foreign exchange
differences arising on translation of the financial instrument are recognised in the net investment hedging reserve via other comprehensive income to the extent the
hedge is effective. The Group assesses the effectiveness of its net investment hedges based on fair value changes due to foreign exchange risk of its net assets and
the fair value changes of the relevant financial instrument. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in operating expenses inthe
income statement. Accumulated gains and losses recorded in the net investment hedging reserve are recognised in operating costs in the income statement on
disposal of the foreign operation.

Economic hedges (held as hedges of monetary assets and liabilities, financial commitments or forecast transactions)

These are derivatives held to mitigate the foreign exchange risk on monetary assets and liabilities, financial commitments or forecast transactions. Where a derivative
financial instrument is used as an economic hedge of the foreign exchange exposure of a recognised monetary asset or liability, financial commitment or forecast
transaction, but does not meet the criteria to qualify for hedge accounting under IFRS, no hedge accounting is applied and any gain or loss resulting from changes in
fair value of the hedging instrument is recognised in operating costs in the income statement.
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2.Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are not interest bearing and are stated at fair value on initial recognition and subsequently at amortised cost.

Leases
Under IFRS 16, when the Group is the lessee, it is required to recognise both:
— alease liability, measured at the present value of remaining cash flows on the lease; and

— aright-of-use (ROU) asset, measured at the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, plus any lease payments made prior to commencement date
initial direct costs, and estimated costs of restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the lease, less any lease incentives received.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicitin the
lease is not readily determinable.

Subsequently, the lease liability will increase for the accrual of interest, resulting in a constant rate of return throughout the life of the lease, and reduce when the
payments are made. The right of use asset willamortise to the income statement over the life of the lease. The lease liability is remeasured when there is achange in
one of the following:

— future lease payments arising from a change inanindex or rate;
— the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; or
— the Group's assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the ROU asset, or is recorded in the income statement if the
carrying amount of the ROU asset has been reduced to £nil.

Onthe Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the ROU assets are included within property, plant and equipment.

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Extension and termination options are included in anumber of property leases in the Group. Management considers the facts and circumstances that may create an
economic incentive to exercise an extension or termination option in order to determine whether the lease term should include or exclude such options. Extension

or termination options are only included within the lease term if they are reasonably certain to be exercised in the case of extension options and not exercised in the
case of termination options.

The Group enters into lease agreements as alessor with respect to some of its vehicles that it leases under head leases. When the Group is an intermediate lessor,
it accounts for the head lease and the sub-lease as two separate contracts. The sub-lease of vehicles is classified as a finance lease. Amounts due from the lessees
under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Borrowings

Allloans and borrowings are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration received, net of issue costs associated with the borrowing. After
initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any issue costs, and any discount or premium on settlement.

Provisions

Aprovisionis a liability of uncertain timing or amount that is recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event
where itis probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the obligation at the balance sheet date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material. The increase in the provision due to the unwind of the
discount to present value over time is recognised as an interest expense.

Share capital
Ordinary and Deferred Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

Own shares heldin trusts
Shares held in trust by the Company for the purposes of employee share schemes are classified as a deduction from shareholders' equity and are recognised at
cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of equity shares.

Capital redemptionreserve

The capital redemption reserve was created for capital maintenance purposes as a result of the share buyback programme. When shares are repurchased out of the
Company’s profits, the amount by which the Company’sissued share capital is diminished must be transferred to the capital redemption reserve. Thisamount is the
nominal value of the shares bought back. See note 25.
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2.Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Share buyback reserve

The share buyback reserve was created as a result of the share buyback programme and on inception of the contract amounted to the full value of the share
buyback programme plus directly attributed costs. As shares are repurchased, the share buyback reserve amount is reduced by the consideration paid for the
repurchased shares with a corresponding transaction recorded within retained earnings to reflect the consumption of distributable profits. See note 27.

Employee benefit trusts
Assets held in employee benefit trusts (‘EBT”) are recognised as assets of the Group, until these vest unconditionally to identified employees. A full provision is made
inrespect of assets held by the trust as there is an obligation to distribute these assets to the beneficiaries of the employee benefit trust.

The employee benefit trusts own equity shares in the Company. These investments in the Company’s own shares are held at cost and are included as a deduction
from equity attributable to the Company’s equity owners until such time as the shares are cancelled or transferred. Where such shares are subsequently transferred,
any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company’s equity owners.

Client money

The Group holds money on behalf of clients in accordance with the Client Asset (‘CASS’) rules of the FCA and other financial markets regulators in the countries in
which the Group operates. Segregated client funds comprise individual client balances which are pooled in segregated client money bank accounts. Segregated
client money bank accounts hold statutory trust status restricting the Group’'s ability to use the monies and accordingly such amounts and are not recognised on the
Group's Statement of Financial Position.

3.Segmental reporting

The Group's principal business is providing leveraged online retail financial services and providing its clients with the ability to trade contracts for difference (‘CFD”)
and financial spread betting on arange of underlying shares, indices, foreign currencies, commodities and treasuries. The Group also makes these services available
toinstitutional partners through white label and introducing broker arrangements. The Group's CFDs are traded worldwide; spread bets only in the UK and Ireland
and the Group provides stockbroking services only in Australia. The Group's business is generally managed on a geographical basis and, for management purposes,
the Group is organised into four segments:

Trading— CFD and spread bet — UK and Ireland (‘UK & IE”);

Trading— CFD —Europe;

Trading— CFD - Australia, New Zealand and Singapore (‘APAC") and Canada; and

Investing — Stockbroking — Australia.

These segments are in line with the management information received by the chief operating decision maker (‘CODM”). Revenues and segment operating
expenses are allocated to the segments that originated the transaction.

Operating expenses in the central segment relate to costs that are not directly related to activities in one region or are not controlled by regional management.
These centrally generated costs are allocated to segments on an equitable basis, mainly based on revenue, headcount or active client levels, or where central
costs are directly attributed to specific segments. Animpairment of £432,000 relating to internally generated computer software assets was recognised in Trading
segment in UK and Ireland during the period.

Year ended 31 March 2023
Trading Investing
APAC &

UK&IE Europe Canada Trading total Australia Central Group total
GROUP £000 £000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Revenue 98,579 50,620 106,329 255,528 55,682 — 311,210
Interestincome 3,762 239 3,390 7,391 6,536 —_ 13,927
Total revenue 102,341 50,859 109,719 262,919 62,218 — 325,137
Introducing partner commissions
and betting levies (7,398) (853) (11,209) (18,960) (17,754) — (36,714)
Net operatingincome 94,943 50,506 98,510 243,959 44,464 - 288,423
Segment operating expenses (28,147) (7,405) (26,459) (62,011) (14,282) (157,652) (233,945)
Segment contribution 66,796 43,101 72,051 181,948 30,182 (157,652) 54,478
Allocation of central finance
operating expenses (48,075) (32,649) (45,861) (126,585) (31,067) 157,652 —
Operating profit / (loss) 18,721 10,452 26,190 55,363 (885) — 54,478
Finance costs (566) (331) (199) (1,096) (179) (1,040) (2,315)
Allocation of central finance costs (513) (163) (364) (1,040) — 1,040 —
Profit / (loss) before taxation 17,642 9,958 25,627 53,227 (1,064) — 52,163
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3.Segmental reporting continued

Year ended 31March 2022 (Restated)

Trading Investing
APAC&

UK&IE Europe Canada Trading total Australia Central Grouptotal
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue 87168 45,312 118,911 251,391 74,418 — 325,809
Interestincome (413) — 335 (78) 912 — 834
Total revenue 86,755 45,312 119,246 251,313 75,330 — 326,643
Introducing partner commissions and betting levies (6,277) (1,517) (10,527) (18,321) (26,372) — (44,693)
Net operatingincome 80,478 43,795 108,719 232,992 48,958 — 281,950
Segment operating expenses (19,421) (6,480) (22,755) (48,656) (10,422) (129,213) (188,291)
Segment contribution 61,057 37,315 85,964 184,336 38,536 (129,213) 93,659
Allocation of central operating expenses (85,527) (80,597) (40,689) (106,813) (22,400) 129,213 —
Operating profit 25,530 6,718 45,275 77523 16,136 — 93,659
Finance costs (419) (290) (195) (904) (168) (1,092) (2164)
Allocation of central finance costs (474) (207) (411) (1,092) — 1,092 —
Profit before taxation 24,637 6,221 44,669 75,5627 15,968 — 91,495

The measurement of net operating income for segmental analysis is consistent with that in the income statement and is broken down by geographic location and
business line below.

Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31March 2022
£°000 £000
Net operatingincome by geography Trading Investing Total Trading Investing Total
UK 94,943 - 94,943 80,478 — 80,478
Australia 46,850 44,464 91,314 49,020 48,958 97,978
Other countries 102,166 — 102,166 103,494 — 103,494
Total net operatingincome 243,959 44,464 288,423 232,992 48,958 281,950

The Group uses “segment contribution” to assess the financial performance of each segment. Segment contribution comprises operating profit for the year before
finance costs and taxation and an allocation of central operating expenses.

The measurement of segment assets for segmental analysis is consistent with that in the balance sheet. The total of non-current assets other than deferred tax
assets, broken down by location and business line of the assets, is shown below.

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

March 2023 March 2022

(Restated)

£°000 £000

Total Total

UK 30,996 39,397

Australia 25,348 26,254

Other countries 4,469 3,092

Total non-current assets 60,813 68,743
4. Totalrevenue

Revenue

Year ended Yearended

31March2023 31March2022

GROUP £°000 £000

Trading 252,012 247,987

Investing 55,687 74,326

Other 3,511 3,496

Total 311,210 325,809

Trading revenue (previously presented as leveraged revenue) represents CFD and spread bet revenue (net of hedging costs) accounted for in accordance with IFRS
9 “Financial Instruments”. Investing revenue (previously presented as non-leveraged revenue) represents stockbroking revenue accounted for in accordance with
IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.
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4. Total revenue continued

Interestincome

Shareholder information

0

Year ended Yearended
31March 2023 31March2022
GROUP £000 £000
Bank and broker interest 13,482 825
Interest on financial investments 440 9
Other interestincome 5 —
Total 13,927 834
The Group earns interest income fromits own corporate funds and from segregated client funds.
5. Operating expenses
Year ended Yearended
31March 2023 31March2022
(Restated)
GROUP £000 £000
Net staff costs (note 6) 101,560 84,862
IT costs 33,723 28,721
Salesand marketing 38,304 27,363
Premises 5,706 4,510
Legal and professional fees 8,605 8,568
Regulatory fees 9,436 5576
Depreciation and amortisation 15,637 12,388
Bank charges 7,362 7642
Irrecoverable sales tax 2,972 2,789
Other 10,810 6,344
234,115 188,763
Capitalised internal software development costs (170) (472)
Operating expenses 233,945 188,291
The above presentation reflects the breakdown of operating expenses by nature of expense.
6. Employee information
The aggregate employment costs of staff and Directors were:
Year ended Yearended
31March 2023 31March2022
GROUP £000 £000
Wages and salaries 92,758 74,352
Social security costs 11,850 9,475
Other pension costs 2,743 2,230
Share-based payments 2,229 2,418
Total Directors and employee costs 109,580 88,475
Contract staff costs 3,101 3,880
112,681 92,355
Capitalised internal software development costs (11,121) (7.493)
Net staff costs 101,560 84,862

Compensation of key management personnelis disclosed in note 34.
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6. Employee information continued

The monthly average number of Directors and employees of the Group during the year is set out below:

Yearended Yearended
31March 2023 31March 2022
GROUP Number Number
By activity:
Key management 9 8
Clientacquisition and maintenance 489 420
IT development and support 315 252
Global support functions 254 215
Total Directors and employees 1,067 895
Contract staff 20 22
Total staff 1,087 917
The Company had no employees during the current year or prior year.
7.Finance costs
Year ended Yearended
31March 2023 31March 2022
(Restated)
GROUP £°000 £000
Interest and fees on bank borrowings 1,657 1,451
Interest onlease liabilities 658 687
Other finance costs — 26
Total 2,315 2164
8. Profit before taxation
Year ended Yearended
31March 2023 31March 2022
(Restated)
GROUP £°000 £000
Profit before tax is stated after charging/(crediting):
Depreciation 9,962 9,568
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 5,675 2,820
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) 1,044 (1,179)
Auditor’'s remuneration for audit and other services (see below) 2,490 2,057
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor, Deloitte LLP (year ended 31 March 2022: PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP), were as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31March2023 31March2022
GROUP £°000 £000
Audit services
Audit of CMC Markets plc’s Financial Statements 814 659
Audit of CMC Markets plc’s subsidiaries 978 780
Total audit fees 1,792 1,439
Non-audit services
Audit-related services 698 618
Total non-audit fees 698 618
Total fees 2,490 2,057
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9. Taxation
Year ended Yearended
31March2023 31March2022
(Restated)
GROUP £°000 £000
Analysis of charge for the year
Current tax:
Current tax on profit for the year 9,873 18,521
Adjustmentsinrespect of previous years (991) (465)
Total current tax 8,882 18,056
Deferredtax:
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 1,180 1,698
Adjustmentsin respect of previous years 200 409
Impact of changeintaxrate 462 (147)
Total deferred tax 1,842 1,960
Total tax 10,724 20,016

The standard rate of UK corporation tax charged was 19% with effect from 1 April 2017. Taxation outside the UK is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective
jurisdictions. The effective tax rate of 20.56% (year ended 31 March 2022: 21.86%) differs from the standard rate of UK corporation tax of 19% (year ended 31 March

2022:19%). The differences are explained below:

Year ended Yearended

31March2023 31March2022

(Restated)

GROUP £000 £000
Profit before taxation 52,163 91,495
Profit multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (year ended 31 March 2022: 19%) 9,911 17,384
Adjustmentinrespect of foreigntax rates 1,205 2,500
Adjustmentsinrespect of previous years (791) (56)
Impact of changeintax rate 462 (147)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 49 291
Income not subject to tax — (62)

Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses (132) —
Taxlosses for which no deferred tax asset recognised 173 (43)
Other differences (153) 149
Total tax 10,724 20,016
Year ended Yearended

31March 2023 31March2022

GROUP £000 £000

Tax onitems recognised directly in equity

Tax credit on share-based payments - 553

10. Earnings per share (‘EPS”)

Basic EPS s calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to the equity owners of the Company by the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares inissue
during each year excluding those held in employee share trusts which are treated as cancelled. For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of
Ordinary Shares inissue, excluding those held in employee share trusts, is adjusted to assume conversion vesting of all dilutive potential weighted average Ordinary

Shares and that vesting is satisfied by the issue of new Ordinary Shares.

Year ended Yearended

31March2023 31March2022

GROUP (Restated)
Earnings attributable to Ordinary Shareholders (£'000) 41,439 71,479
Weighted average number of shares used in the calculation of basic EPS (000) 282,295 290,815
Dilutive effect of share options (000) 1,598 1,022
Weighted average number of shares used in the calculation of diluted EPS ((000) 283,893 291,837
Basic EPS 14.7p 24.6p
Diluted EPS 14.6p 24.5p

For the year ended 31March 2023,1,598,000 (year ended 31 March 2022:1,022,000) potentially dilutive weighted average Ordinary Shares in respect of share

awards inissue were included in the calculation of diluted EPS.
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11. Dividends
Year ended Yearended
31March 2023 31March 2022
GROUP AND COMPANY £000 £000
Declared and paid in each year
Final dividend for 2022 at 8.88p per share (2021: 21.43p) 25,250 62,410
Interim dividend for 2023 at 3.50p per share (2022: 3.50p) 9,790 10,194
Total 35,040 72,604

The final dividend for 2023 of 3.90 pence per share, amounting to £10,913,000 was proposed by the Board on 12 June 2023 and has not been included as a liability
at 31March 2023. The dividend will be paid on 11 August 2023, following approval at the Company’s Annual General Meeting, to those members on the register at the
close of business on 14 July 2023. The dividends paid or declared in relation to the financial year are set out below:

Year ended Yearended
31March 2023 31March 2022
GROUP AND COMPANY Pence Pence
Declared per share
Interim dividend 3.50 3.50
Final dividend 3.90 8.88
Total dividend 740 12.38
12.Intangible assets
Computer Trademarksand Client Assetsunder
Goodwill software trading licences relationships development Total
GROUP £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At1April 2021 11,500 125,995 1,397 2,995 6,148 148,035
Additions — 7 — — 21,736 21,813
Transfers — 5,246 — — (5,246) —
Disposals — — (356) — — (356)
Foreign currency translation — 869 11 100 970 1,950
At 31March 2022 11,500 132,187 1,052 3,095 23,608 171,442
Additions - 291 23 - 11,316 11,630
Transfers — 12,803 — 14,103 (26,906) —
Foreign currency translation - (1,290) (29) (703) (311) (2,333)
At 31March 2023 11,500 143,991 1,046 16,495 7,707 180,739
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At1April2021 (11,500) (122,075) (1,135) (2,995) — (137,705)
Charge for the year — (2,773) (47) — — (2,820)
Disposals — — 287 — — 287
Foreign currency translation — (764) (12) (100) — (876)
At 31March 2022 (11,500) (125,612) (907) (3,095) - (141,114)
Charge forthe year - (4,441) (34) (768) — (5,243)
Impairment — (432) - - - (432)
Foreign currency translation — 1,181 27 184 - 1,392
At 31March2023 (11,500) (129,304) (914) (3,679) - (145,397)
Carrying amount
At1April 2021 — 3,920 262 — 6,148 10,330
At 31March 2022 — 6,575 145 — 23,608 30,328
At 31March2023 - 14,687 132 12,816 7,707 35,342

Computer software includes capitalised development costs of £26,487,000 relating to the Group's Next Generation trading platform which has been fully amortised.
Research and Development expenditure recognised as expense during the year amounted to £893,344 (31 March 2022: £1,690,00). Client relationships include
the transaction with ANZ to transition its portfolio of Share Investing clients to CMC for AUD$25m, which has a remaining amortisation period of 8.5 years. During
the year ended 31 March 2023 the Group recorded an impairment of £432,000 (year ended 31 March 2022: £nil) relating to internally generated computer software
assets. The carrying value of the assets impaired at 1 April 2022 was £841,000, amortisation during the year ended 31 March 2023 was £409,000 until the date of
decommissioning the asset resulting in an impairment of £432,000. The impaired asset provided an enhanced functionality to the clients but this functionality was
removed from the Next Generation platform.
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12. Intangible assets continued

Impairment
Intangibles are tested for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. Assets under
development are tested for impairment annually. Impairment of £432,000 was identified in the year ended 31 March 2023 (year ended 31 March 2022: £nil).

At 31March 2023, the Group had no material capital commitments in respect of intangible assets (31 March 2022: £nil).

Impairment sensitivity analysis

The recoverable amount of the asset under development relating to the Invest UK platform has been determined using a value-in-use discounted cash flow
calculation. These cash flow projections use the most recent Board-approved forecast that cover a 10-year period, reflecting the longer useful expected life of the
asset based on comparable experiences the Group has in software development. A discount rate of 9.3% and long term growth rate (beyond the forecasting period)
of 0% has been used. The remaining amortisation period for this asset is 9.5 years.

The discount rates used to calculate the recoverable amount of the Invest UK platformis based on the Group post tax weighted average cost of capital (WACC).
The discount rate depends on a number of inputs reflecting the current market assessment of the time value of money, determined by external market information,
and inputs relating to the equity market and industry specific risks.

Projected revenues have been estimated using available market information and internal data. The key assumptions that drive the uncertainty of revenue are:
— Clientacquisition, measured as marketing cost to acquire a trading customer

— Estimates of B2B revenues from white-label, Software as a Service deals and the provision of APl technology

— Direct-to-consumer client behaviour measured through average portfolio size, average number of trades and customer retention rates

— Interestearned onclient funds

A 6.0% reduction in forecast revenues would determine a recoverable amount equal to the carrying value of £11,676,000. A 17.3% reduction in forecast revenues
would result in the fullimpairment of the asset.

13. Property, plant and equipment

Furniture,
Leasehold fixturesand Computer Right-of-use Constructionin

improvements equipment hardware asset progress Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 31 March 2021 (Reported) 19,273 9,656 36,249 19,146 — 84,324
Correction of error — — — (1,563) — (1,563)
At1April 2021 (Restated) 19,273 9,656 36,249 17,583 — 82,761
Additions 106 198 3,196 4,213 — 77113
Disposals (2,733) (1,007) (2,262) (275) — (6,277)
Foreign currency translation 237 75 192 324 — 828
At 31March 2022 (Restated) 16,883 8,922 37,375 21,845 — 85,025
Additions 722 479 5,788 2,872 21 10,072
Reclassification 36 18 — — (54) —
Disposals (887) (72) (579) (1,813) — (3,351)
Foreign currency translation (189) (26) (164) (270) (5) (654)
At 31March 2023 16,565 9,321 42,420 22,634 152 91,092
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 March 2021 (Reported) (14,393) (8,795) (27,235) (7,796) — (58,219)
Correction of error — — — 429 — 429
At1April 2021 (restated) (14,393) (8,795) (27,235) (7,367) — (57,790)
Charge for the year (1,642) (414) (3,225) (4,287) — (9,568)
Disposals 2,736 1,001 2,248 181 — 6,166
Foreign currency translation (222) (72) (148) (221) — (663)
At 31 March 2022 (restated) (13,521) (8,280) (28,360) (11,694) — (61,855)
Charge for the year (1,585) (407) (3,749) (4,221) — (9,962)
Disposals 839 59 340 1,801 — 3,039
Foreign currency translation 175 22 108 152 - 457
At 31March 2023 (14,092) (8,606) (31,661) (13,962) — (68,321)
Carrying amount
At1April 2021 (Restated) 4,880 861 9,014 10,216 — 24,97
At 31 March 2022 (Restated) 3,362 642 9,015 10,151 — 23,170
At 31March 2023 2,473 715 10,759 8,672 152 22,771
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13. Property, plant and equipment continued

The carryingamount of recognised right-of-use assets relate to the following types of assets:

Computer Leasehold

hardware properties Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000
At1April 2021 305 10,216 10,521
Additions 4,213 4,213
Disposals — (94) (94)
Charge for the year (305) (4,287) (4,592)
Foreign currency translation — 103 103
At 31 March 2022 — 10,151 10,151
Additions — 2,872 2,872
Disposals — (12) (12)
Charge forthe year - (4,221) (4,221)
Foreign currency translation - (118) (118)
At 31 March 2023 — 8,672 8,672

Refer to note 23 for further details on lease liabilities.

14. Deferred tax

Deferred income taxes are calculated on alltemporary differences under the liability method at the tax rate expected to apply when the deferred tax will crystallise.

The gross movement on deferred tax is as follows:

Year ended Yearended
31March 2023 31March2022
GROUP £°000 £000
At1April 2,713 4,748
Charge toincome for the year (1,380) (2,108)
Charge to equity for the year — (135)
Changeintaxrate (462) 147
Foreign currency translation (115) 61
At 31March 756 2,713
The following table details the deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the year:
Accelerated
capital Othertiming
Taxlosses allowances differences Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000
At1April 2021 135 (2,352) 6,965 4748
Charge toincome for the year (41) 1,894 (3,961) (2,108)
Charge to equity for the year — — (135) (135)
Research and development tax credit (1 169 (21) 147
Foreign currency translation — 1 50 61
At 31 March 2022 93 (278) 2,898 2,713
Charge toincome for the year 5 (1,590) 206 (1,379)
Changeintaxrate (7) (192) (263) (462)
Foreign currency translation 4 (22) (96) (114)
At 31 March 2023 95 (2,082) 2,744 756

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is more likely than not that sufficient and suitable taxable profits will be available in the future against
which the reversal of the temporary differences can be deducted. The recoverability of the Group's deferred tax asset in respect of carry forward losses is based on
an assessment of the future levels of taxable profit expected to arise that can be offset against these losses. The Group's expectations as to the level of future taxable
profits take into account the Group's long-term financial and strategic plans and anticipated future tax adjusting items. In making this assessment, account is taken of
business plans including the Board-approved Group budget. Key budget assumptions are discussed in the Directors' viability statement.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of £298,000 (year ended 31 March 2022: £181,000) in respect of losses amounting to
£1,540,000 (year ended 31 March 2022: £724,000). £520,000 (year ended 31 March 2022: £724,000) of the losses relates to the Group's Information Internet
Limited subsidiary and £1,020,000 (year ended 31 March 2022: £0) of the losses relates to CMC Markets Singapore Invest Pte Ltd subsidiary. There is no time limit

ontheir utilisation.
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14. Deferred tax continued

The Group has recognised a deferred tax asset of £95,000 (year ended 31 March 2022: £93,000) in respect of losses of £428,000 (year ended 31 March 2022:
£375,000). £321,000 (year ended 31 March 2022: £375,000) of the losses relates to the Group's Information Internet Limited subsidiary and £107,000 (year ended 31
March 2022: £nil) of the losses relates to the Polish branch of the Group's CMC Markets Germany GmbH subsidiary as at 31 March 2023.

On5March 2021the UK government announced that from 1 April 2023 the Corporation Tax main rate will be increased from 19% to 25%. This was substantively
enacted on 24 May 2021. Deferred tax balances are reported at the substantively enacted corporation tax rate of 25%, the substantively enacted tax rate at the
balance sheet date.

15. Investment in subsidiary undertakings

Year ended Yearended

31March 2023 31March2022

(Restated)

COMPANY £000 £000
At1April (Restated) 167,722 167,607
Capital contribution relating to share-based payments 2,121 2,272
Amounts contributed by subsidiaries in relation to share-based payments (2,753) (2,157)
At 31March 167,090 167,722

The Company’sinvestments in its subsidiary undertakingsis carried at cost lest accumulated provision for impairment. In determining the provision for impairment,
the carrying value of the investment is compared to the recoverable amount of the investment. The estimated recoverable amount of these investments is
determined based on an estimate of the fair value less costs to sell of the subsidiary undertaking or the value in use of the subsidiary undertaking, whichever is higher.
Investment in subsidiary undertakings are tested for impairment annually. Total provision for impairment recorded during the year ended 31 March 2023 was £nil
(year ended 31 March 2022 Restated: £nil).

The list below includes all of the Group's direct and indirect subsidiaries as at 31 March 2023:

Country of

incorporation Principal activities Held
CMC Markets Holdings Ltd England Holding company Directly
CMC Markets UK Holdings Ltd England Holding company Indirectly
CMC Markets Investments Limited England Onlineinvesting Indirectly
CMC Markets Investments Nominee Limited England Nominee entity Indirectly
CMC Markets UK plc England Onlinetrading Indirectly
Information Internet Ltd England IT development Indirectly
CMC Spreadbet plc England Financial spread betting Indirectly
CMC Markets Overseas Holdings Ltd England Holding company Indirectly
CMC Markets Asia Pacific Pty Ltd Australia Onlinetrading Indirectly
CMC Markets Group Australia Pty Ltd Australia Holding company Indirectly
CMC Markets Stockbroking Ltd Australia Stockbroking Indirectly
CMC Markets Stockbroking Services Pty Ltd Australia Employee services Indirectly
CMC Markets Stockbroking Nominees Pty Ltd Australia Nominee entity Indirectly
CMC Markets Stockbroking Nominees (No. 2 Account) Pty Ltd Australia Nominee entity Indirectly
CMC Markets Canadalnc Canada Onlinetrading Indirectly
CMC Markets NZ Ltd New Zealand Onlinetrading Indirectly
CMC Markets Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore Onlinetrading Indirectly
CMC Markets Singapore Invest Pte Ltd Singapore Onlineinvesting Indirectly
CMC Business Services (Shanghai) Limited China Training and education Indirectly
CMC Markets Germany GmbH Germany Onlinetrading Indirectly
CMC Markets Middle East Ltd UAE Onlinetrading Indirectly

Please refer to pages 186 and 187 for the registered office addresses of the subsidiaries above.

All shareholdings are of Ordinary Shares. The issued share capital of all subsidiary undertakings is 100% owned, which also represents the proportion of the voting
rights in the subsidiary undertakings.
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15. Investment in subsidiary undertakings continued

The list below includes all of the Group's employee benefit trusts as at 31 March 2023:

Country of

incorporation

CMC Markets plc Employee Share Trust Jersey
CMC Markets plc UK Share Incentive Plan England
CMC Markets plc (Discretionary Schemes) Employee Share Trust England

16. Trade and other receivables

GROUP COMPANY
31March 2023 31March 2022
(Restated) 31March 2023 31March 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
Current

Gross trade receivables 8,721 6,546 - —
Less:lossallowance (4,247) (6,219) - —
Tradereceivables 4,474 327 - —
Amounts due from Group companies — — 1,879 1,013
Prepayments 14,985 10,621 51 7
Accruedincome 2,335 522 2 —
Stockbroking debtors 105,103 134,325 — —
Other debtors 3,719 2,413 — —
130,616 148,208 1,932 1,020

Non-current
Other debtors 2,666 1,797 — —
Total 133,282 150,005 1,932 1,020

Stockbroking debtors represent the amount receivable in respect of equity security transactions executed on behalf of clients with a corresponding balance

included within trade and other payables (note 21).

Allamounts due from Group companies in the Company Financial Statements are repayable on demand and are non-interest bearing.

At 31 March 2023 the Group has lease receivables amounting to £384,000 (31 March 2022: £nil). The Group is an intermediate lessor on these leases and has

recognised finance income of £5,000 during the year ended 31 March 2023 (year ended 31 March 2022: £nil).

17. Derivative financial instruments

Assets
31March 2023 31March 2023 31March2022 31March2022
Notional Carrying Notional Carrying
amount amount amount amount
(Restated) (Restated)
GROUP £m £°000 £m £000
Held for trading
Client trading positions 120.9 13,125 76.9 8,710
Held for hedging
Forward foreign exchange contracts —economic hedges 73.6 1,106 — —
Forward foreign exchange contracts —net investment hedges - - 40.0 78
Total 194.5 14,231 116.9 8,788
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17. Derivative financial instruments continued

Liabilities
31March 2023 31March 2023 31March 2022 31March 2022
Notional Carrying Notional Carrying
amount amount amount amount
(Restated) (Restated)
GROUP £m £000 £m £000
Held for trading
Client trading positions 35.7 (2,033) 370 (8,227)
Held for hedging
Forward foreign exchange contracts —economic hedges - — 36.0 (452)
Total 35.7 (2,033) 73.0 (3,679)

The fair value of derivative contracts are based on the market price of comparable instruments at the balance sheet date. All derivative financial instruments have a
maturity date of less than one year.

Held for trading
As described in note 30, the Group enters into derivative contracts in order to hedge its market price risk exposure arising from open client trading positions.

Held for hedging
The Group's forward foreign exchange contracts are categorised as either economic or net investment hedges.

Economic hedges are held for the purpose of mitigating currency risk relating to transactional currency flows arising from earnings in foreign currencies but do not
meet the criteria for designation in a hedge accounting relationship. During the year ended 31 March 2023, £845,000 of net loss relating to economic hedges were
recognised in the consolidated income statement (year ended 31 March 2022: gains of £869,000).

The Group has designated a number of foreign exchange derivative contracts as hedges of the net investment in the Group's foreign operations. At 31 March 2023,
£8,748,000 (31 March 2022: £8,662,000) of fair value losses were recorded in net investment hedging reserve within other reserves. At 31 March 2023, £6,304,000
(81March 2022: £7,827,000) of fair value gains were recorded in the translation reserve within other reserves.

The net investment hedge programme closed at the end of April 2022. During the year ended 31 March 2023, fair value losses of £86,000 (year ended 31 March
2022: losses of £1,089,000) relating to net investment hedges were recognised in other comprehensive income. All changes in the fair value were treated as being
effective under IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”; as a result there was no amount recognised directly in the income statement.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of the derivative assets at the balance sheet date.

The Group's derivative positions are reported gross on the statement of financial position, as required by IAS 32 where the criteria for offset are not met.

18. Other assets

31March 2023 31March 2022

GROUP £000 £000
Exchange 1,178 953
Vaults 806 12,490
Total 1,984 13,443

Other assets are cryptocurrencies, which are owned and controlled by the Group for the purpose of hedging the Group's exposure to clients’ cryptocurrency trading
positions. The fair value of cryptocurrencies are based on the market price of these instruments as at the balance sheet date.

As presented above, the Group holds cryptocurrencies on exchange and in vault. Cryptocurrencies held on vaults are held in a wallet that has additional security
features. Other assets are measured at fair value less costs to sell.
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19. Financial investments

Year ended Yearended

31March 2023 31March 2022
GROUP £°000 £000
UK government securities
At1April 27,875 28,037
Purchase of securities 17,345 28,337
Maturity of securities and coupon receipts (14,878) (28,428)
Net accrued interest 440 7)
Changesinthe fair value of debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (210) (54)
At 31March 30,572 27875
Equity securities
At1April 70 67
Impairment (34) —
Foreign currency translation 2) 3
At 31March 34 70
Total 30,606 27,945

The effective interest rates of UK government securities held at the year end range from 1.72% to 4.05% (31 March 2022: -019% to 1.72%).

31March 2023 31March2022
GROUP £°000 £'000
Analysis of financial investments
Non-current 34 13,448
Current 30,572 14,497
Total 30,606 27,945

Financial investments are shown as current assets when they have a maturity of less than one year and as non-current when they have a maturity of more thanone
year. The majority of these UK government securities are held to meet the Group's regulatory threshold requirements under IFPR. These UK government securities

are in Stage 1and ECL isimmaterial for the year ended 31 March 2023 (year ended 31 March 2022: £nil).

20.Cashand cash equivalents

GROUP COMPANY
31March 2023 31March2022 31March 2023 31March 2022
(Restated)
£°000 £000 £°000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 146,218 176,578 586 28,446
Analysed as:
Cashat bank 146,218 176,578 586 28,446

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash on hand and short-term deposits. Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to aninsignificant risk of changes in value. This includes money market funds. While cash and cash
equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the ECL isimmaterial for the year ended 31 March 2023 (year ended 31 March 2022: £nil).

Analysis of net cash
31March 2023 31March 2022
(Restated)

GROUP £°000 £000
Cashand cashequivalents 146,218 176,578
Borrowings — (194)
Share buyback liability — (27,264)
Lease liabilities (11,818) (14,251)
Net cash 134,400 134,869
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20.Cashand cash equivalents continued

Changesin
Lease Sharebuyback liabilitiesarising Cashandcash

Borrowings liabilities liability fromfinancing equivalents Total

GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At1April 2021 (Restated) (1139) (15,387) — (16,526) 118,921 102,395
Cashflows — — — — 56,281 56,281
Financing cash flows 945 4,808 2,975 8,728 — 8,728
Share buyback liability recognised — (80,239) (30,239) (30,239)
Inception/modification of leases — (8,510) — (3,510) — (3,510)
Foreign exchange adjustments — (162) — (162) 1,376 1,214
At 31March 2022 (Restated) (194) (14,251) (27,264) (41,709) 176,578 134,869
Cashflows — — — — (29,058) (29,058)
Financing cash flows 194 5,454 27,264 32,912 — 32,912
Inception/modification of leases — (3,223) — (3,223) — (3,223)
Foreign exchange adjustments - 202 - 202 (1,302) (1,100)
At 31March 2023 - (11,818) — (11,818) 146,218 134,400

21. Trade and other payables
GROUP COMPANY

31March 2023 31March 2022 31March 2023 31March 2022

(Restated) (Restated)

£°000 £000 £°000 £000

Client payables 49,409 44133 - —
Taxand social security 1,272 2,242 —_ —
Stockbroking creditors 98,428 123,875 - —
Accruals and other creditors 33,175 42,376 122 176
Total 182,284 212,626 122 176

Stockbroking creditors represent the amount payable in respect of equity and securities transactions executed on behalf of clients with a corresponding balance
included within trade and other receivables (note 16).

22.Borrowings

31March 2023 31March2022

GROUP £°000 £000

Current

Other liabilities — 194
= 194

Non-current
Other liabilities — _
Amount due to Group companies — _

Total - 194

The fair value of financial liabilities is approximately equivalent to the book value shown above.

Bank loans

InMarch 2023, the syndicated revolving credit facility was renewed at alevel of £55,000,000 (31 March 2022: £55,000,000) where £27,500,000 had a maturity
date of March 2024 and £27,500,000 had a maturity date of March 2026. This facility can only be used to meet broker margin requirements of the Group. The rate of
interest payable on any loans is the aggregate of the applicable marginand SONIA. Other fees such as commitment fees, legal fees and arrangement fees are also
payable on this facility (note 7).

No amount was outstanding on this facility at 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: £nil).

Allamounts due to Group companies in the Company financial statements are repayable on demand and are non-interest bearing.
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23. Leases liabilities

The Group leases several assets including leasehold properties and computer hardware to meet its operational business requirements. The average lease termis

26 years.

ROU asset balances relate to both leasehold properties and computer hardware. Refer to note 13 for a breakdown of the carrying amount of ROU assets.

The movements in lease liabilities during the year were as follows:

Year ended Yearended

31March2023 31March2022

(Restated)

GROUP £000 £000
At 1 April (Restated) 14,251 15,386
Additions/modifications of new leases during the year 3,223 3,510
Interest expense 658 687
Lease payments made during the year (6,112) (5,495)
Foreign currency translation (202) 163
At31March 11,818 14,251
31March 2023 31March 2022

(Restated)

GROUP £°000 £000

Analysis of lease liabilities

Non-current 6,228 9,302
Current 5,590 4,949
Total 11,818 14,251

The lease payments for the year ended 31 March 2023 relating to short-term leases amounted to £402,000 (year ended 31 March 2022: £207,000).

As at 31 March 2023 the potential future undiscounted cash outflows that have not been included in the lease liability due to lack of reasonable certainty the lease

extension options might be exercised amounted to £nil (31 March 2022: £nil).

Refer to note 29 for maturity analysis of lease liabilities.

24.Provisions

Property

related Other Total
GROUP £000 £'000 £000
At1April 2021 2,101 1,599 3,700
Additional provision 623 — 623
Utilisation of provision (326) (1,506) (1,832)
Currency translation 18 (23) (5)
At 31March 2022 2,416 70 2,486
Additional provision 82 856 938
Utilisation of provision (143) (370) (513)
Currency translation ) — 9)
At 31March 2023 2,346 556 2,902

The property-related provisions include dilapidation provisions. Dilapidation provisions have been capitalised as part of cost of ROU assets and are amortised over
the term of the lease. These dilapidation provisions are utilised as and when the Group vacates a property and expenditure is incurred to restore the property toits

original condition.

The other provisions balance as at 31 March 2023 relates to provisions made for potential litigation associated with client complaints. The expected timing of
outflows is uncertain as at 31 March 2023. The other provisions balance as at 31 March 2022 predominantly related to provisions made for client complaints linked to

market volatility during Q12021.
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24, Provisions continued

31March2023 31March2022
GROUP £°000 £000
Analysis of total provisions
Current 815 369
Non-current 2,087 217
Total 2,902 2,486
25. Share capital, share premium and capital redemption reserve

Number £000

GROUP AND COMPANY 31March 2023 31March 2022 31March 2023 31March 2022
Authorised
Ordinary Shares of 25p 400,000,000 400,000,000 100,000 100,000
Allotted, issued and fully paid
Ordinary Shares of 25p 279,815,463 290,293,919 69,953 72,573
Deferred Shares of 25p 2,478,086 2,478,086 620 620
Total 282,293,549 292,772,005 70,573 73,193

Share class rights

The Company has two classes of shares, Ordinary and Deferred, neither of which carries a right to fixed income. Deferred Shares have no voting or dividend rights.
Inthe event of a winding-up, Ordinary Shares shall be repaid at nominal value plus £500,000 eachin priority to Deferred Shares.

Ordinary Shares Deferred Shares Total

GROUP AND COMPANY Number Number Number

At1April 2021 290,717,473 2,478,086 293,195,559

New shares issued 700,000 — 700,000
Shares cancelled (1123,554) — (1123,554)

At 31March 2022 290,293,919 2,478,086 292,772,005

New sharesissued — — —
Shares cancelled (10,478,456) — (10,478,456)

At 31March 2023 279,815,463 2,478,086 282,293,549

Capital
redemption

Ordinary Shares Deferred Shares Share premium reserve Total

GROUP AND COMPANY £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At1April 2021 72,679 620 46,236 — 119,535
New sharesissued 175 — — — 175

Shares cancelled (281) — — 281 —
At 31March 2022 72,573 620 46,236 281 119,710

New sharesissued — - — — —

Shares cancelled (2,620) — — 2,620 -
At 31March 2023 69,953 620 46,236 2,901 119,710

Movements in share capital and premium
During the year ended 31 March 2023, no (year ended 31 March 2022: 700,000) shares with nominal value of 25 pence were issued to Employee Benefit Trusts (‘EBTS”).

During the year ended 31 March 2023,10,478,456 (year ended 31 March 2022: 1123 ,554) shares with nominal value of 25 pence were cancelled pursuant to the share

buyback programme.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, no Ordinary Shares were converted to Deferred Shares in accordance with the terms of grant to employees who have now
left the Group (year ended 31 March 2022: nil).

Capital redemptionreserve

On 14 March 2022, the Board approved a share buyback programme with up to £30.0 million to be returned to shareholders.

During the period starting 17 March 2022 and up to 19 October 2022, the Company repurchased and cancelled 11,602,010 Ordinary Shares with nominal value of
25 pence. The amount by which the Company's share capital is diminished on the cancellation of the purchased shares is transferred to the capital redemption

reserve. Thisamounted to £2,619,614 for the year ended 31 March 2023.
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26.0Own shares heldin trust

GROUP AND COMPANY Number £000
Ordinary Shares of 25p

At1April 2021 336,011 382
Acquisition 1,039,903 1,006
Utilisation (722,299) (294)
At 31 March 2022 653,615 1,094
Acquisition 460,840 1,106
Utilisation (408,688) (691)
At 31 March 2023 705,767 1,509

The shares are held by various EBTs for the purpose of encouraging or facilitating the holding of shares in the Company for the benefit of employees and the trustees

will apply the whole or part of the trust's funds to facilitate dealing in shares by such beneficiaries.

27.Otherreserves

Share
Translation Netinvestment FVOCI Merger buyback
reserve hedgingreserve reserve reserve reserve Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At1April 2021 6,066 (7,573) (27) (47,800) — (49,334)
Currency translation differences 1,761 — — — — 1,761
Share buyback — — — — (27,264) (27,264)
Losses onnetinvestment hedges — (1,089) — — — (1,089)
Losses onfinancialinvestments at FVOCI — — (54) — — (54)
At 31March 2022 7,827 (8,662) (81) (47,800) (27,264) (75,980)
Currency translation differences (1,760) — - — — (1,760)
Share buyback — - - - 27,264 27,264
Gains recycled from equity toincome statement 237 — - - - 237
Losses onnetinvestment hedges — (86) - - - (86)
Losses on financialinvestments at FVOCI — — (210) - — (210)
At 31March 2023 6,304 (8,748) (291) (47,800) — (50,535)

Translationreserve

The translation reserve is comprised of translation differences on foreign currency net investments held by the Group.

Netinvestment hedgingreserve

The netinvestment hedge programme closed at the end of April 2022. Overseas net investments are hedged using forward foreign exchange contracts. Gains and
losses oninstruments used to hedge these overseas net investments are shown in the net investment hedging reserve. These instruments hedge balance sheet
translation risk, which is the risk of changes in reserves due to fluctuations in currency exchange rates. All changes in the fair value of these hedging instruments were

treated as being effective under IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”.

FVOCIlreserve

The Group holds certain UK government securities measured at FVOCI. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of these financial assets

are recognised in the FVOCl reserve.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve arose following a corporate restructure in 2006 when a new holding company, CMC Markets plc, was created to bring all CMC companies
into the same corporate structure. The merger reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the holding Company'’s share capital and that of the

acquired companies.

Share buyback reserve

On14 March 2022, the Board approved a share buyback programme with up to £30.0 million to be returned to shareholders. Oninception of the contract, a financial

liability of £30,239,000 was established representing the financial liability for the full value of the share buyback programme plus directly attributable costs.

The share buyback reserve amount is reduced by the consideration paid for the repurchased shares with a corresponding transaction recorded within Retained
earnings to reflect the consumption of distributable profits. The share buyback reserve is presented in both the consolidate and parent company statements of

changesin equity.

The shares purchased and the average price paid per share for the year ended 31 March 2023 were as follows:

Yearended 31 March

Number of shares purchased

Aggregate purchase amount

Average price of shares purchased

2023 10,478,456

£27,236,000

£2.60

2022 1123,554

£2,975,000

£2.65
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GROUP COMPANY
Year ended Yearended Year ended Yearended
31March 2023 31March2022 31March 2023 31March 2022
(Restated)
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation 52,163 91,495 33,763 102,841
Adjustments for:
Interestincome (13,927) (834) — —
Dividendsreceived - — (34,260) (103,617)
Finance costs 2,315 2,164 318 475
Depreciation 9,962 9,568 — —
Amortisation of intangible assets 5,675 2,820 —_ —
Research and development tax credit (651) (743) — —
(Profit)/Loss ondisposal of property, plant and equipment (27) 86 — —
Other non-cash movements including exchange rate movements 980 (681) - —
Share-based payment 1,651 356 - —
Changes in working capital
Decrease /(Increase) in trade and other receivables 17,222 (18,492) 840 14,126
Decrease inamounts due from/due to brokers 17,261 57,523 — —
Decrease /(Increase) in other assets 11,459 (13,443) - —
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables' (20,792) 44,828 (54) 96
Increase in net derivative financial instruments liabilities (7,167) (1,705) -
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions 460 (1,814) — —
Cash generated from operations 76,584 171128 607 13,921

1 Thischangeinworking capital for the year ended 31 March 2023 is stated after offsetting a payment amounting to £9,500,000 made to Australiaand New Zealand Banking Group Limited in relation to the portfolio of

share investing clients acquired during the year ended 31 March 2022.

29.Financial instruments

Analysis of financial instruments by category

The following tables analyse financial assets and liabilities in accordance with the categories of financial instruments on an IFRS 9 basis.

31March2023
Assets Assets Assets at

atFVOCI atFVPL amortised cost Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Cashand cashequivalents — —_ 146,218 146,218
Financial investments 30,572 34 — 30,606
Amounts due from brokers — —_ 188,154 188,154
Derivative financial instruments - 14,231 - 14,231
Trade and other receivables excluding non-financial assets - - 117,905 117,905

30,572 14,265 452,277 497114

31March2023
Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities at

atFVOCI atFVPL amortised cost Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities - - (181,012) (181,012)
Amounts due to brokers - - (8,927) (8,927)
Derivative financial instruments — (2,033) — (2,033)
Lease liabilities - - (11,818) (11,818)

— (2,033) (201,757) (203,790)
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29. Financial instruments continued

Analysis of financial instruments by category continued

31March 2022 (Restated)

Assets Assets Assetsat
atFVOCI atFVPL amortised cost Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Cashandcashequivalents — — 176,578 176,578
Financialinvestments 27875 70 — 27945
Amounts due from brokers — — 208,882 208,882
Derivative financial instruments — 8,788 — 8,788
Trade and other receivables excluding non-financial assets — — 139,383 139,383
27,875 8,858 524,843 561,576
31March 2022 (Restated)
Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities at
atFVOCI atFVPL amortised cost Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities — — (210,384) (210,384)
Amounts due to brokers — — (12,394) (12,394)
Share buyback liability — — (27,264) (27,264)
Derivative financial instruments — (8,679) — (3,679)
Borrowings — — (194) (194)
Lease liabilities — — (14,251) (14,251)
— (3,679) (264,487) (268,166)
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of the financial assets at the balance sheet date.
31March 2023
Assets Assets Assets at
atFVOCI atFVPL amortised cost Total
COMPANY £°000 £°000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Cashandcashequivalents — - 586 586
Trade and other receivables excluding non-financial assets — — 1,879 1,879
_ - 2,465 2,465
31March 2023
Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities at
atFVOCI atFVPL amortised cost Total
COMPANY £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities — — (122) (122)
— = (122) (122)
31March 2022 (Restated)
Assets Assets Assetsat
atFVOCI atFVPL amortised cost Total
COMPANY £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Cashandcashequivalents — — 28,446 28,446
Trade and other receivables excluding non-financial assets — — 1,013 1,013
— — 29,459 29,459
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29. Financial instruments continued

Analysis of financial instruments by category continued
31March 2022 (Restated)

Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities at
atFVOCI atFVPL amortised cost Total
COMPANY £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial liabilities
Share buyback liability — — (27,264) (27,264)
Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities — — (176) (176)
— — (27.440) (27.440)
Maturity analysis
31March2023
Lessthan Three months After
Ondemand three months tooneyear oneyear Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Cashand cashequivalents 146,218 - - - 146,218
Financial investments 34 — 15,330 16,007 31,371
Amounts due from brokers 188,154 —_ —_ —_ 188,154
Derivative financial instruments 13,125 1,106 — - 14,231
Trade and other receivables excluding non-financial assets 113,283 2,465 495 1,662 117,905
460,814 3,571 15,825 17,669 497,879
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities (181,012) — — — (181,012)
Amounts due to brokers (8,927) — — — (8,927)
Derivative financial instruments (2,033) - - - (2,033)
Lease liabilities — (1,525) (4,412) (8,041) (13,978)
(191,972) (1,525) (4,412) (8,041) (205,950)
Net liquidity gap 268,842 2,046 11,413 9,628 291,929

31March 2022 (Restated)

Lessthan Threemonths After
Ondemand three months tooneyear oneyear Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Cashand cashequivalents 176,578 — — — 176,578
Financialinvestments 70 — 14,837 13,338 28,245
Amounts due from brokers 208,882 — — — 208,882
Derivative financialinstruments 8,710 78 — — 8,788
Trade and other receivables excluding non-financial assets 135,655 1,810 354 1,564 139,383
529,895 1,888 15,191 14,902 561,876
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities (210,384) — — — (210,384)
Share buyback liability (27,264) — — — (27,264)
Amounts due to brokers (12,394) — — — (12,394)
Derivative financial instruments (8,227) (452) — — (3,679)
Borrowings — — (194) — (194)
Lease liabilities — (1,443) (4,146) (9,506) (15,095)
(253,269) (1,895) (4,340) (9,506) (269,010)
Net liquidity gap 276,626 (7) 10,851 5,396 292,866

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, including principal and interest payments, these amounts will not reconcile to the
amounts disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position.

Given that 93% of the Group's financial assets are available on demand, there is no significant maturity risk as at 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: 94%).
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29. Financial instruments continued

Maturity analysis continued

31March 2023
Lessthan Three months After

Ondemand three months tooneyear oneyear Total

COMPANY £000 £°000 £°000 £000 £000
Financial assets

Cashandcashequivalents 586 - - - 586

Trade and other receivables excluding non-financial assets 1,879 — - - 1,879

2,465 — - — 2,465

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities (122) - — — (122)
Share buyback liability = — — — —

(122) - - - (122)

Net liquidity gap 2,343 - — - 2,343

31March 2022 (Restated)

Lessthan Three months After
Ondemand three months tooneyear oneyear Total
COMPANY £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Cashandcashequivalents 28,446 — — — 28,446
Trade and other receivables excluding non-financial assets 1,013 — — — 1,013
29,459 — — — 29,459
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities (176) — — — (176)
Share buyback liability (27,264) — — — (27,264)
(27.440) — — — (27.440)
Net liquidity gap 2,019 — — — 2,019

Offseting financial instruments

The Group enters into various collateral arrangements with their counterparties. These agreements provide the Group with the right, in the ordinary course of
business and/ orinthe event of a counterparty default (such as bankruptcy or a counterparty’s failure to pay or perform), to net a counterparty’s rights and obligations
under such agreement and, in the event of counterparty default, set off collateral held by the Group against the net amount owed by the counterparty. Certain
derivatives and broker balances, where the requirements of IAS 32 are met, are offset in the Group's consolidated balance sheet. The Group transacts bilateral OTC
derivatives (OTC derivatives) mainly under International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) Master Agreements or under terms of business for CFD clients.
These agreements provide for the net settlement of all transactions under the agreement through a single payment. They allow the Group to offset balances from
derivative assets and liabilities as well as the receivables and payables to related cash collateral transacted with the same counterparty. Collateral for OTC derivatives
is received and provided in the form of cash. Such collateral may be subject to the standard industry terms of an ISDA Credit Support Annex. For derivatives
transacted with exchanges (exchange-traded derivatives), positive and negative P&L and related cash collateral may be offset if the terms of the rules and
regulations governing these exchanges and central clearing counterparties permit such netting and offset. Where no such agreements or terms exist or the Group
cannot demonstrate the intent to settle net, fair values are recorded on a gross basis, including any cross-currency exposure with the same counterparty.

Fair value estimation
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement requires the Group to classify its financial assets and liabilities according to a hierarchy that reflects the observability of significant
market inputs. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are defined below:

— Level1—quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

— Level 2—inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that s,
derived from prices); or

— Level3—inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

Valuation techniques

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

— Theuse of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

— For foreign currency forwards — forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date.

There have been no changes to the fair value hierarchy or valuation techniques for any of the Group's financial instruments held at fair value in the year (31 March 2022: none).
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29.Financial instruments continued

Fair value estimation continued
The fair value of the Group's financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost approximates their carrying amount.

31March2023
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000
Financialinvestments 30,572 - 34 30,606
Derivative financial instruments (current assets) - 14,231 - 14,231
Derivative financial instruments (current liabilities) — (2,033) — (2,033)
30,572 12,198 34 42,804

31March 2022 (Restated)

Levelt Level2 Level3 Total

GROUP £000 £000 £000 £000
Financialinvestments 27875 — 70 27,945
Derivative financial instruments (current assets) — 8,788 — 8,788
Derivative financial instruments (current liabilities) — (3,679) — (3,679)
27875 5,109 70 33,054

30. Financial risk management

The Group's day-to-day business activities naturally expose it to strategic, financial (including credit, counterparty, market and liquidity) and operational risks. The
Board accepts that it cannot place a cap or limit on all of the risks to which the Group is exposed to, however, effective risk management ensures that risks are
managed to an acceptable level. The Board is ultimately responsible for the implementation of an appropriate risk strategy, defining and communicating the Group's
risk appetite, the establishment and maintenance of effective systems and controls, and continued monitoring of the adherence to Group policies. The Group has
adopted a standard risk process, through a five-step approach to risk management: risk identification; risk assessment; risk management; risk reporting; and risk
monitoring. The approach to managing risk within the business is governed by the Board-approved Risk Appetite Statement and Risk Management Framework.

The Board sets the strategy and the policies for managing these risks and delegates the monitoring and management of these risks to various Committees including
the Executive Risk Committee, whichin turn reports to the Group Risk Committee.

The Group's ICARA review document is prepared in accordance with the Investment Firm Prudential Regime (“IFPR”) that is articulated in the Financial Conduct
Authority’s (‘FCA’) MIFIDPRU Prudential sourcebook. The ICARA process is designed to cover the identification, monitoring and mitigation of harms, business
model planning and forecasting, recovery and wind-down planning; and assessing the adequacy of financial resources.

Financial risks arising from financial instruments are categorised into market, credit, counterparty and liquidity risks which, together with how the Group categorises
and manages these risks, are described below.

Market risk
Market risk is defined as the risk that the value of our residual portfolio will decrease due to the change in market risk factors. The three standard market risk factors
are price moves, interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

Mitigation of market risk
The Group benefits from a number of factors which also reduce the volatility of its revenue and protect it from market shocks as follows:

— Natural mitigation of concentration

The Group acts as a market maker in over 10,000 cross asset class instruments, specifically equities, equity indices, commodities, treasuries, foreign exchange and
cryptocurrencies. Due to the high level of notional turnover there is a high level of internal crossing and natural aggregation across instruments and asset classes to
mitigate significant single instrument concentration risk within the portfolio.

— Natural aggregation

Inthe year ended 31 March 2023, the Group had over 58,000 trading active clients. This large international client base has a diverse range of trading strategies
resulting inthe Group enjoying a high degree of natural aggregation between clients. This “portfolio effect” leads to a significant reduction in the Group's net market
risk exposure.

— Easeofhedging

The Group predominantly acts as a market maker in linear, highly liquid financial instruments in which it can easily neutralise market risk exposure through its prime
broker (“PB”) arrangements. In order to avoid over-reliance on one arrangement the Group policy is to have two PBs per asset class. For instruments where there
is no equivalent underlying market (e.g. Countdowns) the Group controls its risk through setting prudent position/exposure limits. This is further augmented by
dealer monitoring and intervention, which can take the form of restricting the size offered or, if deemed necessary, restricting the clients’ ability to take a positionin
aninstrument.
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30. Financial risk management continued

Market risk continued

Market risk limits

Market risk exposures are managed in accordance with the Group's Risk Appetite Statement and Group Risk Management Framework to ensure that the Group has
sufficient capital resources to support the calculated market risk capital requirement as well as staying within its risk appetite. The Group manages this component
under notional position limits that are set on an instrument and asset class level with overarching capital-based limits.

Client exposures can vary significantly over a short period of time and are highly dependent on underlying market conditions. The Group's own funds requirements
("OFR”) are calculated in accordance with the IFPR. The market risk OFR has increased compared to the prior year and remains within the Board-approved
risk appetite.

31March 2023 31March 2022

GROUP OFR £°000 £000
Asset class
Consolidated equities 38,872 20,284
Commodities 6,562 7586
Fixedincome and interest rates 677 2,062
Foreignexchange 21,806 14,222
Cryptocurrencies 589 551
68,506 44,705

Market price risk — stress testing

Group Financial Risk conducts market price risk stress testing on a daily basis to quantify the potential losses to which the Group is exposed to from adverse market
moves toits residual exposure. The residual exposure is derived by all products offered to clients, after taking into account the hedging performed by the Group in
accordance with the hedging strategy.

Arange of risk measurement techniques are used including Value at Risk (“VaR"), Expected Shortfall (‘ES”) and Stress-Testing models. The models are performed
for both likely and probable scenario as well as extreme stress scenario, where the stress factors simulate low probability high severity events to assess potential
losses from tail events.

The end-of-day market risk VaR model is performed using one day holding period with a 99% confidence interval with a 12 month lookback. A more severe stress is
also performed, based on maximum daily moves in the same lookback period.

Inaddition, for asset classes where the Group sees high intraday client turnover, stress testing is performed on intraday exposures by stressing the largest positions
during the trading session.

The VaR holding period is one day, therefore the model assumes exposure is maintained and does not take into account potential risk mitigation actions which the
desk can take by hedging the net exposure intraday. The stress factors are reviewed and updated periodically ensuring recent volatility is captured in the model.

The table below shows the end-of-day market risk VaR model results:

31March 31March

2023 2022

£'000 £000

Market risk (18,284) (5,121)

Non-trading book interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from either less interest being earned or more being paid on interest-bearing assets and liabilities due to a change in the relevant floating rate.

Interest rate risk is felt by the Group through a limited number of channels: income on segregated client and own funds; debits on client balances that are over a pre-
defined threshold; an exposure to the credit market through liquidity money market funds; and changes to the value of fixed rate UK government securities held.

The sensitivity analysis performed is based on a reasonable and possible move in the floating rate by 1.00% upwards and 0.50% downwards.

Thisis summarised in the below table and reflects the Group's view that in the current economic environment, interest rate volatility is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the profits of the Group.
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30. Financial risk management continued

Market risk continued

Market price risk — stress testing continued

Changes ininterest rate variables result in a decrease/increase in the fair value of fixed rate financial assets classified as fair value through OCI. This has no material
impact on the Group's equity.

31March 2023
Absolute Absolute
increase decrease
GROUP £°000 £°000
Impact of 1.00% change 0.50% change
Profit after tax 4,274 (2,572)
Equity 4,274 (2,572)
31March2022
Absolute Absolute
increase decrease
GROUP £000 £000
Impact of 1.25%change  0.25% change
Profit after tax 5776 (990)
Equity 5776 (990)

Non-trading book foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the Group's results are impacted by movements in foreign exchange rates.

CMCis exposed to foreign exchange risk in the form of transaction and translation exposure.

Transaction exposure is from holdings of cash and other current assets and liabilities in a currency other than the base currency of the entity. This risk is hedged each
month by the Treasury team according to a policy based ona cap and floor model, with gains/losses recognised in the income statement. Any foreign exchange
transaction exposures are hedged in accordance with Group Foreign Exchange Hedging Policy. Given the effectiveness of the hedging programme (Income
statementimpact in year ended 31 March 2023:loss of £845,000 (year ended 31 March 2022: gain of £52,000), no sensitivity analysis has been performed. The
instruments used for economically hedging foreign exchange risk are derivative financial instruments and are reported as described in note 17.

Translation exposure occurs when the net assets of an entity are denominated in a foreign currency other than GBP, when the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Positionis prepared.

Creditrisk
Creditrisk is the risk of losses arising from a counterparty failing to meet its obligations as they fall due. Credit risk is divided into credit, counterparty and settlement
risk. Below are the channels of credit risk the Group is exposed through:

— Financial Institutions (“FIs”); and
— Client.

Financial institution credit risk
The Group has relationships with a number of counterparties that provide prime brokerage and/or banking services (e.g. cash accounts, foreign exchange trading,
credit facilities, custodian services, etc.).

Flcredit risk can be felt in the following ways:
— ForFlsused as abank and those as a broker, the Group does not receive the funds the Fls hold on the Group's account.
— ForFlsused as a prime broker, a default will result in aloss of any unrealised profits and could cause the need to re-hedge at a different broker at a different price.

— ForFlsused as acryptocurrency counterparty, the loss of physical assets.
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30. Financial risk management continued

Credit risk continued
Mitigation of Fls credit risk
To mitigate or avoid a credit loss:

— The Group maintains, where practical, a range of relationships to reduce over-reliance on a single Fl—as detailed in the Group Counterparty Concentration
Risk Policy.

— The Group regularly monitors the credit worthiness of the Institutions that it is exposed to and reviews counterparties at least annually — as detailed in the Group
Hedge Counterparty Selection Policy.

Contractuallosses can be reduced by the “close-out netting” conditions in the ISDA and broker agreements. If a specified event of default occurs, all transactions
or all of a given type are terminated and netted (i.e. set off against each other) at market value or, if otherwise specified in the contract or if it is not possible to obtain a
market value, at an amount equal to the loss suffered by the non-defaulting party in replacing the relevant contract.

In order to manage both credit and counterparty credit risk within appetite the Group sets internal limits. As defined in the Group's policies the limits determine the
total balance that can be held with each rated Fl, each unrated Fl and each cryptocurrency counterparty. These limits are expressed as a maximum percentage of
capital, in the case of rated Fls, or a fixed amount for both unrated Fls and cryptocurrency counterparties. Liquidity Risk Management monitors the credit quality of all
Fls and cryptocurrency counterparties, by tracking the credit ratings issued by Standard & Poor’s and Fitch rating agencies, the credit default swap (‘CDS”) spreads
determined in the CDS market, share price, performance against a relevant index, and other relevant metrics.

Allrated Fls that the Group transacts with are of investment grade quality; however, no quantitative credit rating limits are set by the Group that Fls must exceed
because the choice of suitable Fls is finite and therefore setting minimum rating limits could lead to the possibility that no Fls are able to meet them. As an alternative,
the Group reviews negative rating action and large CDS spread widening to Fls on a case-by-case basis. Should an institution’s credit rating fall below investment
grade, the Risk Management Committee will be called and options discussed. Possible actions by the Group to reduce exposure to Fls depend on the nature of the
relationship and the practical availability of substitute Fls. Possible actions include the withdrawal of cash balances from a Fl on a daily basis, switching a proportion of
hedge trading to another prime broker Fl or ceasing all commercial activity with the FI.

The tables below present CMC Markets plc's exposure to credit institutions (or similar) based on their long-term credit rating:

31March 2023

Net derivative

Cashandcash Amounts due financial
equivalents from brokers Other assets instruments Total
GROUP £’000 £000 £°000 £°000 £°000
AA+to AA- 52,744 - —_ _ 52,744
At+to A- 37,138 - — — 37,138
BBB+to BBB- 41,361 182,951 _ 1,106 225,418
Unrated 14,975 5,203 1,984 11,092 33,254
146,218 188,154 1,984 12,198 348,554

31March 2022 (Restated)

Net derivative

Cashandcash Amountsdue financial
equivalents frombrokers Otherassets instruments Total
GROUP £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
AA+t0 AA- 56,252 — — — 56,252
A+toA- 26,618 — — — 26,618
BBB+to BBB- 79,055 185,543 — (373) 264,225
Unrated 14,653 23,339 13,443 5,482 56,917
176,578 208,882 13,443 5109 404,012
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30. Financial risk management continued

Creditrisk continued

Client counterparty risk

The Group's CFD and spread bet business operates a real-time mark-to-market trading facility where clients are required to lodge collateral against positions, with
any profits and losses generated by the client credited and debited automatically to their account. As with any leveraged product offering, there is the potential for a
client tolose more than the collateral lodged.

Client counterparty risk captures the risk associated with a client defaulting on its obligations due to the Group. As the Group does not offer most of its retail clients
credit terms and has arobust liquidation process, client counterparty risk willin general only arise when markets and instruments gap and the movement in the value
of aclient's leveraged portfolio exceeds the value of the equity that the client has held at the Group leaving the client account in deficit.

“Negative balance protection” accounts do not pose counterparty risk to the Group as the maximum loss for this account type is limited to their account value.

Further to this the Group operates as a designated clearing broker in Australia, where trading is subject to a settlement process for financial products transacted on
the Australian Security Exchange and Chi-X Australia. As a result of this clearing process, the Group has settlement risk if a client or counterparty do not fulfil their
side of the agreement by failing to deliver the underlying stock or value of the contract. While international securities trading is further offered to clients, this trading is
predominantly fully vetted, which limits the settlement exposure generation.

Mitigation of client counterparty risk

— Liguidation process
Thisis the automated process of closing a client's open position(s) if the account's total equity is not enough to cover a predefined percentage of required margin
for the portfolio held.

— Pre-emptive processes are also in place where a client's free equity (total equity less total margin requirement) becomes negative'. At this point the client's account
is restricted fromincreasing their position and a notification is sent inviting them to review their account.

1 Clientsin some regions may use limited risk accounts, where it is guaranteed that a client cannot move to a negative equity balance.

— Tieredmargin
Tiered margins were implemented in September 2013 on the Next Generation platform. It enables the Group to set higher margin rates (therefore requiring a client
tolodge more collateral) against positions that are deemed to be more risky due to risk profile, which could be due to size relative to the underlying turnover, the
Group's risk appetite or volatility of the instrument.

— Position limits
Position limits can be implemented on an instrument and client level. The instrument level enables the Group to control the total exposure the Group acquires in
asingle instrument. At a client level this ensures that the client can only reach a pre-defined size in any one instrument or asset class. Additionally, a position limit
onanunderlying instrument can be applied limiting the overall exposure that can be reached through different futures of the same underlying. For FX the client
position limits are based on Net Open Position (“NOP”) which limits the currency exposure a client can reached via different FX pairs.

Client counterparty risk stress testing

Group Financial Risk conducts client counterparty risk stress testing on a daily basis based on an internal model developed to assess the potential client
counterparty risk exposure. The Group's stress testing is based on scenarios with different severity including stress factors which simulate low probability severe
events to assess potentialimpact.

Clientreceivables history

The Group determines expected credit losses for amounts due from clients, based on historic experience and forward looking considerations. The gain for the year
was £1,408,000 (year ended 31 March 2022: £575,000 expense), which amounts to 0.4% of total revenue (year ended 31 March 2022: 0.2%). During the year, trade
receivables of £1,615,000 were written off, which represented 0.5% of revenue (year ended 31 March 2022: £2118,000, 0.7% of revenue).

The table below details the movement on the Group allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables under the expected credit loss model:

Year ended Year ended

31March 2023 31March 2022

GROUP £000 £000

At the beginning of the year 6,219 7,762

Loss allowance on trade receivables (reversed)/provided (357) 575
Trade receivables written off (1,615) (2,118)

At the end of the year 4,247 6,219
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30. Financial risk management continued

Credit risk continued

Debt ageing analysis

The Group seeks to minimise the effects of client debts on the Company’s profit and loss. Client debts are managed very early in their life cycle in order to minimise
the likelihood of them ageing. Debts that are past due carry an expected credit loss provision as set out in the table below:

31March 2023
Debt Provision
GROUP £°000 £000
Lessthanone month 936 23
One to three months 3,367 1"
Three to twelve months 189 146
Over twelve months 4,229 4,066
8,721 4,247

31March 2022

Debt Provision

GROUP £000 £000
Lessthanone month 221 28
Onetothree months 200 81
Threeto twelve months 37 366
Over twelve months 5,754 5744
6,546 6,219

The ECL onamounts due from brokers, accrued income and the Company's trade and other receivables balances isimmaterial in both current and prior years.
Please refer to note 19 for information on the ECL on UK government securities and note 20 for information on the ECL on cash and cash equivalents.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that there is insufficient available liquidity to meet the obligations of the Group as they fall due.

Liquidity is managed centrally for the Group by the Treasury team. The Group utilises a combination of liquidity forecasting and stress testing (formally in the ICARA)
toensure that it retains access to sufficient liquid resources under both normal and stressed conditions to meet its liabilities as they fall due. Liquidity forecasting
incorporates the impact of liquidity regulations in force in each jurisdiction that the Group is active in and other impediments to the free movement of liquidity around
the Group, including its own protocols on minimum liquidity to be retained by overseas entities.

Liquidity stress testing is performed quarterly using a range of firm-specific and market-wide scenarios that represent severe but plausible stress events that the
Group could be exposed to over the short and medium term. The Group ensures that the tests are commensurate to its current and future liquidity risk profile. Output
from the quarterly stress testing process is used to calibrate a series of limits and metrics which are monitored and reported to senior management daily. This
process seeks to ensure that the Group has appropriate sources of liquidity in place to meet its liabilities as they fall due under both “business as usual” and stressed
conditions. Due to the risk management strategy adopted and the changeable scale of the client trading book, the largest and most variable consumer of liquidity is
PB margin requirements. The collateral calls are met in cash from own funds but to ensure liquidity is available for extreme spikes, the Group has a committed bank
facility of £55.0 million to meet short-term liquidity obligations to PBs in the event that it does not have sufficient access to own cash and to leave a sufficient liquidity
buffer to cope with a stress event.

The Group does not actively engage in maturity transformation as part of its underlying business model and therefore maturity mismatch of assets and liabilities does
not represent a material liquidity risk. The maturity analysis tables are presented in note 29.
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30. Financial risk management continued

Liquidity risk continued

Ownfunds

Own funds is a key measure the Group uses to monitor the overall level of liquidity available to the Group. Own funds includes investments in UK government
securities, the majority of which are held to meet the Group's regulatory threshold requirements under IFPR. The derivation of own funds is shown in the table below:

31March 2023 31March 2022

(Restated)
GROUP £000 £000
Cashand cash equivalents (net of bank overdraft) 146,218 176,578
Amount due from brokers 188,154 208,882
Otherassets 1,984 13,443
Financialinvestments 30,606 27945
Derivative financial instruments (excluding Client CFD positions) (current assets) 1,106 78
368,068 426,926
Less: title transfer funds (49,409) (44133)
Less: Amount due to brokers (8,927) (12,394)
Less: derivative financial instruments (excluding Client CFD positions) (current liabilities) — (452)
Own funds 309,732 369,947

The following Own Funds Flow Statement summarises the Group's generation of own funds during each year and excludes all cash flows in relation to monies
held on behalf of clients. Additionally, short-term financial investments, amounts due from brokers and amounts receivable/ (payable) on the derivative financial
instruments have been included within “own funds” in order to provide a clear presentation of the Group's potential cash resources.

Year ended Yearended
31March2023 31March2022
(Restated)
GROUP £000 £000
Operating activities
Profit before tax 52,163 91,495
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 15,637 12,388
Other non-cash adjustments 1,629 (1124)
Tax paid (17,060) (14,651)
Own funds generated from operating activities 52,369 88,108
Movement in working capital (13,995) 9,032
Outflow frominvesting activities
Net purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (28,221) (15,813)
Other outflow frominvesting activities (8) (998)
Outflow from financing activities
Dividends paid (35,040) (72,604)
Share buyback (27,264) (2,975)
Other outflow from financing activities (6,754) (6,584)
Total outflow frominvesting and financing activities (97,287) (98,974)
(Decrease)/increase in own funds (58,913) (1,834)
Ownfunds at the beginning of the year 369,947 370,405
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (1,302) 1,376
Own funds at the end of the year 309,732 369,947

Capital management
The Group's objectives for managing capital are as follows:

— tocomply with the capital requirements set by the financial market regulators to which the Group is subject;
— toensure that all Group entities are able to operate as going concerns and satisfy any minimum externally imposed capital requirements; and

— toensure that the Group maintains a strong capital base to support the development of its business.
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30. Financial risk management continued

Capital management continued

The capital resources of the Group consist of equity, being share capital reduced by own shares held in trust, share premium, other reserves and retained earnings,
which at 31 March 2023 totalled £374,015,000 (31 March 2022 Restated: £368,878,000). The Group has been compliant with all applicable prudential regulatory
requirements to whichiitis subject throughout the year.

The Group's ICARA review document, prepared in accordance with FCA requirements, is an ongoing assessment of CMC Markets plc' risks and risk mitigation
strategies, to ensure that adequate financial resources are maintained against risks that the Group wishes to take to achieve its business objectives.

The outcome of the ICARA is presented as an Internal Capital and Liquidity Assessment document covering the Group. It is reviewed and approved by the Board on
anannual basis.

Disclosure documents have been prepared that contain relevant information regarding the Group's FCA regulated entities’ capital adequacy, risk management
objectives and policies, governance and remuneration policies and practices. These are available on the CMC Markets plc website (www.cmcmarkets.com/group).
The Group's country-by-country reporting disclosure is also available in the same location on the website.

31. Share-based payment
The Group operates both equity and cash settled share options schemes for certain employees including Directors.

Current awards have been granted under the terms of the Management Equity Plan 2015 (2015 MEP”), the Combined Incentive Plan (2018 CIP”), the UK Share
Incentive Plan (‘UK SIP”) and the International Share Incentive Plan ("Australian SIP”). Equity settled schemes are offered to certain employees, including Executive
Directorsinthe UK and Australia and automatically vest on vest date subject to conditions described below for each scheme. Cash settled schemes are offered to
certain employees outside of the UK and Australia. Equity schemes for UK employees are settled net of employee taxes due. The rights of participants in the various
employee share schemes are governed by detailed terms, including in relation to arrangements which would apply in the event of a takeover.

Consolidated Income statement charge for share-based payments
The total costs relating to these schemes for the year ended 31 March 2023 was £2,229,000 (year ended 31 March 2022: £2,418,000).

For the year ended 31 March 2023 the charge relating to equity settled share-based payments was £2,123,000 (year ended 31 March 2022: £2,269,000) and the
charge relating to cash settled share-based payments was £106,000 (year ended 31 March 2022: £149,000).

No shares were gifted to employees during the year (year ended 31 March 2022: nil).

Current schemes

2015 MEP

Share awards granted under the 2015 MEP are predominantly equity settled, with the exception of certain participants that are cash settled. The awards granted
have beenin the form of “non-market performance” awards. The Remuneration Committee approves any awards made under the 2015 MEP. Current schemes are:

— Long Term Incentive Plan: awards to senior management and critical staff, excluding Executive Directors. The awards have dividend equivalence where
additional shares will be awarded in place of dividends on vesting. The only vesting conditions of the 2020 and 2021 equity settled awards is that employees
remain employed by the Group, with the 2022 equity awards having a non-market performance condition of cumulative PBT over a three-year period in addition
to remaining employed by the Group. This was revised in May 2023, with the performance condition now being aligned to net operating income over the
same period.

The fair value of awards were calculated using the average of the share price three days prior to the grant date.

2018 CIP

Share awards granted to the Executive Directors under the 2018 CIP have beenin the form of conditional awards and are equity settled. The Remuneration
Committee approves any awards made under the 2018 CIP. Shares awarded are deferred over a period of at least three years subject to a performance underpin.
The Committee will review Group performance over the relevant period, taking into account factors such as a) the Company’s TSR performance, b) aggregate profit
levels and c) any regulatory breaches during the period.
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31.Share-based payment continued

Current schemes continued
2018 CIP continued

Number
Dividend
equivalent
Awarded Forfeited awarded Exercised

Share price Atthe start during the during the during the during the Attheend
Scheme ataward Vestingdate of the year year year year year of the year
Combined Incentive Plan 349.2p 20July2023 104,779 - — 2,995 — 107,774
Combined Incentive Plan 349.2p 20July 2024 78,584 —_ —_ 2,247 —_ 80,831
Combined Incentive Plan 349.2p 20July2025 78,581 - — 2,247 - 80,828
Combined Incentive Plan 4458p 22 July 2024 114,418 - - 3,274 - 117,692
Combined Incentive Plan 4458p  21July 2025 85,813 —_ —_ 2,455 —_ 88,268
Combined Incentive Plan 4458p 20July 2026 85,813 - — 2,455 — 88,268
Combined Incentive Plan 280.8p 14 July 2025 — 93,422 —_ 3,366 —_ 96,788
Combined Incentive Plan 280.8p  13July2026 - 70,067 — 2,524 - 72,591
Combined Incentive Plan 280.8p  12July2027 — 70,067 - 2,524 - 72,591
Long Term Incentive Plan 349.2p 20July2022 492,440 — (17,224) — (475,216) -
Long Term Incentive Plan 4458p 20July 2023 442,513 — (55,387) 14,967 — 402,093
Long TermIncentive Plan 280.8p 20July 2025 - 1,515,656 (94,485) 51,849 — 1,473,020
Total 1,482,941 1,749,212 (167,096) 90,903 (475,216) 2,680,744

The weighted average share price at exercise of awards was 292.0 pence and the weighted average exercise price of exercised awards for UK participants (346,736
shares) was £niland for Australian participants (128 480 shares) was £nil. The weighted average remaining contractual life of share awards outstanding at 31 March 2023
was 2.0 years and the weighted average share price of awards granted during the period was 280.8 pence.

In addition, cash settled awards have been granted and vest in periods from April 2023 to July 2025. Balances of 32,484 awards, 55,792, 14,534 awards, 15,899 awards
and 206,402 awards in each of the five tranches remained at the end of the period, with a total carrying value of £197,000 as at 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022:
£369,000). All of these awards benefit from dividend equivalence. The value of these awards is the share price on the date these awards vest. The weighted average
remaining contractuallife of share awards outstanding at 31 March 2023 was 1.7 years and the weighted average exercise price of exercised awards was £nil.

UK and Australia SIP awards
Shares awarded under the UK SIP scheme are held in trust in accordance with UK tax authority conditions and all shares awarded under the Australian scheme are
heldina UK trust. Employees are entitled to receive dividends in the form of additional shares on the shares held intrust as long as they remain employees.

UK employees are invited to subscribe for up to £1,800 of partnership shares relating to each tax year with the Company matching on a one-for-one basis. Allmatching
shares vest after three years should the employee remain employed by the Group for the term of the award.

Australian employees are invited to subscribe for up to the equivalent of £1,800 of investment shares with the Company matching on a one-for-one basis. Matching
shares for each scheme vest on the third anniversary after award date should the employee remain employed by the Group for the term of the award.
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31. Share-based payment continued

Current schemes continued
UK and Australia SIP awards continued

Number
Awarded Forfeited Exercised
Country Share price At the start during the during the during the Atthe end
of award Award date ataward Vesting period/date of the year year year year of the year
April2019to 79.3pto April2022to
UK March 2020 179.2p March 2023 94,226 - (3,305) (90,921) -
April2020to 194.6pto April2023 to
UK March 2021 425.2p March 2024 48,924 - (3,116) — 45,808
April2021to 225.8pto April 2024 to
UK March 2022 518.0p March 2025 73,513 - (6,655) - 66,858
April2022to 219.0pto April2025to
UK March 2023 313.6p March 2026 —_ 104,159 (6,320) - 97,839
Australia 5 April2019 83.5p 5April2022 6,432 - - (6,432) —
Australia 5 April 2020 201.0p 5 April 2023 3,179 - (865) — 2,314
Australia 6 April 2021 527.0p 6 April 2024 2,904 - B41) - 2,563
Australia 6 April 2022 270.0p 8 April 2025 — 3,175 (1) - 3,174
Total 229,178 107,334 (20,603) (97,353) 218,556

The weighted share price at the exercise date of awards exercised during the year ended 31 March 2023 was 253.5 pence (year ended 31 March 2022:
366.9 pence).

The fair value of SIP awards is determined to be the share price at grant date without making adjustments for dividends as awardees are entitled to dividend
equivalents over the vesting period.

Movement in share options
1,947,449 new share awards were granted in the year ended 31 March 2023 (year ended 31 March 2022: 890,633) and these are detailed above in the current
schemes section. Movements in the number of share awards outstanding are as follows:

Year ended Yearended

31March 2023 31March2022

GROUP Number Number
Atbeginning of year 1,712,119 2,038,686
Awarded (including dividend equivalents) 1,947,449 890,633
Forfeited (187,699) (93,628)
Exercised (572,569) (1123,572)
Atend of year 2,899,300 1,712,119

32. Retirement benefit plans

Adefined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan into which the Group pays fixed contributions to a third-party pension provider and has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Contributions are recognised as staff expenses in the income statement in the years during which related employee
services are fulfilled.

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes for its Directors and employees. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group
inindependently administered funds.

The pension charge for these plans for the year ended 31 March 2023 was £2,743,000 (year ended 31 March 2022: £2,230,000).

176 — CMC Markets plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2023



Strategic report Governance Financial statements Shareholder information 0

33. Correction of errors

The consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March 2022, the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022 and as at 1 April 2021
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been restated for the following reasons:

1. The Group recorded certain amounts relating to levies payable on its UK properties as part of the lease liabilities and calculated the value of the right of use assets
accordingly at the inception of these leases. The statutory obligation to settle these levies rests with the Group and is not linked to the leases. The inclusion of these
levies as part of lease liabilities and right of use assets was recorded incorrectly and as a result the Consolidated income statement, Consolidated statement of
financial position and Consolidated statement of Cash flows have beenrestated.

2.1AS 32: Financial instruments: Presentation — Offsetting provisions

The Group has relationships with anumber of Fls that provide brokerage services. The Group holds funds with these Fls in various currencies and enters into
contracts with these Fls which include derivative financial instruments. Upon review of the legal contracts entered into with these Fls it was concluded that the
criteria for offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability as set out in IAS 32 “Financial Instruments : Presentation” is not met for certain Fls. The Consolidated
statement of financial position has been restated to correct this error.

Inaddition, the Group has historically presented all its Current Tax recoverables / Current tax payables as a net figure on the Statement of Financial position at the
end of the year. This presentation isincorrect as the net amount presented represents amounts recoverable / payable from / to various tax authorities across the
jurisdictions where the Group operates. A Gross presentation is more accurate as individual amounts recoverable / payable from a tax authorities represents a
separate asset / liability The Consolidated statement of financial position has been restated to correct this error.

3. The Group offers CFDs and portfolio services toits clients in various jurisdictions and segregates client funds in accordance with the rules set by various regulators
within these jurisdictions. In one jurisdiction the Group is not permitted to segregate unrealised client profits / losses in to the pooled segregated client money bank
accounts. Segregation only takes place once the profits / losses have realised. The Group has previously presented these unrealised client losses / profits within
Trade and other receivables or Trade and other payable respectively. As these unrealised profits / losses relate to derivative products, the correct presentationis

within Derivative financial instruments within Current assets and Current liabilities. The Consolidated statement of financial position has been restated to correct
thiserror.

4. The Group acquired a portfolio of Share Investing clients from Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited (‘"ANZ”") in a transaction amounting to
AUD$25.0 million (£13,317,000) during the year ended 31 March 2022. This investment in intangible assets was presented in the condensed consolidated
statement of cash flows as fully settled in cash during the year ended 31 March 2022. This transaction was presented incorrectly in the condensed consolidated
statement of cash flows as only a third of the amount was paid as at 31 March 2022 to settle the associated liability. Comparative periods have been restated to
reflect this correction in the tables below. Allamounts due were settled as at 31 March 2023.

Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March 2022

Yearend Restatement 1 Yearend

31March 2022 31March2022

(Reported) (Restated)

GROUP £000 £000 £000
Operating expenses (187,637) (654) (188,291)
Operating profit 94,313 (654) 93,659
Finance costs (2177) 13 (2,164)
Profit before taxation 92,136 (641) 91,495
Taxation (20138) 122 (20,016)

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent 71,998 (519) 71,479

Please note we have reclassified the impairment line in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March 2022 to operating expenses for
presentational purposes.
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33. Correction of error continued

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022

Yearend Restatement 1 Restatement 2 Restatement 3 Yearend
31March2022 31March 2022
(Reported) (Restated)
GROUP Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 24,941 (1,771) — — 23,170
Total non-current assets 76,536 (1,771 — — 74,765
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 16 156,917 — — (8,709) 148,208
Derivatives financial instruments 17 2,359 — (2,280) 8,709 8,788
Currenttax recoverable — 350 1,299 — 1,649
Amounts due from brokers 196,117 — 12,765 — 208,882
Total current assets 559,911 350 11,784 — 572,045
Total assets 636,447 (1.421) 11,784 — 646,810
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 215,853 — — (3,227) 212,626
Amounts due to brokers — — 12,394 — 12,394
Derivatives financial instruments 17 2,362 — (1,910) 3,227 3,679
Leaseliabilities 23 4,916 33 — — 4,949
Currenttax payable 429 — 1,300 — 1,729
Total current liabilities 251,387 33 1,784 — 263,204
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 23 9,269 33 — — 9,302
Total non-current liabilities 14,695 33 — — 14,728
Total liabilities 266,082 66 11,784 — 277932
Equity
Retained earnings 327,729 (1,487) — — 326,242
Total equity 370,365 (1,487) — — 368,878
Total equity and liabilities 636,447 (1.421) 11,784 — 646,810
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33. Correction of error continued

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 April 2021

Asat1April 2021 Restatement 1 Restatement 2 Restatement 3 Asat1April2021
(Reported) (Restated)

GROUP Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 26,105 (1134) — — 24,971
Total non-current assets 44,605 (1,134) — — 43,471
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 127,119 — — 2,599 129,718
Derivatives financial instruments 3,241 — (8,071) 6,044 6,214
Current tax recoverable 1,749 227 257 — 2,233
Amounts due from brokers 253,895 — 13,91 — 267.806
Total current assets 533,029 227 11,097 8,643 552,996
Total assets 577634 (907) 11,097 8,643 596,467
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 152,253 — — 6,044 158,297
Amounts due to brokers — — 13,796 — 13,796
Derivatives financial instruments 3,077 — (2,956) 2,599 2,720
Lease liabilities 4,599 18 — — 4,617
Current tax payable — — 257 — 257
Total current liabilities 162,763 18 11,097 8,643 182,521
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 10,727 43 — — 10,770
Total non-current liabilities 14,354 43 — — 14,397
Total liabilities 177117 61 11,097 8,643 196,918
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Retained earnings 330,698 (968) — — 329,730
Total equity 400,517 (968) — — 399,549
Total equity and liabilities 577634 (907) 11,097 8,643 596,467

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022

Yearend Restatementsiand4 Yearend
31March2022 31March 2022
(Reported) (Restated)
GROUP Note £000 £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 28 181,795 (10,667) 171,128
Finance costs paid — (2138) (2138)
Net cash generated from operating activities 168,886 (12,805) 156,081
Cash flows from investing activities
Investment inintangible assets (21,813) 9,500 (12,313)
Net cash used ininvesting activities (27137) 9.500 (17,637)
Cash flows from financing activities
Principal elements of lease payments (5,962) 1154 (4,808)
Finance costs paid (2,151) 2,151 —
Net cash used in financing activities (85,468) 3,305 (82,163)

The above presentation of consolidated statement of cash flows includes a change in accounting policy whereby finance costs paid are presented within cash flows
from operating activities.
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33. Correction of error continued

The Parent company statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022 and as at 1 April 2021 and Parent company statement of cash flows for the year ended 31

March 2022 have been restated for the following reason:

5. The Company has Employee Benefit Trusts that hold shares on the behalf of employees for share based payment schemes and acts onthe Company’s
instructions to distribute the shares to employees upon vesting. The application of look-through accounting for the relationship was incorrectly applied and as
aresult comparatives periods have been restated to reflect this correction in the below tables. In addition, amounts contributed by subsidiaries in relation to
share-based payments was over-stated by £1127,000 within the Parent company statement of cash flow. This error has been corrected and presented within

Restatement 5 below.

Parent company statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022

Yearend Restatement 5 Yearend
31March 2022 31March 2022
(Reported) (Restated)
COMPANY Note £000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 15 168,962 (1,240) 167,722
Total non-current assets 168,962 (1,240) 167,722
Current assets
Cashandcashequivalents 20 28,263 183 28,446
Total current assets 29,283 183 29,466
Total assets 198,245 (1,057) 197188
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 143 33 176
Total current liabilities 27407 33 27440
Total liabilities 27407 33 27440
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Ownshares heldin trust 26 — (1,094) (1,094)
Retained earnings 78,392 4 78,396
Total equity 170,838 (1,090) 169,748
Total equity and liabilities 198,245 (1,057) 197188
Parent company statement of financial position as at 1 April 2021
Asat1April2021 Restatement5 Asat1April2021
(Reported) (Restated)
COMPANY Note £000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 168,111 (504) 167,607
Total non-current assets 168,111 (504) 167,607
Current assets
Cashandcashequivalents 167 145 312
Total current assets 14,186 145 14,331
Total assets 182,297 (859) 181,938
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 60 20 80
Total current liabilities 60 20 80
Total liabilities 13,609 20 13,629
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Ownshares heldin trust — (382) (382)
Retained earnings 49153 3 49,156
Total equity 168,688 (879) 168,309
Total equity and liabilities 182,297 (359) 181,938
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33. Correction of error continued

Parent company statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2022

Yearend Restatement5 Yearend
31March2022 31March2022
(Reported) (Restated)
COMPANY Note £000 £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 28 12,784 1137 13,921
Net cash generated from operating activities 12,309 1137 13,446
Cash flows from investing activities
Investment in subsidiaries (1,030) 1,030 —
Amounts contributed by subsidiaries in relation to share-based payments 2157 (1,127) 1,030
Net cash generated from investing activities 104,744 (97) 104,647
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds fromissue of Ordinary Shares 175 (175) —
Acquisition of own shares — (831) (831)
Dividends paid (72,608) 4 (72,604)
Net cash used in financing activities (89,957) (1,002) (89,959)
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 28,096 38 28,134
Cashand cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 167 145 312
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 28,263 183 28,446
34.Related party transactions
Company
The amounts outstanding with Group entities at year end were as follows:
Year ended Yearended
31March 2023 31March 2022
COMPANY £000 £000
Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,879 1,013
Allamounts above are repayable on demand and are non-interest bearing.
Group
Transactions between the Group and its other related parties are disclosed below:
Compensation of key management personnel
Year ended Yearended
31March2023 31March2022
GROUP £000 £000
Key management compensation:
Short-term employee benefits 2,620 2,599
Post-employment benefits 57 50
Share-based payments 609 462
3,286 3111
Aggregate remuneration of highest paid Director 871 858

Key management comprises the Board of CMC Markets plc only. Compensation of key management personnelis disclosed in the Directors remuneration report
onpage 98.

During the year £5,592.23 relating to a personal expense for Lord Cruddas was paid by CMC Markets UK plc due to an administrative error. This amount willbe
reimbursed.

Directors’transactions
A number of the Directors have company credit cards and have, during the course of the year, used the company credit cards for personal expenses. All personal
expenses have been reimbursed by the Directors, with the exception of the item above.

There were no other transactions with Directors.
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35. Contingent liabilities

The Group operates ina number of jurisdictions around the world and as a result uncertainties exist regarding the interpretation of regulatory, tax and legal matters
in these territories. In addition, the Group engages in partnership contracts that could result in non-performance claims and from time-to-time is involved in disputes
during the ordinary course of business.

Sometimes legal disputes can have a financially significant face value, but the Group's experience is that such claims are usually resolved without any material loss.
The Group provides for claims where costs are likely to be incurred.

Where there are uncertainties regarding regulatory, tax and legal matters and a provision has not been made and there are no contingent liabilities where the Group
considers any material adverse financial impact to be probable.

Notice of class action lawsuit
The Group received notice of a class action lawsuit being brought against one of its operating entities on 31 May 2022. The scope of the claimis still being defined,
and there has been no material progress. As aresult an assessment regarding the probability and size of financial outflow cannot be determined.

ANZ commitment

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had a commitment to the Australian and New Zealand Banking Group Limited (ANZ’) of up to AUD$25 million should ANZ have
recourse over the Group as aresult of CMC Markets Stockbroking Limited not meeting certain obligations under its white label contractual arrangement with
ANZ. This commitment is classed as a contingent liability as neither the probability nor amount of any potential outflow could be determined. This commitment and
associated letter of credit which existed on 31 March 2023 was extinguished on 22 May 2023.

Brexit approach

Thereisregulatory uncertainty regarding the Groupss historical approach to the use of reverse solicitation provisions allowing EEA clients to trade with UK subsidiaries after
31December 2020. Therisk to the approach has now been mitigated given the majority of EEA clients activities with the UK subsidiary ceased prior to 31March 2021. The
Group continues to engage with the regulatory authorities in the EEA markets where the UK subsidiary continued to service clients after 31 December 2020. Whilst itis
possible that regulatory censure may result from these matters, they are in their early stages and such an outcome is not currently considered probable.

UK banking surcharge

Inthe absence of them qualifying for a specific exemption, the Group's regulated companies in the UK would be subject to the Bank Corporation Tax surcharge of 8%
on taxable profits over £25 million. The Group has concluded that the relevant entities meet the exemption requirements and therefore the related tax charge, which
would amount to £23.4 million (31 March 2022: £21.8 million) in respect of all relevant periods, has not been provided for. The Group's position is supported by external
advice althoughitis possible that it could be challenged.

36. Ultimate controlling party
The Group's ultimate controlling party is Lord Cruddas by virtue of his majority shareholding in CMC Markets plc.

37.Events after the reporting period

On 6 June 2023 a subsidiary of the Group made a £2.8 million investment in StrikeX Technologies, a technology start up focused on Web3-enabled software and
tokenisation technology.
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Shareholder information

Group history

CMC Markets plc began trading in 1989 as a foreign exchange broker, led by founder Lord Peter Cruddas. In 1996, the Group launched the world's first online retail
forex trading platform, offering its clients the opportunity to take advantage of markets previously only accessible to institutional traders.

CMC Markets plc has since become a global leader in online trading. There have been a number of significant milestones for the Group over the past 30 years, asiit
has expanded into new markets around the world and continues to promote innovation and new trading technology.

In2000, CMC Markets plc expanded its business to become a CFD broker. A year later, the Group launched an online financial spread betting service, becoming
the first spread betting company to release the daily Rolling Cash® bet. The groundbreaking daily Rolling Cash® concept was to become anindustry benchmark.
In2002, CMC Markets plc openedits first overseas office in Sydney, launching into the Australian market as an online CFD and forex provider. By 2007, the Group
had expanded its global footprint with offices in New Zealand, Germany, Canada, Singapore and Sweden. Further global growth followed over the next few years,
with offices opened across Europe —and most recently in Poland, in 2015. The Group continued to grow its product offering during the year, following the launch of its
fixed-odds Countdowns product in 2015.

The Company successfully listed on the London Stock Exchange in February 2016. In April 2016 CMC Markets plc successfully introduced Digital 100s.

Further cementing its place as one of the industry leaders, the Group was awarded a number of important accolades during the year. In the 2016 Investment Trends
UK Leveraged Trading Report, which measures customer satisfaction, CMC Markets plc ranked first across 17 service categories among CFD traders. The Group
achieved the highest rating for overall satisfaction, mobile trading, platform features and charting in all three product segments of spread betting, CFD trading and FX.
Additional notable recognition came as the Company won Financial Services Provider of the Year for the fourth successive year, an award voted for by the readers of
Shares Magazine.

The Company also received Best CFD Broker for its burgeoning institutional offering, in line with one of its core strategic objectives.

The Company successfully completed the white label stockbroking partnership with ANZ Bank in Australia during 2018, representing the largest migration of client
accounts in Australian Stock Exchange history and making the Company the second largest retail stockbroker in the country.

In2021 CMC Markets launched the dedicated institutional brand, CMC Connect, positioning the Company to service the ever-growing number of client types
interested inits products.

Timeline

1989 - CMC Markets plc begins operations in the UK

1996 — Launches the world's first online retail FX trading platform

2000 - Starts offering CFDs in the UK

2001-Launches online spread betting service in the UK

2002 - Opens first non-UK office in Sydney, Australia

2005 - Offices opened in Beijing, Canada and Germany

2007 - Singapore and Sweden offices opened; and Goldman Sachs purchases 10% stake

2008 - CMC Markets (Australia) starts offering a stockbroking service following the acquisition of local stockbroker Andrew West & Co
2010 — Next Generation platform is launched; offices opened in Italy and France; and spread betting iPhone app launched in the UK
2011—CMC Markets plc wins Financial Services Provider of the Year (Shares Magazine)

2012 - Spread betting app for Android™ launched

2013 - CMC Markets plc wins 33 industry awards globally

2014 - CMC Markets plc celebrates 25 years of being a world leader in online trading

2015 - Countdowns launched; Poland and Austria offices opened; and Stockbroking Pro platform launched

2016 — CMC Markets plc lists on the London Stock Exchange, trading as CMCX; and Digital 100s launched

2018 - CMC Markets (Australia) completes the ANZ Bank white label stockbroking transaction

2019-CMC Markets plc celebrates its 30th year and launches exclusive cryptocurrency, forex and commodity indices

2020 - CMC Markets plc releases dedicated institutional brand, CMC Connect

2022 - CMC Invest launched in the UK, offering stockbroking services to UK clients
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Five-year summary

Group income statement
For the year ended 31March

2023 2022 (Restated) 2021 (Restated) 2020 2019
£m £m £m £m £m

Net operatingincome 288.4 2819 409.8 252.0 130.8
Operating expenses (233.9) (188.3) (184.7) (151.3) (123.1)
Operating profit 54.5 93.6 2251 100.7 77
Finance costs (2.3) (21) (17) (21) (1.4)
Profit before tax 52.2 915 223.3 987 6.3
Taxation (10.8) (20.0) (45.8) (17) (0.5)
Profit after tax 41.4 7.5 1776 86.9 5.8
Other metrics

2023  2022(Restated)  2021(Restated) 2020 2019
Own funds generated from operations (Em) 524 881 199.3 102.0 8.2
Profit margin
PBT margin (%) 18.1 325 545 39.2 4.8
Earnings per share (“EPS”)
Basic EPS (pence) 14.7 246 61.3 301 2.0
Diluted EPS (pence) 14.6 24.5 61.0 29.9 20
Dividend per share
Interim dividend per share (pence) 3.50 3.50 9.20 2.85 1.35
Final dividend per share (pence) 3.90 8.88 2143 1218 0.68
Total ordinary dividend per share (pence) 740 12.38 30.63 15.03 2.03
Client metrics (unaudited)

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Trading revenue per active client (£) 3,968 3,575 4560 3,750 2,068
Trading number of active clients 58,737 64,243 76,591 57,202 53,308
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Five-year summary continued

Group statement of financial position

At31March
2023 2022 (Restated) 2021 (Restated) 2020 2019
£m £m £m £m £m

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 35.3 303 10.3 46 5.0
Property, plantand equipment 22.8 23.2 25.0 281 181
Deferredtax assets 4.8 6.0 6.4 16.5 1.6
Financial investments - 13.5 — — 1.3
Trade and other receivables 2.7 1.8 1.8 23 27
Total non-current assets 65.6 74.8 435 515 487
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 130.6 148.2 129.8 186.3 118.0
Derivative financial instruments 14.2 8.8 6.2 54 29
Current tax recoverable 9.0 16 2.2 0.8 34
Financial investments 30.6 14.5 281 254 10.7
Other assets 2.0 134 — — —
Amounts due from brokers 188.2 2089 2678 134.3 881
Cashand cashequivalents 146.2 176.6 118.9 84.3 487
Total current assets 520.8 572.0 553.0 436.5 271.8
Total assets 586.4 646.8 596.5 488.0 320.5
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 182.2 212.6 158.3 1774 100.6
Amounts due to brokers 8.9 124 13.8 — —
Derivative financialinstruments 2.0 37 27 24 43
Share buyback liability — 273 — — —
Borrowings — 0.2 0.9 0.9 11
Lease liabilities 5.6 49 46 a7 —
Current tax payable 0.4 17 0.3 — —
Short-term provisions 0.8 04 19 05 0.2
Total current liabilities 200.1 263.2 1825 185.6 106.2
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables — — — — 4.8
Borrowings — — 0.2 0.8 1.2
Lease liabilities 6.2 9.3 10.8 14.6 —
Deferredtax liabilities 4.0 3.3 1.6 2.2 1.2
Long-term provisions 21 21 18 19 20
Total non-current liabilities 12.3 147 14.4 19.5 9.2
Total liabilities 212.4 2779 196.9 2051 115.4
EQUITY
Total equity 374.0 368.9 3995 2829 2051
Total equity and liabilities 586.4 646.8 596.5 488.0 320.5
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Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023

Ex-dividend date: Thursday 13 July 2023

Record date: Friday 14 July 2023

Last date to register DRIP instructions: Wednesday 26 July 2023
Dividend payment date: Friday 11 August 2023

Shareholders may request that their dividends be used to purchase further
shares in the Company via the Dividend Reinvestment Plan (‘DRIP"). Requests
should be made via the registrars. Shareholders who have already opted to
have their dividends reinvested do not need to re-apply.

Annual General Meeting (‘AGM”)

The 2023 AGM will be held at 10:00 a.m on Thursday 27 July 2023 at
133 Houndsditch, London EC3A 7BX.

Registrars/shareholder enquiries

Link Group can be contacted to deal with any questions regarding your
shareholding using the contact details listed below. Alternatively, you can
access www.cememarketsshares.co.uk, where you can view and manage all
aspects of your shareholding securely.

E: shareholderenquiries@linkgroup.co.uk

Mail

Link Group

10th Floor

Central Square

29 Wellington Street
Leeds.S14DL

Phone
T:0371664 0300

Calls to 0371664 0300 are charged at the standard geographic rate and will
vary by provider. Calls outside the United Kingdom are charged at the applicable
international rate. Phone lines are open between 09:00 — 17:30, Monday to
Friday excluding public holidays in England and Wales.

CMC Markets plc

133 Houndsditch
London
EC3A7BX
United Kingdom

Registered number: 05145017
T:020 71708200

Website: www.cmcmarkets.com
LEI 213800VB75KAZBFH5U07

Company Secretary
DeborahFish
Investor relations

E:investorrelations@cmcmarkets.com
Website: www.cmcmarkets.com/group/investor-relations
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PeelHunt LLP
100 Liverpool Street
London

EC2M 2AT

RBC Capital Markets
100 Bishopsgate
London
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Appendices

Appendix: Alternative Performance Measures

a.Reconciliation of trading gross clientincome to trading net revenue

2023 2022
GROUP £m £m
Trading gross clientincome 303.5 288.5
Client rebates, introducing partner commissions and levies (20.4) (20.6)
Risk management gains / (losses) (50.0) (38.3)
Trading net revenue 2331 229.6
b. Reconciliation of investing net revenue
2023 2022
GROUP £m £m
Investing gross revenue 55.7 74.4
Investing introducing partner commissions (note 3) (17.8) (26.4)
Investing net revenue 379 48.0
c.Reconciliation of trading gross clientincome to trading net revenue
2023 2022
GROUP £m £m
Trading netrevenue (a) 2331 229.6
Investing net revenue (b) 37.9 48.0
Otherrevenue (note 4) 3.5 35
Interestincome (note 4) 13.9 0.8
Net operatingincome 288.4 2819
Reconciliation of non-statutory summary Group Balance Sheet to primary statements
Fixed assets
March 23 March 22
GROUP £'000 £000
Intangible assets (note 12) 35,342 30,328
Property, plant and equipment (note 13)! 22,771 23,170
Lease liabilities (note 23)! (11,818) (14,251)
Lease debtors presented within other debtors presented (note 16) 392 —
Fixed assets 46,687 39,247
Fixed assets (rounded to £m) 46.7 39.3
Working capital
March23 March 22
GROUP £°000 £000
Trade and other receivables (note 16)’ 133,282 150,005
Lease debtors presented within fixed assets above (392) —
Derivative financial instruments —client CFD positions (note 17) 13,125 8,710
Trade and other payables (note 21) (182,284) (212,626)
Share buyback liability (note 27) — (27,264)
Borrowings (note 22) — (194)
Provisions (note 24)! (2,902) (2,486)
Title transfer funds’ 49,409 44133
Working capital 8,205 (42,949)
Working capital (rounded up to £m) 8.2 (43.0)
1 2022 figures restated. See note 33 for more detail.
2 Amounts deducted from ‘own funds'.
Deferred tax net asset
March 23 March 22
GROUP £000 £000
Deferredtax assets (note 14) 4,768 6,022
Deferredtax liabilities (note 14) (4,012) (3,309)
Deferred tax net asset 756 2,713
Deferred tax net asset (rounded to £m) 0.8 2.7
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